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CONSOLIDATED RAIL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Summary -f Significant Accounting Policies 

Industry 
ConsoYidatVd" Rail Corporation (the "Company"), a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Conrail Inc.("Conrail"), operates a freight 
railroad system within the northeast and midwest United States 
and the Province of Quebec. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the Conpany and 
majority-owned Fubsidiaries. Investments in 20% to 50% owned 
conpanies are accounted for by the equity method. 

Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents consist of commercial paper, certificates of 
deposit and other liquid securities purchased with a maturity of 
three months or less, and are stated at cost which approximates 
market value. 

Material and Supplies 
Material and supplies consist mainly of fuel oil and items for 
maintenance of property and equipment, and are valued at the 
lower of cost, principally weighted average, or market. 

Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation i s 
provided using the conposite straight-line method. The cost (net 
of salvage) of depreciable property retired or replaced m the 
ordinary course of business is charged to accumulated 
depreciation and no gain or loss i s recognized. 

Asset Impairment 
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an 
asset may not be recoverable. Expected future cash flows from 
the use and disposition of long-lived assets are compared to the 
current carrying amounts to determine the potential impairment 
loss. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized proportionally as a shipment moves on the 
Company's system from origin to destination. 

Ratio of H*rnings_to_Fixed_Charges 
Eaminas used m computing the ratio of eamings to fixec' charges 
represent inco.Tie before income taxes plus fixed charges, less 
equity in uraistributed earnings of 20% to 50% owned companies. 
Fixed charr/es represent interest expense together with int'srest 
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capitalized and a portion of rent under long-term operating 
leases representative of an interest factor. 

New Accounting Standards 
During 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 121, 
"Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of" (SFAS 121) and SFAS No. 123, 
•'Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" (SFAS 123), which are 
both effective in 1996, The Company has decided to adopt only 
the disclosure provisions of SFAS 123 in 1996 and continues to 
apply APB Opinion No, 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees" (APB 25) and related interpretations in accounting for 
its stock-based compensation plans. The Company adopted SFAS 121 
in the first quarter of 1996 and determined that i t did not have 
a material effect on its financial statements. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires mauagement to 
make est-imates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and l i a b i l i t i e s and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported am.ounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, 

2. Proposed Keroer 

On October 14, 1996, Conrail, CSX Corporation ("tSX") and a 
subsidiary' of CSX entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (as 
amended, the "Merger Agreement"), pursuant to which Conrail was tc 
be merged with a subsidiary of CSX in a merger-of-equals 
transaction. 

On October 24, 1996, Norfolk Southern Corporation ("Norfolk") 
commenced an unsolicited tender offer for a l l outstanding Conrail 
voting stock at $100 per share in cash. Norfolk has since 
increased i t s offer to $115 per share in cash. 

On Nover±)er 20, 1996, CSX concluded i t s first tender offer and 
purchased approximately 19.9% of Conrail's outstanding shares for 
$110 per share. 

On December 18, 1996, CSX and Conrail entered into a second 
amendment to the Merger Agreement (the "Second Amendment") that 
would, am.-̂ng other things, (i) increase the consideration payable 
pursuant to the merger, (ii) accelerate the consummation of the 
tnerger to immediately following the receipt of applicable 
shareholder approvals and prior to the Surface Transportation 
Board ("STB") approval and ( i i i ) extend until December 31, 1998 an 
exclusivity period during which the Conrail Board agreed not to 
withdrav or modify its recommendations of the CSX transactions. 
apprô •e or recommend any takeover proposal or cause Comail to 
enter into any agreement related to any takeover proposal. 
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On Ja.nuary 13, 19?7. Norfolk issued a press release announcing 
that i t would offer vo purchase shares representing 9.9% of the 
outstanding shares for $115 per share, in the evenr. that Conrail 
shareholders did not approve a proposal to opt out of a 
Permsylvania statute (the "Opt Out Proposal") at the meeti .g of 
shareholders to be held on January 17, 1997 (the "Special 
Shareholders Meeting"), 

On January 17, 1997, Conrail shareholders voted at the Special 
Shareholders Meeting against the Opt Out Proposal, 

On February 4, 1997, the amended-Norfolk tender offer expired, and 
Norfolk subsequently purchased approximately 8.2 million shares 
pursuant thereto. 

On March 7, 1997, Corrail and CSX entered into a Third Amendment 
(the "Third Amendment") to the Merger Agreement, Pursuant to the 
Third Amendment, (i) the price per share has been increased from 
$110 to $115, and the number of shares to be purchased in the 
tender offer has been increased to a l l outstanding shares. The 
tender offer is scheduled to close April 18, 1997 (subject to 
extension by CSX to June 2, 1997 whether or not the conditions 
have been satisfied), ( i i ) the consideration paid per share in the 
merger for a l l remaining outstanding shares following consumiriation 
of the offer has been increased to $115 in cash and ( i i i ) the 
conditions to the offer relating to certain provisions of 
Pennsylvania law becom.in̂  inapplicable to Conrail and relating 
pending governmental actions or proceedings have been deleted. 

The Third Amendment also provides that CSX will have sole control 
over the regulatory approval process and will be free to conduct 
by itself discussions with other railroads, including Norfolk, 
relating to competitive issues raised by t.ie CSX transactions, and 
to enter into any resulting agreement. It is anticipated that CSX 
and Norfolk will negotiate an appropriate division of Conrail's 
assets; however, neither the pending CSX tender offer nor the 
merger is conditioned on CSX's reaching an agreement with Norfolk. 

Pursuant to the Third Amendment, three members of Conrail's Board 
of Directors approved by CSX shall be invited to join the CSX 
Board of Directors and a tr?.nsition team will be established, the 
leadership of which will include senior executive officers of CSX 
and Conrail to ensu.re the orderly operation of Conrail during the 
regulatory approval process and an orderly transition thereafter. 

Under the Third Amendment, Conrail and CSX agreed to reduce from 
December 31, 1998 to December 31, 1997 the period of time during 
which the Conrail Board is prohibited from (i) withdrawing or 
modifying, or publicly proposing to withdraw or modify, i t s 
approval or recommendation of the CSX transactions, in a manner 
adverse to CSX, (ii) approving or recommending, or publicly 
proposing to approve or recommend, any competing proposal or ( i i i ) 
causing Conrail to enter intoany agreement related to any such 
competing proposal. 
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Under the Merger Agreement as amended, Conrail may terminate the 
Merger Agreement in the event that alter June 2, 1997, CSX fails 
to consummate the tender offer for any reason other than the non­
occurrence of any condition to the tender offer. In the event 
that CSX fails to consummate the tender offer under such 
circumstances, Conrail will be entitled to exercise any additional 
remedies i t may have. 

The full terms amd conditions of the CSX and Norfolk offers and 
Conrail's position with respect to the CSX and Norfolk offers are 
set forth in documents filed by Conrail with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 

3. Voluntary Separation Programs 
During the second quarter of 1996, the Conpany recorded a charge 
of $135 million (before tax benefits of $52 million) consisting 
of $102 million in termination benefits to be paid to non-union 
employees participating in the voluntary retirei.ient and 
separation programs ("voliintary separation programs") and losses 
of $33 million on non-cancelable leases for office space no 
longer required as a result of the reduction in the Conpany's 
workforce. Over 840 applications were accepted from eligible 
employees under the voluntary separation programs. 
Approximately $90 million of the termination benefits are being 
paid from the Company's overfunded pension plan. 

4. Related Party Transactions 
The Company engages in various transactions with Conrail. The 
Conpany funds the cash requirements of Conrail primarily through 
cash dividends, which totaled $261 million, $229 million and $170 
million in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. The Company is 
obligated to pay a management fee to Conrail equal to the amount 
cf preferred dividends declared by Conrail in connection with the 
Non-union ESOP, which totaled $20 million in 1996 anc? $21 mdllion 
in 1995 and 1994, and is recorded in "Other income, net" on the 
consolidated statements of income (Notes 9 and 13). Advances 
between the two companies accrue interest at the Federal Reserve 
Bank's 30-day average interest rate. The resulting interest 
income and interest expense on advances to and from Conrail were 
immaterial to the Company's financial statements. A summary of 
the Com.pany's transactions with Conrail are as follows: 

December 31, 
1996 1995 
'(In Millions) 

Short-term receivable $ 8 $14 
Short-term payable 26 18 
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5. Property and Equipment 

Roadway 
Equipment 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Allowance f o r d i s p o s i t i o n 

Capital leases (p r i m a r i l y equipment) 
Accumulated amortization 

December 31, 

1996 1995 

(In Millions) 

$ 7. 021 $ 6,828 
1,229 1.211 
(1,652) (1,570) 

(408) (439) 

6,190 6.030 

908 908 
(508) (530) 

400 378 

$ 6,590 $ 6.408 

The Conpany acquired equipment and incurred related long-term debt 
under various c a p i t a l leases of $82 m i l l i o n i n 1996, $71 m i l l i o n 
i n 1995 and $8 m i l l i o n i n 1994. I n 1995 (Note 11) and 1991, the 
Conpany recorded allowances f o r d i s p o s i t i o n for the sale or 
abandonment of cert a i n uncfer-utilized r a i l l i n e s and other 
f a c i l i t i e s , 

€. Accrued and Other Current L i a b i l i t i e s 

Freight settlements due others 
Equipment rents ( p r i m a r i l y car hire) 
Unearned f r e i g h t revenue 
Property and corporate taxes 
Other 

December 31, 

1996 1995 

(In Millions) 

$ 44 
74 
7» 
47 

201 

(445 

$ 52 
71 
56 
67 

246 

$492 
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7. Long-Term Debt 
Long-term debt outstanding, including the weighted average 
interest rates at December 31, 1996. is composed of the fol lowing: 

December 31, 

Capital leases 
Medium-term notes payable, 
6.70%, due 1997 to 1999 

Notes payable, 9,75%, due 2000 
Debentures payable, 7,88%, due 2043 
Debentures payable. 9.75%, due 2020 
Equipment and other obligations, 6.J 
Commercial paper, 5.53% 

Less current portion 

1996 19S5 

(In M il l i o n s ) 
$ 491 $ 489 

109 208 
250 250 
250 250 
544 544 
262 251 
100 100 

2,006 2,092 
(130) (181) 

$1,876 
mmmmm 

$1,911 
mmmmmm Using current market prices when available, or a valuation based 

on the yield to maturity of comparable debt instruments having 
similar characteristics, credit rating and maturity, the total 
fair value of the Company's long-term debt, including the current 
portion, but excluding capital leases, i s $1,685 million and 
$1,870 million at December 31. 1996 and 1995. respectively, 
compared with carrying values of $1,515 million and $1,603 
million at December 31. 1996 and 1995. respectively. 

The Company's noncancelable long-term leases generally include 
options to purchase at f a i r value and to extend the terms. 
Capital leases have been discounted at rates ranging from 3.09% 
to 14.26% and are collateralized by assets with a net book value 
of $400 million at December 31, 1996, 

Minimum commitments, exclusive of executory costs borne by the 
Conpany. are: 

1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 

Total 

- 2017 

Less interest portion 

Present value 

Ciupital Operating 
Leases Leases 

(In Millions) 
$ 107 $115 

96 104 
86 87 
64 76 
57 68 

273 523 

683 $973 
mmmm 

(192) 

$ 491 
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Operating lease rent expense was $127 m.illion in 1996, $130 
million in 1995 and $118 million in 1994. 

In June 1593, the Company and Conrail filed a shelf registration 
statement on Form S-3 to enable the Company to issue up to $500 
million in debt securities or Conrail to issue up to $500 million 
in convertible debt and eqjity securities. The remaining balance 
under this shelf registration was $312 million at December 31, 
1996. 

In April 1996, the Company issued $50 million of Pass-Through 
Certificates at a rate of 6,96% to finance equipment. Although 
the certificates are not direct obligations of, or guaranteed by 
the Conpany. amounts payable under related capital leases will be 
sufficient to pay principal and interest on the certificates. 

In July 1996, the Company issued $26 million of 1996 Equipment 
Trust Certificates, Series A, with interest rates ranging from 
6.0% to 7,48%, maturing annually from 1997 to 2011. The 
certificates were used to finance approximately 85% of the 
purchase price of twenty locomotives. 

In June 1996, the Conpany borrowed $69 million against the cash 
surrender value of the company-owned l i f e insurance policies 
which i t maintains on certain of i t s non-union employees. 

Equipment and other obligations mature in 1997 through 2043 and 
are collateralized by assets with a net book value of $253 
million at December 31, 1996. Maturities of long-term debt other 
than capital leat-es and commercial paper are $65 million in 1997, 
$46 million in 19S8, $46 millior in 1999, $266 million in 2000, 
$17 million in 2001 and $975 million in total from 2002 through 
2043. 

The Conpany had $199 million of commercial paper outstanding at 
December 31, 1996, Of the total amount outstanding, $100 million 
is classified as long-term since i t is expected to be refinanced 
through subsequent issuances of commercial paper and i s supported 
by the long-term credit facility mentioned below. 

The Company maintains a $500 million uncollateralized bank credit 
agreement with a group of banks which is used for general 
corporate purposes and to support i t s commercial paper program. 
The agreement matures in 2000 and requires interest to be paid on 
amounts borrowed at rates based on various defined short-term 
rates and an annual maximum fee of ,125% of the facility amounts. 
The agreement contains, among other conditions, restrictive 
covenants relating to a debt ratio and consolidated tangible net 
worth. During 1996, the Conpany had no .ocrrowings under this 
agreement. 

Interest payments were $170 million in 1196, $177 million in 1995 
and $174 million in 1994, 
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8. Income Taxes 
The provisions for income taxes are composed of the following; 

1996 1995 1994 
(In Millions) 

Current 
Federal $ 87 $ 75 $104 
State 8 15 

!_!? .A2 119 

Deferred 
Federal 149 111 125 
State 31 _ J3) 25 

180 108 150 

Special income tax obligation 
(80) (61) (53) Federal (80) (61) (53) 

State _a4) ^ a2) _ J9) 
'(94) J 7 3 ) 'j62) 

$181 
mmmm 

$125 
mmmm 

$207 
s s s s 

In conjunction with the public sale in 1987 of the 85% of thi^ 
Conpany's common stock then owned by the U.S. Government, federal 
legislation was enacted which resulted m a reduction of the tax 
basis of certain of the Company's assets, particularly property 
and equipment, thereby substantially decreasing tax depreciation 
deductions and increasing future federal income tax payments. 
Also, net operating loss and investment tax credit carryforwards 
were canceled. As a result of the sale-related transactions, a 
special income tax obligation was recorded in 1987 based on an 
estimated effective federal and state income tax rate of 37.0%, 

As a result of a d'*crease in a state income tax rate enacted 
during 1995, income tax expense for 1995 was reduced by $21 
million representing the effects of adjusting deferred income 
taxes and the special income tax obligation for the rate decrease 
ai; required by SFAS 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS 
109"). 

In November 1996, the Conpany reached a settlement with the 
Intemal Revenue Service related to the audit of the Company's 
consolidated federal income tax returns for the fiscal years 1990 
through 1992. The Company made a payment of $39 million pending 
resolution of the final interest determination related to the 
settlement. Federal and state income tax payments were $145 
million in 1996 (excluding tax settlement), $109 million in 1995 
and $80 million in 1994, 
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Reconciliations of the U.S, statutory tax rates with the 
effective tax rates are as follows: 

1996 1995 1994 
Statutory tax rate 35. 0% 35,0% 35,0% 
State income taxes. 

net of federal benefit 3.3 3,5 3,9 
Effect of state tax decrease 
on deferred tauces !5.5) 

Other (3.2) (,2) .5 

Effective tax rate 35.1% 32,8% 39.4% 

Significant components of the Company's special income tax 
obligation and deferred income tax l i a b i l i t i e s and (assets) 
are as follows: 

December 31, 

-.-!!! 

(In Millions) 
Current assets (primarily accounts 
receivable) 
Current l i a b i l i t i e s (primarily accrued 
l i a b i l i t i e s and casualty reserves) 

Reserve of intercompany receivables 
Miscellaneous 

Currant deferred tax asset, net 
Noncurrent l i a b i l i t i e s : 
Property and equipment 
Other long-term assets (primarily prepaid 
pension asset) 

Miscellanr?ous 

Noncurrent assets: 
Nondeductible reserves and other 
l i a b i l i t i e s 

Tax benefit transfer receivable 
Alternative mdnimum tax credits 
Miscellaneous 

(9) 

(245) 
(31) 

Special income tax obligation and 
deferred income tax lia b i l i t i e s , net 

! (285) 
: S B B s s 

1,939 

92 
98 

2,129 

(174) 
(36) 

J89) 
(299) 

$1,830 

(27) 

(265) 
(31) 
(2) 

1.936 

67 
66 

2, 069 

(144) 
(33) 
(38) 
a3) 

__^228) 

$1,841 

-27. 

390 



Employee Benefits 

Pension Plans 

The Conpany and certain subsidiaries maintain defined benefit 
pension plans which are noncontributory for a l l non-union 
employees and generally contributory for participating union 
employees. Benefits are based primarily on credited years of 
service and the level of compensation near retirement. Funding 
i s based on the minimum amount required by the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 

Pension credits include the following conponents; 

1996 1995 1994 

(In Millions) 

Service cost - benefits eamed during the period $ 9 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 51 
Retum on plan assets - actual (138) 

- deferred 47 
Net amortization and deferral (15) 

$ (46) 

$ 8 
51 

(254) 
167 
(15) 

; 8 
48 
(10) 
(77) 
(15) 

$(43) $(46) 
m s C S B B S S 

The funded status of the pension plans and the amounts 
reflected in the balance sheets are as follows: 

1996 1995 

"•"(in Millions) 
Accumulated benefit obligation ($655 million 
and $603 mi_j.ion vested, respectively) $ 661 $ 609 

Market value of plan assets '".111 "168 
Projected benefit obligation (726) 
Plan assets in excess of projected 

benefit obligation 453 442 
Unrecognized prior service cost 36 50 
Unrecognized transition net as£»t (90) (120) 
Unrecognized net gain (231) J157) 
Net prepaid pension cost $ 168 $ 215 

B S B B B 

The assumed weighted average discount rates used in 1996 and 19'95 
are 7.5% and 7,0%. respectively, and the rate of increase in 
future conpensation levels used in determining the actuarial 
present value of the projected benefit obligation as of 
December 31, 1996 and 1995 i s 6.0%. The expected long-term rate 
of return on plan assets (primarily equity securities) in 1996 
and 1995 i s 9.0%. 
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Savings Plans 
The Company and certain subsidiaries provide 401(k) savings 
plans for union and non-union employees. Under the Non-union 
ESOP, 100% of emplovee contributions are matched in the form of 
ESOP Stock for tlie fiiSt 6% of a participating employee's base 
pay. There is no Company match provision under the union 
employee pl?:i. Savings plan expense was $4 million in 1996 and 
1995, and $5 million in 1994. 

In connection with the Non-union ESOP, the Company issued shares 
of its ESOP Stock to the Non-union ESOP in exchange for a 20 
year promissory note with interest currently at 8 0% from the 
Non-union ESOP in the principal amount of $288 million. In 
conjunction with the formation of the holding company in 1993, 
each share of the Company's preferred stock, a l l of which were 
held by the Non-union ESOP, was automatically converted into one 
share of preferred stock of Conrail and the promissory note 
receivable from the Non-union ECOP plus the accrued interest of 
$21 million were reclassified by the Conpany to the 
stoc)cholder's equity section of i t s balance sheet. Uneumed 
ESOP compensation is now amortized and charged to the '"ompany by 
Conrail as shares of ESOP Stock are allocated to participants. 
Approximately 2.7 million ESOP shares have been cumulatively 
allocated to participants through December 31, 1996, and a 
portion of these shares iiave been tendered to CSX (Note 2) . An 
amount equivalent to the preferred dividends declared cn the 
ESOP Stock proportionally offsets compensation expense of the 
Conpany and interest expense of Conrail related to the Non-union 
ESOP, 

Conrail makes dividend payments at a rate of 7.51% on the ESOP 
Stock and the Company makes additional contributions in an 
aggregate am.ount sufficient to enable the Non-union ESOP to make 
the required interest and principal payments on i t s note. 

Compensation expense related to the Non-union ESOP was $11 
million in 1996, and $10 million in 1995 and 1994. The Company 
received debt service payments from the Non-union ESOP of $40 
million in 1996, $31 million in 1995 and $21 million in 1994, 

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 
The Company provides health and l i f e insurance benefits to 
certain retired non-union enployees. Certain non-union 
employees are eligible for retiree medical benefits, while 
substantially a l l non-union employees are eligible for retiree 
l i f e insurance benefits. Generally, company-provided health 
care benefits terminate when individuals reach age 65, 

Retiree l i f e insurance plan assets consist of a retiree l i f e 
insurance reserve held in the Company's group l i f e insurance 
policy. There are no plan as'sets for the retiree health 
benefits plan. 
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The following sets forth the plans' funded status reconciled 
with amounts reported i n the Company's balance sheets: 

1996 1995 

Life Life 
Medical Insurance Medical Insurance 
Plan Plan Plan Plan 

(In Millions) 
Accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation: 
Retirees $44 $20 $38 $19 
Fully e l i g i b l e active plan 
participsints 1 S I 
Other active plan participants 3 5 

Accumulated benefit obligation 45 23 43 25 
Market value of plan assets (10) Ĉ ) 

Accumulated benefit obligation 
in excess of plan assets 45 13 43 I t 

Unrecognized gains and (losses) (1) 2 1 (1) 
Accrued benefit cost recognized 

in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet $44 $15 $44 $17 

mmm mmm mmm mmm 
Net periodic postretirement 
benefit cost, primarily 
interest cost $ 3 $ 1 $ 4 $ 1 

BBS mmm mmm mmm 

An 8 percent rate of increase in per capita costr: of covered 
health care benefits was acsumed for 1997, gradually decreasing 
to 6 percent by the year 2007. Increasing the assumed health 
care cost trend rates by one percentage point i n each year would 
increase the accumulated postretirement benefit .obligation as of 
December 31, 1996 by $2 million and vould have an immaterial 
effect on the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 1996, 
Discount rates of 7,5% and 7,0% were used to determine the 
accumulated postretirement benefit obligations for both the 
medical and l i f e insurance plans i n 1996 and 1995, respectively. 
The assumed rate of compensation increase was 6,0% i n 1996 and 
5.0% i n 1995, 

Retiree medical benefits are funded by a combination of Conpany 
and retiree contributions. Retiree l i f e insurance benefits are 
provided by insurance companies whose prsmiums are based on 
claims paid during the year. 
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10, Capital Stock 
The Company is authorized to issue 25 million shares of 
preferred stock with no par value. The Board of Directors has 
the authority to divide the preferred stock into series and to 
determine the rights and preferences of each. 

Subsecfuent to July 1. 1993, the Conpany had 100 shares of common 
stock outstanding, a l l held by Conrail, All of the Company's 
long-term incentive plans were amended in 1993 to reflect the 
use of Conrail's common stock. The Conpany applies APB 25 and 
related interpretations in accounting for the Conrail plans. 
Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its 
fixed stock option plans. SFAS 123 was issued in 1995 and. i f 
fully adopted, would change the method of recognition of costs 
on plans similar to those cf Conrail, Adoption of SFAS 123 is 
optional; however, pro forma disclosures as i f the Conpany had 
adopted the cost recognition requirements under SFAS 123 in 1996 
and 1995 are presented below, Conrail's stock-based conpensation 
plans as of December 31, 1996 are described below, 

Conrail's 1987 and 1991 Long-Term Incentive Plans authorize the 
granting to officers and key enployees of up tc 4 million and 
6,6 million shares of common stock. respectiveJ.y. through stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, phantom stock and awards of 
restricted or perfoi-nance shares, A stock option is exercisable 
for a specified term commencing after grant at a price not less 
than thfj ia ir market value of the stock on the date of grant. 
The ve'iting of awards made pursuant to these plans is contingent 
upon one or more cf the following: continued employment, passage 
of time or financial and other performance goals. 

Effective November 1996, Conrail's Board of Directors authorized 
the automatic vesting of a l l unvested stock options outstanding in 
connection with the Merger Agreement betweei CSX and Conrail (Note 
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The activity and status of 
plans follow: 

stock options under the incentive 

Non-qualified Stock Options_ 

Balance, January 1, 1994 
Granted 
Exercised 
Canceled 

Balance, December 31, 1994 
Granted 
Exercised 
Canceled 

Balance. December 31. 1995 
Granted 
Exercised 
Canceled 

Option Price 
Per Share 

$14,000 
$52,188 
$14.000 
$42,625 

$14,000 
$50,688 
$14,000 
$42,625 

$14,000 
$68,563 
$14,COO 
$42,625 

$60,500 
$66 .938 
$51,375 
$60,500 
$66,938 
$68,563 
$53,875 
$53,875 

$68,563 
*5£.063 
$73,250 
$70,031 

Balance. December 31, 1996 $14,000 - $96,063 

Shares 
Under Option 
""l,966,321 

23,988 
(507,450) 
(118,904) 

1,363,955 
516,757 
(200,940) 
(123,560) 

1,556.212 
551.038 

(1.268.085) 
(3.984) 

835.181 

Exercisable. 
December 31. 1996 

Available for future grants 
December 31, 1995 

December 31. 1996 

$14,000 - $74,188 831,481 
r S S B S B S S B S 

1,188^193 

'379ii7317 

The weighted average exercise prices of options granted during 1996 
and 1995 are $70,130 per share and $51,204 per share, respectively. 
The weighted average exercise prices of options exercised during 
1*996 and 1995 are $48,32 per share and $31.16 per share, 
respectively. The average remaining maximum terms of options i s 
not considered meaningful given thj events that have occurred as a 
result of Conrail's proposed merg'-.r with CSX (Note 2). 

The f a i r value of each option granted during 1996 i s estimated on 
the date of orant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with 
the following weighted average assumptions: (1) dividend yield of 
2 43%, (2) expected v o l a t i l i t y of 25,25%. (3) risk-free interest 
rate of 5.51%, and (4) expected l i f e of 4 years. The weighted 
average f a i r value of options granted during 1996 and 1995 i s 
$16.00 per share and $13.12 per share, respectively. 

Had the compensation cost for Conrail's 1996 and 1995 grants for 
stock-based compensation plans been determined consistent with SFAS 
123. the Company's net income for 1996 and 1995 would approximate 
the pro forma amounts below ($ in millions): 

1996 1995 

Net income as reported 
Net income pro forma 

$ 335 
326 

$ 256 
254 
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Conrail has granted phantom shares and restricted stock under 
its non-union employee bonus plans to eligible employees who 
elect to defer a l l or a portion of their annual bonus in a given 
year. The number of shares granted depends on the length of the 
deferral period. Grants are made at the market price of 
Conrail's common stock at the date of grant. Conrail has 
granted 148,749 shares and 337,329 shares of phantom and 
restricted stock, respectively, under i t s non-union employee 
bonus plans through December 31, 1996. Conrail has also granted 
73,344 performance shares under its 1991 Long-Term Incentive 
Plan through December 31, 1996, Conpensation expense related to 
these plans was $2 million in 1996 and $3 million in 1995, The 
weighted-average fair value for the phantom shares and 
restricted stock granted during 1996 and 1995 was $68.02 per 
share and $52.88 per share, respectively. 

11. Asset Disposition Charge 

Included in 1995 operating expenses i s an asset disposition 
charge of $283 million, which reduced net income by $175 
million. The asset disposition charge resultrid from a review of 
the Conpany's route system and other operating assets to 
determine those that no longer effectively and economically 
supported current and expected operations. The Conpany 
identified and has committed to sell 1,800 miles of r a i l lines 
that are expected to provide proceeds substantially less than 
net book value. In addition, other assets, principally yards 
and side tracks, identified for disposition were written down tc 
estimated net realizable value (See Note 1 "Asset Impairment"), 

12. 1994 Early Retirement Program 

During 1994, the Company recorded a charge of $84 million, which 
reduced net income by $51 m.illion, for a non-union employee 
volxintary early retirement program and related costs. The 
majority of the cost of the early retirement program is being 
paid from the Company's overfunded pension plan. 

13. Other Income, Net 

Interest income 
Rental income 
Property sales 
Management fee 
Other, net 

1996 1995 1994 

(In Millions) 
$ 30 $ 33 $ 34 

50 57 53 
23 27 16 
(20) (21) (21) 
9 15 17 

$92 
B B B B 

$111 
mmmm 

$101 
mmmm 
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14. Commitments and Contingencies 
Environmental 

The Company is subject to various federal, state and local laws 
and reg-.ilations regarding environmental matters. The Company is 
a party to various proceedings brought by both regulatory 
agencies and private parties under federal, state and local 
laws, including Superfund laws, and has also received inquiries 
from governmental agencies with respect to other potential 
environmental issues. At December 31, 1996, the Company has 
received, together with other companies, notices of i t s 
involvement as a potentially responsible party or requests for 
information under the Superfund laws with respect to cleanup 
and/or removal costs due to its status as an alleged 
transporter, generator or property owner at 135 locations. 
However, based on currently available information, the Conpany 
believes that i t may have some potential responsibility at only 
61 of these sites. Due to the number of parties involved at 
many of these sites, the wide range of costs of possible 
remediation altematives, the changing technology and the length 
of time over which these matters develop, i t is often not 
possible to estimate the Company's liability for the costs 
associated with the assessment and remediation of contaminated 
sites, 

Although the Company's operating results and liquidity could be 
significantly affscted in any quarterly or annual reporting 
period i f i t were ncld principally liable in certain of these 
actions, at December 31, 1996, the Company had accrued $55 
million, an amount i t believes is sufficient to cover the 
probable l i a b i l i t y and remediation costs that will be incurred 
at Superfund sites and other sites based on known information 
and using various estimating techniques. The Company believes 
the ultimate liability for these matters will not materially 
affect its consolidated financial condition. 

The Company spent $11 million in 1996, $14 million in 1995 and 
$6 million in 1994 for environmental remediation and related 
costs and anticipates spending an amount comparable to that 
spent in 1996 during 1997. In addition, th« Company's capital 
expenditures for environmental control and abatement projects 
were approximately $6 million in i996 and 1995, and $5 million 
in 1994, and are anticipated to be approximately $10 million in 
1997. 

The Environmental Quality i^epartment is charged with promioting 
the Company's compliance w;'.th laws and regulations affecting the 
environment and instituting environmentally sound operating 
practices. The department monitors the status of the sites 
where the Company is allv»ged to have li a b i l i t y and continually 
reviews the information {iva-..lable and assesses the adequacy of 
the recorded l i a b i l i t y . 

Other 
The Company i s involved in various legal actions, principally 
relating to occupational health claims, personal injuries, 
casualties, property damage and damage to lading. The Company 
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has recorded lia.bilities on its balance sheet for amounts 
sufficient to cover the expected payments for such actions. 

The Company may be contingently liable for approximately $63 
million at December 31, 1996 under indemnification provisions 
related to sales of tax benefits. 

The Company had an average of 20,761 employees in 1996, 
approximately 87% of whom are represented by 14 different labor 
organizations and are covered by 22 separate collective 
bargaining agreements. The Company was engaged in collective 
bargaining at December 31, 1996 with labor organizations 
representing approximately 22% of i t s labor force. 

In 1994, Locomotive Management Services, a general partnership 
of which the Company holds a fifty percent interest, issued $96 
million of Equipment Trust Certificates to fund the purchase 
price of 60 new locomotives. While principal and interest 
payments on certificates will be fully guaranteed by the Company, 
through a sharing agreement with i t s partner, the Conpany's 
portion of the guarantee is reduced to approximately $48 million, 
effective January 1, 1997, with the Conpany's purchase of twenty 
of the locomotives. 

The Company has received three adverse jury verdicts related to 
railroad crossing accide^E in Ohio that include significant 
punitive damage awards that collectively approximate $30 million. 
The Company believes the punitive damage awards in those cases are 
improper and that i t has meritorious defenses, which i t plans to 
pursue on appeal. The Company is not presently able to reasonably 
estimate the ultimate outcome of these cases, and accordingly, no 
expense fcr such awards has been recorded as cf December 31, 1996, 

As part of the Merger Agreement (Note 2), Conrail may be a party 
to certain stock purchase options or, under certain circumstances, 
be required to pay substantial termination fees. 

15, Condensed Quarterly Data (Unaudited) 

First Second Thjrd Fourth 

1996 1995 1996 1995 1996 1995 1996 1995 

(S Is Millions Except Per Share) 

Rf̂ 'cnues $884 $885 S943 $918 $923 $919 $934 $946 
Income floss) from operations 68 113 54 179 234 208 242 (45) 
Net income floss) 29 53 23 120 137 115 146 (32) 
Ratio of earnings 10 fixed charges l,73x 2.45x l,54x 3 .48x 4,76x 4.07x 4,98x 

During the second quarter of 1996, the Company recorded a one­
time charge of $135 million for the non-union employee voluntary 
early retirement and separation programs and related costs, which 
reduced net income by $83 million (Note 3), 
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As a result of a decrease in a state income tax rate enacted 
during the second quarter of 1995, income tax expense was reduced 
by $21 million representing the effects of adjusting deferred 
income taxes and the special income tax obligation for the rate 
decrease as required under SFAS 109 (Note 8), During the fourth 
quarter of 1995, an asset disposition charge reduced income from 
operations by $283 million and adversely affected the quarter's 
net income by $175 million (Note 11) . After the asset 
disposition charge, eamings were insufficient by*$62 million to 
cover fixed charges for the quarter. 
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T f em 9. Chanqes in and rt-; c;pqT̂ «>mt=-n̂ s wit^ Accountants 
on Accountina and Financial Disclosure. 

None. 

PART I I I 

Ttem 10. CirertorE and Pvoru^wp Officers of the Registrant-

Information omitted in accordance with General 
1(2) (C) . 

Instruction 

Executive ContDensaticn. 

Information omitted in accordance with (General 
1(2)(c). 

Instruction 

Item 12. Security Owners)-)j,p of Certain Beneficial 
Owners and Manaoement, 

Information omitted i n tccordance with General 
I(2)(c) . 

Instruction 

and 

11 em 3 , Certain P^l p^i ̂ nF?i;irF fl<i F^^-ated Transactions 

Information omitted in accordance with General 
I(2) (C) . 

Instruction 
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PART IV 

Itgm l i . Exhibits. Financial Statement 

Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K. 

(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report: 

1. Finamcial Statements: Page 
Report of Independent Accountants 14 
Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the 

three years in the period ended December 31, 1996. 15 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31. 1996 

and 1995 16 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholder's 

Equity for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31. 1996 17 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of 
the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 1996 18 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 19 

2. Financial Statement Schedules: 

The following financial statement schedules should be read 
in connection with the financial statements listed in Item 
14 (a)1 above. 

Index to Financial Statement Schedules 

Page 

Schedule I I - Valuation and O^Jalifying Accounts S-1 

Schedules other than those listed above are omitted for 
reasons that they are not required, are not applicable, or 
the information is included in the financial statements or 
related notes. 
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3, Exhibits: 

Exhibit No. 

2 Agreement and Pian of Merger among Consolidated Rail 
Corporation, Conrail Inc. and Conrail Subsidiary 
Corporation, dated as of February 17, 1993, filed as 
Appendix A to the Proxy Statement of the Registrant, 
dated April 16, 1993 and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the 
Registrant filed as Exhibit 3,1 to the Registrant's 
Report on Form lO-K for the year ended December 3.'., 1994 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant, filed as Exhibit 3,2 to the 
Registrant's Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1993 and incorporated herein by reference. 

3.3 Amendment to Bylaws of the Registrant, i>s of March 15, 
1995, filed as Exhibit 3,3 to the Regisi.rant's Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31. 1994 and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

4.1 Form of Certificate of Common Stock, par value $1.00 per 
share, of the Registrant, filed as Exhibit 4.7 to the 
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 33-
19155) and incorporated herein by reference. 

4.2 Form of Indenture between the Registrant and The First 
National Bank of Chicago, as Trustee, with respect to 
the issuance of up to $1.25 billion aggregate principal 
amount of the Registrant's debt securities, filed as 
Exhibit 4 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on 
Form S-3 (Registration No, 33-34040) and incorporated 
herein by reference. 

In accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation £-
K, copies of instruments of the Registrant with respect 
to the rights of holders of certain long-term debt are 
not filed herewith, or incorporated by reference, but 
will be furnished to the Commission upon request. 

10.1 Second Amended and Restated Northeast Corridor Freight 
Operating Agreement dated October 1, 1986 between 
National Railroad Passenger Corporation and Consolidated 
Rail Corporation, filed as Exhibit 10,1 to the 
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 
(Registration No, 33-11995) and incorporated herein by 
reference, 

10.2 Letter agreements dated September 30, 1982 and July 19, 
1986 between Consolidated Rail Corporation and The Penn 
Central Corporation, filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the 
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-l 
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(Registration No, 33-11995) and incorporated herein by 
reference, 

10.3 Letter agreement dated March 16, 1988 between 
Consolidated Rail Corporation and Penn Central 
Corporation relating to hearing loss litigation, filed 
as Exhibit 19.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1988 and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

12 Conputation of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, 

23 Consent of Independent Accountants, 

24 Each of the officers and directors signing this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K has signed a power of attomey, 
contained on page 41 hereof, with respect to amendments 
to this Annual Report. 

27 Financial Data Schedule. 

(b) Reports on Form B-K. 

None. 

(c) Exhibitf,. 

The F-J:ibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K as listed 
in Item 14(a)3 are filed herewith or incorporated herein by 
reference, 

(d) Financial Statement Schedules. 

Financial statement schedules and separate financial state­
ments specified by this Item are included in Item 14 (a)2 or 
are otherwise omitted for reasons that they are not required 
or are not applicable. 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

Eaci. person whose signature appears below under "SIGNATURES" hereby 
authorizes Timothy T. O'Toole and John A. McKelvey, or either of them, to 
execute in the name of each such person, and to fil e , any amendment to this 
report and hereby appoints Timothy T. O'Tocle and John A. McKelvey, or 
either of them, as attorneys-in-fact to sign on his or her behalf, 
individually and in each capacity stated below, anc to f i l e any and a l l 
amendments to this report. 

SICWTURES 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 

Exchange Act 1934, Consolidated Rail Corporation has duly caused this 
report to be signed on i t s behalf by the undersigned, thereiinto duly 
authorized. 

Date: March 19. 1997 

CONSOLIDATED RAIL CORPORATION 

fiy /s/ Pgvjg M- L'evan, 
David M. LeVan 
Chairman, President and Chief 

Executive Officer and Director 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
this report has been signed below on this 19th day of March, 1997, by the 
following persons on behalf of Consolidated Rail Corporation and in the 
capacities indicated. 

Signature 

David M. LeVan 

Title 

Chairman, President and Chief 
Executive Officer and Director 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

/s/ John A. McKelvey 
John A. McKelvey 

Senior Vice President-Finance 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

/s/ Donald W. Mattson 
Donald W. Mattson 

Vice President-Controller 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 

/s/ H. Furlong Baldwin 
H. Furlong Baldwin 

Director 
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/s/ Claude S. Brinegar 
Claude S, Brinegar 

Director 

Daniel B. Burke 
Director 

/s/ Kathleen Folgv Feldstein 
Kathleen Policy Feldstein 

director 

/g/ Rpqer S. HillPg 
Roger S. Hillas 

Director 

/g/ B, Prsflley Jpngs 
E. Bradley Jones 

Director 

I s ! David B. Lewis 
David B, Lewis 

Director 

/s/ John C. Marous 
John C. Marous 

Director 

/s/ Gail J. Mcgpverp 
Gail J. McGovern 

Director 

/s/ Ra\T7iond T. Schuler 
Raymond T, Schuler 

Director 

David H, Swanson 
Director 
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E-1 
EXHIBIT INDEX 

12 Conputation of the ratio of eamings 
to fixed charges 

23 Consent of Independent Accountants 

27 Financial Data Schedule 

Exhibits 2, 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 4.1, 4.2, 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 are 
incorporated herein by reference. Powers of attomey with respect to 
amendments to this Annual Report arc contained on page 41. 

.43 • 

406 



Rxhlbl t 12 

CON.SOI.IDATED RAIL CORPORATION 

O 

COMPUTATION OF THK RATIO OF RARNTNGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

($ In Mi l l i o n s ) 

Ouarters Ended Ouattora Knded Quarters Ended Quarters Ended Years Ended 
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, December 31. 

1996 1995 1996 1995 1996 1995 1996 1995(1) 1996 1995 1994 
... - - - - - - - - - .... — . - ...... .... .... 

Barnlngs 

I're-tax income (loss) 
Add • 

$ 47 92 134 $163 $212 $182 $223 $(56) $516 $381 $526 

InterPFst expense 44 44 44 4S 43 46 43 4S 174 IBS 178 
Rental expense 
interest f a c t o r 15 14 13 16 12 12 11 11 51 53 42 

Less equity i n 
undistributed 
earnings of 20-50% 
owned companies (4) (5) (3) 14) (5) (41 (6) (C) (20) (19) (20) 

Barnings available f o r 
f ixed charges $102 $147 $n8 $223 $262 $236 $269 $ (6) $721 $600 $726 

mmmm mmmm mmmm IS — — — mmmm mmmm mmmm mmmm m ^ m m mmmm 

Fixed Charqes 
Intnrest expense 44 46 44 4? 43 46 43 45 174 185 178 
Rental expense i n t e r e s t 
factor 15 14 IJ 16 12 12 11 11 51 53 42 

Capitalized i n t e r e s t 1 
- - - - - . . - .... _ 

Fixed char-ges $ 59 $ 60 $57 $ 64 $ 55 $ 5B $ 54 $ 56 $225 $238 $221 
mmmm W cr c *r mmmm mmmm mmmm mmmm a . . . mmmm mmmm m 9t m m mmmm 

Ratio of earnings t o 
fi x e d charges 1.73X 2.45X 1.54x 1.4flx • 4.76X 4,07x 4.98X - 3.2px 2.52X 3.29X 

mmmm mmmm » er « = .... .... mmmm mmmm mmmm 

Note: For the purpose of computing the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings represent income before income 
taxes plus fixed charges, less equity in undistributed earnings of 20% to 50% owned companies. Fixed charges 
represent interest expense together with interest capitalized and a portion of rent under long-term operating 
leases representative of an interest factor. 

(1) In the fourth qu i r t e r of 1995. the Company recorded an asset disposition charge of $175 million (after tax 
benefits of $108 mi l l i o n ) . After this charge, earnings were insufficient by $62 mill i o n to cover fixed charges 
for the quarter. 



Exhibit 23 

Consent of Independent Accountants 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Prospectuses constituting 
part of the Registration Sutements on Fonn S-3 (Nos. 33-34040 and 33-64670) of 
Consolidated Rail Corporation and subsidiaries of our report dated Januarj' 21, 1997, 
except as to Note 2. which is as cf March 7, 1997, included in this Foiw I'o-K. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE LLP 
Thirty South Seventeenth Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 
March 2k , ]997 

•mmmm 
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Exhibit 27 

CONSOLIDATED RAIL CORPORATION 
FINANCIAL DAT̂ . SCHEDULE 

($ In Millions Except Par Shara) 

THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM FORM 10-X AND IS 
QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO SUCH FORM 10-K. 

<MULTIPLIER> 1,000.000 

cPISCAL-YEAR- £ND> DEC-31-1996 
<PERIOD-STAF.T> JAN-01-1996 
<PER1CD-END> DEC-31-1996 
<PERIOD-TyPE> 12-MOS 
<CASH> 17 
<SECURITIES> 0 
<RECEIVABLES> 629 
<ALLOWANCES> 0 
<INVENTORY> 139 
<CURRENT-ASSETS> 1. 092 
<PPtE> 6.590 
<DEPRECIATION> 0 
<TOTAL-ASSETS> 6,353 
<CURREKT-LIABILITIES> 1,115 
<BONDS> 1, 876 
< PREFERRED - M;.KDATORy > 0 
<PREFERRED> 0 
<COMMON> 0 
<OTHER-SE> 3,035 
<TOTAL-LIAEILITy-AND-EQUITY> 8,353 
<SALES> 0 
cTOTAL-REVENUES> 3,684 
<CGS> 0 
<TOTAL-COSTS> 3. 086 
<OTKER-EXPENSES> 0 
<LOSS-PROVISION> 0 
<INTEREST-EXPENSE> 174 
<INCOME-PRETAX> 516 
<INCOME-TAX> 181 
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 335 
<DISCONTINUED> 0 
<EXTRAORDINARY> 0 
<CHANGES> 0 
<NET-INCOME> 335 
<EPS-PRIMARY> 0 
<EPS-DILUTFD> 0 
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SchecSule I I 

Description 

1994 
Casualty reserves 

Current 
Noncurrent 

Allowance for disposition 
of property and 
eguipment (4; 

CONSOLIDATED RAIL CORPORATION 
VALUATION AN~ QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 
FOR TH£ YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 

(In Killions) 

Additions 
Balance at 
Beginning 
of Period 

$ 93 
132 

Charged to Charged Balance 
Costs and to Other At End 
Expenses Accounts Deductions of Period 

$175 

(1) 

$ 12 

256 

$(10) 
107 

IS 

(2) 
(3) 

$103 
212 

241 

1995 
Casualty reserves 

Current 
Noncurrent 

Allowance for disposition 
of property and 
eq-jipment (4) (5) 

103. 
212 

241 

174 

261 

14 
(4) 

163 
(2) 
(3) 

107 
217 

439 

19S6 
Casualty reserves 

Current 
Noncurrent 

Allowance fcr disposition 
of property and 
equipment (4) 

107. 
217 

439 

166 11 
(31) 
206 

31 

(2) 
(3) 

13B 
ISO 

4 06 

(1) Includes charges to property accounts in connection with construction projects and 
the recording of receivables from thir d partie.-?. 

(2) Includes net transfers from noncurrent. 

(3) Transfers to current. 

(4) Deductions of $15 million, $63 million and $3i million i n 1994, 1995 and 1996, 
respectively, represent net losses on asset dispositions. 

(5) In 1995, the Cotî sany recorded an asset disposition charge, which resulted from s 
review of the Corrpany's route system and other operating assets to detc-rmine those 
that no longer effectively and economically support current and expecied operations. 
The Company identified and has committed to se l l 1,600 miles of r a i l ' ines that are' 
expected to provide proceeds substantially less than net book value. In addition, 
other assets, principally yards and side tracks, identified for disposition have iDecn 
written down to estimated net realizable value. 

S-1 
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As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 4,1997. 
Registration No, 333-

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM S-4 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT 

Under 
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 

CSX CORPORATION 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

(State or other JorisdictioD 
of incorporation or oixaniration) 

62-1051971 
(ULS. Empiojrer 
idcBtUkatiaa Now) 

(Exact BUM of Rcgistniit as (pedfied in Hs charKr) 
4011 

(PriBarjr Standard Industrial 
CUsificatiaa Code Number) 

One James Center 
901 East Cary Street 

Rkfamonti, Virginia 23219 
(804) 782-1400 

(Address, including Zip Code, and leicpfaoiw nomber, 
indudint area code, of Registrant's principal exeaUive oCBoes) 

Mark G. Aron, Esq. 
Executive Vice Presi<lent-Law and Public Affairs 

CSX Corporation 
One James Center, 901 East Cary Street 

Ricfamond, Virginia 23219 
(804) 782-1400 

(Hurt, address, indsdinc Zip Code, and Idephone number, 
'•~i"i""t area code, ofatenl for servkx of proccK) 

Copy to : 
Joseph C Carter, m . Esq, 

McGuire, Woods, BatUe & Boothe, LXJ>. 
One James Center, 901 East Cary Street 

Richmond, Virginia 23219 
(804) 775-1000 

(804) 775-1061 dacsimile) 

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale of the cecurities to the public: As soon as 
practicable after the effective date of this Registrdtion StaiemenL 

If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a 
holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G. dieck the following box. • 

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE 

Title of each dass of 
securities lo lie registered 

Proposed Propoied 

lobe oOering price accrefale Amooot of 
RgltCeted peranitd) ofllnt^ ftletl.1) registratioa fee(2K3) 

$ 3S0.000.000 100% $ 350.000,000 
$ 300.000,000 100* $ 300.000,000 
$ 450.000.000 100% $ 450.000,000 
$ 400.000,000 100% $ 400.000,000 
$ 500.000,000 100% S 500.000,000 
$ 100.000.000 100% $ 100,000,000 
S 250.000.000 100% S 250,000,000 
$ 150,000,000 100% $ 150.000,000 
$2^.000,000 100% $2,500,000,000 $757,576 

7.05% Debentures 
7.25% Debentures 
7.45% Debentures 
7.90% Debenture.* 
7.95% Debentures 
6.95% Debentures 
7.25% Debentures 
830% Debentures 

Total 

Due 2002. 
rxie 2004. 
Due 2007. 
Due 2017. 
Due 2027. 
Due 2027. 
Due 2027. 
Due 2032. 

(1) Estimated solely for purposes of calculating the registration fee. 
(2) Calculated pursuant to Rule 457(0(2). 
(3) Payment of the registration fee due in connection with this Registration Statement has been partially offset 

by previous overpayments by the Registrant in the anfxint of $52,752. 
The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Stiitement on such date or dates as may be necessary 

to delay its effective date until the Kcgistrant shall file « further amendment which speciiicaily sUtes that 
this Registration Statement shall thereafter become eflfective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the 
Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Sutement shall become effective on such date as the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine. 
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SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED JUNE 4, 1997 

PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS 

CSX CORPORATION 
C ( q £ ID 

S«>S> 

OFl-ERS TO EXCHANGE 
ALL OUTSTANDING REGISTERED 

7.05% 
12.5% 
7.45% 
7.90% 
7.95% 
6.95% 
7.25% 
8J0% 

DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 

DUE 2002 
DUE 2004 
DUE 2007 
DUE 2017 
DL'E2027 
DUE 2027 
DUE 2027 
DUE 2032 

For 
For 
For 
For 
For 
For 
For 
For 

7.05% 
7.25% 
7.45% 
7.90% 
7.95% 
6.95% 
7.25% 
8J0% 

DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 
DEBENTURES 

DUE 2002 
DUE 2004 
DUE 2007 
DUE 2017 
DUE 2027 
D OE 2027 
DUE 2027 
DUE 2032 

THE EXCHANGE OFFERS 
WILL EXPIRE AT 5:00 PJVL, NEW YORK CITY TIME, 

ON , 1997 UNLESS EXTENDED, 

— t w w 

s: o S o 

CSX Corporation, a Virginia corporation (the "Company"), hereby offers (the "Exchange Offers"), upon the terms 
and subject to the conditions set forth in this Prospectus (as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time, 
this "Prospectus") and the accompanying Letter of Transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal"), to exchange \v. outstanding. 

• 7.05% Debcnnires Di-e 2002 (fte "Old 2002 Debentures"), of which an aggregate of $350,000,000 in principal 
amount is outstanding as of the date hereof, for an equal principal amount of newly issued 7.05% Debentures Due 
2002 (the "New 2002 Debentures"), 

• 7.25% Debentures Due 2004 (the "Old 2004 Debentures"), of which an aggregate of $300,000,000 in principal 
amocut is outstanding as of the date hereof, for an equal principal amount of ttewly issued 7.25% Debentures Due 
2004 (the "New 2004 Debentures"), 

• 7.45% Debentures Due 2007 (the "Old 2007 Debentures"), of which an aggregate of $450,000,000 in principal 
amount is outstanding as of the date hereof, for an equal principal amount of newly issued 7.45% Debentures Due 
2007 (the "New 2007 Debentures"), 

• 7.90% Etebentures Due 2017 (the "Old 2017 Debentures"), of which an aggregate of $400,000,000 in principal 
amount is outstanding as of the date hereof, for an equal principal amount of newly issued 7.90% Debentures Due 
2017 (the "New 2017 Debentures"), 

• 7.95% Debentures Due 2027 (die "Old 7.95% 2027 Debenmres"). of which an aggregate of $500,000,000 in 
principal amount is outstanding as of the date hereof, for an equal principal amount of newly issued 7.95% 
Debentures Due 2027 (die "New 7.95% 2027 Debcnnires"), 

• 6.95% Debentures Due 2027 (the "Old 6.95% 2027 Debentures"), of which an aggregate of $i(»,000.000 in 
principal amount is outstanding as of the date hereof, for an equal principal amount of newly issued 6.95% 
Debenmres Due 2027 (the "New 6.95% 2027 Dcbenttires"). 

• 7.25% Debentures Due 2027 (the "Old 7.25% 2027 Debentures"), of which an aggregate of $250.000.«X) in 
principal anKMint is outst%uding as of the date hereof, for an equal principal amount of newly issued 7.25% 
Debentuies Due 2027 (the "N>w 7.25% 2027 Debentures"), and 

• 8.30% Debentures Due 2032 (±e "Old 2032 Debentures"), of which an aggregate of $150,000,000 in principal 
amount is outstanding as of the date hereof, for an equal principal amount of newly issued 8.30% Debentures Due 
2032 (the "New 2032 Debentures"). 

The form uA terms ci die New 2002 Debentures. New 2004 Debenmres. New 2007 Debentures, New 2017 Debentures 
New 7.95% 2027 Debentures, New 6.95% 2027 Debentures, New 7.25% 2027 Debentures, and New 2032 Debentures 
(collectively, the "New Debenmres") will be the same as the form and terms of the Old 2002 Debentures, Old 2004 

{ConAmud) 
This Prospectus, together with the Letter of Transmittal, is first being sent on or about , 1997 to all Holders of 

Old Debentures (as defiiKd below) known to the Company. 

SEE "RISK FACTORS" COMMENCING ON PAGE 10 FOR CERTAIN INFORMATION THAT SHOULD 
BE CONSIDERED BY HOLDERS IN DECIDING WIHETHER TO TENDER OLD DEBENTURES IN THE 
EXCHANGE OFFER*:. 

THESE SECURFFIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND 
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION 
PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS. ANY 

REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 

The date of this Pros'iectus is 1997 
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The map below shows die proposed post-Transaction CSXT route system, as defined herein. See "The 
Company— Ĵoint CSX'NSC Acquisition ct Conrail." 
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(Cover page continued) 

Debentures. Old 2007 Debentures. Old 2017 Debentures. Old 7.95% 2027 Debentures, Old 6.95% 2027 
Debentures. Old 7.25% 2027 Debentures, and Old 2032 Debentures (collectively, the "Old Debentures"), 
respectively, except that (i) the New Debentures will be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended 
(the "Securities Act"), and hence wil) not bear legends restricting the transfer thereof and (ii) the holders of tbe 
New Debentures will not be entitled to certain rights of holders of the Old Debentures under the Registration 
Rights Agreement (as defined herein), which rights will terminate upon die consummation of the Exchange 
Offers. The New 2002 Debentures. New 2004 Debentures. New 2007 Debentures. New 2017 Debentures. New 
7.95% 2027 Debentures, New 6.95% 2027 Debentures, New 7.25% 2027 Debentures, and New 2032 Debentures 
will evidence the saine debt as the Old 2002 Debentures. Old 2004 Debentures, Old 2007 Debentures, Old 2017 
Debentures, Old 7.95% 2027 Debentures, Old 6.95% 2027 Debentures, Old 7.25% 2027 Debentures, and Old 
2032 Debentures, respectively, and will be entitled to the benefits of an indenture, dated as of August 1. 1990 
and supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 15, 1991 and a Second 
Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 6, 1997 (as supplemented and amended, the "Indenttire"). goveming 
fte Old Debentures and the New Debentures. Tbc Indenture provides for the issuance of bodi the New 
Debentures and the Old Debentures. The New 2002 Debentures and the Old 7002 Debentures are sometimes 
referred to herein collectively as the "2002 Debentures"; Ae New 2004 Debentures and the Old 2004 
Debentures are sometimes referred to herein collectively as tiie "2004 Debentures"; the New 2007 Debentures 
and the Old 2007 Debentures are sometimes referred to herein collectively as the "2007 Debentures"; the New 
2017 Debentures and the Old 2017 Debentures 'iC sometimes referred to herein collectively as the "2017 
Debentures"; the New 7.95% 2027 Debentures and the Old 7.95% 2027 Debentures are sometimes referred to 
herein collectively as the "7.95% 2027 Debentures"; the New 6.95% 2027 Debentures and the Old 6.95% 2027 
Debentures are sometimes referred to herein collectively as tfie "6.95% 2027 Debentures"; die New 7.25% 2027 
Debentures and the Old 7.25% 2027 Debentures are sometimes referred to herein collectively as the "7.25% 
2027 Debentures"; the Old 2032 Debentures and the New 2032 Debentures are sometimes referred to herein 
collectively as ttie "2032 Debentures"; and tfie 2002 Etebentures. tfie 2004 Debentures, the 2007 Debentures, 
tfie 2017 Debentures, tfie 7.95% 2027 Debentures, tfie 6.95% 2027 Debentures, tfie 7.25% 2027 Debentures, and 
tfie 2032 Debentures are sometimes referred to herein collectively as tiie "Debentures." 

Interest on each series of tiie Debentures will be paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1 of each 
year, commencing on November 1,1997. The 2032 Debentures are not redeemable prior to May 1, 2007. On or 
after tfiat date, tiie 2032 Debentures will be redeemable at tiie option of tiie Company, as a whole or in part, at 
any time on at least 30 days' notice, at the respective prices indicated herein. None of the otiier series of 
Debentures are redeemable at tiie Company's option prior to maturity. Each holder of tiie 6.95% 2027 
Debentures may require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of such series owned by such holder on May 
1, 2002 at a purchase price equal to 100% of flie principal amount tiiereof plus accnied interest tiieieoo. Each 
bolder of rtie 7.25% 2027 Debentures may require tfie Company to repurchase all or a portion of sudi series 
owned by such holder on May 1, 2005 at a purchase price equal to 100% of tiic principal amount tfiereof. None 
of tiie series of Debentures is subject to any sinking fimd See "Description of New Debentures." 

Prior to tiie Exchange Offers, tiiere has been no public market for tiie Old Debentures. The Cbmpaay does 
not intend to list ttie New Debentures on any securities exchange or to seek approval for quotation tiirough any 
automated quotation systeiiL There can b< no assurance tiiat an active market for the New Debentures will 
develop. To tiie ,,vtcnt tiiat a market for ttie New Debentures does develop, the market value of tiie New 
Debentures wiW depend on market condiuons (such as yields on alternative investments), general economic 
conditions, tiie Company's financial conditjon and otiier conditions. Such conditions mi^t cause the New 
Debentures, to tiie extent tfiat tiiey arc actively traded, lo trade at a significant discount from face value. 

Except as discussed below, ttic New Debentures will be available only in book-entry form. The Company 
expects tiiat tiie New Debentures issued pursuant to tfie Exchange Offers will be issued in tfie form of one or 
more fully registered global debentures tiiat will be deposited with, or on behalf of. The Depository Trust 
Company ("DTC") and registered in its name or in tiie name of Cede & Co.. as its nominee. Beneficial interests 
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in tiie global debentures representing the New Debenmres will be shown on, and transfers tiiereof will be effected 
only tiirough, records maintained by DTC and its participants. After the initial issuance of such global 
debentures. New Debentures in certificated form will be issued in exchange for tiie global debentures only in 
accordance witii tiie terms and conditions set forth in tiie Indenture. See "Description of tiie New Debentures— 
Book-Eniry. Delivery and Form" and "Description of flie New Debentures—Certificated Debentures." 

The Company will accept for exchange any and all Old Debentures which are prĉ wrly tendered in flic 
Exchange Offers prior to 5:00 p.m.. New York City time, on . 1997 (if and as extended, tiie "ExpirsJion 
Date"). Tenders of Old Debentures may be withdrawn at any time prior to 5.00 p.m.. New York City time, on 
tiie Expiration Date. The Exchange Offers are not conditioned upon any minimum principal amount of Old 
Debentures being tendered for exchange. Old Debentures ir.ay be tendered only in integral multiples of $1,000. 
The Company may terminate the Exciiange Offers in certai:' circumstances described herein. See "The Exchange 
Offers." In tiie event the Company terminates any or al; of ne Exchange Offers and does not accept for exdiange 
any of tiie Old 2002 Debertares, Old 2004 Debentures, Old 2007 Debentures, Old 2017 Debentures. Old 7.95% 
2027 Debentures. Old 6.95% 2027 Debentures, Old 7.25% 2027 Debenmres, or Old 2032 Debentures, as tiie 
case may be. the C:ompany will promptly retum all previously tendered Old 2002 Debentures, Old 2004 
Debentures. Old 2007 Debentures. Old 2017 Debentures, Old 7.95% 2027 Debentures, Old 6.95% 2027 
Debentures, Old 7.25% 2027 D -ntures. and Old 2032 Debentures, as ttie case may be, to tiie holders tfiereof. 

Based on a previous interpretation by the staff of tfie Securities and Exchange Commission (ttie 
"Commission") set forth in no-action letters to third parties, the Company believes that tiie New Debentures 
issued pursuant to ttie Exchange Offers in exchange for Old Debentures may be offered for resale, resold, aad 
otiierwisc transferred by a holder ttiereol (other than (i) a broker.dealer who purdiases such New Debentures 
directly from flie Company to resell pursuant to F;ule 144A or any otiier available exemption under flie Securities 
Act or (ii) a person tiiat is an affiliate of tiie Company (witiiin tiie meaning of Rule 405 under tiie Securities 
Act)) witiiout compliance witti flie registration and prospectus deliveiy provisions of tiie Securities Act, provided 
that ttie holder is acquiring the New Debentures in such holder's ordinary course of business and is not 
participating, and has no arrangement or understanding witti any person to participate, in ttie distribution of flie 
New Debentures. Holders of Old Debenmres wishing to accept any or all of tiie Exchange Offers must represent 
to ttie Company that such conditions have been met 

Each broker-dealer tiiat receives New Debenmres for its own account pursuant to any or all of tiie Exchange 
Offers must acknowledge tiiat it will deliver a prospectus meeting tiie requirements of tfie Securities Act in 
connection witii any resale of such New Debenmres. The Letter of Transmittal states tiiat by so acknowledging 
and by delivering a prospecms, a broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit tiiat it is ?a "underwriter." witiiin 
tiic meaning of tiie Securities Act, irj connection witii tiie resale of New Debentures received in exchange for 
Old Debenmres where such Old Debentures were acquired by such broker-dealer as a result of market-making 
activities or ottier trading activities. The Company has agreed ttiat, for a period of 180 days after tiie Hxpiratioo 
Dale, it will make this Prospecms availj l̂e to any broker-dealer for use in connection witii any such resale. See 
"Plan of Distribution." 

The Company believes tiiat none of tiie registered holders of tiie Old Debentures is an affiliate (as such 
term is defined in Rule 405 under tfie Securities Act) of tiic Company. The Company has not entered into any 
arrangement or understanding witii any person to distribute tiic New Debenmres lo be received in tiic Exchange 
Offers, and to tiie best of tiie Company's information and beUef, each person participating in any or all of tiie 
Exchange Offers is acquiring tiic New Debenmres in tiie ordinary course of business and has no arrangement or 
understanding witii any person to participate in tiic distribution of tiie New Debentures to be received in any or 
all of the Exchange Offers. 

The Company will not receive any proceeds from tiie Exchange Offers. The Company has agreed to bear 
tiie expenses of ttie Exchange Offers. No underwriter is being used in connection witii tiie Exchange Offers. 
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION 

The Company is subject to tiie informational reporting requirements of tiie Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended (tiie "Exchange Act"), and, in accordance tiierewitii, files reports, proxy sutements and otiier 
information witii tiie Commission. Such reports, proxy statements and otiier infonnation may be inspected and 
copied at tiie public reference facilities maintained by tiie Commission at Room 1024, 450 Fifth StreeU N.W., 
Judiciary Plaza, Washington, D.C. 20549, and at tiie Commission's Regional Offices in New Yoric (Seven World 
Trade Center, 13tii Floor. New Yoric. New Yoric 10048). and Chicago (Citicorp Center. 500 West Madison 
Street, Suite \4O0, Chicago, Illinois 60661). Copies of tiiese materials may be obtained from tiie Public 
Reference Section of tiie Crommission, 450 Fifth Street, N.W.. Washington, D.C. 20549, at prescribed rates. In 
addition, tiie Commission maintains a site on tiie World Wide Web at http:'lwww.sec.gov tiiat contains reports, 
proxy and information statements and otiier information regarding registrants tiiat file electronically witii tiie 
Ĉ ommission. Reports, proxy statements and other information conceming tiie Company may also be inspected 
at tiie offices of tiie New York Stock Exchange. 20 Broad Street. New York, New Yoric 10005, where tiie 
Company's common stock is listed. 

This Prospecms constimtes a part of a Registration Statement on Form S-4, as amended (ttie "Registration 
Statement"), filed by tiie Company witii the Coramissicm under tiie Securities Act This Prospecms omits certain 
of tiie information contained in tiie Registration Statement in accordance witii ttie rules and regulation.' of ttie 
Commission. Reference is hereby made to ttie Registration Statement and related exhibits for furttier information 
witti respect to tiie Company and tiie Debentures. Statements contained herein conceming tiie provisions of any 
documents are not necessarily conplete and, in each instance, reference is made to tiie copy of such document 
filed as an exhibit to tiie Registration Statement or otiic-wise filed witii tiie Commission. Each such statement is 
qualified in its entirety by such reference. 

INCORPORATION OF CERTAP^ DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE 

The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for die fiscal year ended December 27. 1996. tiie Company's 
Quarteriy Report on Form \0-Q for tiie fiscal quarter ended Jvlarch 28. 1997 and tiie Company's Current Report 
on Form 8-K dated May 23. 1997. have been filed by tl.e Company witii tiie Commission and are incorporated 
herein by reference. In addition, tiiere is incorporated herein by reference ttie CSX/NSC Agreement (as defined 
herein), which has been filed by tiie Company witii ttic Commission as an exhibit to Amendment No. 24 to tiie 
Company's Tender Offer Statement on Schedule 14D-1. filed on April 11, 1997. 

All documents filed by ttie Company with ttie Commission pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of 
ttie Exchange Act on or after ttie date of tiiis Prospecms and prior to ttie termination of any offering of securities 
made hereby shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into tius Prospecms and to be a part of tiiis 
Prospecms from tiie respective dates of filing of such documents. /a.y statement contained herein OT in a 
document incorporated OT deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified OT 
superseded for purposes of tiiis Prospecms to tiie extent tfiat a statement contained herein or in any otiier 
subsequentiy filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies OT 
supersedes such statement Any sucb statement OT document so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, 
except as so modified or superseded, to constimte part of tiiis Prospecms. As used herein, tiic terms "Prospecms" 
and "herein" mean tfiis Prospecms. includmg tiie documents incOTporated OT deemed incorporated by reference, 
as tiie sanie may be amended, supplemented or otiierwise modified from time to time. Statements contained in 
tiiis Prrspecms as to tiie contents of any contract or otiier document referred to herein do HOT purport to be 
complete and are qualified in all respects by reference to all of tiie provisions of such contract OT otiier document 

The Company will furnish witiiout charge to each person to whom tiiis Prospecms is delivered, upon written 
or oral request of such person, a copy of any and all of tiie documents described above tiiat are incorporated by 
reference herein otiier tiian exhibits to such documents which are not specifically incorporated by reference in 
such documents. Written or telephone requests should be directed to: Alan A Rudnick. Vice President—General 
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Counsel and Corporate Secretary, CSX Corporation, One James Center, 901 East Gary Street, Rkfamood, 
Virginia 23219, telephone number (804) 782-1400. 

IN ORDER TO ENSURE TIMELY DELIVERY OF THE DOCUMENTS, ANY REQUEST SHOULD BE 
MADE BY . 1997. 
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SUMMARY 

The following summary is qualified in its enft>e.> iy more detailed information and financial statements, 
including the notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus ^. ir'-nrporated herein by reference. 

THE EXCHANGE 

The Exchanst Offers. The (Company is offering to exchange $1,000 principal amount 
of New 2002 Debentures, New 2004 Debenmres, New 2007 
Debentures, New 2017 Debentures. New 7.95% 2027 Deben­
tures. New 6.95% 2027 Debentures, New 7.25% 2027 Deben­
tures, and New 2032 Debentures, respectively, for each Sl.CXX) 
principal amount of Old 2002 Debentures. Old 20C4 Deben­
tures, Old 2007 Debentures. Old 2017 Debentures, Old 7.95% 
2027 Ddjentures, Old 6.95% 2027 Debentures. Old 7.25% 2027 
Debentures, and Old 2032 Dsbentures. respectively, that are 
properly tendered and accepted. The Company will issue the 
New 2002 Debentures. New 2004 Debentures. New 2007 De­
bentures, New 20.7 Debentures, New 7.95% 2027 Debentures, 
New 6.95% 2027 Debentures, New 7.25% 2027 Debentures, 
and New 2032 Debentures on OT promptiy after tfie Expiration 
Date. There is $350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the 
Old 2002 Debentures outstanding, $300,000,000 aggregate 
principal amount of ttie Old 2004 Debentures outstanding, 
$450,000,000 aggregate principal amount of tfie Old 2007 De­
bentures outstanding. $4OO,(XX).00O aggregate principal amount 
of tiie Old 2017 Debentures outstanding. $500,000,000 aggre­
gate principal amount of the Old 7.95% 2027 Debentures out­
standing. $100,000,000 aggregate principal amount of ttic Old 
6.95% 2027 Debenmres outstanding. $250,000,000 aggregate 
principal amount of ttie Old 125% 2027 Debentures outstand­
ing, and $150,000,000 aggregate principal amount of ttie Old 
2032 Debentures outstanding. See "The Exchange Offers." 

Based on an interpretauoo of the staff of the Commission set 
fortti in DO-actioD letters issued to third parties, the Company 
believes ttiat New Debenmres issued pursuant to the Exdiange 
Offers in exchange for Old Debenmres may be offered for 
resale, resold and otherwise transferred by any holder tiiereof 
(other than (i) a broker-dealer who purchases such New De­
bentures directiy from the Company to resell purstumt to Rule 
144A OT any otiier available exemption under the Securities 
Act OT (ii) any such holder whidi is an "affiliate" of lhe 
Company witiiin tfie meaning of Rule 405 under tfie Securities 
Act) witiiout compliance with tiie registration and p ospectus 
delivery provisions of tiie Securities Acu provided that sudi 
New Debenmres are acquired in the ordinary course of such 
holder's business and ttiat sudt holder has no arrangement OT 
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understanding witti any person to participate in tiie distribution 
of oUch New Debentures. In ttie event ttiat tiie Company's 
belief is inaccurate, holders of New Debenmres who transfer 
New Debenmres in violation of flie prospecms delivery provi­
sions of flie Securities Act and witiiout an exemption from 
registrati'm fliereundcr may inoir liability ttiereunder. The 
Company docs not assutne, or indemnify holders against, such 
liability. The Exchange Offers arc nOT being made to. nor wil) 
tfie Compmy accept surrenders for exdiange from, holders of 
Old Debenmres (i) in any jurisdiction in which tiie Exchange 
Offers OT ttie acceptance thereof would not be in compliance 
witti tiie securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdiction or (ii) 
if any holder is engaged or intends to engage in a distribution 
of New Debentures. Each broker-dealer tiiat receives New De­
bentures for its own account in exchange for Old Debentures, 
where such Old Debentures were acquired by such broker-
dealer as a result of maricet-making activities OT otiier trading 
activities, must acknowledge tfiat it will deliver a prospecms 
meeting tfie requirements of tfie Securities Act in connection 
witili any resale of such New Etebentures. See "Plan of 
DistributioiL" 

Expiration Date The Exchange Offes will expire at 5:00 p.m.. New York City 
time, on . 1997. unless any or all Exchange Offers are 
extended, in which case tiie term "Expiration Date" shall 
mean, witti respect to each Exchange Offer, ttie latest date and 
time to which such Exchange Of fer is extended. The Company 
will accept foi exchange any and all Old Debentures which are 
properly tendered in ttie Exchange Offers prior to 5:00 p.m.. 
New York City time, on tfie Expiration Date. The New De­
bentures issued pursuant to ttie Exchange Offers will be deliv­
ered oa OT promptiy after the Expiration Date. 

Conditions tc the Exdiange Oflers The Exdiange Offers are not conditioned on any minimum 
principal amount of Old Debenmres 'oeing tendered fw ex­
change. The Company may tenninate ttie Exchange Offers if 
it determines tfiat its ability to proceed witii any OT all of tiie 
Exchange Offers could be materially impaired due to any legal 
OT govemmen al acOOTi, any new law, stamte, rule or regula­
tion, any interpretation by tiie staff of tiie Commission of any 
ex'stirig law, stamte, rale or regulation OT tfic failure to obtain 
anv necessary approvals of governmental agencies or holders 
o/ tfie Old Debenmres. The Company does nOT expect any of 
the foregoing conditions to occur, alttiougfa ttiere can be no 
assurances any such conditions will not occur. The Exchange 
Offers are subject to certain otiier customary conditions, each 
of whiOi may be waived by tiic Company. See "The Ex­
diange Offers—Certain Conditions to tiiie Exchange Offers." 
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Procediures for Tendering Old 
Debentures 

Beneficial Owners 

Guaranteed Delivery Procedures 

Withdrawal Rights 

Each holder of Old Debentures wishing to accept any or all of 
the Exchange Offers roust complete, sign and date the Letter 
of Transmittal, OT a facsimile thereof, in accordance widii the 
instructions contained herein and ttierein, and mail OT ottier-
wise deliver such Letter of Transmittal, OT sudi facsinule, to­
gether witii such Old Debentures and any other required docu­
mentation to The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Exchange Agent, 
at the address set forth faereiiL By executing the Letter of 
Transmittal OT by transmitting an Agem's Message (as defined 
below) in beu thereof, each holder will represent to ttie Com­
pany that, among otiier tilings, the Sew Debentures acquired 
pursuant to the Exchange Offcs are being obtained in the 
ordinary course of business of lae ptrson receiving such New 
Debentures, such person does nOT have an irrangement OT un­
derstanding with any person to pvtidpate in the distribution 
of such New Debentures and. that neitiier tiie holder UOT any 
sudi other person is an "affiliate," as defined in Rule 40'J 
under the Secuiities Act of the Company. Certain brokers, 
dealers, commercial banks, tmst companies and other n<inu-
nees may also effect tenders by book-entry transfer, including 
an Agent's Message in lieu of a Letter of Transmittal. 

Any beneficial owner whose Old Debentures are registered in 
the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company 
or otiier nominee and who wishes to tender such Old Deben­
tures in any OT all of the Exchange Offers should contact such 
registered holder promptiy and instmct such registered holder 
to tender on such beneficial owner's behalf. If sucb beneficial 
owner wishes to tender on such ovuer's own behalf, such 
owner must, prior to completing and executing tiie Letter of 
Transmittal and deUvering sudi owner's Old Debentures, ei­
ther make appropriate arrangements to register ownership of 
the Old Debentures in such owner's name or obtain a properiy 
completed bond power from tiie registered holder. The transfer 
of registered ownership may take cr^iderable time and may 
not be able to be completed prior to the Expiration Date. 

Holders of Old Debentures who wish to lender their Old De­
bentures and who caimot deliver their Old Debentures or the 
Letter of Transmittal to The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Ex­
diange Agent priOT to the Expiration Date, OT the procedures 
fOT book-entry transfer cannOT be completed on a timely basis, 
must tender theii Okl Debentures according to the guaranteed 
dehvery procedures set forth in "The Exdiange Offers— 
Guaranteed Delivery Procedures." 

Tenders of Old Debenmres may be witiidrawn at any time 
priOT to 5:00 p.m.. New York City time, on the Expiration 
Date. 
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Certain Federal Income Tax 
Consequences 

Exchange Agent 

For a discussion of certain federal income tax consequences 
relating to ttie exchange of New Debenmres for Old Deben­
mres. see "Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences of Par-
tidpation in the Exchange Offers." 

The C3iase Manhattan Bank is tiie Exchange Agent Its tele­
phone number is (212) 946-3068. The address of ttie Ex­
change Agent is set fortii in "Tlie Exchange Offers—Ex­
diange Agent" The Chase Manhattan Bank also serves as 
tmstee under the Indenture. 

Sbdf R^istration Statement. Under certain circumstances de.scribcd in ttie Registration 
Rights Agreement (as defined below), certain holders of De­
bentures (including holder: who are not permitted to partici­
pate in tiic Exchange Offers OT who may not freely resell New 
Debentures received in tiic Exchange Offers) may require ttie 
Company to file, and use its best efforts to cause to become 
eflfective. a shelf registration statement (tiie "Shelf Registra­
tion Statement") under tiie Securities Act which would cover 
resales of Debentures by such holders. See "Description of 
tilie New Debenmres—Registration Rights Agreement" 

SUMMARV DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW DEBENTURES 

The terais of tiie New Debenmres and tiie Old Debentures are idcrtical in all material respects, except for 
certain transfer restrictions an̂  registration rights relating to tiic Old Debenmres. Whenever defined tenns of tiie 
Indcnmre not otiierwisc defined herein are referred to. such defined terms are incorporated herein by ret"«ce 
to l i e e^ent tiiat (i) by November 2. 1997 (OT November 4. 1997 w.ti, respect to ti-c Old 2032 Debenmres). 
neitiier tiie Registration Sutement of which ttiis Prospecms is a part (sometimes referred to herem as ttie 
"Exchange Offer Registration Statement") is declared effective DOT (if tiic Exchange Offers are not pemru^ as 
described above) tiie Shelf Registration Statement is filed witii tiie Commission, OT (li) by Dec«iibei 2, 1997 (or 
December 4 1997 witii respect to tiie Old 2032 Debentures). one or more of tiie Exchange Offers witti respect 
to any scries of Debenmres is nOT COTisumniated OT tiie Shelf Registration Statement is not declared effccuve 
^ ^ r e s ^ t tiiereto (each such event referred to in clauses (i) OT (ii). a "Registration Default"), mterest will 
accme OTTtiic applicable Old Debenmres (in addition to stated interest OT, such Old Debenmres) from and 
S n T t i i c i ^ t day following eadi such RegistiatiOT. Default In each case such additional mterest (tiie 
"SoSaf ^ r c T t " ) will be payable in cash semiamiually in arrears each May 1 and November 1, at a rate^r 
a m i ^ equal to 0.25% of tiic principal amOTint of such Old Debenmres fOT each such 
aggregate amOTint of Special Interest payable pursuant to flic above provisions will m no event " f * ^ 0-2f 
S of tfic principramOTint of such Old Debenmres. Upon (a) ttie effectiveness of tiie Exchat̂ e Offer 
r r ^ O T i sutement OT tfic filing of tiie Shelf Registration Sutement after tiie date set fot^ m clause (. above 
or Ae consummation of ttic Exchange Offer fOT such Old Debenmres OT ttic cffectivet>ess of a Shelf 
ReStra^on sutement as ttic case may be. after tiic date set forth in dat^ (ii) above, tiie Special Interest 
payable on such Old i Mbcnmres as a result of ttie applicable Registration Default will cease to accme. 

The New Debentures will bear interest from tiic most recent date to which interest has been paid on tfie Old 
DebennLs or. if no interest has been paid on ttic Old Debenmres. from May 1. 1997. Accordingly, registered 
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holders of New Debentures on the relevant recOTd date fOT the first interest payment date following the 
consummation of the Exchange Oflfers will leceive interest accming from the most recent date to which interest 
has been paid on the Old Debentures OT. if no interest has been paid, from May 1,1997. Old Debenmres accepted 
fOT exchange will cease to accme interest from and after the date of consummation of ttie Exchange Oflfers. 
Holders whose Old Debenmres are accepted fOT exchange will not receive any payment in respect of interest on 
such Old Debentures otherwise payable on any interest payment date, tiie recOTd date fOT which occurs on or 
after consummation of tiie Exchange Offers. 

THE NEW DEBENTURES 

New Debentures Offered 

Mi turity. 

$350,000,000 principal amount of 7.05% Debenmres Due 
2002, $300,000,000 principal amount of 7.25% Debenmres 
Due 2004. $450,000,000 principal amount of 7.45% Deben­
mres Due 2007, $400,000,000 principal amount of 7.90% De­
benmres Due 2017, $500,000,000 principal amount of 7.95% 
Debentures Due 2027, $100,000,000 principal amount of 
6.95% Debenmres Due 2027, $250,000,000 principal amount 
of 7.25% Debenmres Due 2027 and $150,000,000 principal 
amount of 8.30% Debenmres Due 2032. 

The New 2002 Debenmres will mature on May 1. 2002, tfie 
New 2004 Debentures will mamre on May 1, 2004, the New 
2007 Debenmres will mamre on May 1, 2007. tfic New 2017 
Debentures will mamre on May 1.2017, tfie New 7,95% 2027 
Debentures will mamre on May 1,2027. tiie New 6.95% 2027 
Debenmres will mamre on May 1,2027, tiio New 7.25% 2027 
Debenmres will mamre on May I , 2027. and the New 2032 
Debentures will mature on May 1. 2032. 

Interest Payment Dates. Interest on the New Debentures is payable semiatmually on 
each May 1 and November 1, commencing November 1, 
1997. 

Redemption. The New 2032 Debenmres v ill not be redeemable priOT to 
May 1,2007. On and after tiiat date, tiie New 2032 Debentures 
will be redeemable at the option of the Company, as a whole 
OT in part, at any time on at least 30 days' notice, at the 
respective prices indicated herein. None of the other serie s of 
New Debentures will be redeemable prior to maturity. See 
"Description of the New I>ebenmres—^RedemptiOTi." 

Purchase at Option of Holder . Each holder of the New 6.95% 2027 Debentures may require 
the Company to repurchase all OT a portion of such series 
owned by such holder on May 1, 2002 at a purchase price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued 
interest Each holder of tiie New 7.25% 2027 Debenmres may 
require tiie Company to repurchase all OT a portion of such 
series owned by such holder on May 1, 2005 at a purchase 
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price equal to lOOŜ  of tfie principal amount tfiereof plus ac­
crued interest No sucb repurchase right will be available to 
holders of tiie otiier series of New Debenmres. See "Descrip­
tion of New Debenmres—Purchase at Option of Holder." 

. The New Debentiircs wil! t : senior securities of ttie Company, 
ranking pari passu witti all otiier unsubOTdinated and 
unsecured indebtedness of the CkMnpany. 
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RISK FACTORS 

Holders of Old Debenmres should carefully review the infonnation contained elsewhere in tiiis Prospectus 
and should particularly consider the following matters. 

Consequences of Failure to Exchange Old Debentures 

The Old Debenmres have not been registered under tiie Secmities Act or any state securities laws and 
therefore may not be offered, sold OT otherwise transferred except in compliance with tiie registration 
requirements of tiie Securities Act and any other appiicabie securities laws, or pursuant to an exemption 
therefrom or in a transactiOTi not subject tiiereto, and in each case in compliance with certain otiier conditions 
and restrictions. Old Debentures which remain outstanding after co .ummation of the Exchange Offers will 
continue to bear a legend reflecting such restrictions on transfer. In addiuon, upon consummation of the 
Exchange Offers, holders of Old Debenmres which remain outstanding will not be entitied to any rights to have 
such Old Debentures registered under the Securities Act or to any similar rights under the Registration Rights 
Agreement (subject to certain limited exceptions as described herein). See "Descnption of the New Debentures 
—Registration Rights Agreement" The Company does not intend to register under tiie Securities Ad any Old 
Debentures which remain outstanding after consummation of the Exchange Offers (subjea to such limited 
exceptions, if applicable). To the extent that Old Debenmres arc tendered and accepted in the Exchange Offers, 
a holder's ability to sell untendered Old Debentures could be adversely affected. See "The Exchange Offers— 
Consequences of Failure to Exdiange Old Debentures." 

Absence of Public Market 
The Old Debentures were issued to. and the Company believes are currentiy owned by. a relatively small 

number of beneficial owners. The Old Debenmres have not been registered under the Securities Act and will be 
subjed to restrictions on transferability to the extent that they are not exchanged for the New Debentures. 
Although tiie New Debentures will generally be permitted to be resold or otherwise transferred by the holders 
(who are nOT affiliates of the Company) without compliance with the registration requirements under the 
Securities Ad, they will constimte a new issue of securities with no established trading market Any market-
making activity will be subject to the limits imposed by tiic Securities Act and tiie Exchange Ad and may be 
limited during tiie Exchange Oflfers. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that an active public or other market 
will develop for the New Debenmres or the Old Debentmes or as to the liquidity of or the trading market for the 
New Debentures or the Old Debenmres. If an active public market does not develop, the maiket price and 
liquidity of tiic New Debentures may be adversely affected. 

If a public trading maiket for the New Debenmres develops, fiiture trading prices of such securities will 
depend on many factors, including, among other things, prevailing interest rates, results of operations and the 
marltet for similar securities. Depending on prevailing interest rates, the market fOT similar securities and otiier 
factors, including the fiiumcial condition of Qic Company, the New Debentures may trade at a discount 

Notwitiistanding the registration of tiie New Debentures in the Exchange Offers, holders who are 
"affiliates" (as defined under Rule 405 of the Securities Act) of the Company may publicly offer fOT sale OT 
resell ttie New Debentures only in compliance with the provisions of Rule 144 under the Securities Act 

Each broker-dealer that receives New Debentures for its own account in exchange fOT Old Debenmres, 
w êre such Old Debentures were acquired by such broker-dealer as a result of market-making activities or other 
trading activities, must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospecms in cormection with any resale of such New 
Debentures. See "Plan of Distribution." 

Exchange Offer Procedures 
Unless tenders are made by book-entry transfer, issuance of the New Debenmres in exchange for Old 

Debenmres pursuant to the Exchange Offers will be made only after timely receipt by tiie Exchange Agent of 
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such Old Debenmres, a properiy completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal and all otiier required 
documents. Therefore, holders of ttie Old Debentures desiring to tender such Old Debenmres in exchange for 
New Debenmres should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery. Neitiier ttie Exchange Agent nor tiie 
Company is under any duty to give notification of dcf-cU OT inegularities witfi respect to tfie tenders of Old 
Debenmres for exchange. 

THE COMPANY 

The Company is an intemational transporution company witii operations in the following business units: 
CSX Transportation, Inc. ("CSXT"). Sea-l,and Service, Inc. ("Sea-Land"). American Commercial Lines. Inc. 
("ACL"). CSX Intennodal, Inc. ("CSXI"). C:ustomized Transportation, Inc. ("CTI") and non-transportation 
businesses. In 1996. flie Company generated approximately $10J billion of operating revenue and $1J billion 
of operating income. 

CSXT is an eastem Qass 1 freight raihoad. providing rail freight transporution and distribution services 
over 18,504 route miles of track in 20 states in tiic East Midwest and Soutii of ttie United SUtes and in ttie 
Province of Ontario, Canada. In 1996. CSXT accounted for 47% of tiic total operating revenue and 74% of tiie 
operating income of CSX. 

Sea-Land is a woridwide leader in container-shipping transporution and logistics services. Sea-Land 
operates 28 preferential and exclusive marine terminal fadlities across its global networic. In addition, Sea-Land 
operates a fleet of 99 container ships and approximately 208,000 containers in United States and foreign Uade 
and serves 120 ports. In 1996, Sea-Land accounted for 38% of ttie total operating revenue and 21% of ttie 
operating income of CSX. 

ACL is ttie nation's leader in barge transportation, operating 137 towboats and more tfian 3.700 barges on 
botii United Sizves and Soutii American waterways. In 1996, ACL accounted for 6% of tiic total operating 
revenue and 7% of tiic operating income of CSX. 

CSXI provides transcontinenul intennodal transporution services and operates a netwoik of dedicated 
intermodal faciUties across North America. In 1996, CSXI contributed 6% of tiie total operating revenue and 2% 
of the operating income of CSX. 

c n is a provider of contract logistics, distribution, warehousing, assembly and just-in-tirae delivery 
services. In 1996, CTI provided 3% of ttie total operating revenue and 1% of ttie operating income of CSX. 

Non-Transportation: Resort holdings include ttie Mobil Five-Star and AAA Five-Diamond rated hotel. The 
Greenbrier in White Sulphur Springs. West Virginia, and ttie Grand Teton Lodge Ompany in Moran, Wyoming. 
CSX Real Property, Inc. is responsible for sales, leasing and development of CSX-owned properties. CSX holds 
a majority interest in Yukon Pacific Corporation, which is promoting constmction of ttie Trans-Alaska Gas 
System to transport Alaska's Norfli Slope natural gas to Valdez fOT export to Asian maricets. 

The Company was incorporated in Virginia in 1978. The Company's principal executive offices are located 
at One James Center. 901 East Cary Street Richmond, Virginia 23219 (telephone 804-782-1400). Unless tiie 
context indicates otiierwise, references herein to tfie Company or CSX are to CSX Corporation and its 
consolidated subsidiaries. 

Joint CSX/NSC Acquisition of Conrail 

CSX/NSC Agreement 
On April 8. 1997, tfie Company and Norfolk Souttiem Corporation, a Virginia corporation ("NSC"), 

entered into an a^ment (tfie "CSX/NSC Agreement") providing for tticir joint acquisition of Conrail Inc., a 
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Pennsylvania corporation ("Conrail"), and tfie division of Conrail's routes and other assets. Conrail is a holding 
company of which tfie prindpal subsidiary is Consolidated Rail Corporation, a <̂ ass I freight railroad tfiat 
operates approximately 10,500 route miles in ttie Northeast and Midwest of ttie United States and tiie Province 
of (Juebec. Canada, and which possesses superiOT access to cc-̂ -un major nortiieast maikets, including the New 
York and Boston metropolitan areas. NSC owns an eastem (Tlasi I freight raihoad, Norfolk Soutiiem Railway 
Company. 

Under ttie CSX/NSC Agreement the Company and NSC acquired all outstanding shares of Ckinrail not 
already owned by tbem (die "Shares") for $115 in cash per Sliare through a jointiy owned acquisition entity 
(ttie "Acquisition Entity"). Each of ttie Company and NSC possesses 50% of the voting and management rights 
of the AcquisitiOTi Entity, and non-voting equity is apportioned between the parties fo achieve overall economic 
allocations of 42% for CSX and 58% for NSC (ttieir respective "Percentages"). Following approval by ttie 
Surface Transportation Board (the "STB") as described below. Conrail's assets will be segregated wittiin 
Ĉ onrail, and tfie Company and NSC will each benefit from tfie operation of a spedfied portion of the Conrail 
routes and other assets tiuough tfic use of various operating arrangements, and certain Cooml assets will be 
operated for the joint benefit of tfic Company and NSC. 

Acquisition of most of tfie Conrail Shares was effected under a tender offer, initiated by the Cbmpany in 
December 1996 and amended in April 1997 to include NSC as a co-bidder (tfie "Joint Tender Offer"), which 
closed in Mry 1997. Shortiy tfiereafter. (Onrail was merged witti a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Acquisition 
Entity and all remaining Conrail Shares not tendered were converted into the right to receive $115 in cash per 
share. The aggregate cost of the Joint Tender Offer, the merger and the shares of Conrail already acquired by ttic 
Company and NSC was approximately $9.9 billion. Pu.-suant to ttic CSX/NSC Agreement tiic Company has 
paid 42%, or approximately $4.2 billion, and NSC has pa'd 58%. OT approximately $5.7 billion, of such cost 
These totals include approximately $2.0 billion spent by ttie Company and $1.0 billion spent by NSC to acquire 
approximately 30%. in the aggregate, of Conrai! *s shares priOT to the Joint Tender Offer. Including its capitalized 
transaction costs, flic (Company's aggregate purciias.* price was approximately $4.3 billion. 

Conrail Shares purchased in tfie Joint Tender Oflfer and tfie merger, togetfier witfi all Ckjnrail shares 
previously purchased by ttic Company and NSC, have been deposited into a voting tmst pending STB approval 
of the joint acquisition, control and division of Cbnrail by the Company and NSC. Furthermore, by entering into 
tfie CSX/NSC Agreement flic Compaay is obligated under ttie Pennsylvania anti-takeover laws to purdiase any 
Coiû ail Shares "put" to the Company in accordance with the procedures of such laws for at least $115 per share 
in cash. 

Joint CSX/NSC STB AppUcation 
The exercise of control over Comail by the Company and NSC remains subject to a number of conditions 

and approvals, including approval by ttie STB, which has the auttiority to modify contrad terms and impose 
additional conditions, including witti respect to divestitures, grants of trackage rights and other tenns of 
continuing operations. The Company and NSC intend to file a joint application witii tiie STB in June 1997 fOT 
control and division of Conrail and fOT such other matters as may be required to be approved by the STB. The 
joint STB i^lication will address traffic flows, operations and related matters; will outiine ttie capital 
investntents each company plans to make in new connections and facilities and to increase capacity on critical 
routes; and will detail operating savings and other public benefits resulting from the transaction. The implication 
Jso will contain certain historical and pro forma finandal information required by the STB. The STB has issued 
a scheduling order tiiat provides fOT issuance of a final STB dedsion no later ttian 350 days after flie Company 
and NSC file their joint application. No assurance can be given with rcspea to the receipt of STB approval OT 
ttie modifications OT conditions that may be imposed in connection therewith. 

Proposed Division of Conrail Routes 
Until ttie date the Company and NSC are permitted by tfie STB to assume control over Conrail (tfie 

"Control Date"), Conrail will continue to be managed by its current Board of Directors and management After 
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ttie Control Date, Conrail will segregate its assets primarily into two groups to facilitate tfieir separate operation 
pursuant to leasing, operating, partnership or ottier similar anangements. The remaining assets and liabilities of 
Conrail. including joint facilities, generally will eitiicr be shared or allocated ratably between ttie Company and 
NSC accOTding to ttieir Pcrcenuges. In arriving at ttic proposed division of Conrail and ttieii Percentages, ttie 
Company and NSC negotiated witii a view toward producing ttie best fits witti tiicir existing systems and 
optimizing service to tticir respective customers. The maps reprinted on tfie front inside cover and back inside 
cover of ttiis Prospecms show, respectively, tfic proposed post-Transaction (as defined below) CSXT route 
system and tiie approximate division of Conrail's routes as contemplated by tiie CSX/NSC Agreement These 
maps are included for illustrative purposes only and arc qualified in tiicir entirety by reference to ttie CSX/NSC 
Agreement Sec "Incorporation of Certain Docunn-nts by Reference." 

The acquisition by tiie Company of ttie Conrail Shares and tiie right to use he assets allocated to or shared 
by ttic Company pursuant to tiic C^^ZiSC Agreement and tiic liabilities alloc ked to or shared by it pursuant to 
ttie CSX/NSC Agreement will be refened to in ttiis Prospecms as ttie "Transaction." Many of ttic terms of ttie 
Transaction will be detailed in further definitive documtnution tiiat is currentiy being negotiated between CSX 
and NSC (tiic "Definitive Documenution"). 

For additional infonnation regarding ttie Transaction and tiic CSX/NSC Agreement reference is made to 
ttie Company's Tender Offer Sutement on Schedule 14D-1. togetfier witfi exhibits ttiereto. initially filed witti ttie 
Clommission on December 6. 1996. as amended. 

Financing Arrangements 
The Company spent approximately $2.2 billion to purchase its portion of ttie outstanding Shares pursuant to 

ttie Joint Tender Offer and ttie merger. The Company previously paid approximately $2 billion to acquire about 
20% of Conrail's shares in November 19%. At ttiat time, ttie Company ananged a five-year $4.8 billion bank 
credit facility (ttie "Credit Agreement") to finance an acquisition of Conrail and to meet general woricing capital 
needs. The Company used tfic majority of tiic net proceeds from tfie sale of tiie Old Debenmres to finance tiie 
balance of its contribution under ttie Joint Tender Offer and tiie merger. On May 6, 1997. in connection witii ttie 
consummation of ttic sale of Old Debenmres, ttic Company reduced by $2.3 billion tiie lenders' committncnts 
under tiie Credit Agreement Sec "Capitalization." 

Such financings have resulted in die Company's having outstandmg a combination of long-tenn debt witii 
suggered mamrities and commercial paper. The Company expects its long-tenn debt levels (including tiie 
Company's portion of Conrail debt) to peak in 1998 at approximately $6.8 billion, witii related mterest charges 
(including interest payments on tiic Company's portion of Conrail debt) to peak at approximately $520.0 nulliOTi. 
While flic Definitive Documentation is not complete, tiic Company and NSC contemplate ttiat payments to 
Conrail under operating or similar anangements and tiirough capital contributions to tiie Acquisition Entity will 
be sufficient to pay obligations on Conrail's outstanding debt instmmenls in accordance witii ttieir tenns, OT to 
refinance such obligations, as appropriate. The Ĉ jmpany and NSC have agreed in ttic CSX/NSC Agreement tfiat 
such debt will be shared ratably according to ttieir PercenUges. 

BenefiU of the Transadioo 

Broadest Geographic Network in Eastem United States 
The Transaction will significantly enliance tfie Company's position as a leading global transportation 

company. The Company will remain tiie largest r.ulroad in tfie eastem United Su es and become tiie ttiird largest 
raihoad in tiie nation, measured in terms of rcute miles and ton-nules. The C^rr.paii,. as a result of ttie 
Transaction, will be adding approximately 3,500 r.Hitt miles, or 19%. to its rail network, and sharing witti NSC 
approximately 1 200 additional route miles. The Tympany will have approximately 22,000 route miles m 22 
Mates tfic District of Columbia and tiic Provinces of Ontario and Quebec. Canada, and will provide direct access 
to virtually every major metropolitan area eas; of ttie Mississippi River and to eleven of tiic largest east coast 
and gulf ports. 
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Enhanced Operating Efficiencies and Revenue Growth 
Maregiment expects ?hc integration of Conrail operations resulting from ttie Transaction to add 

approximately $1.6 billion, or 15%. to tiie Ck)mpany's annual revenue beginning in ttic first twelve monttis 
following tlie Control Date. Management believes ttiat ttie Transaction will also result in growth of ttie 
Company's rail revenue base fllirough expansion of single-line service and the Company's ability to compete 
more effectively on certain routes along which large quantities of goods arc no"' transported by tmck. Single-Unc 
service is preferred by shippers ov̂ r joint-line service because of lower transaction costs, reduced delays, less 
damage from interchange operations and single-carrier accountability. The addition of Conrail lines to tiic 
Company's rail network also will imp'ovc operational efficiency tfu-ough better asset utilization. Optimization of 
train sizes, increased length of haul, in\provcd backhauls, shorter routes to many destinations and fewer empty 
movements arc all expected to produce cost reductions for ttic combined rail network. Other significant savings 
will be achieved through ttie realizatiot of economics of scale, rationalization of administrative and otiier 
overtiead expenses and consolidation of duplicative faciUties. 

Financial Effects 
The Company expects tiiat tiie benefits fron tiie Transaction will begin to build from ttie Control Date and 

should be largely realized wittiin a tiiree-year i«riod tiicreaftcr. Therefore, for tfic purposes of tfie following 
discussion. Year 1, Year 2 and Year 3 ccnespcnd to the tfirce consecutive 12-montii periods following the 
COT.ttrol Date. Based on joint efforts of tfie Compai;y and Ck>nrail to identify potential cost savings, management 
cunentiy estimates that the Transaction will lead tc quantifiable pretax benefits from increased traffic and cost 
efficiencies of approximately $75 million. $170 million and $240 million annually in Years 1. 2 and 3, 
respectively, compared to tiic separate operation of the Company and its share of Conrail. These benefits include 
estimated incremental operating income of $25 million. $54 million and $75 million expected tiirough increased 
traffic in Years 1. 2 and 3. respectively. The rcmainini> pretax benefits will be in ttie form of operating cost 
savings, witii $50 million, $116 nullifMi and $165 million expected to be realized in Years 1, 2 and 3, 
respectively. Furtiier. management expects a reduction Li the requirement fOT aimual capital expenditures of 
approximately $12 million. $28 million and $40 million in Years I. 2 and 3. respectively. Management estimates 
that ttic Company will, in Years 1 and 2, incur one-time tr.insition capital expendimres in connection witti the 
integration of operations. Those are expected to be $310 million in Year 1 and $178 nullion in Year 2. The 
Company is continuing to evaluate tiic foregoing estimates, some or all of which may be refined in tfic joint 
application to be filed with the STB. 

The overall purchase price, including transaction costs, paid by the Company is expected lo exceed tfie 
historical net book value of ttie Company's share of tfie underiying Conrail assets by approximately $2.9 bilUon. 
Altiiough purchase accounting adjustments will not be finalized until the Transaction is completed, a substantial 
portion of tfie excess purchase price is expected to be allocated to specific net assets and amortized over the 
remaining useful fives of tfiose assets. The remainder of tiie excess purdiase price will be allocated to goodwill 
and amortized over 40 years. 

Because of ttic time required to obtain necessary regulatory and otiicr approvals, ttic Company does nOT 
expect integrated operations to have a significant effect on operating and financial results prior to fiscal 1998. 
The primary impact of ttie proposed Transaction on net eamings prior to ttic integration of operations is likely io 
be the after-tax effect of tiie Company's share of C ĵnrail's net eamings. reported under tiic equity metiiod of 
accotmting, less amortization of the excess purchase price and interest on debt incuned to acquire Comail shares. 
Net cash flow prior to operational integration is expected to be reduced by interest payments on such debt The 
average interest rate in 1996 on debt incurred to acquire Conrail shares was approximately 5.6%. The degree of 
negative impact on net earmngs or net cash flow during 1997 will be significantiy affected by tiic net eamings 
reported by Conrail and tiie average interest rate and timing of interest payments on the related debt 

THE ABOVE ESTIMATES AND FORECASTS ARE BASED UPON NUMEROUS ESITMATES AND 
ASSUMPTIONS ABOUT COMPLEX ECONOMIC AND OPERATING FACTORS WITH RESPECT TO 
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INDUSTRY PERFORMANCE. GENERAL BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OTHER 
MATHERS THAI CANNOT BE PREDICTED ACCURATELY AND THAT ARE SUBJECT TO 
CONTINGENCIES OVER WHICH THE COMPANY HAS NO CONTROL. SUCH FORWARD LOOKING 
STATEMENTS INVOLVE KNOWN AND UNKNOWN RISKS. UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER 
IMPORTANT FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE THE ACTUAL RESULTS. PERFORMANCE OR 
ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY TO DIFFER MATERLMXY FROM ANY FUTURE RESULTS, 
PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS EXPRESSED OR D^UED BY SUCH FORWARD LOOKING 
STATEMENTS. CERTAIN OF THOSE RISKS. UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER IMPORTANT FACTORS 
THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY INCLUDE (A) FUTURE 
ECONOMIC CONDITIONS IN THE MARKETS IN WIDCH THE COMPANY AND CONRAIL OPERATE; 
(B) FINANCL«iI- MARKET CONDmONS; (C) INFLATION RATES; (D) CHANGING COMPETmON; (E) 
CHANGES IN THE REGULATORY CLIMATE IN THE UNITED STATES RAILROAD INDUSTRY; (F) 
THE ABILITY TO ELIMINATE DUPUCATTVE ADMINISTRATIVE FUNCTIONS; AND (G) ADVERSE 
CHANGES IN APPUCABLE LAWS. REGULATIONS OR RULES GOVERNING ENVIRONMENTAL, 
TAX OR ACCOUNTING MATTERS. THESE FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS SPEAK ONLY AS OF 
THE DATE OF THIS PROSPECTUS. THE COMPANY DISCLAIMS ANY OBUGATION OR 
UNDERTAKING TO DISSEMINATE ANY UPDATES OR REVISIONS TO ANY FORWARD LOOKING 
STATEMENT CONTAINED HEREIN TO REFLECT ANY CHANGE IN THE COMPANY'S 
EXPECTATIONS WTTH REGARD THERETO OR ANY CHANGE IN EVENTS. CONDITIONS OR 
CIRCUMSTANCES ON WHICH ANY SUCH STATEMENT IS BASED. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

The Company will nOT receive any proceeds from the Exchange Offers. On May 6. 1997. ttic Company 
issued $350,000,000 principal amount of Old 2002 Debentures, $300,000,000 principal amount of Old 2004 
Debenmres. $450,000,000 principal amount of Old 2007 Debentures, $400,000,000 principal amount of Old 
2017 Debenmres, $500,000,000 principal amount of Old 7.95% 2027 Debenmres. $100,000,000 principal 
amount of Old 6.95% 2027 Debenmres and $250,000,000 principal amount of Old 7.25% 2027 Debenmres. and 
on May 8. 1996 ttie Company issued $150,000,000 principal amount of Old 2032 Debenmres (togetfier. tfie 
"Offering"). The Old Debenmres were sold by ttie Company to Salomon Brotiiers Inc, Credit Suisse First 
Boston Ck»rpOTation, Chase Securities Inc.. Goldman, Sachs & Co., Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated and 
NationsBanc Capital Markets, Inc. (tiic "Initial Purchasers") and were in mm sold by tiie Initial Purchasers to a 
limited number of qualified instimtional buyers and accredited investors pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation 
D. respectively, under tiic Securities Ad and exemptions from applicable state securities laws, and ttie Offering 
was not subject to the registration requirements of ttie Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. The net 
proceeds from tiie sale of ttie Old Debenmres sold m ttie Offering primarily were used to ftmd a portion of ttie 
Company's obligations under tiie CSX/NSC Agreement, including die purchase of Conrail Shares pursuant to 
tfie Joint Tender Offer and tfie merger. The balance of ttie net proceeds were used for general corporate purposes, 
including, witiiout limitation, repayment of borrowings, working capital and capital expenditiues. Sec "The 
Company—Joint CSX/NSC Acquisition of Conrail." 
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CAPITALIZATION 

Tbc following table sets forth (i) the unaudited historical consolidated capitalization of the Company as of 
March 28. 1997. (ii) tfie adjustment to give effect to the issuance of the Old Debenmres on May 6 and May 8, 
1997, and (iii) tfie pro forma consolidated capiulization after such adjustment For additional information as to 
tfie capitalization of the Company, see "Selected Historical Fuiandal Dau for ttie Company" contained herein 
and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition and the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the related notes thereto in the Company's (Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 28. 1997 and its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
fiscal year ended December 27, 1996 incorporated herein by reference. 

As of March 28.1997 
BiaUKieal Adjiutmtet Pro Forma 

(Dalian in mlDioiis, 
except per liiare data) 

(HoawUted) 
Long-Term Debt 

Commercial paper (1) $2 JOO $ (300) $ 2,000 
Notes payable 483 483 
Debentures 649 2,500 3,149 
Equipment obligations 709 709 
Mortgage bonds 76 7t 
Other obligaticxis. including capiul leases 169 169 
Current maturities of long-term debt (143) (143) 

Total long-term debt 4,243 2,200 6,443 
Shareholders' Equity 

Common stock, $1 par value (300.(XX).000 shares auttiorized, 
217.662.928 shares issued and outstanding) 218 lit 

Ottier capital 1.470 1,470 
Retained earai;igs 3,546 3,546 
Minimum pension liability (107) (107) 

Total shareholders' equity 5.127 5,127 

Total capitalization $9370 $2.200 $11,570 

Total Long-Term Debt to Total Capitalization 45% 56% 

(1) Commercial paper borrowings of $23 billion, including approximately $2.0 bilUon incurred to acquire a 
19.9% investment in Cotasal, were classified as long-term debt at March 28.1997 based on ttie Company's 
ability and intent to maintain this debt outstanding for more than one year. Approximately $2.2 billion of 
tfi« proceeds from the issuance of tfie Old Debentures was used to fund tfie Company's obligation under 
the Joint Tender Offer and the merger, and the remaining $300 milUon was used to reduce long-term 
commercial paper bonowings. 
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CONSOLIDATED RA'OO OF EARNINGS TO FiXED CHARGES 
AND SELECTED F1NANCL4L RAT. O 

The Company's consolidated ratio of eamings to fixed charges and r itio of bJuH kxig-tenn debt to total 
capitalization fOT each of the fisol pen ids indicated are as follows: 

For UK Fiscal 
Quartcn Ended For the Flieal Yeari Ended 

Mar.28, Mar.29, De.27, Dw.29, DK.30, Dec3l, Dw.31, 
1997 1996 -994 1995(b) 1994 1993(e) 1992(d) 

Ratio of earnings to fixed diarges (a) 2.8x 3.1x 4.0x 3.2x 3.1x 2Jx l.Ox 
Total long-term debt to total capitalization 45% 34% 46% 34% 41% 50% 52% 

(a) FOT purposes of computing ttie ratio of eamings to fixed d-jrges, earnings represent eamings Goss) before 
income taxes plus interest expense on indebtedness, amortization of debt discount ttic interest portion of 
fixed rent expense, undistrî  tted eamings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and minority interest expense. 
Fixed charges include interest on indebtedness (whetfter expensed or capitalized), amortization of debt 
discount and the interest portion of fixed rent expense. 

(b) Operating incoiite includes a diarge of $257 million to recognize die estimated costs of initiatives to revise, 
restructure and consolidate spedfic operations and administrative functions at the (Company's rail and 
container-shipping units. Excluding the impact of the diarge. the ratio of eamings to fixed charges would 
have been 3.7x. 

(c) Operating income includes a charge of $93 million t. ^̂ î /e tiie estiinaied costs of restmcmring certain 
operations and functions at the COTnpany's container-shipping uiut Lxcluding ttie impact of ttic charge, flic 
ratio of earnings to fixed charges would have been 2.5x. 

(d) Operating income includes a charge of $699 million to recognize ttie estimated costs of buying out certain 
trip-based compensation elements paid to train crews at the Company's rail unit Excluding ttic impaa of 
the charge, the ratio of earnings to fixed charges would have been 2 5x. 
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SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCLiL DATA FOR THE COMPANY 

The selected financial daU presented below for the fisca! quarters ended March 28. 1997 ard March 29. 
1996 and tiie fiscal years ended December 27, 1996. December 29. 1995. December 30, 199̂  December 31. 
1993 and December 31. 1992 and as of tiie end of each such fiscal period is derived from ttie consoUdated 
financial sutements of ttie Company ar ' should be read in conjuncticm witii tiic infonnation and consoUdated 
financial sutements and related notes and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and 
Fmancial Condition in tiic Company's (Juarteriy Report on Form 10-Q fOT tiie fiscal quarter ended March 28, 
1997 and its Annual Report on Fonn 10-K fOT ttie fiscal year ended December 27, 1996. incorporated herein by 
reference. The consolidated financial statements for ttic fiscal years ended December 27. 1996. December 29. 
1995. December 30, 1994, December 31, 1993 and December 31. 1992 have been audited by Ernst & Young 
LLP. independent auditors. The consolidated financial sutements for the fiscal quarters ended March 28. 1997 
and March 29, 1996 are unaudited but in ttie opinion of management, include all adjustn>cnts necessary for a 
fair presentation. 

As of or for the 
Flical Quarters Ended As of or ibr the Fiscal Years Ended 
Mar.28. Mar.29. Dec27, Dec29. Dec.30, Dec3I, Dec.31, 

1997 1996 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 
(Dollars In mflUoas, except per share dau) 

Income Statement Data 
Operating revenue $ 2,567 $2,514 $10,536 $10304 $ 9,409 $ 8,766 $8,549 
Operating income 324 296 1,522 1.126 1.182 881 214 
Net eamings 151 146 855 618 652 359 20 

Per Share Data 
Net eamings per common 

share $ 0.70 $ 0.69 $ 4.00 $ 2.94 $ 3.12 $ 1.73 $ 0.10 
Book value 23,56 20.69 23.04 20.15 17.81 15.27 14.37 
C^h dividends per common 

share 0.26 0.26 1.04 .092 0.88 0.79 0.76 
Balance Sheet Data 

ToUl assets $16,888 $14366 $16,965 $14,282 $13,724 $13,420 $13,049 
Total debt including cunent 

mamrities 4,673 3.077 4.767 2,856 3.131 3,443 3.459 
Stockholdeni'equity 5.127 4 374 4,995 4,242 3,731 3,180 .r975 

Fiscal Quarter Ended: 
Mar. 28,1997— The Company incurred net costs before income taxes of $24 milhon with resped to its 

investment in Ctonrail common stock. These net costs, principally interest on debt i&sucd to 
acquire ttie investment less dividends received on the stock, reduced net eamings by $16 
milUon. seven cenu per share. 

Fiscal Vears Ended: 
Dec. 29. 1995— Operating income includes a charge of $257 million to recognize ttic estimated costs of 

mitiatives to revise, restmcture ai.d consolidate specific operations and administrative 
functions at its rail and container-shipping umts. The restmcmring charge reduced net 
eamings by $160 million, 76 cents per share. The Company also recognized a net 
investment gain of $77 million, $51 million after tax. 24 cents per share, on tfic issuance of 
an equity bterest in a Sea-Land terminal and related operations in Asia and the write-down 
of various invesimer.ts. 

Dec. 30. 1994— Net eamings includes r"' accelerated pretax gain of $69 million, $42 million after tax. 20 
cents per share on the ; itisfaction by tiic sUte of Florida of its remainiiij unfunded 
obligation issued in 1988 to consummate tiie purchase of 80 miles of track and right of way. 
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Dec. 31. 1993— Operating income includes a charge of $93 millioi to recognize the estimated costs of 
restmcmring ceruin operations and functions at the Company's container-shipping unit The 
restmcmring charge reduced net earnings by $61 million, 30 cents per share. Net eamings 
also inciudes charges of $56 million. 76 cents per share, relating to flic revision of tiie 
Company's estimated annual effective tax rate to reflect the change in the federal stamtory 
income tax rate from 34% to 35%. 

Dec. 31, 1992— Operating income includes a charge of $699 million to recognize tfie estimated costs of 
bu}ang out certain trip-based compensation elements paid «o train crews. The charge reduced 
net eamings by $450 nullion, $2.19 per share. 

Restatement: 

Beginning with tiie quarter ended June 28, 1996, the Company changed its eamings presentation to exclude non-
transportation activities from operating revenue and expense. These activities, prindpally real estate and resort 
operations, are now included in otiier income. Amounts for periods priOT to Jime 28, 1996 have been restated to 
confonn to the revised presentation. 

All per share clau for periods prior to December 21,1995 have been adjusted for tiie two- for-one common stock 
split distributed to shareholders on that date. 

aB 
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SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL r>«TA FOR CONRAIL 

Tlic selected financial dau presented below for tiie quarters ended March 31, 1997 and 1996 and tfie years 
ended December 31, 1996, 1995, 1994 and 1993 are derived from tfie consoUdated financial sutements of 
Conrail and its subsidiaries and should be read in conjunction with the infonnation and consolidated statements 
and related note:., and Management's Di cussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition 
contained in Conrail's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fOT the quarter ended March 31, 1997 and its umual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996. Reports on Form 10-K for years prior to 1993 
were filed by Consolidated Rail Corporation, Conrail's only sigmficant subsidiary and primary asset fOT tiiose 
time periods, and 1992 historical dau pn'sented herein arc with respect to such corporation. 

As of or for the (Juarters 
Ended March 31, As of or for the Years Ended December 31, 
1997 1996 ~1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 

(DoUars in raflUons, except per share data) 
Income Statement Data 

Revenues $ 906 $ 889 $3,714 $3,686 $3,733 $3,453 $3345 
Operating income 116 69 601 456 606 591 534 
Income before cumulative effed of 

changes in accounting principles 61 31 342 264 324 234 282 
Net income 61 31 342 264 324 160 282 

Per Share Data 
Income per common share before the 

cumulative effect of changes in 
accotmting prindples: 

Primary $ 0.74 $ 0.36 $ 4.25 $ 3.19 $ 3.90 $ 2.74 $ 3.28 
Fully diluted 0.70 0,35 3.89 2.94 3.56 2J1 2.99 

Net income 
Primary $ 0.74 $ 036 $ 4.25 $ 3.19 $ 3.90 $ 1.82 $ 3.28 
Fully diluted 0.70 0.35 3.89 2.94 336 1.70 2.99 

Book Value 38.32 35.42 37.91 35.66 36.69 34.57 34.16 
Cash dividends per common share 0.475 0.425 1.80 1.60 1.40 1.20 1.00 

Balance Sheet Data 
Total assets $8,470 $8,432 $8,402 $8,424 $8322 $7,948 $7315 
Total debt including current mamrities . 2,036 2,157 2.105 2,181 2,182 2,184 1,911 
Shareholders' equity 3,152 2,944 3.107 2.977 2,925 2,784 2,748 

Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges 2,5x 1.8x 3.2x 2.5x 3.2x 3.0x 33x 

Quarter Ended March 31, 
1997— Operf-dng income includes merger-related costs of $22 milUon. These costs reduced net income by 

$14 million and earnings per share ("EPS") 17 cents on a primary basis and 16 cents on a fidly 
diluted basis. 

Years End< d December 31, 
1996— Operating income includes a charge of $135 milUon fOT voluntary separation programs, wiiich 

reduced net income by $83 million and EPS $1.07 on a primary basis and 95 cents on a fully diluted 
basis. Operating income alsc includes merger-related costs of $16 million, which reduced net income 
by $10 million and EPS by 13 cents on a primary basis and 11 cents on a fully-diluted basis. 

1995— Operating income includes an asset disposition charge of $285 million for rail lines and other assets 
written down to estimated net realizable value, which redi'ced net income by $17o million and EPS 
S2.24 on a primary basis and $1.98 on a fiilly diluted basis. Net income also includes a one-time $21 
million benefit related to a decrease in a state income tax rate which increased EPS 27 cents on a 
primary basis and 23 cents on a fully diluted basis. 
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1994— Included in operating income is a charge of $84 million ($51 milUon after tax benefits) for a 
voluntary early retirement program and related costs. This reduced EPS 64 cents on a primary basis 
and 57 cents on a fully diluted basis. 

1993— Net income includes charges of $74 million as a result of the adoption of required changes in 
accounting fOT income taxes and postretirement benefits other than pensions which reduced EPS 92 
cents on a primary basis and 81 cents on a fully diluted basis; $50 million ($80 million before tax 
benefit of $30 million) for the disposition of a subsidiary which decreased EPS t2 cents on a primary 
basis and 55 cents on a fully diluted basis; and $34 million for the increase in the federal corporate 
income tax rate which decreased EPS 42 cents on a primary basis and 37 cents on a fully diluted 
basis. 
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UNAUDFFED PRO FORMA FINANCLU. STATEMENTS 

On May 23. 1997. tiie Joint Tender Offer for ttic Ĉ onrail Shares expired. As a resul' of ttie contribution by 
the Company and NSC of Conrail shares owned by them before the Joint Tender Offer as \ ell as the contribuuon 
of funds to complete tiic Joint Tender Offer and the m:;rger. they have,, espectively. a 42 pe cent and a 58 percent 
economic interest in ttic Acquisition Entity which now owns all of the Conrail shares. S ich shares are being 
held in a voting tmst pending STB approval. The Company and NSC also each may exercise a 50 percent voting 
interest in the Acquisition Entity and each has the right to appoint half of that entity's directors and a full-time 
CoChief Executive Officer. Under the CSX/NSC Agreement subjec; to STB approval, flic Ĉ ompany will 
operate routes and assets (or rights fliereto) that generated approximately 42 percent of Conrail's 1995 revenues. 

The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements included herein present a Condensed Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position for the Company as of Mauh 28,1997, and Condensed ConsoUdated Sutements 
of EaiTiings for the fiscal quarter ended March 28. 1997. and the fiscal year ended December 27. 19%. The pro 
fomu financial sutements reflect (i) the completion by the Company and NSC of their Joint Tender Offer for 
the Coiuail Shares and the merger at $115 per share ttirou^ the Acquisition Entity; and (ii) the related 
bonowings by the Company, including the Debentures. 

These events arc reflected in the Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Finandal Position as if 
they had occurred on March 28. 1997, and in the Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statements of Eamings as 
if they had occurred at the beginning of the period presented. The financial information for Conrail was based 
upon its historical financial sutements for the quarter ended March 31. 1997. and for the year ended December 
31. 199̂ , as reported in its Form 10-Q and Form 10-K. respectively. Conrail's 1996 results included a special 
charg, of $135 million (pre-tax) for voluntary separation programs. 

The Company is using the equity mettiod of accounting for its interest in Coruail following consummation 
of the Joint Tender Offer and the merger and continuing as I-mg as the Ccnrail shares are held in the voting tmst 
—a period that will extend at least until the effective date of the STB's decision approving the transactions 
contemplated by the CSX/NSC Agreement (if such approval is obtained). In accordance with Accounting 
Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 18. "The Equity Mettiod of Accounting for Investments in Common 
Stock," the excess of the Company's purchase price over the underlying net assets acquired ("Excess") is being 
amortized Based on a pr̂ Uminary analysis of the fair value of ttie underiying net assets of Conrail, the Ĉ ompany 
believes ? sigiuficant portion of the Excess will be allocated to long lived assets other than goodwill. Further 
informâ on as to the values of assets and liabilities, as well as specific allocations to the (Company or NSC, may 
affect these preliminaiy estimates. 

The method of accounting fOT the investment in Conrail subsequent to dissolution of tfie voting tmst will 
depend on the final terms of the ownership anangement between the Company and NSC approved by the STB. 
Additionally, the ultimate tenrn of leases, operating partnerships and other anangcmeni.̂  will affect the 
accounting. It is also expected that some of the assets and operations of Conrail will remain subject to joI.it 
control by tiie Company and NSC and, tfius, will continue to be accounted for using tfie equity mettiod of 
accounting even after STB approval. 

The unaudited pro forma financial sutements do not reflect synergies and, accordingly, do not account fOT 
any potential increases in operating income, any estimated cx>st savings, any adjustments to conform accounting 
practices or any capita] expenditures to be realized OT made by either ti^ie Company or Conrail to achieve such 
improvements. The unaudited pro fonna financial statements are prepared for illustrative purposes only 
and are not necessarily indicative of the financial position or results of operations that might have 
occurred had the appUcable transadions adually taken place on the date indicated, or of future results of 
operations or financial position of the standalone or combined entities. 

The unaudited pro forma financial sutements arc based on the historical consolidated financial sutements 
of the Company and Conrail and should be read in ccnjunction with such histoncai financial sUtemcnts and the 
notes thereto. 
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PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As of March 28,1997 

Unaudited 
(Do"in MiOkms) 

CSX 
Hbloncal 

Assets 
Ĉ irrent assets $ 1,941 
Properties—net 11,924 
Investment in Conrail ) ,955 
Other long-term assets 1,068 

Total assets $16.888 

Liabilities 
C unent liabiUties $ 2̂ 71 
Long-term debt 4,243 
Defened income taxes 2,743 
Other long-term liabilities 2,204 

Total liabiUties , 11,761 

Shareholders' Equity 
Common stock 218 
Ottier capital 1,470 
Retained eamings 3346 
Minimum pension Uability (107) 

Total shaicholdcrs' equity 5.127 

Total liabilities & shareholders' equity $16,888 

Pro Foraa 
CSX with 

Pro Fonna Coorafl 
Adjustments Investment 

$2,2510 
50(') 

$ lOlc) 
2.200<') 

2301 

$ 1.941 
11.924 
4,206 
1,118 

$2301 $19,189 

$ 2,672 
6,443 

,̂743 
2,204 

14,062 

218 
1,470 
3346 
(107) 

5.127 

$2301 $19,189 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements. 
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PRO FORMA COIWENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS 
Fiscal Quarter Ended March 28,1997 

Unaudited 
(DoOars In MBliom, Except Per Share DaU) 

CSX Pro Fonna 
BBalorfanl AdJnaOnentt 

Operating revenue $ 2367 
Operating expense 2,243 

Operating income 324 
Other income (expense) (7) $ If" 
Interest expense 84 46 o> 

Eamings before income taxes 233 (45) 
Income tax expense 82 (16y*> 

Net earnings $ 151 $ (29) 

Eamings per share $ 0.70 $(0.14) 
Avenge common shares outstanding (thousands) 217.227 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements. 

Pro Foma 
CSX with 
Coonl 

Invqtmeot(5) 

$ 2367 
2.243 

324 
(6) 

130 

188 
66 

$ 122 

$ 0.56 
217,227 
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PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS 
Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 1996 

Unaudited 
(DoOara in Mllions, Exu~' Per Share DaU) 

CSX Pro Forma 
Hiitorical AdjnsUnenU 

Operating revenue $10336 
Operating expense 9,014 

Operating income 1322 
Ottier income 43 $ 70") 
Interest expense 249 285 O' 

Eamings befOTc income taxes 1,316 (215) 
Income tax expense 461 (%)<*' 

Net earnings $ 855 $(119) 

Eamings per share $4.00 $(0.55) 
Average common shares outstanding (ttiousands) 213,633 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements. 

Pro Forma 
CSX with 
Conrai 

Investtaent (5) 

$10336 
9,014 

1322 
113 
534 

1,101 
365 

$ 736 

$3.45 
213,633 
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(DoUars in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 

Note I, Preliminary Calculation of Purchase Price 
Pursuant to ttic CSX/NSC Agreement CSX has invested approximately $4,156 bilUon (mciudmg $1,955 

billior expended in November 1996, and excluding transaction costs) to acquire, through its ownership interest 
in (Conrail. various Conrail routes and assets or rights ttiereto. The acquisition was financed witti a combination 
of dcbe.imres and commercial paper. The purchase price has been preUminarily calculated as follows: 

Estimated Conrail shares outstanding at May 23, 1997 (OOO's) 86,475 
Less: Shares acquired pursuant to CSX's first tender offer (a) (17,775) 

Shares acquired pursuant to NSC's fiibt tender offer , (8,200) 

Shares acquired pursuant to Joint Tender Offer and merger 60300 
Joint Tender Offer and merger price per share $ 115 

Cost of shares acquired pursuant to Joint Tender Offer and merger $ 6,958 
Plus: Cost of shares acquired pursuant to CISX's first tender offer (a) 1,955 

C!ost of shares acquired pursuant to NSC's first tendei offer 943 
Unexercised Cbnrail stock options 39 

Joint purchase price 9,895 
CSX's allixation 42% 

Joint purchase price payable by CSX 4,156 
Estimated û ansaction fees payable by CSX 50 

Purchase price payable by CSX. including transaction fees 4,206 
Less: Cost of shares held at March 28. 1997 (1,955) 

Pro forma adjustment to Conrail investment 2,251 
Pro forma adjustment for debt issuance costs 50 

Pro forma adjustment to debt 2301 
Less: Current portion of commercial paper (101) 

Pro forma adjustment to long-term debt $ 2,200 

(a) Exclusive of 85,000 shares previously sold by CSX at an average price of $98,983 per share. 

Note 2, Debt 

Long-term debt has been increased by $2.2 billion and short-term debt has been increased by $0.1 bilUon to 
reflect the net additional bonowing subsequent to March 28, 19C7 ito finance tfie Company's purchase price 
(including transaction fees and debt issuance costs) in excess of the $1,955 billion previously paid. This net 
additional bonowing is inclusive of tfic ptoceeds of tfic $2.5 billion of Debenmres. reduced by net repayments 
of commercial paper previously outstanding. As a consequence of the Company's first tender offer and its share 
of the subsequent Joint Tender Offer and merger, short-term and long- term debt of $4,256 billion is outstanding, 
as follows: 

Prindpal 
Amonnt 

Debenmres S2J500 
Commercial paper , 1,756 

ToUl debt incuned by CSX $4,256 

Weighted-
Arengt Interest 

Rale for Pro Forma 
Adjnatment 

735% (fixed) 
5.70% (variable) 

6.79% 

Pro forma interest expense has been increased as a result of the additional debt incuned, as noted below. 
Debt placement fees, debt discount and related costs are being amortized on the interest method and. together 
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witii anrual commitment fees, approximate $7 million in tiie first year after consummation of the Joint Tender 
Offer. Inclusive of these costs, tiie effective interest rate is approximately 6.95%. If interest rates assumed were 
to change by onc-eightti of one percent tiic pro forma interest expense on variable rate debt associated witti the 
transaction would vary by $2 milUon annually. 

Fifcal Quarter Ended Fiscal Year Ended 
Mar. 28,1997 Dec 27,1996 

Effective interest on $4,256 billion of debt $ 74 $2% 
Less: interest already recognized in historical financial 

statements* (28) (11) 
Pro forma adjustment $ 46 $285 

* Resulting ftom long-term debt incuned to finance the first tender offer. 

Note 3. Other Income 
The equity metiiod of accounting will be appUed to the Company's iiivestinent in Conrail throughout tiie 

period the investment is held in the voting tmst In accordance witii APB Opimon No. 18. "The Equity Mettiod 
of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock." ottier income includes 42% of Conrail's historical net 
income, adjusted fOT amomzation, net of tax. of the difference between ttic C;ompany's investment in Conrail 
and 42% of Cbnrail's underiying equity in net assets. The difference is primarily attributable to the estimated 
fair value of property and equipment net of the related defened taxes, and includes approximately $757 million 
in goodwill. This allocation is based on preUminary estimates of fair values of all Comail assets and Uabilities 
and is likely to change after tiie Definitive Documentation is finalized and regulatory approvals are obtained. To 
the extent that specific assets and liabilities are allocated to (Tomail entities over which the Company will have a 
controlling financial interest tiic allocation will be redesignated to follow the metiiod in which the investment is 
accounted fOT subsequent to the approval by the STB. The preliminary estimates are also likely to change as 
additional information conceming fair values and remaining useful lives becomes available. An appraisal of the 
assets is currentiy underway. The Company intends to amortize any goodwill resulting from ttic purchase over a 
period of 40 years. Adjustments to property and equipment are depreciated over their estimated remaining useful 
lives, which range firom 2 to 102 years. 

Preliminary Allocation of Purchase Price 
Net assets of Conrail at March 31. 1997 $ 3,152 
CSX's economic interest X 42% 
CSX's share of Conrail net assets 1324 
Estimated fair value adjustments, principally jwopcrty and equipment 3.480 
Defened taxes on estimated fair value adjustments and transaction fees (1305) 
F.stimated goodwill 757 

Purchase price payable by CSX (including transaction costs) $ 4,256 

Detail of Pro Forma Adjustment 

Conrail net income 
CSX's economic interest 

Equity eamings from investment in Coruail 
Depreciation 
Amortization of goodwill {40-year life) 
Tax benefit on depreciation 
Net impact on other income 
Less: dividend amounts previously recognized (cost method) 

Pro forma adjustment to Other Income (Expense) 
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Fiscal Quarter Fiscal Year 
Ended Ended 

Mar. 28,1997 Dec 27,1996 

$61 $342 
X 42% X 42% 

26 144 
(19) (V) 

(19) 
7 30 
9 78 

(8) (8) 
$ 1 $ 70 
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Note 4. Income Tax Expense 

Income tax expense inclu''.:s ttie tax benefit on the additional interest expense (see Note 2) as well as flie 
tax effect on equity income: 

Tax benefit on acquisition debt interest expense . . 
Tax expense on dividends received 

Net tax benefit 
Less tax benefit previously recognized 

Pro forma adjustment to income tax expense 

Fiscal Quarter 
Ended 

Mar. 28,1997 

$(26) 
1 

(25) 
(9) 

$(16) 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

Dec 27.1996 

$(104) 
5 

(99) 
(3) 

$ (96) 

Note 5, Unusual Events 

As described in Note 3, pro forma amounts reflected in the Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statements 
of Eamings were calculated and presented in accordance with the equity method of accounting. If ttie effects of 
42% of Conrail's after-tax merge, lated costs of $14 million had been excluded for ttie fiscal quarter ended 
March 28. 1997. pro forma net eamings and pro forma earnings per share would have been $128 million and 59 
cents, respectively. If the effects of 42% of Conrail's one-time after-tax charge of $83 million related to voluntary 
separation programs and after-tax merger-related costs of $10 nullion had been excluded for the fiscal year ended 
December 27, 1996. pro forma net eamings and pro forma earnings per share would have been $775 milUon and 
$3.63. respectively. 

Note 6, Summarized Consolidated Conrail Fina vrial Data 

Because of the numerous agreements that must be negotiated and completed, and because STB approval 
must be obtained, it is not possible to present some or most of the Company's investment in Conrail based on 
separate assets, liabilities and operations. However, the Company has a 42% economic interest in the entity 
formed to acquire Conrail Shares. It is expected that in some form, yet to be finaJly determined, the Company 
will have a primaiy operating interest in the routes and facilities, as described mOTc fully in "The Company— 
Joint CSX/NSC Acquisition of Conrail". The following historical Conrail financial data, as of and for the quarter 
ended March 31, 1997 and the year ended December 31, 1996, respectively, is presented to facilitate an 
understanding of the Company's ultimate econonuc interest in Conrail: 

Conrail Inc. 

Summarized Consolidated Statement of Income 
(Dollart in millions) 

Revenues 
Operating expenses 

Income from operations 
Interest expense 
Other income—net 

Income before income taxes. 
Income taxes 

Net income 

Quarter Ended 
March 31,1997 

$906 
790 

116 
(45) 
27 

Year Ended 
December 31.1996 

$3,714 
3,113* 

601 
(182) 
112 

98 
_J7 
$ 61 

531 
189 

$ 342 

• Operating expenses include a $135 million charge for voluntary separation programs, $83 million after tax. 
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Conrail Inc. 

Summarized CooaoUdated Balance Sheet 
(DoOan in mfllioui) 

Asor As«r 
March 31,1997 December 31,199< 

Aaaets 
Cunent assets $1,162 $1,117 
Property and equipmoit 6399 6390 
Ottier assets _709 695 

Total assets $8.470 $8.402 

Uabilities and Stockboiden' Equity 
Cunent liabiUties $1,078 Sljm 
Long-term debt 1.889 1,876 
Otiier long-tenn UabiUties 2351 2327 

Total liabilities 5318 5,295 
StockhoWers' equity 3.152 3.107 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $8,470 $8,402 
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THE EXCHANGE OFFERS 

The Old Debenmres were sold by ti.e Company on May 6,1997 (except for tiie Old 2032 Debenmres which 
were sold on May 8, 1997) to the Initial Purchasers, who in tum sold ttic Old Dcbennu-cs to a limited number of 
qualified instimtional buyers and accredited investors pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation D. respectively, 
under the Securities Act In connection witti the sale of ttie Old Debenmres. ttic Company and ttic Initial 
Purchasers entered into a registration rights agreement dated as of May 6. 1997 (tiie "RegistratiOTi Rights 
Agreement"), which requires the Company to file witti ttic Conunission a registration statement under the 
Securities Act witti respect to ttie New Debenmres of ttie Company, whidi are identical in all material respects 
to tiic Old Debenmres. and to use its best efforts to cause such registration sutement to become effective under 
tbc Securities Act The Company is further obligated, upon the effectiveness of that registration sutement to 
offer ttie holders of the Old Debentures the oppormiuty to exchange their Old Debenmres for a Uke principal 
amount of New Debenmres. which will be issued without a restrictive legend and may be reoffered and resold 
by the holder without restrictions or limitations under ttie Securities Act In ttic event certain circumstances occur 
which would result in either the New Debentures not becoming freely tradeable or certain holders of the Old 
Debentures not being eligible to participate in ttie Exchange Offer, ttien ttic Company is required to file a Shelf 
Registration Statement and use its best efforts to cause ttic Old Debenmres to be registered under ttic .Securities 
Act A copy of the Registration Rights Agreement has been filed as an exhibit to the Registration Sutement of 
which this Prospecms is a part The Exchange Offers arc being made pursuant to tl.c Registration Rights 
Agreement to satisfy the Company's obligations ttiereunder. The term "Holder" witti respect to ttic Exchange 
Offers means any person in whose name Old Debenmres are registered on ttie securiry registrar's books OT any 
other person who has obtained a properly completed assignment from the registered holder or any participant in 
the DTC system whose name appears on a security position Usting as the holder of such Old Debenmres and 
who desires to deliver such Old Debenmres by book-entry transfer at DTC. See "Description of tiic N-rw 
Debenmres—Registration Rights Agreement" 

Upon tfic terms and subject to tfie conditions set forth in tfiis Prospecms and in tfie accompanying Letter of 
Transmittal (which togetfier constimte tiic Exchange Offers), the Company will accept for exchaiigc Old 
Debenmres which arc properly tendered on or prior to the Expiration Date and not witiidrawn as permitted below. 
As used herein, tiic term "Expiration Date" means 5.00 p.m., New York City time, on , 1997; provided, 
however, that if tiie Company, in its sole discretion, has extended tfie period of time during which any or all of 
the Exchange Offers are open, the term "Expiration Date" means tfic latest time an l date to which tfie applicable 
Exchange Offer is extended. 

As of tfic date of fliis Prospecms. $350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of tfic Old 2002 Debentures. 
$300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of tfic Old 2004 Debenmres $450,000,000 aggregate principal amount 
of tfic Old 2007 Debenmres. $400,000,000 aggregate principal amount of ttie Old 2017 Debenmres. 
$500,000,000 aggregate principal amount of ttic Old 7.95% 2027 Debenmres. $100,000,000 aggregate principal 
amount of tfie Old 6.95% 2027 Debenmres. $250,000,000 aggregate principal amount of ttie Old 7.25*' 2027 
Debentures, and $150,000,000 aggregate principal amount of ttic Old 2032 Debentures, are ouutanding. This 
Prospecms, togettier witfi tfic Letter of Transmittal, is first being sent on or about , 1997 to all Holders of 
Old Debentures known to tfie Company. The Company's obligation to accept Old Dcbentur » tor exchange 
pursuant to the Exchange Offers is subjed to certain customary conditions as set forth unoT "—Certain 
Conditions to tiic Exchange Offers" below. 

The Company expressly reserves the right at any time «r from time to time, to extend tiie period of time 
during which any or all of tfic Exchange Offers are open, and ttiercby delay acceptance for exchange of any Old 
Debenmres, by giving oral OT written notice of such extension to ttic Holdf rs tfiereof as described below. During 
any such extension, all Old Debenmres previously tendered will remain subject to tfic Exchange Offers and may 
be accepted for exchange by the Company. Any Old Debenmres not accepted for exchange for any reason will 
be remmed without expense to the tendering Holder thereof as promptiy as practicable after the expiration or 
termination of tiie Exchange Offers. 
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Old Debenmres tendered in tiic Exchange Offers must bt io dcnontinations of prindpal amount of $1,000 
or any integral multiple thereof. 

The Company expressly reserves tiie right to amend oi terminate any or all of tfie Exchange Offers, and not 
to accept for exchange any Old Debentures not tficretofore accep'ed fOT exchange, upon ttie occurrence of any of 
ttiv' conditions of tiic Exchange Offers specified below under "—Certain Conditions to ttie Exchange Offers." 
The Company will give oral or written notice of any extension, amendment non-acceptance or termination to 
the Holders of the Old Debenmrc- as promptiy as practicable, such notice in ti-,e case of any extension to be 
issued by means of a press release or other public announcement no later ttian 9.00 a.m., New York City time, 
on the next business day after the previously scheduled Expiration Date. 

Procedures For Tendering Old Debentures 

Only a Holder of Old Debenmres may tender such Old Debentures in the Exchange Offers. The tender to 
ttic Company of Old Debentmes by a Holder tfiereof as set forth below and the acceptance tfiereof by tfie 
Company will constimte a binding agreement between the tendering Holder and the Company upon the teims 
and subject to ttic conditions set forth in tiiis Prospecms and in tiie accompanying Letter of TransmitfJ. A Holder 
who wishes to tender Old Debenmres for exchange pursuant to any OT all of the Exchange Offers must transmit 
a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal, including all otiicr documents required by such 
Letter of Transmir^. to ITie Chase Manhattan Bank (tiic "Exchange Agent") at tiie address set forth below 
under "—Excha agc Agent" or (in the case of a book-entiy transfer) an Agent's Message in lieu of the Letter of 
Tramsmittal on or prior to tilt Expiration Date. In addition, eitficr (i) certificates for such Old Debentures n̂ ust be 
received by the Excl "ngc Agent along vnth ttic Letter of Transmittal, (u) a timely confirmation of a book-entry 
transfer (a "Book-Entry Confirmation") of such Old Debenmres. if such procedure is available, into tiie 
Exchange Agent's accoun' at The Depository Tmst Company (ttie "Book-Entry Transfer FaciUty") pursuant to 
tfic procedure for book-enDy transfer described below, must be received by ttie Exchange Agent prior to ttic 
Expiration Date, or (iii) tfie Holder must comply witti tiie guaranteed deUvery procedures described below (see 
"—Guaranteed Delivery Procedures"). 

THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF OLD DEBENTURES. LETTERS OF TRANSMITTAL AND ALL 
OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT IS AT THE El.£CnON AND RISK OF 
THF HOLDERS INSTEAD OF DELIVERY BY MAIL. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT HOLDERS USE AN 
OVERNIGHT OR H/J4D DELIVERY SERVICE. IN ALL CASES. SUFRCIENT TIME SHOULD BE 
AUXIWED TO ASSURE TIMELY DELIVERY TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT BEFORE THE EXPIRATION 
DATE. NO LETTERS OF TRANSMITTAL OR CERTTHCATES FOR OLD DEBENTURES SHOULD BE 
SENT TO THE (X)MPANY. HOLDERS MAY REQUEST THEIR RESPECTIVE BROKERS, DEALERS, 
COMMHRCL«iL BANKS. TRUST COMPANIES OF OTHER NOMINEES TO EFFECT THE ABOVE 
TRANSACTIONS FOR SUCH HOLDERS. 

The term "Agenfi Message" means a message, transrutted by the Book-Entry Transfer Facility to and 
received by ttie Exchange Agent and forming a part of a B jok-EnUy Confirmation, which states ttiat DTC has 
received an express acknowledgment from ttie tendering participant which acknowledgment states ttiat such 
participant has received and agrees to be bound by ttie Letter of Transmittal and ttiat tiic Company may enforce 
ttie L-ner of Transmittal against such participant 

Any beneficial owner whose Old Debenmres are registered in the name of a broker, dealer, commercial 
bank, tmst company or other nominee and who wishes to tender should contact tĥ  registered Holder promptiy 
and instmct such registered Holder to tender on such beneficial owner's behalf. If such beneficial owner wishes 
to tender on surli owner's own behalf, such owner must prior to completing and executing ttie Letter cf 
Transmittal anc delivering such owner's Old Debenmres. eittier make appropriate arrangements to register 
ownership of 'he Oid Debentures in such beneficial owner's name or obtain a properly completed bonti power 
from the registered Holder. The transfer of registered ownership may take considerable time. 
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Signatures on a Letter of Transmittal or a notice of witiidrawal described below (see "—Witfidrawal 
Rights"), as ttie case may be. must be guaranteed (see "—(juaranteed Delivery Procedures") unless tfie Old 
Debentures sunendered for exchange pursuant tficreto are tendered (i) by a registered Holder of ttic Old 
Etebenmres who has not completed ttie box entitied "Special Issuance Instmctions" or "Special DeUvery 
Instmctions" on tiic Leacr of Transmittal or (ii) for tiie account of an Eligible Instimtion (as defined below). In 
tiie event tiiat signamres on a Letter of Transmittal or a notice of witiidrawal. as ttic case may be, are required to 
be guaranteed, such guarantees must be by a financial instimtion (including most banks, savings and loan 
associations and brokerage houses) tiiat is a participant in ttie Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program, tiie 
New York Stock Exchange Medallion Program or tiic Stock Exchanges MedalUon Program (collectively. 
"EUgible Instimtions"). If Old Debentures are registered in tfie name of a person oflicr tfian a signer of tfie Letter 
of Transmittal, tfic Old Debenmres suirendered for exchange must be endorsed by OT be accompanied by a 
written instmment or instruments of transfer or exchange, in satisfactory form as determined by tiic Company in 
its sole discretion, duly executed by tfie registered Holder exactiy as tiic name or names of tiie registered HolOir 
or Holders appear on tiic Old Debentures witii tiie signamrc tfiereon guaranteed by an Eligible Instimtion. 

All questions as to tfic validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance of Old 
E>ebentures tendered for exchange will be determined by tiie Company in its sole discretion, which determination 
shall be final and bindiag. The Company reserves tiic absolute right to reject any and all tenders of any particular 
Old Debenmres not properiy tendered or not to accept any particular Old Debenmres which acceptance might in 
flic judgment of the Company or its counsel, be unlawful. The Company also reserves tiic absolute right to waive 
any defects or incgulaiitics or conditions of tiic Exchange Offers as to any particular Old Debentures eitiier 
before or after tiie Expiration Date (including the right to waive tiie ineligibility of any Holder who seeks to 
tender Old Debentures in tiic Exchange Offers). The interpretation of tiic terms and conditions of tiic Exchange 
Offers as to any particular Old Debenmres eitiier before or after the Expiration Date (including the Letter of 
Transmittal and the instructions tiiereto) by tfie Company shall be final and binding on all parties. Unless waived, 
any defects or irregularities in connection witfi tenders of Old Debenhu-es for exchange must be cured witiiin 
such reasonable period of time as the Company shall cieterminc. None of the Company, the Exchange Agent or 
any otiier person shall be under any duty to give notification of any defect or incgularity with respect to any 
tender of Old Debentures for exchange, nor shall any of tiiem incur any liability for failure to give such 
notification. 

If tfic Letter of Transmittal or any Old Debenmres or powers of attomey are signed by tmstees, executors, 
adrninistr?.tors. guardians, attorneys-in-fact officers of corporations or otiiers acting in a fiduciary or 
represen',ative capacity, such person should so indicate when signing and. unless waived by tiie Company, proper 
evidence satisfactory to ttie Company of tticir auttiority to so ad must be submitted witii tfie Letter of Transmittal. 

By tendering, cich Holder will represent to tfic Company tiiat among odicr tilings, tfic New Debentures 
acquind pursuant to tiie Exchange Offers are being obtained in the oidinary course of business of the person 
reccivii\g such New Debenmres. whetficr or not such person is the Holder, and tiiat neitiier the Holder nor such 
ottier pc.-son has any arrangement OT understanding witfi aty person to participate in tfie distribution of the New 
Debenmres. U any Holder OT any such otiier person is an "afhliate." as defined under Rule 405 of ttie Securities 
Act of tiic Company or is engaged in or intends to engage in, or has an arrangement or understanding witii any 
person to piirticipate in, a distribution of such New Debenmres to be acquired pursuant to tiic Exchange Offeis, 
such Holder or any such otiier person (i) may not rely on the applicable interpretation of the staff of the 
Commission and (ii) must comply with ttie registration and prospecms delivery requirements of tiie Securities 
Act in co'incction with any resale transaction. Each broker-dealer that receives New Debenmres for its own 
account in exchange for Old Debenmres. where such Old Debenmres were acquired by such broker-dealer as a 
res';it of market-making activities or otiicr trading activities, .iiust acknowledge tiiat it will deliver a prospecms 
meeting the requirements of the Securities Act in connection with any resale of such New Debenmres. See "Plan 
of Distribution." The Letter of Transmittal states tiiat by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospecms, a 
broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit tiiat it is an "underwriter" wittiin tiie meaning of the Securiti'.s Act 
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Acceptance of Old Debentures For Exchange; Delivery of New Debentures 

Upon satisfaction or waiver of all of the conditions to the Exchange Offers, tfie (Company will accept on. or 
promptiy after, the Elxpiration Date, all Old Debentures properly tendered and will issue the New Debentures 
promptiy after acceptance of the Old E>ebentures. See "—Certain Conditions to the Exchange Offers" below. 
For purposes of tiic Exchange Offers, the Company will be deemed to have accepted properiy tendered Old 
Debentures for exchange when, as and if the Company has given oral (promptiy confiimcd in writing) or written 
notice thereof to the Exchange Agent 

For eadi Old Debenture accepted for exchange, the Holder of such Old Debenture will receive as set forth 
below under "Description of ttie New Debentures— B̂ook-Entry. Delivery and Form" a New Debenmre having 
a principal amoimt equal to that of the surrendered Old Debenmre. Accorclmgly. registered Holders of New 
Debentures on the relevant recOTd date for the first interest payment date following ttie consummation of the 
Exchange Offers will receive interest accming from the most recent date to which interest has been paid on the 
Old Debentures or, if no interest has been paid, from May 1, 1997. Old Debenmres accepted for exchange will 
cease to accrue interest from and after tfie date of consummation of tfic Exchange Offen. Holders whose Old 
Debentures are accepted fOT exchange will not receive any payment in respect of accmed interest on such Old 
Debentures otherwise payable on any interest payment date the record date for which occurs on or after 
consummation of ttie Exchange Offers. IT the event ttiat (i) by November 2, 1997 (or November 4, 1997 witii 
respect to the Old 2032 Debentures), neither the Exchange Offer Registration Statement is declared effective nor 
(if ttie Exchange Offers are not permitted as described above) the Shelf Registration Statement is filed witti ttie 
Conunission, OT (ii) by December 2, 1997 (or December 4. 1997 witti respect to ttic Old 2032 Debenmres), one 
or more of the Exchange Offers with respect to any scries of Debentures is not consummated or the Shelf 
Registration Statement is not declared effective witfi respect thereto (each sucb event refened to in clauses (i) jr 
(ii), a "Registration Default"), interest will accme on the appUcable Old Debentures (in addition to stated 
interest on such Old Debenmres) from and including the next day following each such Registration Default In 
each case such additional interest (tfie "Special Interest") will be payable in cash semiaimually in ancars each 
May 1 and November I, at a rate per annum equal to 0.25% of tfie principal amount of such Old Debenmres for 
each such Registration Default The aggregate amount of Special Interest payable pursuant to tiic above 
provisions will in no event exceed 0.25% per annum of the principal ai lount of such Old Debenmres. Upon (a) 
the effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement or the filu^.g of the Shelf Registration Statement 
after tilie date set fortii in clause (i) above OT (b) the consummation of the Exchange Offer for such Old 
Debentures or the effectiveness of a Shelf Registration Statement as the case may be, after the date set forth in 
clause (ii) above, the Special Interest payable on such Old Debenmres as a result of the applicable Registration 
Default will cease to accnte. 

In all cases, issuance of New Debenm'cs for Old Debentures tiiat are accepted for exchange pursuant to the 
Exchange Offers will be made only after timely receipt by tfic Exchange Agent of certificates for such Old 
Debentures or a timely Book-Entry (Confirmation of such Old Debenmres into the Exchange Agent's account at 
the Book-Entiy Transfer FadUty, a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal or an Agent's 
Message in lieu thereof and all other required documents. If any tendered Old Debenmres are not accepted for 
any reason set forth in the terms and conditions of the Exchange Offers or if Old Debenmres are submitted fOT a 
greater principal amount tfian the Holder desires to exchange, such unaccepted or non-exchanged Old Debentures 
will be returned witfiout expense to tfie tendering Holder tfiereof (or, in tfic cases of Old Debenmres tendered by 
book-entry transfer into tfic Exchange Agent's account at the Book-Entry Transfer Facility pursuant to the book-
entry procedures described below, such non-exchanged Old Debenmres will be credited to an account maintained 
witii such Book-Fintiy Transfer FaciUty) as promptiy as practicable after the expiration oi termination of the 
Exchai'ge Offc:s. 

Book-Entry Transfer 

The Exchange Agent will make a request to establish an account with respect to the Old Debenmres at the 
Book-Entry Transfei Facility for purposes of the Exchange Offers within two business days after the date of this 
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Prospecms unless ttic Exchange Agent already has established an account witti ttie Book-Entry Transfer Facility 
su.LJ>le for ttie Exchange Offers, and any financial instimtion ttiat is a participant in tfic Book-Endy Transfer 
Facility's systems may make book-entry delivery of Old Debenmres by causing tfie Book-Entiy Transfer Fadlity 
to transfer such Old Debenmres into tfic Exchange Agent's account at ttic Book-Entry Transfer Facility in 
accordance witii such Book-Entry Transfer Facility's procedures for dansfcr. However, altiiough deUvery of Old 
Debenmres may be effected tiu^ough book-entry transfer at tiic Book-Entry Transfer Fadlity, tiie Letter of 
Transmittal or a facsimile thereof, witii any required signamrc guarantees OT an Agent's Message in lieu tiiereof 
and any ottier required documents, must in any case, be transmitted to and received by ttie Exchange Agent at 
tiie address set fortti below under "—Exchange Agent" on or priOT to ttic Expiration Date or tiie guaranteed 
procedures described below must be complied wittL 

Guaranteed Deliver/ Procedures 
If a registered Holder of tfie Old Debenmres desires to tender such Old Debenmres and time will nOT permit 

sucb Holder's Old Debentures or ottier required documents to reach tiic Exchange Agent before the Expiration 
Date, OT tfie procedure for book-entry transfer cannot be completed on a timely basis, a tender may be effected if 
(i) tiie tender is made tiu-ough an Eligible Instimtion. (u) on or priOT to 5.00 p.m.. New York City time, on tiic 
Expiration Date, tiic Exchange Agent receives from such Eligible Instimtion a properiy completed and duly 
executed Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, substantially in tiic form provided by tfie Company (by telegram, telex, 
facsimile transmission, mail or hand delivery), setting forth tfie name and address of tfic Holder of Old 
Debenmres and tfic amount of Old Debenmres tendered, stating ttiat ttic tender is being made tiiereby and 
guaranteeing tfiat witiiin tiiree New Yoric Stock Exchange ("NYSE") trading days after tfie date of execution of 
tiie Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, tiic certificates for all physically tendered Old Debenmres. in proper form for 
transfer, or a Book-Entry Confirmation, as tiie case may be, togetiter witii a properly completed and duly 
executed Letter of Transmittal (OT facsimile tfiereof or Agent's Message in lieu tfiereoO witfi any required 
signamrc guarantees and any otficr documents required by tfit Letter of Transmittal wiU be deposited by tiie 
F igible Uistimtion witii tiic Exchange Agent and (iu) tiie certificates for all physically tendered Old Debcpta,-es, 
in proper form for transfer, or a Book-Entry Confirmation, as tfie case may be. togetfier witfi a prope.-ly 
completed and duly executed Utter of Transmittal (or facsimile tfiereof or Agent's Message in lieu tiiereof) witii 
any required signamrc guarantees, and any otiicr documents required by tiie Letter of Transmittal are deposited 
by tiie Eligible Instimtion witiiin ttiree NYSE trading days after tfie date of execution of tiie Notice of Guaranteed 
Delivery. 

Witiidrawal Rights 
Tenders of Old Debenmres may be wittidrawn at any time priOT to 5:00 p.m.. New York City time, on the 

Expiration Date. For a witiidrawal to be effective, a written notice or facsimile transmission notice of witiidrawal 
must be received by tiie Exchange Agent at ttic address set forth below under "—Exchange Agent" Any such 
notice of witiidrawal must spccL^ tiie name of tiic persxi having tendered flic Old Debentures to be witiidrawn, 
identify tiie Old Debenmres to b? wittidrawn (including ttic principal amount of such Old Debenmres). and 
(where certificates for Old Debenmres have been transmitted) ^ i ^ ttic name in which sudi Old Debentures 
arc registered, if different from ttiat of rhe wittidrawing Holder. If certificates fOT Old Debentures have been 
deUvered or ottierwisc identified to tiie Exchange Agent tiien. prior to ttie release of such certificates ttie 
wittidrawing Holder must also submit ttie serial numbers of ttie particular certificates to be witiidrawn and a 
signed notice of witiidrawal witii signamres guaranteed by an Eligible Instimtion unless such Holder is an 
Eligible Uistimtion in which case such guarantee wtil nOT be required. If Old Debentures have been tendered 
pursuant to tiie procedure for book-cn&y transfer described above, any notice of witiidrawal must specify ttie 
name and number of ttie account at ttie Book-Entry Transfer FaciUty to be credited witii tiie witiidrawn Old 
Debentures and otiierwise comply witii tfic procedures of such facility. All questions as to tiic validity, form and 
eligibility (including time of receipt) of such notices will be determined by tiie Cornpany. whose detennination 
will be final and buiv̂ ing on all parties. Any Old Debenmres so witiidrawn will be deemed nOT to have been 
validly tendered for exchange for purposes of tfie Exchange Offers. Any Old Debentures which i.-'ve been 
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tendered for e.xchange but which arc not exrhaneed for any reason wiU be returned to flic Holder tfiereof wittiout 
cost to sucb Holder (or, in the case of Old Debenmres tendered by book-entry transfer into the Exchange Agent's 
accoimt at me Book-Entry Transfer Fadlity pursuant to flic book-entry transfer procedures described above, such 
Old Debenmres will be credited to an account maintained with such Book-Entry Transfer FadUty for the Old 
Debentures) as soon as practicable after withdrawal, rejection of tender or termination of the Exchange Offers. 
Properly witiidrawn Old Debentures may be retendcred by following one of the procedures described under "— 
Procedures fOT Tendering Old Debenmres" above at any time on or priOT to flie Expiration Date. 

Certain Conditions to The Exchange Offers 
Notwitiistanding any otiier provisions of tiie Exchange Offers, and subject to its obUgations pursuant to the 

Registration Rights Ag-.eenient the Company shall not be required to accept fOT exchange, or to issue New 
Debentures in exchange for, any Old Debenmres and may tenninate or amend any or all of ttic Exchange Offers, 
if at any time before the acceptance of such New Debentures fOT exchange, any of tiie following events shall 
occur 

(i) any injunction, order OT decree shall have been issued by any court OT any governmental agency 
tfiat would prohibit prevent or otiierwise materially impair flic ability of tiie Company to proceed witfi any 
of tfic respective Exchange Offers; OT 

(ii) the Exchange Offers will violate any applicable law OT any applicable inteipretation of tiie staff of 
the Commission. 

The foregoing conditions are for ttie sole benefit of ttie Company and may be asserted by ttie Company in 
whole or in part at any time and from time to time upon advice of outside counsel. The failure by ibe Company 
al tny time to exercise any of tiie foregoing rights shall not be deemed a waiver of any such ri^t and such ri^t 
shall be deemed an ongoing right which may be asserted at any time and from time to time. 

In addition, the Company will not accept fOT exchange any Old Debenmres tendered and no New 
Debentures will be issued in exchange for any such Old Debentures, if at such time any stop order is threatened 
by tfie Commission or in effect with respea to flic Registration Statement of which this Prospecms is a part or 
the qualification of the Indcnmre witti respect to ttic New Debenmres under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as 
amended. 

The Exchange Offer is not conditioned on any minimum principal amount of Old Debentures being tendered 
for exchange. 

Exdiange Agent 
The Chase Manhaitan Bank has been appointed as the Exchange Agent for the Exdiange Offers. All 

executed Letters of Transmittal should be directed to tfie Exchange Agent at Utt address set forth below. 
Questions and requests for assistance, requests for additional copies of this Prospectus or of the Letter of 
Transmittal and requests for' .o ices of Guaranteed DeUvery should be directed to the Exdiange Agent addressed 
as follows: 

The Chase Mattiiattan Bank. Exdiange Agent 

By Mail, Overnight Courier OT Hand DeUvery: 

450 West 33rd Street 
15tti Floor 

New York, New Yoric 10001-2697 
Attention: Ronald J. H'Jleran 

By Facsimile: 
212-946-8158 
212-946-8159 

Confinn by Telephone: 
212-946-3068 
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DELIVERY OF THF LETTER OF TRANSMFITAL TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH 
ABOVE OR TRANSMISSION VIA FACSIMILE OTHER IHAN AS SET FORIH ABOVE DOES NOT 
CONSTFFUTE A VALID DEUVERY OF SUCH LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL, 

Fees And Expenses 
The Company will not make any payment to brokers, dealers or otfiers soliciting acceptances of flie 

Exchange Offers. 

The expenses to be incurred in connection witii tiie Exchange Offers will be paid by tfie Company. Such 
expenses include rcgisuation fees, fees and expenses of tfic Exchange Agent and Tmstee, accounting and legal 
fees and printing costs, among others. 

Transfer Taxes 
Holders who tender tiicir Old Debenmres for exchanges will not be obligated to pay any transfer taxes in 

connection therewitfi. except tfiat Holders who instruct tiic Company to registei New Debentures in tiie name of. 
or request that Old Debentures not tendered or not accepted in tiie Exchange Offers be remmed to, a person 
ottier ttian tiie registered tendering Holder will be responsible for ttic payment of any applicable transfer tax 
thereon. 

Consequences of Failure to Exdiange Old Debentures 
Holders of Old Debentures who do not exchange tiieir Old Debenmres fOT New Debentures pursuant to tiic 

Exchange Offers will continue to be subject to tfie provisions in tfie Old Debenmres regarding transfer and 
exchange of the Old Debenmres and tiie resffictions on transfer of such Old Debenmres as set fortti in the legend 
tiiereon as a consequence of tiie issuance of tfie Old Debenmres puisuant to exemptions from, or in transactions 
not subjed to, tfic registration requirements of flic Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. In gincral, 
tiic Old Debenmres may not be offered or sold, unless registered under ttie .Securities Act and applicable state 
securities laws. The Company does nOT cunentiy anticipate fliat it will register under tiic Securities Act Old 
Debentures nOT tendered. See "Etescription of tiie New Debenmres—Registration Rights Agreement" 

Based on interpretations by tiie staff of tiie Commission, as set fortii in no-action letters issued to tfiird 
parties, tiie Company believes tiiat New Debenmres issued pursuant to the Exchange Offers in exchange for Old 
Debentures may be offered for resale, resold or otiierwisc transfened by Holders tfiereof (otfier tiian any such 
Holder which is an "affiliate'' of tfie Company witfiin tfie meam; ̂  R'̂ le 405 under tfie Securities Ad) witiiout 
compliance witti tiie registration and prospecms deUvery provisions of tfie Securities Act provided tiiat such New 
Debenmres are acquired in tiie ordinary course of such Holders' business and such Holders, otiier tiian broker-
dealers, have no anangement or understanding with any person to partidpate in ttic distribution of such New 
Debentures. However, flic Commission has not considered ttie Exchange Offers in tiie context of a no-action 
letter and tiiere can be no assurance tfiat ttic staff of tfic Commission would make a similar dcteimination witii 
respect to the Exchange Offers as in such otiier circumstances. Each Holcfer, otiicr than a broker-dealer, must 
acknowledge that it is not engaged in. and does nOT intend to engage in, a distribution of such New Debenmres 
and has no anangement or understanding to participate in a distribution of New E>cbenmres. U any Holder is an 
affiliate of tfic Company or is engaged in or intends to engage in or has any arrangement OT understanding witii 
respect to tfie distribution of the New Debenmres to be acquired pursuant to the Exchange Offers, such Holder 
(i) may not rely on tfie appUcable interpretations of tfie staff of tfie Commission and (ii) must comply witti tfie 
registration and prospecms delivery requirements of tfie Securities Act in connection witii any resale transaction. 
Each broker-dealer tiiat receives New Debenmres fOT its own account in exchange for Old Debenmres pursuant 
to tfie Exchange Offers must acknowledge tfiat such Old Debentures were acquired by such broker-dealer as a 
result of market-making activities or otfier trading activities and tiiat it will deliver a prospecms meeting tfic 
requirements of tiie Securities Act in connection witfi any resale of such New Debenmres. The Letter of 
Transmittal sUtes tfiat by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospecms, a broker-dealer will not be deemed 
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to admit ttiat it is an "underwriter" witfiin tiie meaning of ttic Securities Act This Prospecms, as it may be 
amended or supplemented from time to time, may be used oy a broker-dealer in connecuou witii resales of N'̂ w 
Debenmres received in exchange fOT Old Debenmres where such Old Debenmres were acquired by such broker-
dealer as a result of maiket-making activities OT otfier ttading activities. The Company has agreed tfiat fcr a 
period of 180 days after tfie Expiration Date, it will make tfiis Prospecms available to any broker-dealer fOT use 
in connection witti any such laws of certain jurisdictions, if applicable, where ttic New Debentures may not He 
offered OT sold unless tfiey have been registered or quaUfied for sale in such jurisdictions or any exemption fron.' 
registration OT qualification is available and is con l̂ied witii. The Company has agreed, pursuant to tiie 
Registration Ri^ts Agreement subjed to certain UmitatiOT.s spedfied tiierein, to register or qualify tfie New 
Debenmres fOT offer or sale under tfie securities laws of sudi jurisdictions as any Holder reasonably requests in 
writing. Unless a Holder so requests, the Company does not currentiy intend to register or qualify tiie sale of tiie 
New Debenmres in any such jurisdictions. 
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DESCRIPTION OF NEW DEBENTURES 

General 

The Old Debentures were issued under tfie Indenture and tfic New Debenmres also will be issued under the 
Indcnmre. Each scries of Old Debenmres and the conesponding series of New Debenmres will be treated as a 
single series of securities under tiic Indenture. The following summary of certain provisions of tfic Indenture 
does nOT purport to be complete and is subject to. and is qualified in its entirety by reference to. all tiie provisions 
of tfie Indcnmre. including tfic definitions of certain terms tiierein and tiiose terms made a part tiiereof by tiie 
Tmst Indenture A d of 1939. as amended. A copy of tiic Uidenture is available from tfie Company upon request 
Whencvei defined tenns of tfie Indcnmre not otiierwise defined herein are refened to, such defined tenns arc 
incorporated herein by reference. The term "Debentures" means tfie New Debentures and tfic Old Debenmres 
treated as a single class. 

"Ihe Indenture does nOT Umit tfic aggregate principal amount of securities tiiat can be issued tiiereunder. 
Securities may be issued in one or more scries as may be autiiorized from time to time by tiic Company. Ten 
series of securities, including tiie Debenmres. are cunentiy outstanding under ttie Indenture. 

Payments of interest on ttie Debenmres may be made at ttic option of tiic Company by check mailed to tfie 
registered holders tfiereof or, at tiie option of a holder, by wire transfer to an account maintained by tiie payee 
witii a bank located in tiic United States designated by such holder. 

The Debenmres may be hansfencd or exchanged at an office or agency to be maintained by tfie Company, 
subject to tfic limitations provided in tiic Indcnmre. wittiout tiic payment of any service charge, otiier tiian any 
tax or govemmental charge payable in connection tficrewitfi. Eadi scries of Debenmres is issuable in 
denominations of $1,000 and multiples tiiereof. 

All moneys deposited witti ttie Tmstee or any Paying Agent OT held by ttic Company, in tmst for ttie 
payment of principal of or interest on any Debenmres and remaining unclaimed at ttic end of two years after 
such principal or interest shall have become due and payable will be repaid to ttic Company, and ttic holders of 
such Debenmres will tfiereafter look only to tiic Company for payment tfiereof. 

Certain Terms of the 2002 Debentures 

The 2002 Debenmres will be limited to $350 million aggregate principal amoimt and will mamre on May 1. 
2002 The 2002 Debenmres will bear interest at tfie rate of 7.05% per annum from May 1, 1997, payable 
semiannually in arrears on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing November 1. 1997, to tfie persons 
in whose names tfic 2002 Debentures are registered at tfic close of business on tiic precedmg April 15 OT October 
15, each a record date, as tfie case may be. If an Interest Payment Date would otficrwisc be a day tfiat is not a 
Business Day. such Interest Payment Date shall not be postponed; provided, however, fliat any payment required 
to be made on such date tfiat is nOT a Business Day need not be made on such date, but may be made on tfie next 
succeeding Business Day witti ttic same force and effect as if made on such date, and no additional interest shall 
accme as a result of sucb delayed payment Interest will be computed on ttie basis of a 360-day year consisting 
of twelve 30Klay monttis. The 2002 Debentures will not be subject to any sinkmg fund. 

Certain Terms of the 2004 Debentures 

The 2004 Debenmres will be limited to $300 million aggregate principal amount and will mamre on May 1, 
2004. The 2004 Debenmres will bear interest at ttic rate of 7.25% per annum from May 1, 1997, payable' 
semiannually in anears on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing November 1. 1997, to ttic persons 
in whose names ttic 2004 Debenmres are registered at ttie close of business on ttic preceding April 15 OT October 
15, each a record date, as ttic case may be. ff an Interest Payment Date would ottierwisc be a day ttiat is not a 
Business Day, such Interest Payment Date shall not be postponed; provided, however, tfiat any payment required 
to be made on such date ttiat is not a Business Day need not be made on such date, but may be made on ttie next 
succeeding Business Day witti tiie same force and effect as if made on such date, and no additional interest shall 
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accme as a result of such delayed payment Interest will be computed on ttic basis of a 360-day year consisting 
of twelve 30-day monttis. The 2004 Debentures will not be subject to any sinking ftind. 

Certain Terms of the 2007 Debentures 
The 2007 Debenmres will be limited to $450 million aggregate principal amount and will mature on May 1, 

2007. The 2007 Debentures will bear interest at tiie rate of 7.45% per annum from May 1. 1997. payable 
semiannually in anears on May 1 and November 1 of each year, co.nmencing November I. 1997. to tiie p;rsons 
in whose names tfie 2007 Debenmres aic registered at tfie dose of business on tfic precedmg April 15 or October 
15. each a record date, as tfic case may be. If an hiterest Payment Date would otiierwisc be a day tiiat is nOT a 
Biisincss Day. such Interest Payment Date shall not be postponed; provided, however, tiiat any payment requued 
to be made on such date tiiat is not a Business Day need not be made on such date, but may be made on tiie next 
succeeding Business Day witii tiie same force and effect as if made on such date, and no additional interest shall 
accme as a result of such delayed payment Interest will be computed on tiie basis of a 360-day year consisting 
of twelve 30-day montiis. The 2007 Debentures will not be subject to any sinking fund. 

Certain Terms of the 2017 Debentures 
The 2017 Debenmres will be limited to $400 million aggregate principal amount and will mature on May 1. 

2017. The 2017 Debenmres will bear interest at tiie rate of 7.90% per annum from May 1, 1997. payable 
semiannually in anears on May 1 and November I of each year, commencing November 1. 1997. to tiie persons 
in whose names tfie 2017 Debenmres are registered at ttie close of business on tiic preceding April 15 or October 
15. each a record date, as tiic case may be. If an Interest Payment Date would cttierwise be a day tiiat is not a 
Business Day, such Interest Paymem Date shall not be postponed; provided, however, ttiat any payment required 
to be made on such date tiiat is not a Business Day need not be made on such date, but may be made on tiie next 
succeeding Business Day v. itii tiic same fOTce and effed as if made on such date, and no additional interest shall 
accme as a result of such delayed payment Interest will be computed on ttie basis of a 360-day year consisting 
of twelve 30̂ 1ay montiis. The 2017 Debenmres will not be subject to any sinking fund. 

Certain Term., of the 7.95 % 2027 Debentures 
The 7.95% 2027 Debenmics will be limited to $500 million aggregate principal amount and will mamre on 

May 1 2027. Such Debentures will bear interest at tiie rate of 7.95% per annum from May 1, 1997. payable 
semiannually in anears on May I and November 1 of each year, commencing November 1, 1997. to tiic persons 
in whose names tiic 7.95% 2027 Debentures arc registered r tfie close of business on tiie preceding Apnl 15 or 
October 15 each a record date, as tfic case may be. If an Interest Payment Date would otiierwise be a day tfiat is 
not a Busiiicss Day. such hiterest Payment Date shall not be postponed; provided, however, tfiat any payment 
required to be made on such date tfiat is nOT a Business Day need nOT be made on such date, but may be made on 
tfic next succeeding Business Day witfi ttic same fOTcc and effect as if made on such date, and no addiuonal 
interest shall accme as a result of such delayed payment Interest will be computed on ttie basis of a 360-day 
year consisting of twelve 30-day montiis. The 7.95% 2027 Debenmres will nOT be subject to any sinking ftmd. 

Certain Terms of the 6.95% 2027 Debentures 
The 6.95% 2027 Debenmres will be limited to $100 milUon aĝ icga'e prindpal amount and will mamre on 

May 1 2027 Such Debenmres will bear interest at tiie rate of 6.95% p:r annum from May 1. 1997. payable 
semianiiually in anears on May I and November 1 of each year, commencing November 1. 1997. to tiic persons 
in whose name ttie 6.95% 2027 Debentures are registered at ttie close ot business on ttic precedmg Apnl 15 or 
October 15 e-ch a record date, as ttic case may be. If an Interest Payment Date would otiierwise be a day tiiat is 
nOT a Busiiicss Diy. such hiterest Payment Date shall nOT be postponed; provided, however, tiiat any payment 
required to be made on such date ttiat is not a Business Day need nOT be made on such date, but may be made on 
the next succeeding Business Day witti ttic same force and effect as if made on such date, and no addiUonal 
interest shall accme as a result of such delayed payment hiterest will be computed on ttic basis of a 360-day 
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year consisting of twelve 30-day montiis. The 6.95% 2027 Debenmres will not be subject to any sinking ftind, 
but are subject lo repurchase at the option of ttie holder. See "—Purchase at Option of Holder." 

Certain Terms of the 7,25% 2027 Debentures 

The 7.25% 2027 Iicbentures will be limite'. to $250 million aggregate principal amount and will mature on 
May 1, 2027. Such Debenmics will bear interest at the rate of 7.25% per annum from May 1, 1997, payable 
semiannually in arrears on May I and November 1 of each year, commencing November 1, 1997, to the peisons 
in whose names tiic 7.25% 2027 Debentures are registered at flic close of business on tfie preceding April 15 or 
October 15, each a reccrd date, as tiie case may be. If an Interest Payment Date would otiierwisc be a day tfiat is 
not a Business Day, such hiterest Payment Date shall not be postponed; provided, however, that any payment 
requL'cd to be mâ e on such date that is not a Business Day need not be made on such date, but may be made on 
tfic next succeeding Business Day witfi the same fOTce and effect as if made on such date, and no additional 
inten-,st shall accme as a result of such delayed payment Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year consisting of twelve 30-day monttis. The 7.25% 2027 Debenmres will not be subject to any sinking fund, 
but are subject to repurchase at ttic option of ttie holder. See "—Purchase at Option of Holder." 

Certain Terms of the 2032 Debentures 

The 2032 Debenmres will be Umited to $150 million aggregate principal amount and will mamre on May 1, 
2032. The 2032 Debenmres will bear interest at ttie rate of 8.30% per annum from May 1. 1997. payable 
semiannually in arrears on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing November 1, 1997, to the persons 
in whose names ttie 2032 Debenmres are registered at ttie close of business on tiic preceding April 15 or October 
15. each a record date, as the case may be. If an Interest Pay.nent Date would otiierwisc be a day tfiat is nOT a 
Business Day. such Interest Payment Date shall nOT be postponed; provided, however, tfiat any payment required 
to be made on such date that is not a Business Day need not be made on such date, but may be nade on ttie next 
succeeding Business Day witfi tfic same fOTCc and effect as if made on such date, and no additional interest shall 
accrue as a i'.t of such delayed payment Interest will be computed on ttie basis of a 360-day year consisting 
of twelve 30-day months. The 2032 Debenmres will not be subject to any sinking fund, but are subject to 
redemption at tiie option of the Company. See "—Redemption." 

Redemption 

Otiier tiian the 2032 Debenmres. none of the otiier series of Debentures is subject to redemption prior to 
mamrity. 

The 2032 Debentures are not redeemable prior to May 1. 2007. On or after May 1, 2007 and prior to 
maturity, the Company, at its option, may redeem all OT, from time to time, any part of the 2032 Debentiuies on 
at least 30 days' but not more tiian 60 days' notice, as provided in tfie Indenture, at tfie following redemption 
prices (expressed in percentages of tfie prindpal amount) during the 12-montfi periods beginning May 1: 

2007 104.150% 
2008 103.7 5% 
2009 103320% 
2010 102.905% 
2011 102.490% 
2012 102.075% 
2013 101.660% 
2014 101.245% 
2015 100.830% 
2016 100.415% 

and tfiereafter at 100%, together in each case with accmed interest to vSe date fixed for redemption. 
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Purchase at Option of Holder 
Each holder of 6.95% 2027 Debenmres and each holder of 7.25% 2027 Debenmres will have tfie right to 

require tfie Company fo repurchase all oi a portion of such series of Debenmres owned by such holder (the "Put 
Option") on May 1, 2002 and May 1, 2005. respectively (tiie "Put Option Exerdse Date"), at a purchase price 
equal to 100% of ttic principal amount of such Debenmres tendered by such holder plus accrued interest ttiereon. 
On and after tfic Put Option Exercise Date, interest wiU cease to accme on such Debentures or any portion 
tfiereof tendered for repayment On or before tfic Put Option Exercise Date, tiie Company shall deposit witii a 
paying agent (OT flie Tmstee) money sufficient to pay the principal of and any accmed interest on such 
Debenmres to be tendered for repayment 

A holder must provide the Company with notice of such holder's intention to exercise the Put Option during 
tiie period from and including March 1, 2002 through and including April 1, 2002 (witii respect to tiie 6.95% 
2027 Debentures) and tiic period from and incluolng March 1, 2005 tiirough and including April 1, 2005 (witfi 
respect to tfie 7.25% 2027 Debentures). Such notice, once given, will be inevocable unless waived by tiic 
Company. 

The Company will comply with the provisions of Rule 13e-4, Rule 14e-l and any otiicr tender offer roles 
under the Exchange Act if required and will file Schedule 13E-4 OT any other schedule if icq ired tiiereunder in 
connection witii any offer by the Company to purchase the 6.95% 2027 Debentures Oi tiie 7.25% 2027 
Debenmres. 

Ranking 
The Debenmres will be senior securities of tiie Ĉ ompany and tiie indebtedness evidenced thereby will rank 

pari passu with all other unsubordinated and unsecnwed indebtedness of the Company. 

Certain Covenants and Agreements of the Company 

The Indcnmre docs not limit the amount of indebtedness or lease obUgations tfiat may be incuned by tfw 
Company and its subsidiaries. The Indcnmre docs not contain provisions «1iich would give holders of the 
Debenmres the ri^t to require tiie Company to repurchase their Debenmres in tfic event of a decline in tfic credit 
rating of the (Company's debt securities resulting from a takeover, recapitalization or similar restmcturing. 

Limitation on Liens on Stock or Indebtedness of Principal Subsidiaries 
The Indenture provides tiiat witti respect to tiie Debenmres, ttie Company may not nor may it permit any 

Subsidiary to, create, assume, incur or suffer to exist any mortgage, pledge, lien, encumbrance, charge OT security 
interest of any kind upon any stock or indebtedness, whether owned on the date of the Indeiitxire or thereafter 
acquired, of any Principal Subsidiaiy. to secure any ObUgation (other than the Debentures) of ttie Company, any 
Subsidiary or any ottier Person, witfiout in any such case making effective provision whereby all of tiie 
outstanding Debenmres (and otiier outstanding debt securities issued from time to time pursuant to tite Indenhire) 
shall be directiy secured equally and ratably witii such Obligation. This provision does not restrict any other 
property of the Company or its Subsidiaries. The Indenture defines "ObUgation" as indebtedness for money 
bonowed or indebtedness evidenced by a bond, note, debenmre or otiier evidence of indebtedness; "Prindpal 
Subsidiary" as CSXT, Sea-Land and ACL; and "Subsidiary" as a corporation a majority of ttie outstanding 
voting stock of which is owned, directiy or indirectiy. by tfic Company OT one or more Subsidiaries, or by the 
Cotnpany and one OT more Subsidiaries. The Indenture does nOT prohibit the sale by tftie Company or any 
Subsidiary of any stock or indebtedness of any Subsidiary. 

Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets 
The Indcnmre provides tiiat tiic Company may, witiiout ttie consent of tiie holders of ?ny of ttie outstanding 

Debenmres of a series, consolidate witii, merge into or transfer its assets substantially as an entirety to any 
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corporation organized under the laws of any domestic or foreign jurisdiction, provided that (i) the successor 
corporation assumes the due and puncmol payment of tiie principal of and interest on all debt securities issued 
under tiic Indenture and the performance of every covenant of ttie Indenture, (li) immediately after giving effect 
ttiereto, no Event of Default and no event which, after notice or lapse of time, or botti. would become an Event 
of Default shall have happened and be continuing, and (iu) certain OTher conditions are met 

Events of Default and Remedies 

An Event of Default with respect to the Debenmres of any series is defined in the Indcnmre as being a: 

(a) default in the payment of any interest upon any Debenmre of that series when it becomes due and 
payable, and continuance of such default for a period of 30 days; or 

(b) default in the payment of the prindpal of or any premium on any Debenmre of that scries at its 
Maturity; or 

(c) default in the perfonnance, or breach, of any covenant or warranty of the Company in flic Indcnmre 
(other flian a covenant OT warranty a default in flic perfonnance of which or the breach of which is elsewhere 
specifically dealt witii or which has expressly been included in tiic Indcnmre solely for tiie benefit of series 
or Debentures other than that series), and continuance of such default OT breach for a period of 90 days 
after dicre has been given written notice of yich default to tiic Company by the Tmstee or to tiie Company 
and the Tmstee by the holders of at least 25% in principal amcxint of tfic outstanding Debenmres of tfiat 
series; or 

(d) certain events of bankmptoy, insolvency or teOTganization of the Company. 

No Event of Default witfi respect to any particular series of Debenmres necessarily constimtes an Event of 
Default witii resped to any otiier series of Debenmres. The Indcnmre provides tiiat tiic Tmstee tiiereunder may 
witiihold notice to the holders of tiic Debenmres of tfie occunence of a default witfi respect to such Debenmres 
(except a default in payment of principal, premium, if any. or interest) if me Tmstee in gocxl faitfi detennincs it 
is in tfie interest of the holders to do so. 

The Indcnmre provides tfiat if an Event of Default witfi respect to any Debenmres of any series tfien 
outstancUng issued thereunder shall occur and be continuing, eitiicr ttic Tmstee or the holders of not less than 
25% m aggregate principal amount of such Debcnmre'̂  then outstanding may declare ttie principal amount of all 
such Debenmres of ttiat series if- be due and payable Lnmediately, but upon certain conditions such declaration 
may be rescinded and annulled by ttie holders of a niajt>rity in aggregate principal amount of such Debenmres 
then outstanding. 

Subject to ttie provisions of che Tmst Indcnmre Ad of 1939. as amended, requiring each Tmstee. during an 
Event of Default under ttie relevaiit Indcnmre. to act wtti ttic requisite standard of care, ttic Tmstee is under no 
obligation to exercise any of irs rights or powers under the Indcnmre at tiic request or direction of any of tiie 
holders of any Debenmres unless such holders have offered tfie Trustee reasonable indemnity. Subject to the 
foregoing, holders of a majority in aggregate prindpal amount of Debenmres of any series tficn outstanding 
kssued under the Indcnmre shal! have tfie right subject to ceitaii. limitatiOTis. to direct tfie time, method and place 
of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to tiic Tmstee under tiic Indcnmre witii respect to such 
Debenmres. The Indcnmre requires tiie annual filing by die Company witii ttie Tmstee of a certificate as to 
whettier or not ttic Company is in default under ttic terms of ttic Indenture. 

Book-Entry, Delivery and Form 
Except as described below, eai:h series of Debenmres sold will be issued in ttie form of one or more Global 

Securities. The Global Securities will be deposited witii, OT on behalf of. tiic Depositary and registered in die 
name of tiie Depositary or its nominee. Except as set fortii below, tiic Global Securities may be transferred, in 
whole and nOT in part, only to tiic Depositary or anotiicr nominee of the Depositary. Investors may hold tiicir 
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beneficial interests in tiie Global Securities directiy tiirough tiie Depositary if tiiey h?ve an account witfi the 
Depositary or indirectly tiu^ough organizations which have accounts witii tiic Depositary. 

Debenmres (i) originally purchased by or transfened to instimtional "accredited investors" wlio are not 
QIBS or (ii) except as described below, purchased by OT transfened to Persons outside the United States pursuant 
to sales in accordance witti Regulation S under tiie Securities Act (collectively refened to herein as tiie "Non-
Global Purchasers"), will be in registered form wittiout interest coupons (' Certificated Debenmres"). Upon the 
transfer to a QIB of Certificated Debenmres initially issued to a Non-Global Purchaser, such Certificated 
Debentures will be exchanged for an interest in tee Global Security. For a description of tiie restrictions on 
transfer of Certificated Debenmres. see "Notice to Investors." 

Debenmres originally purchased Dy persons outside tfic United States pursuant to sales in accordance with 
Regulation S under tiic Securities Act will be represented upon issuance by a temporary global Debenmre 
certificate in fully registered form wittiout Interest coupons (ttie "Temporary Certificate") which will not be 
exchangeable for Certificated Debenmres until ttic expiration of tiie "40-day restricted period" witiiin tiie 
meaning of Rule 903(c)(3) of Regulation S under tiic Secunties Act The Temporary Certificate will be registered 
in flie name of. and held by, a tempOTary certificate holder until tiie expiration of such -lO-day period, al which 
time tiic Temporary Certificate will be deUvered to tiie Trustee in exchange for Certificated Debenmres registered 
in tiic names requested by such temporary certificate holder. In addition, unit tiie expiration of such 40-day 
period, transfers of interests in tiie Temporary Certificate can only be effected through such temporary certificate 
holder in accOTdance witii tiic requirements set forth in "Notice to Investors." 

The Depositary has idvised the Company as follows: The Depo. ;tary is a limited-purpose tmst company 
and organized under ttic lav,̂  of ttic State of New Yoric. a member of die Federal Reserve System, a "clearing 
corporation" witiiin tiic meatJng of tiie New York Uniform Commercial Code, and "a clearing agency" 
registered pursuant to tiie provisions of Section 17A of tiie Exchange Act The Depositary was created to hold 
securities of instimtions fliat have accounts witfi tfie Depositary ("participants") and to facilitate tiic clearance 
and settlement of securities transactions among its participants in juch securities tiirough electronic book-entry 
changes in accounts of tiic participants, thereby eliminating tiic need for physical movement of securities 
certificates. The Depositary's participants include securities brokers and dealers (which may include tiic Initial 
Purchasers), banks, tmst companies, clearing corpOTations and certain otfier organizations. Access to tfie 
Depositary's book-enoy system is also available to otiicrs such as Sanks. brokers, dealers and tmst companies 
tiiat clear tiu-ough or maintain a custodial relationship witti a participait whether directiy or indirectiy ("indirect 
participants"). 

Upoii tiie issuance of tiie Global Securities, tiic Depositary or ts custodian will credit, on its book-entry 
registration and transfer system, tiie principal amount of tiie Debenm es represented by such Global Securities to 
the accounts of participants. The accounts to be credited shall be designated by tiie Initial Purchasers (as defined 
below) of such series of Debentures. Ownership of beneficial interests in tiic Global Securities will be Umited to 
paiticip-uits or persons tiiat may hold interests tiuough partidpants. Ownership of beneficial interests in tiie 
Global Secmities vill be shown on, and tiie transfer of ttiosc ownership interests will be effected only tfirough, 
records maintained by tfic Depositary or its nominee (witfi respect to participants' interests) and such participants 
(witii respect to tiie owners of beneficial interests in tiic Global Securities otiier tiian partidpants). The laws of 
some jurisdictions may require tiiat certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of such securities in 
definitive form. Such limits and laws may impair tfic ability to transfer OT pledge beneficial interests in tfic Global 
Securities. 

So long as 'he Depositary, or its nominee, is tfic registered holder and owner of tfic Global Securities, tfie 
Depositary or such nominee, as tfie case may be. will be considered tfie sole legal owner and holder of tfic related 
Debenmres for all purposes of such Debenmres and tfie Uidenmrc. Except as set forth below, owners of beneficial 
interests in tfic Global Securities will not be entitied to have tiie Debenmres represented by ttic Global Securities 
registered in tiieir names, will not receive or be entitied to receive physical delivery of certificated Debentures in 
definitive form and will not be considered to be tfie owners or holders of any Debenmres under tfic Global 

457 



Sec;'rities. The Company understands that under existing industry practice, in the event an owner of a beneficial 
interest in tfie Global Securities desLes to take any action tiiat tiie Depositaiy, as the holdei of tiie Global 
Securities, is entitied to take, the Depositaiy would autiiorize the participants to take such action, and that the 
partidpants would authorize beneficial owners owning tiirough such participants to take such action OT would 
otherwise act upon the instmctions of beneficial owners owning through them. 

Payment of principal of and interest on Debentures represented by tiic Global Securities registered in tfie 
name of and held by the Depositaiy OT its nominee will be made to the Depositary or its nominee, as the case 
may be, as the registered owner and holder of the Global Securities. 

The Company expr^s tfiat the Depositaiy OT its nominee, upon receipt of any payment of prindpal of or 
interest on tfie Global Securities, will credit partidpants' accounts witfi payments in amounts proportionate to 
their respective beneficial interesî  in the prindpal amoimt of tfie Global Securities as shown on the records of 
tiic Depositaiy OT its nominee. The Company also expects that payments by participants to owners of beneficial 
interests in the Global Securities held through sudi participants will be govemed by standing instmctions and 
customaiy practices and will be the responsibiUty of such participants. The Company will not have any 
responsibility or UabiUty for any aspect of the recOTds relating to, OT payments ir.adc on account of, beneficial 
ownership interests in the Global Securities for any Debentures or fOT maintainug. supervising or reviewing any 
recOTds relating to sudi beneficial ownership interests or for any other asprct of tfie relationship between the 
Depositary and its participants or the relationship between such partidpants aiid tiic owners of beneficial interests 
in tfie Global Securities owning tiirough sudi participants. 

Unless and until exchanged in whole oi in part fOT certificated Debentures in defiiutive form, the Global 
Securities fOT each series of Debentures may tiOT be transferred except as a whole by the Depositary to a nominee 
of such Depositaiy OT by a nominee of such Depositary to such Depositary OT another nominee of such 
Depositaiy OT by the Depositaiy OT any nominee to a SUCCCSSOT of the Depositaiy or a nominee of such SUCCCSSOT. 

Altiiough the Depositary has agreed to the foregoing prcx̂ edures in oidcr to facilitate transfers of interests 
in the Global Securities among participants of the Depositary, it is under no obligation to perform OT continue to 
perform such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued at any time. Neither the Tmstee nor the 
Company will have any responsibility for ttic performance by the Depositary OT its partidpants OT indired 
participants of their respective obligations under the m'£S and procedures goveming their operations. 

The Global Securities representing the Debentm..̂  are excb'jigeable for definitive Debeumres in registered 
form, of like tenOT and of an equal aggregate prindpal amoun̂  only if (x) tfie Depositaiy notifies the Company 
ttiat it is unwilling, unable or ineligible to continue as Depositaiy fOT sudi Global Securities OT if at any time the 
£>epositary ceases to be a dealing agency registered under the Exchange Ad, (y) ttie Company in its sole 
discretion detennines that the Global Securities representing the Debentures shall be exdiangeable fOT definitive 
Debenttuvs in registered form or (z) any event shaU have happened and be continuing which, after notice OT 
lapse of time, or both, would become an Event of Default witfi resped to such Debentures. In the evem that any 
Global Security representing tiie Debentures is exdiangeable pursuant to the preceding sentence, it shall be 
exchangeable in whole for definitive Debentiires in registered form, of like tenOT and of an equal aggregate 
principal amount in denominations of $1,000 and integral multiples thereof. Sucji definitive Debentures shall be 
registered in the name or names of such person or persons as tiie Depositary shall mstmct tiie security registrar. 
It is expected that such instmctions may be based upon directions received by the Depositaiy from its participants 
with resped to ownerdiip of Debentures. 

Modification of the Indenture 

The Indenture contains provisions permitting tiie 0>mpany and the Tmstee, with the consent of the holders 
of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the relevant series of Debentures, as tiie case may 
be. then cxitstanding and affected by a modification OT amendment to modify or amend any of tiie provisions of 
ttie Indenmrc or of such Debenmres or the rights of ttie holders of such Debenuires under the Indcnmre, provided 
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ttiat no sudi modification OT amendment shall, witiiout tLe ccn^nt of each holder of each outstanding Debentiire 
affected tiiereby: 

(i) change flic Stated Matmity of tiic principal of. or any installment of interest on. any such Debenture 
or reduce tiic principal amount tiiereof or any premium tiiereon, or reduce tiic rate of interest tiiereon, or 
change tiic coin or cuncncy in which any Debenture or any premium VT interest tiiereon is payable, cr impair 
tiie holder's right to instimte suit to enfOTce tiie payment of any such Debentures on OT after tiie Stated 
Mamrity, 

(u) reduce tiic aforesaid percentage in principal amount of such Debenmres. tiie consent of ttie holders 
of which is required for any such modification or amendment or tiie consent of whose holders is required 
for any waiver (of compliance witii certain provisions of tiie Indcnmre or certain defaults tiiereunder and 
tiieir consequences) or reduce tiie requirements for a quomm or voting at a meeting of holders of such 
Debentures. 

(iii) change any obligation of tiic Company to maintain an office or agency in tfie places and for ttie 
purposes required by the Indcnmre, or 

(iv) modify any of ttie above provisions. 

The Indenture also contains provisions pennitting flic Company and tiie Tmstee. witfiout tfie consent of ttie 
holders of such Debenmres issued tiiereunder. to modify or amend tiie Indenture in order, among ottier ttimgs: 

(a) to add any additional Events of Default or add to tiie covenants of flic Company for ttie benefit of 
ttie holders of all or any series of Debentmes issued under ttie Indcnmre; 

(b) to establish tiic form OT terms of Debenmres of any series; 

(c) to cure any ambiguity, to conect or supplement any provision tfierein which may be inconsistent 
wifli any oflicr provision tfierein, OT to make any otiier provisions witfi -spect to matters or questions arising 
under tiic Indenmrc which shall nW adversely affect tiic interests of tfic holders of any debt secunties issued 
thereunder in any material respect; or 

(d) to change or diminate any of tiie provisions of tiie Indcnmre. provided tiiat any such change or 
elimination shall become effective only when tiiere is no debt security outstanding of any series issued under 
tiie Indcnmre created prior to tiie execution of tiic supplemental indcnmre which is entitied to tiie benefit of 
such provision. 

The holders of at least a majority in aggregate prindpal amount of outstanding Debenmres of a series may, 
on behalf of tfie holders of Debenmres of tiiat series, waive compliance by tiie Company witii certam restnctive 
provisions of tiic Uidenmrc. including flic covenant described above under "Certain Covenants of tiic Company 
—limitation on Liens on Stock OT Indebtedness of Principal Subsidiaries." The holders of nOT less flian a 
majority in aggregate principal amOTint of sudi outstanding Debentures of any series may, on behalf of all holders 
of such series of Debenmres. wawe any past default under ttie Uidenmre witti respea to such Debenmres and its 
consequences, except a default in the payment of ttie principal of. premium, if any. or interest on such Debentures 
or in respect of a covenant or provision which cannot be modified or amended witfiout tfie consem of tiie holder 
of each outstanding Debenmre affected. 

The Indenmrc contains provisions for convening meetings of the holders of tfie Debenmres of any scries. A 
meeting may be called at any time by tfic Tmstee. and also, upon request by flic Company OT ttie holders of at 
least 10% in aggregate principal amount of ttie outstanding Debenmres of any series, m any such case upon 
notice given in accordance witti ttie provisions of ttie Indc! ture. Except for any consem which must be given by 
ttie holder of each outstanding Debenmre affected ttiereby, as described above, any resolution presented at a 
meeting OT adjourned meeting duly reconvened at which a quomm (as described below) is presem may be 
adopted by tiie affinnative vote of tiie holders of a majority in principal amount of sudi outstanding Debenmres 
of ttiat series- provided, however, tiiat any resolution witii respect to any request demand, autiionzation̂  
direction, notice, consent waiver or otiier action which may be made, given or taken by tiie holders of a specified 
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percentage, which is less tiian a majority, in principal amount of such outstanding Debenmres may be adopted at 
a meeting or adjourned meeting duly reconvened at which a quomm is present by the affirmative vote of tiic 
holders of such specified percentage in principal amount of such outstanding Dzbenturcs. Any resolution passed 
or d&-;isiop. taken at any meeting of holders of Debentures of any series duly held in accordance with the 
Indcnmre will be binding on all holders of such Debenmres. The quomm required for any meeting called to adopt 
a resolution, and at any reconvened meeting, will be persons holding or representing a majority in principal 
amount of such outstanding Debentures, subject to certain exceptions. 

Satisfaction and Llrcharge of the Indenture; Defeasance 

The Indenture shall generally cease to be of any further effect if (a) tiie Company has delivered to the 
Tmstee for cancellation all debt securities issued thereunder or (b) all debt securities issued thereunder not 
theretofore delivered to the Tmstee for cancellation shall have become due and payable, or are by tiieir terms to 
become due and payable within one year or are to be called for redemption within one year, and the Company 
shall have deposited with the Tmstee as tmst funds tiic entire amount sufficient to pay and discharge at Stated 
Maturity or upon redemption the entire indebtedness on all debt securities issued thereunder (and if. in either 
case, the Company has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable under tiic Indenture by tiic Company 
and the (Company has delivered an officers' certificate and an opinion f̂ counsel each stating that the requisite 
conditions have been complied with). 

In addition, the Company shall have a "legal defeasance option" (pursuant to which it may terminate, with 
respect to any s<:rics of Debenmres. all of its obligations under such Debenmres and the Indenture with respect 
to such Debentures) and a "covenant defeasance option" (pursuant to which it may terminate, with respect to 
any series of Debentur>"« its obUgations with respect to such Debenmres imder certain specificxl covenants 
contained in the Indenture, inducting its obligations describci under "Limitation on Liens on Sicx;k and 
Indebtedness of Principal Subsidiaries"). If the (Company exercises its legal defeasance option witii respect to 
any series of Debentures, payment of such Debenmres may not be accelerated because of an Event of Default If 
the Company exercises its covenant defeasance option with respect to any series of Debentures, payment of such 
Debentures may not be aa:elerated because of an Event of Default related to tiic specified covenants. The 
Company may exercise its legal defeasance option notwitiistancUng its prior exercise of its covenant defeasance 
option. 

The Company may exercise its legal defeasance option or its covenant defeasance option witii respect to 
any series of Debentures, ottiy if (a) the Company irrevcx::ably deposits in tmst with tiie Tmstee cash and/or U.S. 
Ciovemmcnt Obligations fOT the payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest with respect to such 
Debentiu-es to maturity OT redemption, as the case may be, and the Company delivers to the Tmstee a certificate 
from a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants expressing their opinion that the payments 
of principal and interest when due and without reinvestment on the deposited U.S. CJovcrament Obligations plus 
any deposited money witiiout investment will provide cash at such times and in such amounts as will be sufficient 
to pay the principal, premium, if any, and inttia,i ?'hen due with respect to all such E>ebcnmres to maturity or 
redemption, as the case may be, (b) no Event of Default with respect to the Debenmres of such series shall have 
occuned and be continuing (i) on tiic late of such deposit or (ii) with respect to certain bankmptcy defaults, at 
any time during the period ending on lie 123rd day <fter the date of such deposit (c) such legal defeasance or 
covenant defeasance docs nOT result in the tmst arising from such deposit to constimte, unless it is qualified as, L 
regulated investment company under tht Investment Company Act of 1940. as amended, (d) the legal defeasance 
or covenant defeasance shall not result in a breach or violation of, or constimte a default under, the Indenture or 
any other agreement or instmment to wl ich the Company is a party or by which it is bound, (c) the Company 
delivers to the Tmstee an opinion o) cou'isel tiiat tiie holders of such Debenmres will not recognize income, gain 
or loss fOT Uruted States federal inccmc tax purposes as a result of such legal defeasance or covenant defi i3a.\cc 
and will be subject to United States federal income tax on tiie same amounts, in the same maimer and ai tiie 
same times as would have been tiie case if such legal defeasance or covenant defeasance had not cxxuned. and 
(f) the Company delivers to the Tmstee an officers' certificate and an opiiuon of counsel, each stating that all 
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concUtions precedent to the defeasance and discharge of such Debentures as contemplated by tiic Indcnmre have 
been complied witii. lhe opinion of counsel, with respect to legal defeasance, refened to in clause (e) above, 
must refer to and be based upon a mling of the Inten âl Revenue Service or a ange in applicable United States 
federal income tax law cxcurring after tiie date of the Indcnmre. 

The Trustee shall hold in tmst cash or U.S. Cjovemment ObUgations deposited witii it as described above 
and shall apply tiie deposited cash and tiic proceeds from deposited U.S. Government ObUgations to the payment 
of principal, premium, if any, and interest witii respect to such Debentures. 

Conceming the Trustee 
The Company has tiie right to replace ttie Tmstee under certain circumstances, including (subject to ttie 

Company's satisfying certain conditions) if tiie Tmstee consolidates witti, merges or converts into, or transfers 
all cr substantially all of its corporate tmst business or assets to another corporation or banking asscxriation. 

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries may from time to time maintain lines of credit and have othci 
customaiy banking and commercial relationships, with tiie Tmstee and its affiliates. The Tmstee also acts as 
tmstee under another indenture pursuant to which the Company issued its 9% Debenmres Due 2006. The Tmstee 
is the Administrative Agent under tiie Credit Agreement and is an affiliate of one of the Initial Purchasers. Chase 
Securities Inc. In addition, the Trustee and certain of its affiliates may own E>ebenmres. 

Registration Rights Agreement 
The Company entered into tiic Registration Rights Agreement witii the Initial Purchasers in connection witii 

the sale of tiie Old Debenmres pursuant to which tiie Company has agreed, for tiie benefit of tiic holders of each 
series of Old Etebenmres, at ttie Company's cost to (i) file ttic Exchange Offer Registration Statement of which 
this Prospectus is a part, witiiin 150 days after tiic date of original issuanc of such Old Debenmres (May 8, 
1997 for tiie Old 2032 Debenmres and May 6. 1997 for ttie otiier Old Dcbcr.mres, ttic "Issue Date") witti ttie 
Commission witii respect to tiic Exchange Offers and (ii) use its best efforts to cause the Exchange Offer 
Registration Statement to be declared effective under tiic Securities Act wittiin 180 days after tiic Issue Date. 
Promptiy after tiic Exchange Offer Registration Statement is declared effective, tiie Company will consummate 
tiie Exchange Offers. The Company will keep tiic Exchange Offers open for not less tiian 30 days (or longer if 
required by applicable law) after the date notice of tiic Exchange Offers is mailed to tiic holders of Old 
Debentures. 

In the event that any changes in law or applicable interpretauons of the staff of the Commission do not 
pennit tiie Company to effect tiic Exchange Offers witii respect to any series of Old Debenmres, OT if for any 
reason tiic Exchange Offer Registration Statement is not declared effective witiiin 180 days following tiie Issue 
Date, or upon the request of tiic Initial Purchasers under certain circumstances, tiie Company will, in Ucu of 
effecting the registration of the applicable New Debenmres pursuant to the Exchange Offer Registration 
Statement and at its cost (i) as promptiy as practicable, file witti the Commission a Shelf Registration Statement 
covering resales of ttae applicable Old Debentures, (ii) use its best efforu to cause tiie Shelf Regisoation 
Statement *o be declared effective under tiic Securities Act by tiie 210th day after the Issue Date (or promptiy in 
the event ol a request by ttic Initial Purchasers) and (iii) keep effective tiie Shelf Registration Statement until the 
earliest of (x) the second anniversary of tiic Issu- Date (or the first anniversary of ttie effective date if such Shelf 
Registration Statement is filed at ttie request of tti>' fnitial Purchasers), (y) tiic time when tiie Old Debentures 
registered thereunder can be sold by non-affiliates pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act without 
limitation under clauses (c), (c). (f) and (h) of Rule 144. or (z) such time as all tiic Old Debenturci registered 
ttiereunder have been sold. During any consecutive 365-day period, the Company will have tiie ability to suspend 
the availability of tiic Shelf Registration Statement for up to two periods of up to 45 consecutive days, but no 
more tiian an aggregate of 60 day:; during any 365-day period. The Company will, in tfie event of tiic filing of a 
Shelf Registration Statement provide to each holder of such applicable Old Debenmres copies of the prospecms 
which is pait of tiie She:.' Regiso-ation Statement notify each such holder when tfie Shelf Registration Statement 
for such Old Debentures has become effective and take certain other actions as are required to pennit unrestricted 
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resales of such Old Debenmres. A bolder of such Old Debentures tiiat sells such Old Debenmres pursuant to the 
Shelf Registration Statement generally will be required to be nanxd as a selling security holder in the related 
prospecms and to deliver a prospecms to the purchaser, will be subject to certain of the civil liability provisions 
under the Securities Act in connection with such sales and will be boimd by the provisions of tiie Registration 
Rights Agreement which are applicable to such a holder (including certain indenuufication obligations). In 
addition, each Holder of such Old Debentures will be required to deliver information to be used in connection 
with tiie Shelf Registration Statement and to provide comments on the Shelf Registration Statement within the 
time periods set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement in order to have their Old Debenmres included in the 
Shelf Registration Statement and to benefit from the provisions regarding Special Interest set fortii in the 
following paragraph. If tfie (Company has ccnsummated ttie Exchange Offers, then, subject to certain limited 
exceptions, the Company will have no obligaUon to file or to maintain the effectiveness of a Shelf Registration 
Statement with resped to any Old Debenmres tfiat are not tendered in the Exchange Offers. 

In the event that (i) by tfic 150th day following the Issue Date, the Exchange Offer Registration Statement 
is not filed witii tiie Commission, (ii) by tiie 180th day following tiic Issue Date, neitiier the Exchange Offer 
Registration Statement is declared effective nor (if tfie Exchange Offers are not permitted as described above) 
ttie Shelf Registration Statement is filed witii tiic Commission, or (iii) by tiie 210tii day following tiie Issue Date, 
one or more of the Exchange Offers witii respect to any series of Old Debenmres is not consummated or the 
Shelf Registration Statement is not declared effective with respect thereto (each such event referred to in clauses 
(i) tiirough (iii). a "Registration Default"), interest will accme on the applicable Old Debenmres (in addition to 
stated interest on such Old Debenmres) from and inducting the next day following each such Registration 
Default In each case such additional interest (tiic "Special Interest") will be payable in cash semiannually in 
anears each May 1 and November 1. at a rate per annum equal to 0.23% of the principal amount of such Old 
Debenmres for each such Registration Default The aggregate amount of Special Interest payable pursuant to the 
above provisions will, however, in no event exceed 0.25% per armum of the principal amount of such Old 
Debentures. Upon (a) the filing of the Exchajigc Offer Registration Statement after the 150-day pcricxl described 
in clause (i) abo,c, (b) the effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement or the filing of the Shelf 
Registration Statement after the 180-day period described in clause (ii) above or (c) the consummation of tfic 
Exchange Offer for such Old Debenmres or tiie effectiveness of a Shelf Registration Statement =3 tiie case may 
be. after the 210-day jjeriod descrribed in clause (iii) abo- e. the Special Interest payable on such 0!d Debentures 
as a result of the applicable Registration Default will cease to accme. For purposes of the procedirg sentence, 
the curing of a Registration Default by the means described in cliuse (b) above shall constitute a aire of the 
Registration Dcfaulis described in clauses (i) and (ii) above, and the curing of a Registration Default by the 
means dccribed in clause (c) above shall constimte a cure of the Registration Defaults describee in clauses (i). 
(ii) and (iii) above. 

In the event that a Shelf Registration Statement is declared effective pursuant to the paragraph preceding 
the immediately preceding paiagraph, if the Company fails to keep such Registration Statement continuously 
effective for the period required by the Registration Rights Agreement (exce'n as specifically permitted therein), 
then from such time as the Shelf Registration Statement is no longer effecti /e until the earUer of (i) the date that 
the Shelf Registtation Statement is again deemed effective and (ii) the CiL: that is the earliest of (x) the second 
anniversary of the Issue Date (or until the first anniversary of the effective date if the Shelf Registration 
Statement is filed at the request of the Initial Purchasers), (y) ttie time when the Old Debentures registered 
ttiereunder can be sold by non-affiliates pursuant to Rule 144 imder the Securities Act without any limitation 
under clauses (c), (e). (0 and (h) of Rule 144. or (z) the date as of which all such Old Debentures are sold 
pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement Special Interest shall accme at a rate per aimum equal to 0.25% of 
the principal amount of the Old Debentures and shall be payable in cash semiannually in arrears each May 1 and 
November 1. 

The summary herein of certain provisions of the Registration Rights Agreement does not purport to be 
complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference lo, all the provisions of ttic Registration 
Rights Agreement a copy of which is available upon request to the Company. 
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CERTAIN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF PARTICIPATION 
IN THE EXCHANGE OFFERS 

An exchange of flic Old Debentures for flie New Debenmres pursuant to tiie Ex'-hange Offers will not 
constimte a taxable event for federal income tax purposes. As a result holders who exchange tfieir Old 
I>ebentures for New Debenmres should not recognize any income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes 
witfi resped to such exchange. An exchanging holder will have ttie same adjusted basis and holding period in 
ttic New Debenmres as u had in ttie Old Debentures immediately before ttie exchange. 

HOLDERS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE PARTICULAR TAX 
CONSEQUENCES TO THEM OF EXCHAi>IGING OLD DEBENTURES FOR NEW DEBENTURES IN THE 
EXCHANGE OFFEP ,̂ INCLUDING THE APPUCABILITY AND EFFECT OF ANY STATE. LOCAL, OR 
FOREIGN TAX LAWS. 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

Each broker-dealer that receives New Deb<"ntures for its own account pursuant to ttie Exchange Offers must 
acknowledge ttiat it will deliver a prospecms meeting the requirements of tiie Securities Act in connection witii 
any resale of such New Debenmres. This Prospecms. as it may be amenaed or supplemented from time to time, 
may be used by a broker-dealer in connection witii resales of N-v, Etebentures received in exchange for Old 
Debenmres where such Old Debentt-res were acquired by such broker-dealer as a result of market-making 
activities or ottier tfading activities. The Company has agreed ttiat, starting on tiic Expiration Date and ending on 
tiie close of business 180 days after th'. Expiration Date, it will make tiiis Prospecms. as amended or 
supplemented, available to any broker-dealer for use in connection witii any such resale. 

The Company will not receive any proceeds from any sale of New Debenmres by broker-dealers. New 
Debenmres received by broker-dealers for tiicir own account pursuant to the Exchange Offers may be sold from 
time to time in one cr more transactions in tfie over-tfic<ounter market in negotiated transactions, tfirOTtgh tfie 
writing of options on the New Debentures or a combination of such metiiods of resale, at market prices prevailing 
at tiie time of resale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or at negotiated prices. Any such resale 
may be made directiy to purchasers or to or tiirough brokers or dealers who may receive compensation in tiie 
form of commissions or concessions from any such brcrfcer-dealer and/or tiic purchasers of any such New 
Debenmres. Any broker-dealer tiiat resells New Debenmres tiiat were received by it for its own account pursuant 
to tfic Exchange Offers and any broker or dealer tiiat participates in a distribution of such New Debenmres may 
be deemed to be an "underwriter" witiiin tiie meaning of tiic Securities Act and any profit of any such resale of 
New Debentures and any commissions or concessions received by any such persons may be deemed to be 
underwriting compensation under tiie Securities Act The Letter of Transmittal states fliat by acknowledging ttiat 
it wil! deliver and by delivering a prospecms meeting ttic requirements of ttie Securities Act a broker-dealer will 
not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within ttie meaning of ttie Securities Act 

For a period of 180 days after ttic Expiration Date, tiie Company will promptiy send additional copies of 
tfiis Prospecms and any amendment or supplement to tfiis Prospecms to any broker-dealer tiiat requests such 
document in tiie LeOer of Transmi:tal. The Company has agreed to pay all expenses inddent to ttie Exchange 
Offers (including ttie expenses of one counsel for ttie holders of ttic Old Debenmres) otficr tfian commissions or 
concessions of any brokers OT dealers and will indemnify tfie holders of tfic Old Debentures (including any broker 
dealers) against certain liabilities, including liabiUties under ttic Securities Act 

VALIDITV OF DEBENTURES 

The validity of tiic New Debenmres offered hereby will be passed upon for tfie Company by McCjuire. 
Woods, Battie & Bootiic, L.L.P., Richmond, Virginia. Robert L. Bunus, Jr.. a partner of McGuire, Woods. Battie 
& Boottie, L.L.P., is a director of ti.c C:ompany and owns 4,449 shares of tiie Company's common stcx;k. 
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EXPERTS 

"Tie consolidated financial statements of tfie Company, incoiporated by reference in this Prospecms and 
elsewhere in tfie Registration Statement have been audited by Emst & Young LLP, independent auditors, as set 
forth in tiieir report tfiereon included tfierein and incorpOTated herein by reference. Sue* consolidated financial 
statements are incoiporated by reference in this Prospecms and in the Registration Statement in reliance upon 
such report given upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing. 

The consolidated financial statements of Conrail as of December 31, 1996 and 1995. and for each of tfie 
years in tfie tfiree-year period ended December 31, 1996 have been incorporated by reference in reliance on tfie 
report of Price Wateifaouse LLP, independent accountants, given on the autfiority of said fiim as experts in 
auditing and accounting. 

Witii lespect to ttic unaudited consolidated financial information of Conrail for tfie quarters ended March 
31, 1997 and 1996, incoiporated by refCiCnce in tfiis Prospecms, Price Waterhouse LIJ> reported tfiat tfiey have 
applied Umited procedures in accordance witfi professional standards for a review of such information. However, 
tfieir separate report dated April 16, 1997 incorporated by reference herein, states that tfiey did not audit and 
tfiey do not express an opinion on tfiat unaudited consolidated financial information. Price Waterhouse LLP has 
not carried out any sigmficant OT additional audit tests beyond tfiose which would have been necessary if their 
report had not been iiicluded Accordingly, tfie degree of reliance on tfieir report on such information should be 
restricted in light of tfic Umited namre of tfie review prcx:edures applied. Price Waterhousr LLP is not subject to 
tfic liability provisions of Section 11 of tfie Securities Act for ttieir report on tfie unaudited consolidated financial 
information because ttiat report is nOT a "report" or a "part" of ttie registration sUtement prepared or certified 
by Price Waterhouse LLP witiiin tiie meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of ttie Securities Act 

SO 
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Map does not distinguish in all cases between trackage rights and ownership, nor does it indicate the grant 
of trackage rights by CSX or NSC to the other over the routes allocated above. 
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No dealer, salesperson or other person has 
been authorized to give any information or to 
make any representations ui connection with the 
offer made hereby except as contauicd or incorpo­
rated by reference in this Prospedus and, if given 
or made, such hitormation or representations 
must not be relied upon as having been authorized 
by the Company. Neither the deUvery of this Pro­
spedus nor any sale made hereunder shall, under 
any circumstances, create any implication that 
there has been no change in the information set 
forth or incorporated by reference herein or in the 
affairs of the Company since the date hereof. This 
Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a 
solidtation of an offer to buy by anyone in any 
jurisdidion in which such offer or sch. . .on is 
not authorized or hi which the person making 
such offer or soliciution is not qualified to do so 
or to anyone to whom it is unlawful to make such 
offer or soUdtati 'n. 
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PARTD 

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTTUS 

Item 20, Indemnification of Directors and Officers 

Article 10 of tiie Virginia Stock Corporation Ad allows, in general, for indemnification, in certain 
circumstances, by a corporation of any person tiireatened witii or made a party to any action, suit or proceeding 
by reason of the fact tiia> he or she is, or was. a director, officer, employee or agent of such corporation. 
Indemnification is also auttiorized witii respect to a criminal action or proceeding where tiic person had no 
reasonable cause to believe tfi<:t his or her conduct was unlawful. Article 9 of ttie Virginia Stock Corporation 
Act provides limitations on damages payable by officers and directors, except in cases of willful misconduct OT 
Icnowing violation of criminal law or any federal or state securities law. 

Article vn of tiic Company's Amended and Restated Articles of IncorpOTation provides for mandatory 
indemnification of any director or officer of tiic C:ompany who is. was or is tiireatened to be made a party to any 
proceeding (includmg any proceeding by or on behalf of tiic Company) by reason of tiie fact tiiat he or she is OT 
was a director or officer of tiie Company against all Uabilities and reasonable expenses incuned in tfie 
proceeding, except such liabilities and expenses as are incuned because of such director's or officer's willftil 
misconduct or icnowing violation of the criminal law. 

The Company's Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation also provide tiiat in every instance 
permitted under Virginia corporate law in effect from time to time, tiic liability of a director of officer of tiie 
Company to the Company or its shareholders arising out of a single transaction, occunence or course of condud 
shall be limited to one dollar. 

The Company maintains a standard policy of officers' and directors' liability insurance. 

Reference is made to tiie Purchase Agreement included herein as an exhibit to tiic Registration Statement 
for provisions regarding indemnification of tiie Company's officers, directors and controlling persons against 
certain liabilities. 

Item 21. Exhibits 

ExhBrit 

4.1 Indcnmre, dated August 1, 1990, between tfie Company and The CJiase Manhattan Bank, as Tmstee 
(incorpoiated herein by reference to ttic Company's Form SE. dated September 7,1990, filed witti ttie 
Commission) 

4.2 First Supplemental Indcnmre. dated as of June 15. 1991. between ttic Company and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank, as Tmstee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4(c) to the Company's Form 
SE, dated May 28, 1992, filed witti ttie Commission) 

4.3 Second Supplemental Indcnmre, dated as of May 6. 1997. between ttic Company and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank, as Tmstee (a) 

4.4 Purchase Agreement dated as of May o. 1997. between ttie Company and Salomon Brotticrs Inc, 
individually and as representative of the Initial Purchasers (a) 

43 Rcgisuation Rights Agreement dated May 6. 1997, between tiic Company and Salomon Brotiiers Inc, 
individually and as representative of the Initial Puichasers (a) 

4.6 Form of New 7.05% Debenmre Due 2002 (b) 
4.7 Form of New 7.25% Debenmre Due 2004 (b) 
4.8 Form of New 7.45% Debenmre Due 2007 (b) 
4.9 Forni of New 7.90% Debenmre Due 2017 (b) 
4..0 Form of New 7.95% Debenmre Due 2027 (b) 
4.11 Form of New 6.95% Debenmre Due 2027 (b) 
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Exhibit 

4.12 Form of New 7.25% Debenture Due 2027 (b) 
4.13 Form of New 8.30% Debenmre Due 2032 (b) 
5.1 Opinion of McGuire, Woods, Battle & Boottie, LLP., regarding validity of New Debentures being 

registered (b) 
12.1 Statement regarding ttic computation of tiic ratio of tamings to fixed charges (a) 
15.1 Awareness Letter of Price Watethouse LLP, Independent Accountants (a) 
23.1 Consent of Emst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors (a) 
23.2 Consent of Price Waterhouse LLP, Independent Accountants (a) 
23 3 Consent of Mdjuire, Woods, Battie & Bootiic. L.L.P. contained in tfie c^inion filed as Exhibit 5.1 

hereto 
24.1 Powers of Attorney of certain directors and officers of the ompany (a) 
25.1 Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility of The Chase Manhattan iJank to act as tmstee under tfie Indcntme 

(a) 
99.1 Form of Letter of Transmittal (b) 
99.2 Form of Exchange Agent Agreement between tfie Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as 

Exchange Agent (b) 
(a) Filed herewitfi. 
(b) To be filed by amendment 

Item 22. Undertakings 
The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes: 

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales arc being made, a post-effective amendment to 
tfiis Registration Statement (i) to include any prospecms required by Section 10(a)(3) of tiie Securities Act 
of 1933; (ii) to reflect in tiie prospecms any acts or events arising after tiie etfectivc date of tiiis Registration 
Statement (or tiic most recent post-effective amendment tiiereof) which, individually or in tiie aggregate, 
represent a fundamental change in tiic information set forth in tiiis Registration Statement (notwitiistanding 
tiie foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities 
offered would not exceed tiiat which was registered) and any deviation from tiic low or high end of tiie 
estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in tiic form of prospecms filed witti ttic Commission 
pursuant to Rule 42'. ••>) under ttic Securities Act of 1933 if, in tiie aggregate, tiic changes Li voK-mc and 
price represent no more tiian a 20% change in tiie maximum aggregate offering price se forth in tiie 
"Calculation of Registration Fee" table in tiie effective Registration Statement); (iii) to include any material 
information witti respect to ttic plan of distribution not previously disclosed in ttiis Registration SUtement 
or any material change to such information in tfiis Registration Statement provided, however, that 
subparagr^hs (i) and (ii) do not apply if tfie information required to be included in a post-effective 
amendment by tiiose subparagraphs is contained in periodic reports filed by tfic Company pursuant to 
Section 13 or Section 15(d) of tiic Securities Exchange Act of 1934 fliat are incorpOTated by reference ui 
this Registration Statement 

(2) That for tiie purpose of determining any Uability under tiie Securities Act of 1933. each such post-
effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to ttie securities offered 
herein, and ttic offering of such securities at tiiat time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering 
tiiereof. 

(3) To remove from regisffation by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being 
registered which remain unsold at tiic terminauon of tfic offering. 

The undersigned Registrant hereby further undertakes tiiat for the purpose of determining any liability 
under ttie Securities Act of 1933, each filing of tiie Registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 
15(d) of tiie Securities Exchange Act of 1934 tiiat is incorporated by reference in tiiis Registration Sutement 
shall be deemed to be a new regis&ation sutement relating to tiic securities offered tiierein. and tiie offering of 
such securities at tiiat time shall be deemed to be tiic initial bona fide offering tiiereof. 
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Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be pemutted to 
directors, officers and controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the provisions described under Item 15 
or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Ad of 1933 and is, therefOTC, 
unenforceable. In die event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (otiier tfian the payment by 
the Registrant of expeases incuned OT paid by a direntOT. officer or controlling person of the Registrar: in the 
successful defense of any adion. suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in 
cormection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, urtiess in the cipinion of its counsel tiie matter 
has been settled by controlling precedent submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such 
indemnification by it is against public polic as expressed in the Securities Ad of 1933 and wiU be governed by 
the final adjucfication of such issue. 

The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests fcr information that is incorporated by 
reference into tfic Prospectus pursuant to Items 4.10(b), 11 OT 13 of this Fbno, witfiin one business day of receipt 
of such request and to send the incorporated documents by first-class mail or other equally prompt means. This 
includes information contained in documents filed subsequent to tiie effective date of the Registration Statement 
tiirough the date of responding to the request 

The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all 
information concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was nOT the subjed 
of and included in tfie Registtation Statement when it became effective. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Ad of 1933, the Registrant has duly caused this 
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by tlie undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the 
City of Richmond, Commonwealth of Virginia, on the 4th day of June, 1997. 

C S X CORPORA-nON 

By. Isl JAMES L . ROSS 

James L. Ross 
Vice PrttideiU and ContntUr 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Ad of 1933, this Registration Statement has been 
signed by the following persons in the capadties indicated on the 4th day of June, 1997. 

Signature 

/s/ JOHN W. SNOW* 

John W. Snow 
Ĉ hairman, President Chief Executive Officer and 

DirectOT (Principal Executive Officer) 

Isl PAUL R. GOODWIN* 

Paal K. Goodwin 
Executive Vice President— F̂inanr̂  ..id Chief Financial 

Officer (Principal Financial Officer) 

Isl JAMES L . ROSS* 

JaiMf L.Ito(s 
Vice President and Cbntrolier (Principal 

Accounting Officer) 

Isl EU7v^BETH E . B A I L E Y * 

Elizabeth E. BaOey 

Isl ROBERT L . Biwtus, JR.* 

Kobcn L, Bumu, Jr. 

Isl BRUCE C . GOTTWALO* 

Btvoe C Goctwaid 

Isl JOHN R. HALL* 

JohnlLHaU 

Isl ROBERT D. KUNISCH* 

Robert D. Kunisch 

Isl HUGH L . MCCOLL, JR.* 

Hufb L. McCoU, Jr. 

Director 

DirectOT 

Director 

DirectOT 

Director 

Director 
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Signctnre 

Isl JAMES W. MCXJLOTHUN* Diiectcr 
James W. McGkKhi;-; 

Isl SOUTHWOOD J. MORCOTT* Diredor 
Soulfaitvod J . Moroott 

Isl CHARLES E . RICE* Director 
Charies E. Rice 

Isl WILUAM C . RICHARDSON* Director 
wmiam C Richardson 

Isl FRANK S. ROYAL* Dirertor 

Tide 

Frank S. Royal 

»By: Is/ ALAN A. RUDNICK 

Alan A. Rudnick 
Attomey-iii-Fmet 
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EXfflBITS 

4.1 Indenture, dated August I. 1990, between tiie Company ii J The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Tmstee 
(incorporated herein by reference to tfie Company's Form SE, dated September 7, 1990, filed witii tiie 
Commission) 

4.2 Fust Supplemental Uidenmrc, dated as of Junt- 15, 1991. between the Company and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank, as Tmstee (incoiporated hcnrin by reference to Exhibit 4(c) to tiic Company's Form 
SE, dated May 28, 1992. filed with the Commission) 

4.3 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of W ay 6, 1997, between tiie Company and The Chase 
Manhattan Bartic, as Tmstee (a) 

4.4 Purchase Agreement dated as of May 6,1997. between tfie Company and Salomon Brotfiers Inc, 
individually and as representative of tiie Initial Purchasers (a) 

4.5 Registration Rights Agreement dated May 6, .997, between tfie Company and Salomon Brotfiers Inc. 
individually and as representative of ttic Iniaal Purchasers (a) 

4.6 Form of New 7.05% Debenmre Due 2002 (b) 

4.7 Fonn of New 7.25% Debenture Due 2004 (b) 

4.8 Forai of New 7.45% Debenmre Due 2007 (b) 

4.9 Form of New 7.90% Debenture Due 2017 (b) 

4.10 Form of New 7.95% Debenture Due 2027 (b) 

4.11 Form of New 6.95% Debenture Due 2027 (b) 

4.12 Form of New 7.25% Debenmre Due 2027 (b) 

4.1: Forai of New 8.30% Debenmre Due 2032 (b) 
5.1 Opinion of McGuire, Woods. Battie & Bootiic, L I S . , regarding validity of New Debentures being 

registeied (b) 
12.1 SUtement regarding ttic computation of tfie ratio of eamings to fixed charges (a) 

15.1 Awareness Letter of Pnce Waterhouse LLP. Independent Accountants (a) 

23.1 Consent of Emst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors (a) 

23.2 Consent of Price Waterhouse LLP, Independent Accountants (a) 
23.3 Consent of McGuire, Woods, Battle & Boottie, L.L.P. contained in tfic opinion filed as Exhibit 5,1 

hereto 
24.1 Powers of Attomey of certain directors and officers of tfic Company (a) 
25.1 Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility of The Chase Manhattan Banl: to ad as tmstee under the 

Indcnmre (a) 

99.1 Forai of Letter of Tran smittal (b) 
99.2 Fomi of Exchange Agent Agreement between tfie Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as 

Exchange Agent (b) 

(a) Filed herewitfi. 
(b) To be filed by amendm ent 
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EXHIBIT 4.3 

EXECUTION COPY 

CSX CORPORATIOM 

AND 

THE CHASE MANHATTi>Ji BANK, 
T r u s t e e 

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL 
INDENTURE 

Dated as of May 6, 1997 

Senior Securities 

SECOND Sin>PLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of May 6, 1997 between CSX 
Corporation, a Virginia corporation (the "Company"), and The Chase Manhattan 
Bank, a New York banking corporation. Trustee (the "Trustee"). 

RECITALS OF THE COMPANY 

WHEREAS, tbe Compcuiy has heretofore executed and delivered to the 
Trustee a certain indenture, dated as of Ai just 1, 1990 and supplemented by the 
F i r s t Supplemental Indenture, dated as of JUne 15, 1991 (herein called the 
"Indenture"), pursuant to which one or more series of unsecured debentures, 
secuiities or other evidences of indebtedness of the Company (herein called the 
"Securities") may be issued from time to time; 

WHEREAS, Section 901 of the Indenture provides that the Company, when 
authorized by a Board Resolution, and the Trustee may at any time amd from time 
to time enter into an indenture supplemental to the Indenture for the purpose, 
among other things, of ( i ) chjmging or eliminating any of the provisions of the 
Indenture, provided that such change or elimination s h a l l become effective only 
when tJiere i s no Security Outstanding of any series created prior to the 
execution of such supplemental indenture which i s entitled to the benefit of 
such provision, ( i i ) establishing the form or terms of Securities of any series 
and any related coupons as permitted by Sections 201 and 301, ( i i i ) makmg any 
other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under the 
Indenture, provided that such action s h a l l not adversely affect the interests of 
the Holders of Securities of any series or any related 
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coupons i n any material respect or ( i i i ) to establish the form of Securities of 
any series and any related coupons pursuant to sections 201 and 301; 

WHEREAS, the Company, pursuant to the foregoing authority, proposes i n 
>Ti/i hv this Second Supplemental Indenture to amend the Indenture i n certain 
r ^ P ^ c t r ^ t h respect^ti thfc following Securities: $350,000,000 of i t s 7.05% 
S l ^ t u r e s Due 2002 (the "2002 Debentures"), $300,000,000 of i t s 7.25% 
S l b l S t S " s D^e 2004 the "2004 Debentures"), $450,000,000 of i t s 7.45% 
SlblStS^ls D^e 2007 the "2007 Debentures"), $400,000,000 of i t s 7.90% 
S S t n " ! D^e 2017 the "2017 Debentures"), $500,000,000 of i t s 7.95% 
S S S t ^es D^e 2027 the "7.95% 2027 Debentures"), $100,000,000 of i t s 6.95% 
S S l S ^ u " ! D^e 2027 the "6.95% 2027 Debentures"), $250,000,000 of i t s 7.25% 
S ^ w t S w I D^e 2027 the "7.25% 2027 Debentures") and $150,000,000 oi rts 8.30% 
S S ^ t u " ! oSe 2032 the "2032 Debentures" and, collectively with the 2002 
o S l S t S r e s . ^ e 2004 Debentures, the 2007 Debentures, the 2017 Debentures, the 
7 ^ 2027 DeblnturesrUie 6.95% 2027 Debentures and the 7.25% 2027 Debentures, 
the "May 1997 Securities" or the " I n i t i a l Securities"); and 

WHEREAS, a l l things necessary to make this Second Supplemental 
Indenture a valid agreement of the Company and the Trustee and a valid amendment 
of and supplement to the Indenture have been done. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE WITNESSETH: i M R 

For and i n consideration of the premises and the purchase of the 
Securities by the Holders thereof, i t i s mutually covenanted and agreed, for the 
eJSal and proportionate benefit of a l l Holders of the May 1997 Securities, as 
follows: 

ARTICLE ONE 

Solely with respect to the May 1997 Securities, and not with respect 
to any other Securities previously established, the Indenture i s hereby amended 
and supplemented as specified below. 

section 1.1 Definitions. Sectioa 101 of the Indenture i s hereby 

amended and supplemented by idding the following definitions: 

"Agent Member" has the meaning provided in Section 312. 

"Depositary" means The Depository Trust Company, i t s nominees and 
successors. 
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"Exchzmge Offer" means the offer by the Conipany to the Holders of the 
Inic i a l Securities to exchange a l l of the In i t i a l Securities for Exchange 
Securities, as provided in the Registration Rights Agreement. 

"Exclumge Securities" refers to any Security containing terms 
substantially identical to the I n i t i a l Securities (except that ( i ) such Exchange 
Securities shall not contain terms with respect to transfer restrictions and 
shall be registered under the Securities Act, and ( i i ) certain provisions 
relating to an increase in the stated rate of interest thereon shall be 
eliminated) that are issued and exchemged for the Ini t i a l Securities in 
accordance witn the Exchange Offer, as provided in the Registration Rights 
Agreement and this Indenture. 

" I n i t i a l Purchasers" means Salomon Brothers Inc, Credit Suisse First 
Boston corporation. Chase Securities Inc., Goldman, Sachs t Co., Morgan Stanley 
t Co. Incorporated and NationsBanc Capital Markets, Inc. 

" I n i t i a l Securities" has the oieaning stated in the recitals to this 
Indenture. 

"Issue Date" means, with respect to a SecuritJ.y, the date on which the 
Trustee authenticated sucb Security. 

"Offshore Securities Exchange Date" has the meaning provided in 
SectuLon 201. 

"Non-U.£. Person" means a person who i s not a U.S. person, as defined 
in Regulation S. 

"Permanent Offshore Physical Securities" has the meaning provided in 
Section 201. 

"Physical Securities" has the meaning provided in Section 201. 

"Principal Subsidiary" means CSX Transportation, Inc. ("CSXT"), Sea-
Lamd Service, Inc, ("Sea-Land") and American Commercial Lines, Inc. ("ACL"). 

"QIB" means a "qualified institutional buyer" as defined in Rule 144A. 

"Registration Rights Agreement" means the Registrald.on Rights 
Agreement dated as of May 6, 1997 among the Company and the I n i t i a l Purchasers 
and certain permitted assigns specified therein. 

"Registration Statement" means the Registration Statement as defined 
and described in the Registration Rights Agreenent. 

"Regulation S" means Regulation S undsr the Securities Act. 
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"Repayment Date" meems, when used with respect to any Security to be 
repaid at the option of the Holder, the date fixed for such repayment by or 
pursuant to such Security. 

"Restricted Period" has the meaning provided in Regulation S. 

"Rule 144A" means Rule 144A under the Securities Act. 

"Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933. 

"Temporary Offshore Global Securities" has the meaning provided in 
Section 201. 

"U.S. Global Securities" has the meaning provided in Section 201. 

"U.S. Physical Securities" has the meaning provided in Section 201. 

Section 1.2 Forma Generally. Section 201 of the Indenture i s amended 

by adding the following four paragraphs to that Section: 

I n i t i a l Securities offered and sold in reliance on Rule 144A may be 
issued in the form of one or more permanent global securities 
substantially in the form set forth in Annex I hereto (the "U.S. 
Global Securities") deposited with the Trustee, as custodian for the 
Depositary, duly executed by the Company and authenticated by the 
Trustee as hereinafter provided. The aggregate principal amount of tJie 
U.S. Global Securities may from time to time be increased or decreased 
by adjustments made on the records of the Security Registrar, as 
custodian for the Depositary or the Trustee, as hereinafter provided. 

I n i t i a l Securities offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S shall 
be issued i n i t i a l l y in the form of temporary global Securities in 
registered form substantially in the form set forth in Aimex I hereto 
(the "Temporary Offshore Global Securities"). The Temporary Offshore 
Global Securities will be registered in the name of, and held by, a 
temporary certificate holder designated by the I n i t i a l Purchasers 
until the later of the completion of the distribution of the I n i t i a l 
Securities and the termination of the Restricted Period with respect 
to the offer and sale of the I n i t i a l Securities (the "Offshore 
Securities Exchange Date"). At any time following the Offshore 
Securities Exchange Date, upon receipt by the Trustee and the Company 
of a certificate substantially in the form set forth in Section 205, 
the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall execute and deliver, 
one or more permaxtent certificated Securities substantially in the 
form set forth in Annex I hereto (the "Permanent 
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Offshore Physical Securities") i n exclumge for the Temporary Offshore 
Global Securities of l i k e tenor and amount. 

I n i t i a l Securities offered and sold other than as described i n the 
preceding two paragraphs shall be issued i n the form of permanent 
certifi c a t e d Securities in Registered form i n substantially the same 
form set forth in Annex I hereto (tJie "U.S. Physical S e c u r i t i e s " ) . The 
Temporary Offshore Global Securities, Permanent Offshore Physical 
Securities and U.S. Physical Securi1u.es are sometimes c o l l e c t i / e l y 
herein referred to as the "Physical Securities". 

Section 1.3 Restrictive Legends. The Indenture i s amended and 

supplemented by adding the following Section 204 to read as follows: 

Section 2C4. Restrictive Legends. 

Unless and un t i l ( i ) an I n i t i a l Security i s sold under an effective 
Registration Statement or ( i i ) an I n i t i a l Security i s exch2uiged for an Exchange 
Security i n connection with an effective Registration Statement, i n each case 
pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement, each such U.S. Global Security, 
Temporary Offshore Global Security and U.S. Physical Security s h a l l bear the 
following legend (the "Private Placement Legend") on the face thereof: 

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED imDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY STATE SECtJRITIES LAWS OR ANY OTHER 
APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAW. NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR ANY INTEREST OR 
PARTICIPATION HEREIN MAY BE REOFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, 
PLEDGED, ENCimBERED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH 
REGISTRATION OR UNLESS SUCH TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, 
SUCH REGISTRATION. THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF 
AGREES TO OFFER, SELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER THIS SECURITY PRIOR TO THE DATE 
(THE "RESALE RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE") WHICH IS TWO YEARS AFTER THE 
LATER OF THE ORIGINAL ISSUANCE DATE HEREOF AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH THE 
COMPANY OR ANY AFFILIATE OF THE COMPANY WAS THE OWNER OF THIS SECURITY (OR 
ANY PREDECESSOR OF THIS SECURITY) ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY, (B) PURSUANT TO 
A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WHICH HAS BEEN DECLARED EFFECTIVE UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT, (C) SO LONG AS THIS SECURITY IS ELIGIBLE FOR RESALE 
PURSUANT TO RULE 144A tnJDER THE SECITRITIES ACT ("RtH.E 144A"), TO A PERSON 
IT REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" (AS DEFINED IN 
RULE 144A) THAT PintCHASES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUtlT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A 
QUALIFIED INSTITtrriONAL B̂ nfER TO WHOM NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT THE 
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•"BANSFER IS BEING MADE IN RELIANCE ON RULE 144A, (D) PURSUANT TO OFFERS AND 
SA1.ES TO NON-U.S. PERSONS THAT OCCUR OUTSIDE THE imiTED STATES WITHIN THE 
MEANING OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECtVITIES ACT, (E) TO AN INSTITUTIONAL 
"ACCREDITED INVESTOR" WITHIN THE MEAKING OF SUBPARAGRAPH (a)(1), (2) (3) 
OR (7) OF RULE 501 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT THAT IS ACQUIRING THIS SECURITY 
FOR ITS OWN ACCOimT, OR FOR THE l.CCOUKT OF SUCH AN INSTITUTIONAL ACCREDITED 
INVESTOR, FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES AND NOT WIIB A VIEW TO, OR FOR OFFER OR 
SALE IN CONNECTION WITH, ANY DISTRIBtTTION IN VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES 
ACT, OR (F) PURSUANT TO ANY OTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION 
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, SUBJECT TO THE RIGHT OF THE TRUSTEE 
AND THE COMPANY PRIOR TO ANY SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER ( i ) PtTRSUANT TO 
CLAUSE (D), (E) OR (F) TO REQUIRE THE DELIVERY OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, 
CERTIFICATIONS AND/OR OTHER INFORMATION SATISFACTORY TO EACH OF THEM AND 
( i i ) PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (E), TO REQUIRE THAT THE TRANSFEROR DELIVER TO THE 
'/"I'USTEE A LETTER FROM THE TRANSFEREE SUBSTANTIALLY IN THE FORM OF ANNEX A 
TO THE OFFERING MEMORANDUM DATED MAY 1, 1997. SUCH HOLDER FURTHER AGREES 
THAT IT WILL DELIVER TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THIS SECURITY IS TRANSFERRED A 
NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND. IN CONNECTION WITH ANY 
TRANSFER OF THIS SECURITY WITHIN THE TIME PERIOD REFERRED TO ABOVE, THE 
HOLDER MUST CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX SET FORTH HEREON RELATING TO THE 
MANNER OF SUCH TRANSFER AND SUBMIT THIS SECtntlTY TO THE TRUSTEE. AS USED 
HEREIN, THE TERMS "OFFSHORE TRANSACTION", "OTJITED STATES" AND "U.S. PERSON" 
HAVE THE MEANINGS GIVEN TO THEM BY REGIHATION S iniDER THE SECinilTIES ACT 
THE INDENTURE CONTAINS A PROVISION REQUIRING THE TRUSTEE TO REFUSE TO 
REGISTER ANY TRANSFER OF THIS SECURITY IN VIOLATION OF THE FOREGOING 
RESTRICTIONS. 

Each U.S. Global Security, whether or not an I n i t i a l Security, s h a l l 
also bear the following legend on the face thereof: 

UNLESS THIS SECimiTY IS PRESENTED BY AN AlHBORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE 
DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF 
TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT', AND ANY SECl^tlTY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE 
NAME OF CEDE t CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AlH^ORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OF l-HE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY {MTD ANY PAYMENT HEREON IS 
MADE TO CEDE t CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQlrtlSTED BY AN AUT.TORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE 
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DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR 
VALUE OB OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFtJL SINCE THE REGISTERED 
OWNER HEREOF, CEDE i CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN. 

TRANSFERS OF THIS SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS IN WHOLE, BUT NOT 
IN PART, TO NOMINEES OF CEDE < CO. OR TO A SUCCESSOR THEREOF OR SUCH 
SUCCESSOR'S NOMINEE AND TRANSFERS OF PORTIONS OF THIS SECURITY SHALL BE 
LIMITED TO TRANSFERS MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH IH 
SECTION 313 OF THE INDENTURE. 

Section 1.4 Form of Certificate to Delivered upon Termination of 

Restricted Period. The Indenture i s amended and supplemented by adding the 

following Section 205 to read as follows> 
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Section 205, Form of Certificate to Be Delivered i n Connection with 

Transfers Pursuant to Regulation S upon Termination of Restirlcted Period. 

The following c e r t i f i c a t e , to be dated on or after expiration of the 
Restricted Period, shall be delivered by a Holder in connection with transfers 
pursuant to Regulation S, 

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK 
Global Trust Services 
4 50 West 3 3rd Street, 15th Floor 
New York, NY 10001 

Re: CSX Corporation (the "Company") 
% Securities due May 1, 20 (the "Securities") 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

This l e t t e r relates to U.S. $ principal amount of Securit:ies 
represented by a temporary global security c e r t i f i c a t e (the "Temporary 
Cert i f i c a t e " ) which bears a legend outlining restrictions upon transfer of such 
Temporary Ce r t i f i c a t e . Pursuant to Section 201 of the Indenture dated as of 
August 1, 1990, as supplemented and amended by the F i r s t Supplemental Indenture 
dated as of June 15, 1991 and the Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 
6, 1997 relating to the Securities (the "Indenture"), we hereby c e r t i f y that we 
are (or we w i l l hold such Securities on behalf of) a person outside the United 
States to whom the Securities could be transferred in accordzmce with Rule 904 
of Regulation S promulgated under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 
Accordingly, you are hereby requested to excheui^e the Tenqporary Certificate for 
an unle^ended c e r t i f i c a t e representing an identical principal amount of 
Securities, a l l i n the manner provided for i n the Indenture. 

You and the Company are entitled to rely upon this l e t t e r and are 
irrevocably authorized to produce thi s l e t t e r or a copy hereof to any interested 
party i n any administrative or legal proceedings or o f f i c i a l inquiry with 
respect to the matters covered hereby. Terms used in this cer-tificate have the 
meanings set forth i n Regulation S. 

Very truly yours, 

[Name of Holder] 

hyf 

Author ized Signature 
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Section 1.5 Form of Security. The Security Form att;ached as Exhibit A 

to the Indenture i s amended to read in i t s entirety as set forth in Annex I to 
this Second Supplemental Indenture. 

Section 1.6 Book-Entry Provisions for U.S. Global Security. The 

Indenture i s amended and supplemented by adding tJie following Section 312 to 
read as follows: 

Section 312. Book-Entry Provisions for U.S. Global Security. 

(a) The U.S. Global Security i n i t i a l l y s h a l l ( i ) be registered i n the 
n2une of the Depositary for such global Security or the nominee of such 
Depositary, ( i l ) be delivered to the Trustee as custodian for such Depositary 
and ( i i i ) bear legends as set forth i n Section 204. 

Members of, or participants i n , the Depositary ("Agent Members") sha l l 
have no rights under this Indenture \ i i th respect to any U.S. Global Security 
held on their behalf by the Depositary, or the Trustee as i t s custodian, or 
under the U.S. Global Security, and the Depositary may be treated by t i e 
Company, the Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee as the absolute 
owner of such U.S, Global Security for a l l purposes whatsoever. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, nothing herein s h a l l prevent the Company, the Trustee or any 
agent of the Company or the Trustee from giving effect to any written 
c e r t i f i c a t i o n , proxy or other authorizau .u furnished by the Depositary or shall 
impair, as between the Depositary and it>i Agent Members, the operation of 
customary practices governing the exercise of the rights of a Holder of any 
Security. 

(b) Transfers of the U.S. Global Sricurity shall be limited to 
transfers of such U.S. Global Security in whole, but not in part, to t i e 
depositary, i t s successors or their respective nominees. Interests of beneficial 
ofcners in the U.S, Global Security may be transferred in accordemce with tJie 
rules and procedures of the Depositary and the provisions of Section 313. U.S. 
Physical Securities shall be transferred to a l l beneficial owners i n exchange 
for their beneficial interests i n the U.S. Global Security i f ( i ) the Depositary 
notifies the Company that i t i s unwilling, unable or in e l i g i b l e to continue as 
Depositary for t i e U.S. Global Security or i f at any time the Depositary ceases 
to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, (11) the Company in 
i t s sole discretion determines that the U.S. Global Security s h a l l be 
exchangeable for U.S. Physical Securities, or ( i i i ) any event s h a l l have 
happened and be continuing which, after notice or lapse of time, or both, would 
become an Event of Default with respect to such Securities. 

(c) In connection with any trMsfer of a portion of the beneficial 
interest i n the U.S. Global Security pursuant to subsection (b) of this Section 
to beneficial o%cners who are required to hold U.S. Physical Securities, the 
Security Registrar shall r e f l e c t on i t s books and records the date and a 
decrease i n the principal amo-int of the U.S. Global Security i n an amount equal 
to the principal amount of the beneficial interest in the U.S. Global Security 
to 
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be transferred, and the Company s h a l l execute, and the Trustee s h a l l 
authenticate and deliver, one or more U.S. Physical Securities of l i k e tenor and 
amount. 

(d) In connection with the transfer of the ent:ire U.S. Global 
Security to benef...cial owners pursuant to subsection (b) of this Section, the 
U.S. Global Security s h a l l be deemed to be surrendered to the Trustee for 
cancellation, and the company s h a l l execute, and the Trustee s h a l l authenticate 
and deliver, to each beneficial oi.ner identified by the Depositary i n exchange 
for i t s beneficial interest i n the U.S. Global Security, an equal aggregate 
principal amount of U.S. Physical Securities of authorized denominations. 

(e) Any U.S. Physical Security delivered i n exchange for an Interest 
i n the U.S. Global Security pursuant to subsection (c) or subsection (d) of t h i s 
Section s h a l l , except as otherwise provided by paragraph ( a ) ( i ) ( x ) and paragraph 
(f) of Section 313, bear the applicable legend regarding transfer restrictions 
appliczJsle to t i e U.S. Physical Security set forth i n Section 204. 

(f) The regist:ered holder of the U.S. Global Security may grant 
proxies and otherwise authorize any person, including Agent Members and persons 
that may hold interests through Agent Members, to take any action which a Holder 
i s entitled to take under this Indenture or the Securities. 

Section 1.7 Special Transfer Provisions. The Indenture i s amended 

and supplcunented by adding the following Section 313 to read as follows t 

Section 313. Special Transfer Provisions. 

Unless and u n t i l ( i ) an I n i t i a l Security i s sold under an effective 
Registration Statement, or ( i i ) an I n i t i a l Security i s exchanged for an Exchange 
Security i n connection with an effective Registration Statement, in each case 
pursuant to the Registrat.. ii Rights Agreement, the following provisions s h a l l 
apply: 

(a) Transfers to Non-QIB Institutional Accredited Investors. The 

following provisions s h a l l apply with respect to the registration of any 
proposed transfer of an I n i t i a l Security to any in s t i t u t i o n a l "accredited 
investor" (as defined i n Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D under 
the Securities Act) which i s not a QIB (excluding Non-U.S. Persons): 

( i ) The Security Registrar shall register the transfer of any 
I n i t i a l Security, wuether or not such I n i t i a l Security bears the 
Private Placement Legend, i f (x) the requested transfer i s at 
le a s t two years after the original issue date of the I n i t i a l 
Security or (y) the proposed transferee has delivered to the 
Security Registrar a c e r t i f i c a t e substantially i n the form set 
forth i n Section 314. 
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interest in the U.S. Global Security, upon receipt by the Security Registrar of 
(X) the documents, i f any, required by paragraph ( i ) and (y) instructions given 
in accordance with the Depositary's and the Security Registrar's procedures 
therefor, the Security Registrar s h a l l reflect on i t s books -nd records the date 
and a decrease i n the principal amount of the U.S. Global Security in an amount 
^ a l to the principal^amount of the beneficial interest i n the U.g. Global 
Security to be transferred, and the Company shall execute, and the Trustee s h a l l 
authenticate and deliver, one or more U.S. Physical Securities of l i k e tenor and 
amount. 

(b) Transfers to QIBs. The following provisions s h a l l apply with 

respect to the registration of any proposed transfer of an I n i t i a l Security to a 
QIB (excluding Non-U.S. Persons): 

( i ) I f the Security to be transferred consists of U.S. Physical 
Securities, Teaiporary Offshore Global Securities or Permanent 
Offshore Physical Securities, the Security Registrar shall 
register the transfer i f such transfer i s being made by a 
proposed t^ransferor who has checked the box provided for on the 
form of i n i t i a l Security st^ating, or has otherwise advised the 
Company and the Security Registrar in writing, that the sale has 
been ai&de in compliance with the provisions of Rule 144A to a 
transferee who has signed the c e r t i f i c a t i o n provided for on the 
form of i n i t i a l Security stating, or has otherwise advised the 
Company and the Security Registrar in writing, that i t i s 
purchasing the i n i t i a l Security for i t s own account or an 
account with respect to which i t exercises sole investment 
discretion and that i t , or the person on whose behalf i t i s 
aci-ing with respect to any such account, i s a QIB within the 
meiining of Rule 144A, and i s aware that the sale to i t i s being 
made i n reliance on Rule 144A and acknowledges that i t has 
received such information regarding the Company as i t has 
requested pursuant to Rule 144A or has determined not to request 
such information and that i t i s aware that the transferor i s 
relying upon i t s foregoing representations i n order to claim the 
exemption from registration provided by Rule 144A. 

t i l l I f the proposed transferee i s an Agent Membez, and the I n i t i a l 
Security to be transferred consists of U.S. Physical Securities, 
Temporary Offshore Global Securities or Permanent Offshore 
Physical Securities, upon receipt by the Security Registrar ot 
instructions given i n accordance with the Depositary's and the 
Security Registrar's procedures therefor, the Security Registrar 
s h a l l r e f l e c t on i t s books and records the date and an increase 
i n the principal amount of the U.S. Globil Security in an amount 
equal to the principal amount of the U.S. Physical Securities, 
Temporary Offshore Global Securities or Permanent 

amm 
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Offshore Physical Securities, as the case may be, to be 
K*?ri^ff«ied Trustee shall cancel the Physical Security 

(c) Transfers by Non-U.S. Persons Prior to Expiration of the 

• following provisions shall'Ipply'with'respect't^ 

registration of any proposed transfer of an I n i t i a l Security by a Non-u s 
Person prior to expiration of the Restricted Period: ^ ^ 

( i ) 

( i i ) 

T f*?®?"J^^y «eyistrar sha l l register the transfer of any 
I n i t i a l Security (x) i f the proposed transferee i s a Non-U S 
Person and the proposed transferor has delivered to the Security 
f^?^fo^*^,? *=«'tificate substantially i n the form set lortS i ^ ^ 
Section 315 or (y) i f the proposed transferee i s a QTP. and the 
proposed transferor has checked the box provided for on the form 
î-i'̂ ^̂ *̂ .,®*̂ "''̂ **' stating, or has otherwise advised the 
Company and the Security Registrar i n writing, that the sale has 
been made m compliance -..ith the provisions of Rule 144A to a 
transferee who has signed the c e r t i f i c a t i o n provided for on the 
form ol i n i t i a l Security stating, or has otherwise advifed the 
Company and the Security Registrar i n writing, that i t i s 
^r^^^'^t'-''^.^'^ i n i t i a l Security for i t s own account or a^ 
account with respect to which i t exercises sole investment 
discretion and that i t , or the perron on whose behalf i t i s 
acting with respect to any such ac.:ount, i s a QIB within the 
meaning of Rule 144A, and i s aware that the sale to i T l s bling 
made in reliance on Rule 144A and acknowledges that i t has 
received such information regarding the Company as i t has 
requested pursuant to Rule 144A or has determined not to reouest 
such information and that i t i s aware that the transferor i T 
f ^ l Z i ? ? "^2" ^ ^ foregoing representations i n order to claim the 
?f?T^^f?o„ f°" r«?f«tration provided by Rule 144A. Unless clause 

applicable, the Company s h a l l execute, and the 
Trustee s h a l l authenticate and deliver, one or more Temporary 
Offshore Global Securities of l i k e tenor and amount. 

I f the proposed transferee i s an Agent Member, upon receipt by 
the security Registrar of instructions given i n accordance with 
the Depositary's and the Security Registrar's procedures 
^ ^ ^ ^ ^ c ^ ^ A i , ^ Security Registrar s h a l l r e f l e c t on i t s books and 
IT Q r?o^^^ o ^ increase m the principal amount of the 
U.S. Global .Security i n an amount equal to the principal amount 
of the Temporary Offshore Global Security to be transferred, and 
^^^f^^'^^^^y .^^9i-sX^^T s h a l l cancel the Temporary Offshore 
Global Securities so transferred. 
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(d) Transfers by Non-U.S. Persons on or After Expiration of the 

Restricted Period. The following provisions s h a l l apply with respect to any 

transfer of an I n i t i a l Security by a Non-U.S. Person on o.r after expiration of 
the Restricted Peri<Kli 

( i ) (X) I f the I n i t i a l Security to be transferred i s a Permanent 
Offshore Physical Security, the Security Registr»r shall 
register such transfer, (y) i f t i e I n i t i a l Secu.rity to be 
transferred i s a Temporary Offshore Global Securi'*:Y, upon 
receipt of a ce r t i f i c a t e substantially in the form set forth i n 
Section 315 from l i e proposed transferor, the Security Registrar 
sh a l l register such transfer and (z) i n the case of either 
clause (X) or (y), unless cl?use ( i i ) below Ta applicajle, vhe 
Company s h a l l execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and 
deliver, one or more Permanent Offshore Physical Securities of 
l i k e tenor and amount. 

( i i ) I f the proposed transferee i s an Agent Member, upon receipt by 
the Security Registrar of instructions given in accordance with 
the Depositary's and the Security Registrar's procedures 
therefor, the Security Registrar s h a l l r e f l e c t on i t s books an'*-. 
records the date and an increase in t i e principal amount of the 
U.S. Global Security in an amount equal to the principal amount 
of the Temporary Offshore Global Security or of the Permanent 
Offshore Physical Security to be transferred, and the Trustee 
s h a l l cancel the Global Security so transferred. 

(e) Transfers to Non-U.S. Persons on or After Expiration of the 

Restricted Period. The following provisions s h a l l apply with respect to any 

transfer of an I n i t i a l Security to a Non-U.S. Person: 

( i ) Prior to expiration of the Restricted Period, the i.'ecurity 
Registrar s h a l l register any proposed transfer of ai. I n i t i a l 
Security to a Non-U.S. Person upon receipt of a c e r t i f i c a t e 
substantially i n the form sec forth i n Section 315 from the 
proposed transferor and t i e Company shall execute, and the 
Trustee s h a l l authenticate and make available for delivery, one 
or more Temporary Offshore Physical Securities. 

( i i ) On and after expiration of the Restricted Period, the Security 
Registrar s h a l l register any proposed transfer to any Non-U.S. 
Person (w) i f the I n i t i a l Security to be transferred i s a 
Permanent Offshore Physical security, (x) i f the I n i t i a l 
Security to be transferred i s a Temporary Offshore Global 
Security, upon receipt of a c e r t i f i c a t e substantially i n the 
form set forth i n Section 315 from the proposed transferor, (y) 
i f the I n i t i a l Security to be transferred i s a U.S. Physical 
Security or an interest i n the U.S, Global Security, upon 
receipt of a c e r t i f i c a t e 
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substantially i n the form set forth i n Section 315 from the 
proposed transferor and (z) i n the case of either clause (w) 
(X) or (y), the Company shall execute, and the Trustee s h a l l 
authenticate and deliver, one or more Permanent Offshore 
Physical Securities of l i k e tenor and amount. 

( i i i ) I f the proposed transferor i s an Agent Member holding a 
beneficial interest i n the U.S. Global Security, upon receipt by 
the Security Registrar of (x) the document, i f iny; required by 
paragraph ( i ) , and (y) instructions i n accordance with the 
Depositary's and the Security Registrar's proi:edures therefor, 
the security Registrar shall r e f l e c t on i t s books and records 
tht date and a decrease i n the principal amount of the U S 
Global security i n an amount equal to the principal amount'of 
the beneficial interest i n the U.S. Global Security to be 
transferred and the Company sh a l l execute, and the Trustee s h a l l 
authenticate and deliver, one or more Permanent Offshore 
Physical Securities of l i k e tenor and amount. 

(f) Private Placement Legend. Upon the transfer, exchange or 

replacement of Securities not bearing the Private Placement Leqend. the Securitv 
fltt^^^ft^^^^'ll ^t^^^" securities that do not bear the P r i v i ^ n i i c ^ I n f ^ 
Legend. Upon the transfer, exchange or replacement of Securities? »«arina the 
l l ' - l '^t l Legend, the S.^curity Registrar s h a l l deliver oaiy Securities 
that bear the Private Placement Legend unless either ( i ) the circumstances 
S ? ? ^ ^ ^ * ^ ^ ^ V^t f i f t h paragraph of Section 201 ( w i ^ r^Ip^ct to J t ^ n e n t 
Offshore Physical Securities) or paragraph ( a ) ( i ) ( x ) , ( d ) ( i ) o r t e ) f i l l of thi« 
^ f ^ t o n 313 e x i s t or (11) there i s delivlred to the SecSriti R e g i s t i ^ ' a S 
Opinion of Counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Company and the Trustee to the 
^f j ^ * ? ^ related restrictions on LraSsfer a r l 
required i n order to maintain compliance with the provisions of the Securities 

(g) General. By i t s acceptance of any Security bearing the Private 

Legend, each Holder of such a Security acknowledges the restrictions 
on transfer of such Security set forth i n this Indenture aid in the Private 
i i ^ r L d e I l S ? e transfer such Security only as provided 

ni-h.^ security Registrar s h a l l retain copies of a l l l e t t e r s , notices and 
J ? ^ communications received pursuant to Section 312 or t h i s Section 

l i r ; . ^ * ''^^^lu »̂ *̂ e,the right to inspect and make copies of a l l such 
le t t e r s , notices or other written communications at any reasonable time upon the 
giving of reasonable written notice to the Security Registrar. 
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Section 1.8 Form of Certi f i c a t e to Be Delivered i n Connection with 

Transfers to Non-QIB Institutional Accredited Inv.estors. The Indenture i s 

^ended'and supplemei.ted by adding the following Section 314 to read as follows: 

Section 314. Form of Certificate to Be Delivered i n Connection with 

Transfers to Non-QIB Institutional Accredited Investors. 

[date] 

THE CHASE MANHAl'TAN BANK 
Global Trust Services 
450 West 33rd Street, 15th Floor 
New York, NY 10001 

Re: CSX Corporation (the "Company") 
\ Securities due May 1, 20 (the "Securities") 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

1 We understand that the % Securities due May 1, , (ti-e 
"Offered Securities") of CSX Corporation (the "Company") have not been 
registered under the Securities Act of 193 3, as amended (the "Securities Act ), 
or any state securities laws, and may not be offered or sold except as permitted 
in the following sentence. We agree on our own behalf and on behalf of any 
investor account for which we are purchasing the Offered Securities that, i f , 
prior to the date whioh i s two years after the la t e r of the date of original 
issue of the Offered Securities and the l a s t date on which the Company or any 
a f f i l i a t e of the Company was the owner of such Offered Securities (the Resale 
Restriction Termination Date"), we decide to offer, s e l l or otherwise transfer 
any such Offered Securities, such offer, sale or transfer w i l l be made only (a) 
to the company, (b) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
securities Act c so long as the Offered Securities are eli g i b l e for resale 
pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act, to a person we reasonably 
believe i s a qualified i n s t i t u t i o n a l buyer under Rule 144A (a QIB ) that 
purchases for i t s own account or for the account of a QIB and to whom notice i s 
given that the transfer i s being made i n reliance on Rule 144A, (d) to an 
ins t i t u t i o n a l "accredited investor" within the meaning of suopara^raph (*)(!)» 
f2) (3) or (7) of Rule 501 under the Securities Act that i s acquiring Offered 
Securities for i t s own account or for the account of such an institutional 
accredited investor for investment purposes and not with a view to, or for offer 
or sale i n connection with, any distribution thereof in violation of the 
Securities Act, (e) pursuant to offers and sales to non-U.S. persons that occur 
outside the Uni-^d States within the meaning of Regulation S under the 
Securities Act or (f ) pursuant to another available exemption from the 
reaistration requirements of the Securities Act, subject i n each of the 
foregoing cases to any requirements of law that the disposition of our property 
o? the p L ^ r t y of sixlh investor account or accounts be at a l l times within our 
or their control and to compliance with any applicable state securities laws. 
The foregoing r e s t r i c t i o n s on resale w i l l 
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not apply subr-squent to the Resale Resturiction Terirination Date. I f any resale 
or other trai.^i:er of the Offered Securities i s pro;>osed to be made pursuant to 
clause (d) above prior to the Resale Resturiction Termination Date, the 
transferor s h a l l deliver a letter from the transferee substantially i n the form 
of this l e t t e r to t i e Trustee, which sh a l l provide as applicable, among other 
things, that the tra.asferee i s an institutional "accredited investor" within the 
meaning of subpara^reph (a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Rule 501 under the Securities 
Act that IS acquiring such Offered Securities for investment purposes and not 
for distribution i n violation of the Securities Act, We acknowledge on our 
behalf and on behalf of any investor account foi which we are purchasing Offered 
Securities that the Company and the Trustee reserve the right prior to any 
c f e r , sale or other t r ^ s f e r pursuant to clause (d), (e) or (f) prior to the 
Resale Restriction Termination Date of the Offered Securities to require the 
delivery of any opinion of counsel, certifications and/or other information 
satisfactory to the Company and the Trustee, we understand that the 
ce r t i f i c a t e s for any Offered Security that we receive w i l l bear a legend 
substantially to the effect of the foregoing. 

2. We are an institutional "accredited investor" within the meaning 
of subparag aph (a ) ( 1 ) , (2). (3) or (7) of Rule 501 under the Securities Act 
purchasing for our o%m account or for the account of such an i n s t i t u t i o n a l 
accredited investor," and we are acquiring the Offered Securities for 

investment purposes and not with a view to, or for offer or sale i n connection 
with, any distribution i n violatu.on of the .Securities Act and we have such 
knowledge and experience i n financial and business matters as to be capable of 
evaluating tl-.e merits and risks of our investment in the Offered Securities, and 
we and any account for which we are acting are each able to bear the economic 
ri s k s of our or i t s investment. 

3. We are acquiring the offered Securities purchased by us for our 
own accoioit (or for one or more accounts as to each of which we exercise sole 
investment discretion and have authority to make, and do make, the statements 
contained i n this l e t t e r ) and not with a view to any distribution of the offered 
Securities, subject, nevertheless, to t i e understanding that the disposition of 
our property w i l l at a l l tirne^ be and remain within our control. 

4. We acknowledge that (a) none of the Compsmy, or the I n i t i a l 
Purchasers (as defined i n the offering Memorandum dated May 1, 1997 relating to 
the Offered Securities (the "Final Memorandum")) nor any person acting on behalf 
of the Compan] or the I n i t i a l Purchasers has made any representation to us with 
respect to the Company or the offer or sale of any Offered Securities and (b) 
any informatioi. Ke desire conceming the Company and the offered Securities or 
any other matter relevant to our decision to purchase the Offered Securities 
(Jjicluding a copy of the Final Memorandum) i s or has been made available to us. 

5. We acknowledge that the Company, the Trustee, I n i t i a l Purchasers 
and others w i l l r e l y upon the truth and accuracy of t i e foregoing 
acknowledgements, representations. 
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warranties and agreements and agret, t h a t i f any of the acknowledgements, 
representations, warranties and ag.tcements made by us herein w i t h respect t o our 
purchase of the Offered Securities are no longer accurate, we s h a l l promptly 
n o t i f y the I n i t i a l Purchasers. 

Very truly yours, 

(Name of Purchaser) 

By: 

Date: 

Upon t r a n s f e r , the Offered Securities would be re g i s t e r e d i n the name 
of the new b e n e f i c i a l owner as fo l l o w s * 

Name: 

Address t 

Taxpayer ID Number: 

Section 1.9 Form of C e r t i f i c a t e t o Delivered i n Connection w i t h Transfers 

Pursuant t o Regulation S. The Indenture i s amended and supplemented by adding 

the f o l l o w i n g Section 315 t o read as fo l l o w s : 

Section 315. Form of C e r t i f i c a t e t o Be Delivered i n Connection with 

Transfers Pursuant t o Regulation S. 

[date] 

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK 
Global Trust Services 
450 West 33rd Street, 15th Floor 
New York, NY 10001 

Re: CSX Corporation (the "Company") 
% S e c u r i t i e s due May 1, 20 (the "Securities") 

Ladies and Gentlemeni 
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In connection with our proposed sale of U.S.$_ 
principal amount of the Securities, we confirm that such sale has been effected 
pursuant to and in accordance with Regulation S under the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, and, accordingly, we represent that: 

(1) the offer of the Securities was not made to a person In the United 
States; 

^ 1̂  ?^ V *̂' ̂ ""^ the buy order was originated, the transferee was 
outside the United States or we and any person acting on our behalf reasonably 
believed that the transferee was outside the United Bt^t^s; 

(3) no directed selling efforts have been au'de by us, any affiliate of 
ours, OJ any Person acting on our or their behali, in the United states in 
contravention of the requirements of Rule 903(b) or Ruie 904(b) of Regulation S, 
as applicable; and ' s^cwj-wu s>, 

(4) the transaction i s not part of. a plan or scheme to evade the 
registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933. 

You and the Company are entitled to rely upon this letter and are 
irrevocably authorized to produce this letter or a copy hereof to any interested 
party in any administrative or legal proceediugs or official inquiry with 
respect to the matters covered hereby. Terms used in this certificate have the 
meanings set forth in Regulation S. n«vc uxe 

Very truly yours, 

[Name of Transferor] 

By. 

Authorized Signature 

Section 1.10 Covenants. Section 1005 of the Indenture i s hereby 

amended and supplemented to read as follows: 

Section 1005. Liatitation on Liens on fiTtock of the Principal 

Subsidiaries, 

The Company will not, nor will i t permit any Subsidiary to, create, 
assuiie, incur or suffer to exist any Lien upon any stock or indebtedness, 
whetier owned on the date of this Indenture or hereafter acquired, of any 
Principal Subsidiary, to secure any Obligation (other than the Securities) of 
the Company, any Subsidiary or any other Person, without in any such case making 
effective provision whereby a l l of the Outstanding Securities shall be directly 
secured equally and ratably with Swch Obligation. 
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Section 1.11 Redemption of Securities. Se-ntion 1102 of the Indenture 

i s hereby amended and supplemented to read as follows: 

Section 1102. Election to Redeem; Notice to Trustee. 

The election of the Company to redeem any Securities s h a l l be evidenced 
by or pursuant to a Board Resolution. In the case of any redemption at the 
election of the CcMnpany, the Con5>any sh a l l , at least 60 days prior to the 
Redemption Date fixed by the Company, notify the Trustee of such Redemption Date 
and of the principal amount of Securities of such series to be redeemed. 

Section 1.12 Repayment at the Option of Holders. The Indenture i s 

amended and suppleoMnted by adding the following A r t i c l e Fifteen: 

ARTICLE FIFTEEN 

REPAYMENT AT THE OPTION OF HOLDERS 

lection 1501. Applicability ot A r t i c l e . Repayment of Securities of 

any series before their Stated Maturity at tl<e option of Holders thereof s h a l l 
be made in accordance with the terms of such iTecurities and (except as otherwise 
specified by the terms of such series estzOilisLed pursuant to Section 301) i n 
accordance with t h i s A r t i c l e . 

Section 1502. Repayment of Securities. Securities of any series 

subject to repayment in whole or i n part at the option of the Holders thereof 
w i l l , unless otherwis. provided i n the terms of such Securities, be repaid at a 
price equal to the n.rincipal iimount thereof, together with interest, i f any, 
thereon accrued to the Repayment Date specified i n or pursuant to the terms of 
such Securities. The Company covenants that on or before the Repayment Date i t 
w<ll deposit with the Trustee or with a Paying Agent (or, i f the Company i s 
acting as i t s own Paying Agent, segregate and hold i n trust as provided in 
Section 1003) an amount of money suffic i e n t to pay the principal (or, i f so 
provided by the terms of the Securities of any series, a percentage of the 
principal) of, and (except i f t i e Repayment Date sh a l l be an Interest Payment 
Date) accrued interest on, a l l the Securities or portions thereof, as t i e case 
may be, to be repaid on such date. 

Section 1503. Exercise of Option. Securities of any series subject to 

repayment at the option of the Holders thereof w i l l contain an "Option of Holder 
to Elect Purchase" form on such Securities. In order for any Security to be 
repaid at the option of the Holder, the Trustee must receive at t i e Place to 
Payment therefor specified i n t i e tenns cf such Security (or at such other place 
or places of which the Conip«my s h a l l from time to time notify the Holders of 
such Securities) not e a r l i e r than 60 days nor l a t e r than 30 days prior to the 
Repayment Date (1) the Security so providing for such repayment together with 
the "Op i o n of Holder to E l e c t Purchase" form duly completed by the Holder (or 
by the Holder's 
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attorney duly authorized in writing) or (2) a telegram, facsimile transmission 
or a l e t t e r from a member of a national securities exchange, or the National 
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. ("NASD"), or a commercial bank or tr u s t 
company i n the United states setting forth the naaie of the Holder of Security, 
the principal amount of the Security, the amount of the Security to be repaid 
the c e r t i f i c a t e number or a description of the tenor and terms of the Security, 
a statement that the option to elect repayment i s being exercised thereby and a 
^ f f ^ ^ ^ . ^ ? ^ the Security to be repaid, together with the duly completed form 
entitled "Option of Holder to Elect Purchase", w i l l be received by the Trustee 
not later than the f i f h Business Day after the date of such telegram, facsimile 
transmission or l e t t e r ; provided, however, that such telegram, facsimile 
transmission or l e t t e r shall .nly be effective i f such '>ecurity and form duly 
completed are received by tae Trustee by such f i f t h Business Day. I f l e s s than 
the entire principal amount of such Security i s to be repaid i n accordance with 
the terms of such Security, the principal amount of such Security to be repaid, 
in increments of the minimum denomination for Securities of such series, and the 
denomination or denominations of the Security or Securities to be issued to the 
Holder for the portion of the principal amount of such Security surrendered that 
i s not to be repaid, must be specified. The principal amoiuit of any Security 
providing for repayment at the option of the Holder thereof may not be repaid i n 
E^n^H £: following such repayment, the unpaid principal amount of such Security 
would be l e s s than the minimum authorized denomination of Securities of the 
h^'nrLfLn^^^K"''^ Security to be repaid i s a part. Except as otherwise ma-
^ f i ^ f ^ ^ . ^ ^ °^ '̂'y Security providing for repayment at the optioii 
of the Holder thereof, exercise of the repayment option by the Holder s h a l l be 
irrevocable unless waived by the Company. u «jr uoxaer snaxi oe 

Section 1504. When Securities Presented for Repayment Become Due and 

securities of any series providing f o i ' i e p a ^ ^ t ' a t the'option 

of the Holclers thereof shall have been surrendered as provided in this A r t i c l e 
and as provided by or pursuant to the terms of such Securities, such Securities 
^ L ^ ^ f P°^l^°?^iJ^w'*°^f,,*^ may be, to be repaid sh a l l become due and 
payable and sha l l be paid by the Company on the Repayment Date therein 
specified, and on and after such BepaiTnent Date (unless the Company s h a l l 
default i n the payment of such Securities on such Repayment Date) such 
Securities so to be repaid shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of anv 
such Security for repayment in accordance with such provisions, the principal 
amount of such Security so to be repaid shall be paid by the Company, together 
with accrued interest, i f any, to the Repayment Date; piovided that, 
installments of interest, i f any, whose Stated Maturity i s on or prior to the 
Repayment Date s h a l l be payable (but without interest thereon, unless the 
Company s h a l l default i n the payment thereof) to the Holders of such Securities, 
or one or more Predecessor Securities, registered as such at the close of 
business on the relevant Record Dates according to their terms and the 
provisions of Section 307. 

w.. the principal amount of any Security surrendered for repayment s h a l l 
not be so xepaid upon surrender thereof, such principal amount (together with 
int-cxcst/ JLI Amŷ  
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thereon ncczued to such Repayment Date) sh a l l , u n t i l paid, bear interest from 
the RepaysK^nt Date at the rate of interest set forth i n such Security. 

Section 1505. Securities Repaid i n Part. Upon surrender of any 

Registered Security which i s to be repaid in part only, the Company s h a l l 
execute and the Trustee sh a l l authenticate and deliver to the Bolder of such 
Security, without service charge ana at the expense of the Company, a new 
Registered Security or Securities of the same series, of any authorized 
denomination specified by the Holder, i n an aggregate principal aunount equal to 
and in exch2Uige for the portion of the principal of such Security so surrendered 
which i s not to be repaid. 

Section 1506. Compliance with Exchange Act. in connection with any 

Repayment of Securities pursuant to this Article, the Company w i l l comply with 
the provisions of Rule 13e-4, Rule 14e-l and any other tender offer rules under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, i f required, and w i l l f i l e Schedule 13E-4 
or any other schedule, i f required. 

ARTICLE TWO 

Section 2.1 Incorporation of Indenture. A l l the provisions of this 

Second Supplemental Indenture s h a l l be deemed to be incorporated in, and made a 
part of, the Indenture; and t i e Indenture, as supplemented by this Second 
Supplemental Indenture, shall be read, taken imd construed as one and the same 
instrument and s h a l l be binding upon a l l the Holders of Securities. 

Section 2.2 Counterparts. This Second Supplemental Indenture may be 

executed i n any number of counterparts, each of which so executed s h a l l be 
deemed to be an original, but a l l such counterparts shall togetier constitute 
but one and same instrument. 

Section 2.3 Successors and Assigns. A l l covenants and agreements in 

this Second Supplemental Indenture by the Company and the Trustee s h a l l bind 
their respective successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not. 

Section 2.4 Separability Clause, in case any provision i n th i s Second 

Supplemental Indenture sh a l l be invalid, i l l e g a l or unenforceable, the va l i d i t y , 
legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions sh a l l not in any way be 
affected or impaired thereby. 

Section 2.5 Benefits of Second Supplemental Indenture. Nothing i n 

this Second Supplemental indenture, express or implied, sh a l l give 2uiy person, 
other than the parties hereto and their successors hereunder and the Holders of 
the May 1997 Securities, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy or 
claim under this Second Supplemental Indenture. This Second Supplemental 
Indenture applies only to the May 1997 Securities. 
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Except as expressly supplemented or amended as set forth i n t h i s Second 
Supplemental Indenture, the Indenture i s hereby r a t i f i e d and confirmed, and a l l 
the terms, provisions and conditions thereof s h a l l be and continue i n f u l l force 
and effect. The Trustee accepts the trusts created by the Indenture, as amended 
and supplemented by this Second Supplemental Indenture, and agrees to perform 
the same upon the terms ami conditions i n the Indenture as amended and 
supplemented by t h i s Second Supplemental Indenture. 

Section 2.6. Defined Terms. A l l terms used in this Second 

Supplemental Indenture which are defined in the Indenture and not otherwise 
defined herein s h a l l have the mezmings assigned to them in the Indenture. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the p a r t i e s hereto have caused t h i s Second 
Supplemental Indenture t o be duly executed, and t h e i r respective corporate st^als 
t o he hereunto a f f i x e d and att e s t e d , a l l as of the day and year f i r s t above 
w r i t t e n . 

CSX CORPORATION 

[Seal] By: /s/ David D. Owen 
Naaie: David D. Owen 
T i t l e : Managing Director--Corporate Finance 

A t t e s t : 
/s/ Alan A. Rudnick 

Corporate Secretary 

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, as Trustee 

By: /s/ Ronald J. Halleran 
Name: Ronald J. Halleran 
T i t l e : Second Vice President 

Brendan P. G i l l i y a n 
Notary Public, State of New York 

No. 01G15073591 
State of New York Q u a l i f i e d i n New York County 
County of ss.j Commission Expires, February 24, 1999 

On the 6 t i day of May, 1997, before me personally came David D. Owen 
to me known, ^rtio, being by me duly swom, d i d depose and say tha t he i s Managing 
Director--Corporate Finance of CSX Corporation, one of the corporations 
described i n and which executed the foregoing instnunent; t h a t he knows the seal 
of said corporation; t h a t the seal a f f i x e d t o said instrument i s such corporate 
seal; t h a t i t was so a f f i x e d by a u t h o r i t y of the Board of Directors of said 
corporation, and t h a t he signed his name thereto by l i k e a u t h o r i t y . 

( N o t a r i a l Seal) / s / Brendan P. G i l l i g a n 
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ANNEX I 

THIS SECimiTY HAS NOT BEEN PFGISTERED UNDER THE SECt RITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACl OR ANY STATE SECURIT ES LAWS OR ANY OTHER 
APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAW. HtlTHER THIS SECURITY NCR ANY INTEREST OR 
PARTICIPATION HEREIN MAY BE REOFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGr£D, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED, 
ENCUMBERED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCF OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR 
UNLESS SUCH TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SU'.JECT TO, SUCH REGISTRATION 
THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HERi'OF AGREES TO OFFER, SELL OR 
OTHERWISE TRANSFER THIS SECURITY PRIOR TO THE DA"E (THE "RESALE RESTRICTION 
TERMINATION DATE") WHICH IS TWO YEARS AFTER THE LATER OF THE OPIGINAL ISSUANCE 
DATE HEREOF AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH THE COMPANY OR ANY AFFJ, XATE OF THE 
COMPANY WAS THE OWNER OF THIS SECURITY (OR AN̂ ; PREDECESSOR OF THIS SECURITY) 
ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY, (B) PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WHICH HAS BEEN 
DECLARED EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECimiTIES ACT, (C) SO LONG AS THIS SECURITY IS 
ELIGIBLE FOR RESALE PURSIVJIT TO RULE 144A UNDER THE SEClHtlTIES ACT ("RULE 
144A"), TO A PERSON IT REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" 
(AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A) THAT PURCHASES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT 
OF A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER TO WHOM NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT THE TRANSFER IS 
BEING MADE IN RELIANCE ON RULE 144A, (D) PURSUANT TO OFFERS AND SALES TO NON-
U.S. PERSONS THAT OCCUR OUTSIDE THE UNITEr. STATES WITHIN THE MEANING OF 
REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, ,E, TO AN INSTITUTIONAI "ACCREDITED 
INVESTOR" WITHIN THE MEANING OF SUBPAR.AGRAPH ( a ) ( 1 ) , ( 2 ) , (3) OR (7) OF RULE 501 
UIIDER THE SECURITIES ACT THAT IS ACQUIRING THTT <5ECintIT'V FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR 
FOR THE ACCOUNT OF SUCH AN INSTITUTIONAL «.„ckx,Oi.TED INVESTOR, FOR INVESTMENT 
PURPOSES AND NOT WITH A VIEW TO, OR FOR OFFER OR SAI.E IN CONNECTION WITH, MTi 
DI.<>TRIBUTION IN VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES ACT, OR (F) PURSUANT TO ANY OTHER 
AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION BEQUIRICMENTS UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, 
SUBJECT TO THE RIGHT OF THE TRUSTEE AND THE COMPANY PRIOR. TO ANY SUCH OFFER, 
SALE OR TRANSFL-F ( i ) PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (D), (E) OR (F) TO REQUIRE THE DELIVERY 
OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, CERTIFICATIONS AND/OR OTHER INFORMATION SATISFACTORY 
TO EACH OF THEM AND (11) PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (E), TO REQUIRE THAT THE TRANSFEROR 
DELIVER TO THE TRUSTEE A LETTER FROM THE TRANSFEREE .3UBSTAirriAI.LY IN THE FORM OF 
ANNEX A TO THE OFFERING MEMORANDUM DATED MAY 1, 1997. SVCB HOLDER FURTHER 
AGREES THAT IT WILL DELIVER TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THIS SECURITY IS TRANSFERRED 
A NOTICE SUBSTANTIAILY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND, IN CONNECTION WITH ANY 
TRANSFER OF THIS SECintlTY 
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WITHIN THE TIME PERIOD REFFKREL TO ABOVE, THE HOLDER MUST CHECK THE APPROPRIATE 
BOX SET FORTH HEREON RELATING TO THE MANNER OF SUCH TRANSFER AND SUBMIT THIS 
SECURITY TO THE TRUSTEE, AS USi:D HEREIN, THE TERMS "OFFSHORE TRANSACTION", 
"UNITED STATES" AND "U.S. PERSON" HAVE THE MEANINGS GIVEN TO THEM BY REGULATION 
S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT. THE INDENTURE CONTAINS A PROVISION REQUIRING THE 
TRUSTEE TO REFUSE TO REGISTER ANY TRANSFER OF THIS SECURITY ir. VIOLATION OF THE 
FOREGOING RESTRICTIONS. 

UNLESS THIS SECURITY IS PRESENTED BY AN AinBORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE 
DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGI.«TRATION OF 
TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SECIHIITY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME 
OF CEDE £ CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND ANY PAYMENT HEREON IS MADE 
TO CFDE « CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST "OMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER 
USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL SINCE THE 
REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE t CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN, 

TRANSFERS OF THIS SECl^tlTY SHALL bE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS IN WHOLE, BUT NOT IN 
PART, TO NOMINEES OF CEDE i CO. OR TO A SUCCESSOR THEREOF OR SUCH SUCCESSOR'S 
NOMINEE AND TRANSFERS OF PORTIONS OF THIS SECinilTY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS 
MADE IN ACCORDA.:CE WITH THE RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH IN SECTION 313 OF THE 
INDENTURE. 
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CSX CORPORATION 

% DEBENTUP:: DUE 20 

No, [CUSIP][CINS]( 
[ISIN] [I 

This security (the "Security") i s one of a duly authorized issue of 
securities (herein called the "Securities") of CSX Corporation, a Virginia 
corporation (hereinafter called the "Company," which term includes any successor 
corporation under the Indenture hereinafter referred to), issued an<' to be 
issued in one or more series under an indenture, unlimited as to aggregate 
principal amount, dated as of August 1, 1990 between the Company and The Chasf 
Manhattan Bank, Trustea (herein called the "Trustee," which term includes any 
successor trustee under the Indenture (as hereinafter defined)), as Jupplemeited 
by a F i r s t Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 15, 1991 and a Second 
Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 6, 1997, to which indenture and a l l 
indentures supplemental thereto (the indenture, as supplemented being herein 
called the "Indenture") reference i s hereby made for a statement of the 
respective rights thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the Holders of the 
Securities and of the terms upon which the Securities are, and are to be, 
authenticated and delivered. This Security i s one of the series designated on 
the face hereof, which series has been issued i n an aggregate i n i t i a l principal 
amount of $ — ([DOLLARS]). This Security represents an aggregate 
i n i t i a l principal amount of $ ((DOLLARS]) (as adjusted from time 

in accordance with the terms and provisions hereof and as set forth on 
Exhibit A hereto, the "Principal Amount") of the Securities of such series, with 

r5?®^®^^ Payment Dates, date of original issuance, and date of Maturity 
specified herein and bearing interest ^̂ n said Principal Amount at the interest 
rate specified herein. 

The Company, for value received, hereby promises to pay to 
—__ , or i t s registered assigns, the principal sum of $ 
([DOLLARS]) on May 1, 20 , and to pay interest (computed on t i e basis of a 360-
day year of twelve 30-day months) thereon from the Issue Date or from the most 
recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided 
lor, oj, i f the date of this Security i s an Interest Payment Date to which 
interest has been paid or duly provided for, then from the date hereof, 
semiannually i n arrears on May 1 and November 1 i n each year. 
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commencing Noveinber 1, 1997, and at Maturity at the rate of % per annum, 
until the principal hereof is paid or duly made available for payment. The 
Company shall pay interest on overdue principal and premium, if any, and {co the 
extent lawful) interest on overdue installments of interest at the rate per 
annum borne by the Security. The interest so payable, and punctually paid or 
duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in such 
Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Security (or one or more 
Predecessor Securities) is registered at the close of business on the Regular 
Record Date for such intczest, which shall be the April 15 or October 15 
(whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, next preceding such 
Interest Payment Date. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any such 
interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for shall forUiwith cease to be 
payable to tie Holder on such Regular Record Date and may be paid to the Person 
in whose name this Security (or one or more Predecessor Securities) is 
registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date to be fixed by tie 
Trustee for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, notice whereof shall be 
given to the Holder of this Security not less than 10 days prior to such Special 
Record Date, or may be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not 
inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which the 
Security of this series may be listed, and upon such notice as may be required 
by such exchange, all as more fully provided in such Indenture. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, interest payable on this Security at Maturity will be payable to 
the person to whoni principal is payable. 

[Additional Interest (the "Special Interest") s h a l l become payable i n 
respect of the Security as follows, i f any of the following events occur with 
respect to such Security (each such event in clauses ( i ) through (iv) below, a 
"Registration Default"): 

( I ) i f a registration statement for an exchange'offer (the "Exchange 
Offer") under the Securities Act with respect to the Securities (an "Exchange 
Offer Registration Statement") i s not f i l e d with thi Commission on or prior to 
150 days after the Issue Date; 

( I I ) i f neither the Exch2uige Offer Registration Statement i s declared 
effective nor ( i f the Exchange Offer i s not permitted for the reasons described 
i n the Registration Rights Agreement dated as 1 May 6, 1997 among the Company 
and the I n i t i a l Purchasers (the ""tegistration Rights Agreement")) a shelf 
registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to the Securities 
(the "Shelf Registration Statement") i s f i l e d with the Commission or or prior to 
180 Days after the Issue Date; 

( i l l ) i f one or more of the Exchemge Offers i s not consummated with 
respect to the Securities of th i s series or the Shelf Registration Statement i s 
declared effective on or prior to 210 days after the Issue Date; or 

(i v ) i f , after 210 days after the Issue Date, and after the shelf 
Registration .statement i s declared effectJ.ve, t i e Compaay f a i l s to keep the 
Shelf Regi stration Statement effective (except as permitted by the proviso to 
Section 3(b) of the Registration Rights 
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Agreement) then from such time as the Shelf Registration Statement i s no longer 
effective until the e a r l i e r of ( i ) the date t i a t the Shelf Registration 
Statement i s again deemed effective and ( i i ) the date that i s the e a r l i e s t of 
(x) the second ^mniversary of the Issue Date (or u n t i l the f i r s t anniversary of 
the effective date of t i e Shelf Registration Statement i f the Shelf Registration 
Statement i s f i l e d at the request of the I n i t i a l Purchaser), (y) the time when 
the Security registered under the Shelf Registration St-.atement can be sold by 
non-Affiliates pursuwt to Rule 144 under the Act without any limitations under 
clauses ( c ) , (e), (f) and (h) of Rule 144, or (z) the date as of which a l l of 
such Securities are sold pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement. 

The holder of t h i s Security i s entitled to the benefits of the 
Registration Rights Agreement. 

Special Interest s h a l l accrue on the Security, over and above the 
interest rate set forth i n the Indenture applicable to such Security follotring 
the occurrence of each Registration Default set forth in clauses ( i ) , (11), 
( i i i ) and (iv) above from and including the next day following each such 
Registration Default, i n each case at a rate equal to 0.25\. per annum of the 
principal amount of such Security, provided, however, that the aggregate amount 
of Special Interest payable w i l l i n no event exceed 0.25% per emnum of the 
principal amount of the Security. The Special Interest attributeOile to each 
Registration Default s h a l l cease to accrue ifrom the date such Registration 
Default i s cured. Upon (a) the f i l i n g of the Exchange Offer Registration 
Statement after the period described i n clause ( i ) above, (b) the effectiveness 
of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement or the f i l i n g of the Shelf 
Registration statement after the period described in clause (11) above or (c) 
the consummation of the Exchange Offer for such Security or the effectiveness of 
a Shelf Registration Statement, as the case may be, after the period described 
in clause ( i i i ) above. Special Interest payable on such Security as a result of 
the applicable Registration Default w i l l cease to accrue. For purposes of the 
preceding sentence, the curing of a Registration Default by the means described 
in clause (b) above s h a l l constitute a cure of the Registration Defaults 
described in clauses ( i ) and ( i i ) above, and the curing of a Registration 
Default by the means described i n clause (ci above sh a l l constitute a cure of 
the Registration Defaults described in clauses ( i ) , ( i i ) and ( i i i ) above. 

Any amounts of Special Interest due pursuant to the foregoing 
paragraphs w i l l be payable in cash on May 1 and November 1 of each year to the 
holders of rfccord on the preceding April 15 and October 15, respectively.]* 

This Security i s exchangeable i n whole or from time to time in part 
for definitive Registered Securities of this series only as provided i n this 
paragraph. I f (x) the U.S. Depository with respect to the Securities of this 
series (the "U.S. Depository") notif i e s 

Ctaly for a Security not registered under the Securities Act. 
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the Company that i t i s unwilling, iinable or ineligible to co itinue as U.S. 
Depository for this Security or i f at any time the U.S. Depoi itory ceases to be 
a clearing agency registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, (y) the Compemy in i t s sole discretion detennines that this Security 
s h a l l be exchangeable for definitive Registered Securities and executes ?ind 
delivers to the Trustee a Company Order providing that this Security shall be so 
exchangeable or (z) there s h a l l have happened and be continuing an Event of 
Default or any event which, after notice or lapse of time, or both, would become 
an Event of Default with respect to the Securities of the series of which this 
Security i s a part, this Security or any portion hereof s h a l l , i n the case of 
clause (X) above, be exchanged for definitive Registered Securities of this 
s e r i e s , and in the case of clauses (y) and (z) above, be exchangeable for 
definitive Registered Securities of this series, provided that the definitive 
Security so issued in exchange for this Security shall be i n authorized 
denominations and be of l i k e tenor and of an equal aggregate principal amount as 
the portion of the Security to be excheuiged, and provided further that, in the 
case of clauses (y) and (z) above, definitive Registered Secur:.ties of this 
series w i l l be issued i n exchange for this Security, or any po.'tion hereof, only 
i f such definitive Registered Securities were requested by written notice to the 
Security Registrar by or on behalf of a Person who i s a beneficial owner of an 
interest herein given through the Holder hereof. Any definitive Registered 
Security of thi.s series issued i n exchange for this Security, or any portion 
hereof, s h a l l be registered in the name or names of such Person or Persons as 
t i e Holder hereof shall instruct the Security Registrar. Except as provided 
above, owners of beneficial interests in this Security w i l l not be entitled to 
receive physical delivery of Security in definitive form and w i l l not be 
considered the Holders thereof for any purpose under the Indenture. 

Any exchange of this Security or portion hereof for one or more 
definitive Registered Securities of this series w i l l be made at t i e New York 
office of the Security Registrar. Upon exchange of any portion of this Security 
for one or more definitive Registered Securities of this series, the Trustee 
sh a l l endorse Exhibit A of this Security to r e f l e c t the reduction of i t s 
Principal Amount by an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the 
definitive Registered Securities of this series so issued in exchange, whereupon 
the Pr.Lncipal Amount hereof s h a l l be reduced for a l l purposes by the zunount so 
exchiupged and noted. Except as otherwise provided herein or i n t i e Indenture, 
until exchanged i n f u l l for one or more definitive Registered Securities of t h i s 
s e r i e s , t h i s Security s h a l l in a l l respects be subject to and entitled to the 
sajne benefits and conditions under the Indenture as a duly authenticated and 
delivered definitive Registered Security of this series. 

The principal and any interest in respect of emy portion of this 
Security payable i n respect of an Interest Payment Date or at the Stated 
Maturity thereof, l u each case occurring prior to the exchange of such portion 
for a definitive Registered Security or Securities of this series, w i l l be paid, 
as provided herein, to l i e Holder hereof which w i l l undertake i n such 
circumstances to credit any such principal and interest received by i t i n 
respect of t h i s Security to the respective accounts of the Persons who are the 
beneficial owners of such interests on such Interest Payment Date or at Stated 
Maturity. I f a definitive 
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Registered Security or Registered Securities of this series are issued i n 
exchange for any portion of t i l s Security after the close of business at the 
office or agency where such exchange occurs on (1) any Regular Record Date and 
before the opening of business at such office or agency on the relevemt Interest 
Payment Date, or ( i i ) any Special Record Date and before the opening of business 
at such office or agency on the related proposed date for payment of Defaulted 
Interest, then interest or Defaulted Interest, as the case may be, w i l l not be 
payable on such Interest Payment Date or proposed date for payment, as the case 
may be, in respect of such Registered Security, but w i l l be payable on such 
Interest Payment Date or proposed date for payment, as the case may be, only to 
the Holder hereof, and the Holder hereof w i l l undertake in such circumstances to 
credit such interest to the account or accounts of the Persons who were the 
beneficial owners of such portion of this Security on such Regular Record Date 
or Special Record Date, as the case may be. 

Payment of l i e principal of and any such interest on this Security 
w i l l be made at the offices of The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Paying Agent, i n the 
Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, or at such other office or agency of 
the Company as may be designated by i t for such purpose i n the Borough of 
Memhattan, The City of New York, in such coin or currency of the United States 
of America as at the time of payment sha l l be legal tender for the payment of 
public and private debts by check mailed to the registv'tred Holders thereof; 
provided, however, that at the option of the Holder, payment of interest may be 

made by wire transfer of ijnmediately fu..'.i to an account of the Person entitled 
hereto as such account s h a l l be provided to the Security Registrar and sha l l 
appear in the Security Register. 

(The Compiuay aiay be required to repurchase the Securities of this 
series, i n whole or i n part ( t i e "Put Option"), on May 1, 20 , (the "Put Option 
Exercise Date") at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount 
tendered by t i e Holder, plus accrued interest, i f any, to the Put Option 
Exercise Date. On or before the Put Option Exercise Date, the Company sha l l 
deposit with the Trustee money sufficient to pay the principal of and any 
interest accrued on the such Securities to be tendere'. for repayment. On and 
after t i e Put Option Exercise Date, interest w i l l ceaise to accrue on such 
Securities or any portion thereof tendered for repayiient. 

In the event of repurchase of this Security i n part only, a new 
Security or Securities of this series and of l i k e tenor lor the unredeemed 
portion hereof w i l l be issued i n the name of the Holder hereof upon the 
cancellation hereof. 

A holder must provide the Company with notice of i t s intention to 
exercise the Put Option during the period from and including March 1, 20 
through and including A p r i l 1, 20 . Such notice, once given, w i l l be 
irrevocable unless waived by the Company.] 

[The Securities of th i s series are subject to redemption on or after 
May 1, 2007, i n whole or i n part, at the election of Uie Company, at the 
fol.i.owing Redemption 
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P r i c e s (expressed as percentages of the p r i n c i p a l amount): i f redeemed dur ing 
the 12-month p e r i o d beginning May 1 of the years i n d i c a t e d , 
<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

YEAR 

<S> 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 and t h e r e a f t e r 

REDEMPTION PRICE 

<C> 
104. 
103. 
103. 
102. 
102. 
102. 
101. 
101. 
100. 
100. 
100. 

150% 
735 
320 
905 
410 
075 
660 
245 
830 
415 
000 

</TABLE> 

in each case with accrued interest to the Redemption Date; provided, however, 
that installments of interest on th i s security whose Stated Maturity i s on or 
prior to such Redemption Date w i l l be payable to t i e Holder ot this Security, or 
one or more Predecessor Securities, of record at the close of business on the 
relevant Regular Record Dates referred to on the facf hereof a l l as provided i n 
the Indenture. Notice of redemp .ion w i l l be given by mail to Holders of 
Securities, not le s s tian 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for 
redemption, a l l as provided in the Indenture. In the event of redemption of 
this Security i n part only, a new Security or Securities of this series and of 
like tenor for the unredeemed portion hereof w i l l be issued i n t i e name of the 
Holder hereof upon the cancellation hereof.] 

I f an Event of Default with respect to Securities of this series s h a l l 
occur and be continuing, the principal of the Securities of this series 
(including t h i s Security and the interests represented hereby) may be declared 
due and payable i n the manner and with the effect provided i n the Indenture. 
Upon payment ( i ) of the amount of principal so declared due and payable and ( i i ) 
of interest on any overdue principal and overdue Interest (in each case to the 
extent that l i e payment of such interest shall be legally enforceable), a l l of 
the Company's obligations in respect of the pajnnent of the principal of and any 
interest on the Securities of this series (including this Security and the 
interests represented hereby) s h a l l terminate. 

The Indenture contains provisions foi defeasance at any time of (a) 
the entire indebteiness of the Company on this Security and (b) certain 
r e s t r i c t i v e covep:ints and the related defaults and Events of Default, upon 
compliauice with certain conditions set forth therein, which provisions s h a l l 
apply to t h i s Security. 
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The provisions of Arti c l e Fourteen of the Indenture apply to 
Securities of this series. 

The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, 
the amendment thereof and the modification of the rights and obligations of the 
Company and the rights of the Holders of the Secuiities of each series to be 
affected under the Indenture at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the 
consent of the Holders of a majority i n aggregate principal amount of the 
Securities at the time Outstanding of each series affected thereby. The 
Indenture also contains provisions pennitting the Holders of specified 
percentages in aggregate principal amount of the securities of each series at 
the time Outstanding on behalf of the Holders of a l l Securities of such series 
to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and 
certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such 
consent or waiver by the Holder of th i s Security shall be conclusive and binding 
upon such Holder and upon a l l future Holders of this Security and the Persons 
who are beneficial owners of interests represented hereby, and of any Security 
issued i n exch«uige herefor or in l i e u hereof whether or not notation of such 
consent or waiver i s made upon this Security. 

As set forth i n, and subject to, the provisions of the Indenture, no 
Holder of any Security of this series w i l l have any right to institute any 
proceeding with respect to the Indenture or for any remedy thereunder, unless 
such Holder sh a l l have previously given to the Trustee written notice of a 
continuing Event of Default with respect to the Securities of this series, the 
Holders of not less than 25% i n aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding 
Securities of this series shall have made written request, and offered 
reasonable indemnity, to the Trustee to institute such proceeding as trustee, 
and the Trustee sh a l l not have received from the Holders of a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Securities of this series a 
direction inconsistent with such request and shall have failed to inst i t u t e such 
proceeding within 60 days; provided, however, that such limitations do not apply 
to a s u i t instituted by the Holder hereof for the enforcement of payment of the 
principal of (and premium, i f any) or interest on this Security on or after the 
respective due dates expressed herein. 

Ho reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Security 
or of the Indenture s h a l l alter or impair the obligation of the Company, frtiich 
i s absolute and unconditional to pay the principal of (and premium, i f any) and 
interest on this Security at the time, place and rate, and in the coin or 
currency, herein prescribed. 

As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations 
therein and herein set forth, the transfer of Registered Securities of the 
series of which this Security i s a part may be registered on the Security 
Register of the Company, upon surrenr'er of such Securities for registration of 
transfer at the office of the Securi'.y Registrar, duly endorsed by, or 
accompanied by a written instrument >f transfer i n fonn satisfactory to the 
Company and the Security Registrar duly executed by the Holder thereof or his 
attomey duly authoriZ'sd in 
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writing, and thereupon one or two more new Securities of this Series and of l i k e 
tenur, of authorized denominations and for the same aggregate principal amount, 
w i l l be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

No service charge s h a l l be made for any such registration of transfer 
or exchange of Securities as provided above, but the Company may require payment 
of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmcctal charge payable in 
connection therewith. 

Prior to due presentment of t h i s Security for registration of 
transfer, the Company, the Trustee and any agent of tho. Company or the Trustee 
may treat the Person in whose name this Security i s re<^lstered as the o%mer 
hereof for a l l purposes, whether or not t h i s Security b^ overdue, and neither 
the Company, the Trustee nor any such agent sh a l l be affected by notice to the 
contrary. 

The Securities of t h i s series of which this Security i s a part are 
issuable only in registered form without coupons, in denominations of $1,000.00 
and any integral multiple thereof. As provided in the Indenture and subject to 
cer^^aio limitations therein set forth, the Securities of this series are 
exchangeable for a l i k e aggregate principal amount of Securities of this series 
and of l i k e tenor of a different authorized denomination, as requested by the 
Holder surrendering the same. 

The Securities of t h i s series s h a l l be dated the date of their 
authentication. 

A l l terms used i n t h i s Security which are defined i n the Indenture 
shall have the meanings assigned to them i n the Indenture. 

Unless the c e r t i f i c a t e of authentication hereon has been executed by 
or on beha.''f of The Chase Manhattan Bank, the Trustee under the Indenture, or 
i t s successor thereunder, by the manual signature of one of i t s authorized 
officers, t h i s Security s h a l l not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture 
or be v a l i d or obligatory for any purpose. 

mm 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly 
executed under i t s corporate seal. 

Dated: May , 1997 

CSX CORPORATION 

[Seal] 

Attest: 

By: 

Maaet David D. Owen 
T i t l e : Managing Director--Corporate Finzmce 

Corporate Secretary 

TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This i s one of the Securities of a series issued under the Indenture 
described herein. 

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, as Trustee 

By: 

Authorized Officer 
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(FORM OF TRANSFER NOTICE] 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned registered holder hereby s e l l ( s ) , 
assign(s) and transfer(s) unto 

Insert Taxpayer Identifj.cat:ion No. 

Ple a s e p r i n t or typewrite name and address including zip code of assignee 

the'withinNote and a l l rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably constituting and 
appointing 

attomey to tiransfer said Note on 

the books of the Company K h f u l l power of substitution in the premises. 

[THE FOLLOWING PROVISION TO BE INCLUDED 
OH ALL SECURITIES OTHER THAN EXCHANGE SECURITIES, 

OFFSHORE GLOBAL SECURITIES AND 
OFFSHORE PHYSICAL SECtntlTIES] 

In connection with any transfer of this Note occurring prior to the 
date which i s the e a r l i e r of ( i ) the date of an effective Registration Statement 
or ( i i ) the end of the period referred to in Rule 144(k) under the Securities 
Act, the undersigned confirms that without u t i l i z i n g any general s o l i c i t a t i o n or 
general advertising that: 

[Check One] 

f 1 (a) t h i s Note i s being transferred in compliance with the exea^tlon frcw 
registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, provided by Rule 144A 
thereunder. 

ox 

r ^ (b) t h i s Note i s being transferred other than i n accordance with (a) above 
and*documents ars being furnished which comply with the conditions of transfer 
set forth i n th i s Note and the Indenture. 

I f none of the foregoing boxes i s checked, the Trustee or the Security 
Registrar s h a l l not be obligated to register t h i s Note in the name of any Person 
other than the Holder hereof unless and until the conditions to any such 
transfer of registration set forth herein and i n Section 313 of the Inden^ure 
sha l l have been s a t i s f i e d . 

Date: 
NOTICE: The signature to this assignawnt 
must correspond with the name as written 
upon the face of the within-mentioned 
instru,jent i n every particular, without 
alteration or any change whatsoever. 
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TO BE COMPLETED BY PURCHASER IF (a) A»»CVE IS CHECKED, 

The undersigned represents and warrants t i a t i t i s purchasing this 
Note for i t s own account or an account with respect to which i t exercises sole 
investment discretion and that i t and any such account i s a "qualified 
institutional buyer" within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, and i s aware that the sale to i t i s being made in reliance on 
Rule 144A and acknowledges that i t has received such information regarding the 
Company as the undersigned has requested pursuant to Rule 144A or has determined 
not to request such information and that i t i s aware that t i e transferor i s 
relying upon the undersigned's foregoing representations i n order to claim the 
exemption from registration provided by Rule 144A. 

Dated: 

NOTICE: To be executed by an executive 
officer 
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(OPTION OF HOLDER TO ELECT PXmCBASE 

If you wish to have a l l or a portion of this Security purchased by the 
Company pursuant to Article Fifteen of the Indenture, state the amount (in 
principal amount): $ _ • 

Date: 

Your Signature: 

(Sign exactly as your name appears elsewhere on this Security) 

Signature Guarantee: ] 
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EXHIBIT 4.4 

EXECUTION COPY 

CSX CORPORATION 

$2,500,000,000 

$350, 000, 000 7 .05% Debentures Due 2002 
$300, 000, 000 7 .25% Debentures Due 2004 
$450, 000, 000 7 .45% Debentures Due 2007 
"400, 000, 000 7 .90% Debentures Due 2017 
$500, 000, 000 7 .95% Debentures Due 2027 
$100, 000, 000 6 .95% Debentures Due 2027 
$250, 000, 000 / .25% Debentures Due 2027 
$150, 000, 000 8 .30% Debentures Due 2032 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Dated: May 1, 1997 
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$350, 
$300, 
$450, 
$400, 
$500, 
$100, 
$250, 
$150, 

0 0 0 , 0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 0 0 0 

CSX CORPORATION 

$2,500,000,000 

7.05% Debentures Due 2002 
7.25% Debentures Due 2004 
7,45% Debentures Due 2007 
7.90% Debentures Due 2017 
7.95% Debentures Due 2027 
6.95% Debentures Due 2027 
7.25% Debentures Due 2027 
8.30% Debentures Due 2032 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

May 1, 1997 

Salomon Brothers Inc 
As Representative of the I n i t i a l Purchasers 
Seven World Trade Center 
New York, New York 10048 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

CSX CORPORATION, a V i r g i n i a corporation (the "Company"), proposes t o 
iiisue and s e l l t o the p a r t i e s named i n Schedule I hereto (the " I n i t i a l 
?^ff**^S?^*")' a c t i n g as representative (the "Representative"). 
$350,000,000 p r i n c i p a l eunount of i t s 7.05% Debentures due 2002 (the "2002 
^ ^ ^ l ^ ^ f ^ ' ) ' ^ ^ ^ f > 0 , O O Q , 0 0 0 p r i n c i p a l amount of i t s 7.25% Debentures due 2004 

Debentures"), $450,000,000 p r i n c i p a l amount of i t s 7.45% Debentures 
due 2007 (the "2007 Debentures"), $400,000,000 p r i n c i p a l amount of i t s 7 90% 
Debentures due 2017 (the "2017 Debentures"), $500,000,000 p r i n c i p a l amount of 
I t s 7.95% Debentures due 2027 (the "7.95% 2027 Debentures",, $100,000,000 
F^^^^^i??-'-,.^*''^^^ °? 6.95% Debentures due 2027 (the "6.95% 2027 Debentures"). 
$250,000,000 p r i n c i p a l amount of i t s 7.25% Debentures due 20'>7 (the "7 25% 2027 

$150,000,000 p r i n c i p a l amount of i t s 8.30% Debentures due 2032 
(the 2032 Debentures" and, c o l l e c t i v e l y w i t h the 2002 Debentures, the 2004 

^2°^ Debentures, the 2017 Debentures, the 7.95% 2027 Debentures, 
the 6.95% 2027 Debentures and the 7.25% 2027 Debentures, the "Securities") The 
Secu r i t i e s are t o be issued under an indenture (the "Indenture") dated as of 
August 1, 1990 between the Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as t r u s t e e , as 
fc^P,^?*^*^®^ amended by the F i r s t Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 
15, 1991 and the Second Supplemental Indenture t o be dated as of the F i r s t 
Closing Date (as defined below). 
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The salri * t^e Securities to the I n i t i a l Purchasers w i l l be made 
without registratio:- j i the Securities under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended (the "Securities Act"), i n reliance upon exemptions from the 
registration requirements of the Securities Act. You have advised the Company 
that the I n i t i a l Purchasers w i l l offer and s e l l the Securities purchased by them 
hereunder in accordance with Section 4 hereof as soon as you deem adviseOile. 

Holders of the Securities w i l l be entitled to the benefits of the 
Registration Rights Agreement (the "Registration Rights Agreement"), t r be dated 
the F i r s t closing Late (as defined below), in each case among the Conrpany and 
the I n i t i a l Purchasers. The Reg-'.stratlon Rijhts Agreement w i l l be as described 
in the Preliminary Offering Memorandum (es def.lned below), with such changed, 
other or additional terms reasonebly acceptable to the Company and the I n i t i a l 
Purchaser.?. 

In connection with the sale of the Securities, the Company has 
prepared a preliminary offering memorandum, dated April 22, 1997 (includiug any 
and a l l -xhibits thereto and any information incorporated by reference therein, 
the "Prsiiminary Memorandum") and a f i n a l offering memoremdum, dated May 1, 1997 
(including any and a l l exhibits thereto and any information incorporated by 
reference therein, the "Final Memorandum"). Each of the Preliminary Memorandum 
and the Final Memorandum sets forth certain infonnation concerning the Company 
and the Securities. The Company hereby confirms that i t has authorized the use 
of th' Preliminary Memorandum and the Final Memorandum, and any amendment or 
supple:dent thereto, in connection with the offer and sale of the Securities by 
t i e I n i t i a l Purchasers. Unless stated to the contrary, a l l references herein to 
the Fina l Memorandum are to the Final Memorandum at t i e Execution Tine (as 
defined below) and are not meant to include any amendment or supplement, or any 
information incorporated by reference therein, subsequent to the Execution Time, 
and any reference to the terms "«imend," "amendment" or "supplement" with respect 
to the Final Memorandum shall be deemed to refer to and include any information 
f i l e d under the S e c i r i t i e s Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchemge 
Act"), subsequent to the Execution Time which i s incorporated by reference 
th srein. 

1. Representations and Warranties. The Compemy represents itnd 

w-irremts to, and agrees with, each I n i t i a l Purchaser as set forth below i n chis 
Section 1. Any reference to persons acting on behalf of the Company, or on 
behalf of any of the Company's A f f i l i a t e s (as defined below), does not include 
any of the I n i t i a l Purchasers, with respect to whom the Company makes no 
representation. 

(a) The Final Memorandum, at the date hereof, does not, and at the 
F i r s t Closing Date and the Second Closing Date w i l l not (and a.ny amendment 
or supplement thereto, at the date tiereof and at the F i r s t Closing Date 
and the Second Closing Date, w i l l not), cont:ain any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the 
statements therein, in the li g h t oi the circumstances under irtiich they were 
made, not misleading; provided, howtver, that 
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the Company makes no representation or warremty as to the information 
contained i n or omitted from the Final Memorandum, or any amendment or 
supplement thereto, in reliimce upon and in conformity with information 
furnished i n writUng to the Company by or on behalf of the " u i t i a l 
Purchasers through the Representative specifically for inclu.-.>.on therein. 
A l l documents incorporated by reference in the Final Memorandum vrtiich were 
f i l e d under the Exchange Act on or before the Execution Time complied, and 
a l l sucb documents wh\ch are f i l e d under the Exchancre Act after the 
Execution Time and on or before the applicable Closing Date w i l l comply, i n 
a l l material rr ̂ pects with the applicable requirements of the Exchange Act 
and the rules tiereunder. 

(b) The Company has not taken and w i l l not take, directly or 
Indirectly, any action designed to or which has const:!tuted or which might 
reasonably be expected to cause or result in stabilization or manipulat;ion 
of the price of t i e Securities (other than any stabilization done by the 
I n i t i a l Purchasers, as to which the Company makes no representation). 

(c) Neither the Company, nor any of i t s A f f i l i a t e s (as defined ir. 
Rule 501(b) of Regulation D under the Securities Act ("Regulation D")), nor 
any person acting on i t s or their behalf has, directly or indirectly, made 
offers or sales of any security, or solicited offers to buy any security, 
which are or could be integrated with the sale of l i e Securities in a 
manner that would require the registration of the Securities under the 
Securiti.es Act. 

(d) Neitier the Company, nor 2uiy person acting on i t s behalf, has 
engaged in any form of general soli c i t a t i o n or general advertising (within 
the meani.ng of Rule 502(c) of Regulation D) in connectdLon with any offer or 
sale of tl^e Securities i n the United States. 

(e; Assuming the accuracy of the represenizations and warranties and 
compliance with the agreements made by the I n i t i a l Purchasers herein, i t i s 
not necessary in connection with the offer, sale and delivery of the 
Securities to the I n i t i a l Purchasers under, or :i.n connection with the 
i n i t i a l resale of sucb Securities by the I n i t i a l Purchasers i n the manner 
contemplated by, t h i s Agreement to register the Securities under the Act or 
to qualify the Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. 

(f) No sec u r i t i e s of the Company are o; the same class (within the 
meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act) as the Securities and l i s t e d 
on a national i;ecurities exchange registered under Section 6 of the 
Exchange Act, or quoted in a U.S. autonated inter-dealer quotation system. 

(g) Neither the Company, nor any of i t s A f f i l i a t e s , nor any person 
acting on i t s or t i e i r behalf has «uigaged in taxy directed s e l l i n g efforts 
with respect to the 

514 



[[1]1PIHEDG:(64098.EX4_4J00004.PIP EDGM only EDG: 30-IIAy-1997 03:18 BLK: 00-001-0000 00:00 
( ( I j jcsx CorporaUon Prospectus E . E , Donnelley (804) 644-0655 H12EDG 

<PAGE> 

Securities, and each of them has complied with the offering restrictions 
requirement of Regulation S ("Regulation S") rnder t i e Securities Act. 
Terms used i n this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Rule 902(b) 
of Regulation S. 

(h) The Conipany i s subject to the reporting requirements of Section 
13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act. 

(1) The Company i s not an "investment company" within the meaning of 
the Investment Ccnnpany Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investjnent Company 
Act"), without taking account of any exemption arising out of the number cf 
holders of the Comprny's securities. 

( j ) The Company has not paid or agreed to pay to any person any 
compensation for s o l i c i t i n g another to purchase any securities of the 
Cc»npany (except as contemplated by this Agreement). 

(k) The infonnation, i f any, provided by the Company pursuant to 
Section 5(h) hereof w i l l not, at the date thereof, contain any untrue 
statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary 
to make the statements therein, i n the li g h t of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleadi.ng. 

2. Purchase and Sale. Subject to the terms and conditions and i n 

reliance upon the representations and warrMties herein s e t forth, the Company 
agrees to s e l l to each I n i t i a l Purchaser, and each I n i t i a l Purchaser agrees, 
severally and not j o i n t l y , to purchase from the Company, at a purchase price 
equal to the percentage of principal amount as set forth on Schedule I hereto, 
the principal amount of 2002 Debentures, 2004 Debentures, 2007 Debentures, 2017 
Debentures; 7.95% 2027 Debentures, 6.95% 2027 Debentures, 7.25% 2027 Debentures 
and 2032 Debentures, plus, i n each case accrued interest, i f any, from May 6, 
1997 (except with respect to the 2032 Debentures, on which interest w i l l accrue, 
i f at a l l , from May 8, 1997), set forth opposite such I n i t i a l Purchaser's name 
in Schedule I I hereto. 

3. Delivery and Payment. Delivery of and payment for ( i ) the 2002 

Debentures, the 2004 Debentures, the 2007 Debentures, t i e 2017 Debentures, the 
7 95% 2027 Debentures, the 6.95% 2027 Debentures and the 7.25% 2027 Debentures 
s h a l l be made at 10:00 AM, New York City time, on May 6, 1997, or such later 
date (not later than May 13, 1997) as the Representative s h a l l designate and 
( i i ) the 2032 Debentures s h a l l be made at 10:00 A.M., New York City time on May 
8, 1997, or such later date (not later than May 15, 1997) as the Representative 
s h a l l designate, in each case which date and time may be postponed by agreement 
between the Representative and the Company or as provided i n Section 9 hereof 
fsuch date and time of delivery and payment for the 2002 Debentures, l i e 2004 
Debenture, the 2007 Debentures, the 2017 Debentures, the 7.95% 2027 Debentures, 
the 6 95% 2027 Debentures and the 7.25% 2027 Debentures being herein called the 
" F i r s t Closing Date" and such date and time of delivery and payment for the 2032 
Debentures be.i.ng herein called the Second Closing Date and, together with the 
F i r s t Closing Date, the 
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"Closing Dates"). Delivery of the Securities s h a l l be made to the 
Representative for the respective accounts of the I n i t i a l Purchasers against 
payment by the I n i t i a l Purchasers through the Representative of the purchase 
price thereof to or upon the order of the Company by wire transfer of Federal 
funds or other immediately available funds or in such other manner of payment as 
may be agreed by the Company and the Representative. 

Delivery of any Securities to be issued i n definitive c e r t i f i c a t e d 
form s h a l l be made on the applicable Closing Date at such location, and i n such 
names and denominations, as the Represent:ative sh a l l designate at le a s t two 
business days i n advance of the applicable Closing Date. Each Company agrees to 
have the Securities available for inspection, checking and packaging bv the 
Representative i n New York, New York, not later than 1:00 PM on the business dav 
prior to the applicable closing Date. Each closing for the purchase and sale of 
the Securities s h a l l occur at the office of Shearman c Sterling, 599 Lexington 
Avenue, New York, New York ("Counsel for the I n i t i a l Purchasers") or such other 
place as the parties hereto shall agree. 

4. Offering of Securities. Each I n i t i a l Purchaser, severally and 

not j o i n t l y , represents and warrants to and agrees w.i*-*- the Company t i a t : 

(a) I t has not offered or sold, and w i l l not offer or s e l l , any 
Securities except ( i ) to those i t reasonably b^^lieves to be qualified 
i n s t i t u t i o n a l buyers (as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act) and 
that, in connectLion with each such sale, i t has taken or w i l l take 
reasonable steps co ens'ire that the purchaser of such Securities i s awar<> 
that such sale i s being mide i n reliance on Rule 144A, ( i i ) to other 
inst:itutional "accredited investors" (ar defined in Rule 501(a)(1), ( 2 ) . 
(3) or (7) of Regulation D) >Ao provide co i t and to the Company a l e t t e r 
i n the form of Annex A to the Final Memorandum or l i i i ) in accordance %ri1i 
the restrictions set forth i n Exhibit A hereto. 

(b) Neither i t , nor any person acting on i t s behalf, has engaged, or 
w i l l engage in any form of general s o l i c i t a t i o n or general advertising 
(within the meaning of Utile 502(c) of Regulation D) in connection with any 
offer or sale of Securities i n the United States, except as contemplated bv 
the Registration Rights Agreement. 

(c) Each I n i t i a l Purchaser sh a l l deliver to each purchaser of 
Securities therefrom, i n connection with i t s original distribution of the 
Securities, a copy of the Final Memorandum, as amended and supplemented at 
the date of such purchase, except with respect to sales of Securities made 
to non-U.S. persons i n reliance on Regulat:lon S. 
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5. Agreements. The Company agrees w i t i each I n i t i a l Purchaser that: 

(a) The Company w i l l furnish to each I n i t i a l Purchas;t and to Counsel 
for the I n i t i a l Purchasers, without charge, during the period referred to 
in paragraph (c) below, as many copies of the Final Memorandum and any 
amendments and supplements thereto as i t may reasonably reguest. The 
Company w i l l pay the expenses of printing or other production of a l l 
documents relating to the offering. 

(b) The Company w i l l not amend or supplement the Final Memorandum 
(other than by f i l i n g documents under the Exchemge Act which are 
incorporated by reference therein), without having previously advised and 
furnished to the Representative a copy of such amendment or supplement to 
which the Representative, on advice from counsel, has not reasonably 
objected; provided, however, that, prior to the completion of the 

dist:ributi.on of the Securities by the I n i t i a l Purchasers (as determined by 
the Representative), the company w i l l not f i l e any document under the 
Exchange Act irtiich i s incorporated by reference i n the Final Memorandum 
unless, prior to such proposed f i l i n g , the Company has furnished the 
Representative with a copy of such document. The Comp«my w i l l promptly 
advise the Representative when any document f i l e d under the Exchange Act 
which i s incorporated by reference i n the Final Memorandum s h a l l have bean 
f i l e d w i t i t i e Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"). 

(c) I f at any time prior to the e a r l i e r of ( i ) completion of the sale 
of the Securities by the I n i t i a l Purchasers (as determined by the 
Representative), ( i i ) the effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registration 
(as defined in the Regist^ration Rights Agreement), provided that t i e 

I n i t i a l Purchasers are e l i g i b l e to participate i n the Exchange Offer 
thereunder and as a result thereof are e l i g i b l e to s e l l the Securities 
exchanged i n connection therewith without rest r i c t i o n , ( i i i ) the 
effectiveness of the Shelf Registration Statement (as defined i n the 
Registration Rights Agreement) as contemplated by the Registrat:ion Rights 
Agreement or (iv) six months from the date hereof, any event occurs as a 
result of which the Final Memoremdum, as then amended or supplemented, 
would include any untunie statement of a material fact or omit to state any 
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, m the light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, or i f i t should 
be necessary to amend or supplement the Final Memorandum (including any 
document incorporated by reference therein which was f i l e d under the 
Exchange Act) to comply with the Exchange Act or the rules thereunder or 
other applicable law, the Company w i l l promptly notify the Representative 
of the same and, subject to the requirements of paragraph (b) of t i i s 
section 5, w i l l prepare and provide to the Representative pursuant to 
paragraph (a) of this Section 5 an amendment or supplement which w i l l 
Sorrect such statement or omission or effect such compliance ana, m the 
event that such an amendment or supplement i s required to be f i l e d under 
the Exchange Act and i s to be incorporated by reference i n the Final 
Memorandum; w i l l f i l e such amendment or supplement with the Commission. The 
Representative w i l l promptly 
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advise the Company, in writing, of the completion of the i n i t i a l 
distribution of the Securities. 

(d) The Company w i l l cooperate with the I n i t i a l Purchasers and their 
counsel i n arranging foi the qualification of the Securities for sale bv 
the I n i t i a l Purchasers und»ir the laws of such jurisdictions as the I n i t i a l 
Purchasers may designate and w i l l maintain such qualifications i n effect so 
long as required for the sale of the Securities; provided, however, that i n 

connection therewith, the Company shall not be required to qualify as a 
foreign corporation or to execute a general consent to service of process 
i n any juri s d i c t i o n or subject i t s e l f to taxation i n excess of a nbminal 
dollar amount i n any such jurisdiction where i t i s not then so subject The 
Company w i l l promptly advise the Representative of the receipt by the 
Company of any notification with respect to the suspension of the 
?"*r^*i?**^^°° °^ Securities for sale i n any juri s d i c t i o n or the 
i n i t i a t i o n or threatening of emy proceeding for such purpose. 

(e) The Company w i l l not, and w i l l not permit any of i t s A f f i l i a t e s 
to, r e s e l l any Securities that have been acquired by any of them. 

(f) Neither the Conmany, nor any of i t s A f f i l i a t e s , nor any person 
acting on i t s or their be&alf w i l l , directly or indirectiy, make offers or 
sales of any security, or s o l i c i t offers to buy any security, which are or 
could be integrated with the sale of the Securities i n a mahker that would 
require tne registration of the Securities under the Securities Act. 

(g) Neither the Company, nor any person acti.ng on its behalf, will 
engage in any form of general solicitation or general advertising (within 
the meaning of Rule 502(c) of Regulation D) in connection with ahy offer or 
sale of the Securities in the United states, except as contemplated by the 
Registration Rights Agreement. ' 

.̂ ,_.('»)̂  So long as any of the Securities are "restricted s e c u r i t i e s " 
144(a)(3) under the Securities Act, the Company 

i i i any period i n which i t i s not subject to Section 13 or 15(d) 
Of the Exchange Act, provide to each holder of such restricted securities 
and to each prospective purchaser (as designated by such holder) of such 
restricted securities, upon the request of such holder or prospective 
purchaser, any information required to be provided by Rule 144A(d)(4) under 
the Securities Act. \ i \ / »UAUCX 

( i ) The Company s h a l l , during any period i n the two years after the 
Clj s i n g Date m which the Company i s subject to the reporting requirements 
R^tir^^ on io^'^in*^^^'' ^t^^^. °* Exchange Act, tiiely file 111 Annual 
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on 
Form B-X, and any other reports, st^atements, documents, regist^rations, 
f i l i n g s or submissions required to be f i l e d by the Ccnnpanv vith the 
Commissicn pursuant to the Exchange Act. 
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( j ) Neither the Coaiuany, nor any of i t s A f f i l i a t e s , nor any person 
acting on i t s or their behalf w i l l engage in any directed s e l l i n g efforts 
with respect to the Securities, and each of them w i l l comply with the 
offering r e s t r i c t i o n s requirement of Regulation S. Terms used i n th i s 
paragraph have the meanings fri'̂ ^̂ Q to them by Rule 902(b) of Rf^gulation S. 

(k) The Compemy wi l l cooperate with the Representative and use i t s 
reasonable best efforts to permit the Securities to be el i g i b l e for 
cleareuice and settlement through The Depository Trust Company. 

(1) I f requested by the I n i t i a l Purchasers, the Company s h a l l use i t a 
reasonolile best efforts to cause Securities sold i n reliance on Rule 144A 
to be el i g i b l e for the PORTAL trading system of the National Association of 
Securities Dealers, Inc. 

(m) Until such time as any Security i s registered under l i e 
Securities Act pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement and 
transferred pursuant to such registration, the Company s h ^ l l Include a 
legend on the .Securities to the effect as set forth under "Notice to 
Investors" i n the Final Memorandum. 

6. Conditions to the Obligations of the I n i t i a l Purchasers. The 

obligations of the I n i t i a l Purchasers to purchase the Securities s h a l l be 
subject to the accuracy of the representations and warranties on the part of t i e 
Company contained herein at the date and time that this Agreement i s executed 
and delivered by the parties hereto (the "Execution Time"), emd, with respect to 
the 2002 Debentures, the 2004 Debentures, the 2007 Debentures, the 2017 
Debentures, the 7.95% 2027 Debentures, the 6.95% 2027 Debentures emd t i e 7.25% 
2027 Debentures, the F i r s t Closing Date and, with respect to the 2032 
Debentures, the Second Closing Date, to the accuracy of the st:atements of the 
CcMipemy made in any c e r t i f i c a t e s pursuemt to the provisions hereof, to the 
perfonnance by the Company of i t s obligations hereunder and to the following 
additional conditions: 

(a) The Company s h a l l have furnished to l i e I n i t i a l Purchasers the 
opinion of the General Counsel, or an Assisliant General Co .^sel, of the 
Company, dated the applicable Closing Date, to the effect that: 

(1) The Company has been duly incorporated and i s an existing 
corporation i n good standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, with corporate power emd authority to own, lease and operate 
i t s properties emd conduct i t s business as described i n the Final 
Memoremdum; and the Compemy i s duly ^I'vialified to do business as a 
foreign corporation i n good standing in a l l other jurisdictions i n 
which i t owns or leases substantial properties or In which the conduct 
of i t s business requires such qualification except where the fai l u r e 
to so qualify or be i n good st:rnding would not have a 
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material adverse effect on the Compemy and i t s subsidiaries, 
considered as one enterprise; 

(11) Each significant subsidiary as defined i n Rule 405 of 
Regulation C of the Securities Act (each a "Significant Subsidiary") 
of the Compemy has been duly incorporated and I s v a l i d l y existing as a 
corporation in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of i t s 
incorporation, has corporate power and authority to own, lease and 
operate i t s properties emd conduct i t s business as described in the 
Final Memoremdum; emd, to the best of such counsel's knowledge, i s 
duly qualified as a foreign corporation to transact business and i s in 
good stemding i n each jurisdiction in which such qualification i s 
required, except where the failure to so qualify or be in good 
standing wc il d not have a material adverse effect on the Compemy and 
i t s subsidiaries, considered as ore ei.terprise; a l l of the issued and 
outstanding capital stock of each Significant Subsidiary has been duly 
authorized emd validly issued, i s fu l l y paid and nonassessable, and, 
except for directors' qualifying sharer., i f emy, i s owned by the 
Compemy free emd clear of any mortgage, pledge, l i e n , encumbrance, 
claim or equity; 

(111) No consent, approval, authorization or order of, or f i l i n g 
with, any govemmental agency or body or any court i s required for the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated herein, except such as 
may be required under state securities laws; emd 

(iv) The execution, delivery emd perform/mce of the Indenture, 
this Agreement, the Registration Rights Agreement and the issuance and 
sale of the Securities and compliance with the terms and provisions 
thereof w i l l not result i n a material breach or violation of any of 
the terms and provisions of, or constit-Jte a default under, any 
s1:atute, rule, regulation or order of any governmental agency or body 
or any court having jurisdiction over the Compemy or any Significant 
Subsidiary or any of their properties or, to the best of such 
counsel's knowledge, emy agreement or instrument to which the Company 
or any of i t s Significant Subsidiaries i s a party or by which the 
Company or any Significant Subsidiairy i s bound or to which any of the 
properties of the Company or any significant Subsidiary i s subject, or 
the charter or by-laws of the Compemy or any Significemt Subsidiary, 
and the Company has f u l l power and authority to authorize, issue and 
s e l l the Securities as conteo^lated by this Agreement. 

In addition, such counsel s h a l l state that he or she has participated 
i n conferences with officers emd other representatives of the Company, 
representatives of Ernst t Young, independent auditors for the Corpemy, and 
the Representative, at which the contents of the Final Memorandum and emy 
amendment thereof or supplement thereto emd related matters were discussed 
and although such counsel has 
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not undertaken to investigate or verify independently, and does not assume 
any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the 
statements contained i n t i e Final Memorandum or auy amendment thereof or 
supplement thereto, no facts have come to the attention of such counsel 
which would lead sucb counsel to believe that at the Execution Time the 
Final Memorandum (otier than the hi s t o r i c a l , proforma, projected or other 
financial statements, information and data and s t a t i s t i c a l infonnation and 
data included or incorporated by reference therein, i n each case as to 
which no opinion need be given) contained any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omitted to state any material fact necessary to make the 
statements therein, i n the light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading or that the Final Memorandum (other than the 
h i s t o r i c a l , proforma, projected or other finemcial statements, information 
and data and st:atistical information and data included or incorporated by 
reference therein, i n each case as to which no opinion need be given) at 
the applicable Closing Date includes emy antrue statement of a material 
fact or omits to state a material fact necessary i n order to make the 
statements therein, i n the light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading. Except as otherwise set forth herein, a l l references 
i n t h i s Section 6(a) to the Final Memorandum shall be deemed to include any 
amendment or supplement thereto at the applicable Closing Date. 

(b) The Company sha l l have furnished to the I n i t i a l Purchasers the 
opinion of McGuire, Woods, Battle £ Boothe, L L.P., counsel for the 
Company, dated the applicable closing Date, to the effect that: 

( i ) The Indenture has been duly authorized, executed emd 
delivered by the Company; the Securities have been duly authorized, 
executed, issued and delivered by the Company; the Indenture and the 
Securities, when autienticated in the manner provided i n the 
Indenture, constitute valid and legally binding obligations of -the 
Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with their 
terms, subject to bemkruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer,^ 
reorganization, moratorium and similar laws of general apr>lical^ility 
relating to or affecting creditors' rights emd to general uity 
principles ( i n renderi.ng such opinion, such counsel may as..ime that 
the Indenture has been duly authorized, executed and delivered, and 
the Securities have been duly authenticated, by the Trustee); and the 
Securities conform to the description tiereof contained i n the Final 
Memorandum; 

( i i ) The Registration Rights Agreement has been duly authorized, 
executed emd delivered by the Company and constitutes a valid and 
legally binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the 
Company i n accordance with i t s terms, subject to bankruptcy, 
insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and 
similar laws of general applicability relatinej to or affecting 
creditors' rights and to K^'tneral equity principles ( i n rendering such 
opinion, such counsel may assume due auliorization, execution 
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and delivery by parties thereto other than the Company), provided, 
however, that no opinion i s rendered as to the enforceeQjility against 
the Company of any rights to inaeanification or ccntribution included 
therein; and the Registration Rights Agreement conforms to the 
description thereof contained in the Final Memoremdum; 

( i i i ) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and 
delivered by the Conipany; 

(iv) Assuming tie accuracy of t i e representations and warranties 
and compliemce with the agreements made by the Company and the I n i t i a l 
Purchasers herein, i t i s not necessary in connection with the offer, 
sale and delivery of the Securities to the I n i t i a l Purchasers under, 
or in connection with the i n i t i a l resale of such Securities by the 
I n i t i a l Purchasers in the manner contemplated by, this Agreement to 
register the Securities under the Securities Act or to qualify the 
Indenture, as amended, under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as 
amended; 

(vl) The Company i s not an "investment company" within the 
meaning of the Investment company Act without taking account of emy 
exemption arising out of the number of holders of the Compauy's 
securities; 

(vii) The statements in the Final Memoremdum rnder t'je captions 
"Description of Debentures" and "Exchange offers; Registration 
Rights", insofar as they purport to suiaoarize certain -provisions of 
the Securities and the Registration Rights Agreement, are accurate 
siumaries of sucl provisions; and 

( v i i i ) The information contained in the Final Memorandum under the 
caption "Certain Federal Income Tax Considerations for Non-U.S. 
Holders", to the extent that i t constitutes matters of law or legal 
conclusions, has been reviewed by such counsel and i s correct in a l l 
material respects. 

In addition, subject to such counsel's customary qualifications eax>ut 
the scope of i t s obl-S jations in connection with i t s participation in the 
preparation of documents, such counsel shall state that tley have 
parti''ipated in conferences with officers and other repres >ntatives of the 
Company, representatives of Emst £ Young, independent auditors for the 
Company, the Representative, and Counsel for the I n i t i a l Purchasers at 
irtiich the contents of the Final M«»orandum and emy amendme'it thereof or 
supplement thereto and related matters were discussed emd although such 
counsel have not undertaken to investigate or verify inde'<endently, emd do 
not assume any respons:hility for the accuracy, complet;eniiss or faimess of 
the statements contain id in the Final Memoremdum or any am«.ndment thereof 
or supplement thereto, and did not participate in the preparation of the 
documents incorporated by reference in the Final 
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Memorandum, no facts have come to the attention of such counsel which would 
lead such counsel to believe that at the Execution Time the Final 
Memorandum (other than the h i s t o r i c a l , proforma, projected or otier 
financial statements, information emd data and s t a t i s t i c a l information and 
data included or incorporated by reference therein, i n each case as to 
which no opinion need be given) contained any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omitted to state any material fact necessary to make the 
statements therein, i n the li g h t of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading, or that the Final Memorandum at the applicable 
Closing Date (other than the h i s t o r i c a l , proforma, projected or other 
financial statements, information and data and s t a t i s t i c a l information emd 
data included or incorporated by reference therein, i n each case as to 
which no opinion need be givtn) includes emy untrue statement of a material 
fact or omits to state a material l i c i . neces»sry in cider to make the 
statements therein, i n the li g h t of the circumstances under trtiich they were 
made, not misleading. 

In rendering such opinion, McGuire, Woods, Battle t Boothe, L.L.P. may 
rely (A) as to matters govemed by New York law upon the opinion of Counsel 
for the I n i t i a l Purchasers, referred to below and <B) as to :>iatters of 
fact, to the extent they deem proper, on cer t i f i c a t e s of responsible 
officers of the Compemy and public oiEficials, Except as ot'aerwise set forth 
herein, a l l references in th i s Section 6(b) to the Final Memorandum s h a l l 
be deemed to include any eunendment or supplemcmt thereto et the appliceOile 
Closing Date. 

(c) Tlie Representative s h a l l have received from Counsel for the 
I n i t i a l Purchasers such opinion or opinions, dated the Closing Date, with 
respect to the issuance emd sale of the Securities, the Final Memorandum 
(as eunended or supplemented at the applicable Closing Date) emd other 
related matters as they may require, and the Company shall have furnished 
to such counsel such documents as they may reasonably request for the 
purpose of enabling them to pass upon such mdtters. In rendering such 
opinion. Counsel for the I n i t i a l Purchasers may rely as to the 
incorporation of the Company on the opinion of the General Counsel or 
Assistant General Counsel of the Company emd as to a l l other matters 
governed by Virginia law upon the opinion of McGuire, Woods, Battle c 
Boothe, L.L.P., referred to above. 

(d) The Company sha l l have fumishe'. to the Representative a 
c e r t i f i c a t e of the Company, signed by the Chairm^.a of the Board or the 
President or an Executive Vice President or t i e Managing Director-Corporate 
Finance and another person who i s the principal financial or accounting 
officer of the Company, dated the applicable Closing Date, to the effect 
that the signers of such c e r t i f i c a t e have exeunined the Final Memoremdum, 
*ny eunendment or supplement to the Final Memorandum emd t i l s Agreement and 
that, to the best of their knowledge after reasonable investigation: 

( i ) the representations and warranties of the Company i n t h i s 
Agreement are true emd correct i n a l l material respects on and as of 
the 
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applicable Closing Date w i t h the same e f f e c t as i f made on and as of 
such Closing Date, and the Company has complied w i t h a l l the 
agreements emd s a t i s f i e d a l l the conditions on i t s p a r t t o be 
performed or s a t i s f i e d hereunder a t or p r i o r t o such Closing Date; and 

( i i ) since the date of the most recent f i n e m c i a l statements 
incorporated reference i n the Final Memorandum, there has been no 
material adverse change i n the condition ( f i n e m c i a l or o t h e r ) , 
earnings, business or properties of the Company and i t s s u b s i d i a r i e s , 
whether or not a r i s i n g from transactions i n the ordinary course of 
business, except as set f o r t h i n or contemplated by the F i n a l 
Memorandum (exclusive of emy amendment or supplement thereto) or as 
described i n such c e r t i f i c a t e . 

(e) (A) At the Execution Time, Ernst & Young, LLP s h a l l have 
furnished t o the Representative a l e t t e r , dated as of the Execution Time, 
i n form and substance s a t i s f a c t o r y t o the Representative, confirming t h a t 
they are independent accountants w i t h i n the meaning of the Securities Act 
and t i e applicable rules and regulations thereunder and containing 
statftnents and information of the type o r d i n a r i l y included i n accountants' 
comiort l e t t e r s ' t o underwriters w i t h respect t o the f i n a n c i a l statements 

and c e r t a i n f i n a n c i a l information contained i n the F i n a l Memorandum and (B) 
at the applicable Closing Date, Ernst £ Young, LLP s h a l l have furnished t o 
the Represent^ative a l e t t e r dated such date, t o the e f f e c t t h a t they 
r e a f f i r m the stattments made i n the l e t t e r furnished pursuant t o clause 
(A), except t h a t l i e s p e c i f i e d date r e f e r r e d t o s h a l l be a date not more 
than three busmess days p r i o r t o the applicable c l o s i n g Date. 

( f ) Subsequent t o the Execution Time or, i f e a r l i e r , the dates as of 
which information i s given i n the Fin a l Memorandum, there s h a l l not have 
been ( i ) any chang*: or decrease s p e c i f i e d i n the l e t t e or l e t t e r s r e f e r r e d 
t o m paragraph (e) of t h i s Section 6 or ( i i ) any chem»,e, or any 
development i n v o l v i n g a prospective change, i n or a f f e c t i n g the business or 
properties of thr. Company and i t s subsidiaries the e f f e c t of which, i n any 
case reier.red t o i n clause ( i ) or ( i i ) above, i s , i n the reasonable 
judgment of tne Representative, so material and adverse as to make i t 
l a i p r a c t i c a l or inadvisable t o market the Securities as contemplated by the 
F i n a l Memorandum (exclusive of emy eunendment or supplement thereof or 
t h e r e t o ) . 

(g) Subsequent t o the Execution Time, there s h a l l not have been any 
decrease i n the r a t i n g of any of the Company's debt s e c u r i t i e s by any 
n a t i o n a l l y recognized s t a t i s t i . c a l r a t i n g organization" (as defined f o r 

purposes of Rule 436(g) under the Securities Act) or any notice given o f 
any intended or p o t e n t i a l decrease i n any such r a t i n g or of a possible 
change m any such r a t i n g t h a t does not Indicate the d i r e c t i o n of the 
possible change. 
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Prior to the applicable Closing Date, the Company s h a l l furnish to the 
Representative such conformed copies of such opinions, c e r t i f i c a t e s , l e t t e r s and 
documents as the Representative may reasonably request. 

I f any of the conditions specified i n this Section 6 sh a l l not have 
been f u l f i l l e d i n a l l material respects when emd as provided i n t i l s Agreement, 
or i f any of the opinions and c e r t i f i c a t e s mentioned above or elsewhere in t h i s 
Agreement s h a l l not be i n a l l material respects reasonably satisfactory i n form 
and substance to the Representative and Counsel for the I n i t i a l Purchasers, t h i s 
Agreement and a l l obligations of the I n i t i a l Purchasers hereunder with respect 
to the 2002 Debentures, the 2004 Deb€tntures, the 2007 Debentures, the 2017 
Debentures, the 7.95% 2027 Debentures, the 6.95% 2027 Debenture, the 7.25% 2027 
Debentures, and/or the 2032 Debentures, as thr case may be, may be cemceled at, 
or at emy time prior to, t i e applicedile Closing Date by the Representative. 
Notice of such cancellation s h a l l be given to the Company in writing or by 
telephone or telefax confirmed in writing. 

The documents required to be delivered by this Section 6 w i l l be 
delivered at the office of Counsel for the I n i t i a l Purchasers, at 599 Lexington 
Avenue, New York, New York, on the applicedal*? Closing Date. 

7. Reimbursement of Expenses. I f the sale of the Securities provided 

for herein i s not consumnated because of cemcellation by the Representative 
pursuemt to Section 6 hereof, because of any termination pursuant to Section 10 
hereof or because of emy refusal, i n a b i l i t y or failure on the part of the 
Company to perform any material agreement herein or comply with any material 
provision hereof o t i e r than by reason of a default by anv of the i n i t i a l 
Purchasers i n payment for l i e Securities on the applicable Closing Date, the 
Compemy w i l l reimburse the I n i t i a l Purchasers severally upon demand for a l l 
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including reasoneible fees and disbursements 
of Counsel for the I n i t i a l Purchasers) that shall have been incurred by them i n 
coimection with the proposed purchase and sale of the Securities. 

8. Indemnification and Contribution. (a) The Company agrees to 

indemnify and hold harmless each I n i t i a l Purchaser, the directors, officers, 
employees and agents of each i J i i t i a l Purchaser emd each person who controls any 
I n i t i a l Purchaser within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Securities Act 
or Section 20 of the Exchange Act against any and a l l losses, claims, damages or 
lieU a i l i t i e s , j o i n t or several, to which they or any of them may become subject 
under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or other federal or state statutory 
law or regulation, at common law or olierwise, insofar as such losses, claims, 
damages or l i a b i l i t i e s (or actions i n respect thereof) arise out of or are based 
upon any untrue statement or alleged untme statement of a material fact 
contained i n t i e Preliminary Memoremdum, the Final Memoranium, or in any 
amendment thereof or supplement thereto, or arise out of or are based upon the 
omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be 
stated t i e r e i n or necessary to make the statement? therein, i n the ligh t of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, emd agrees to 
reimburse each such indemnified party for emy lec^al or other expenses reasonably 
incurred by them i n 
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connection with investigating or defending any such loss, claim, deunage, 
l i a b i l i t y or action as such expenses are mcurred; provided, however, that the 

Company w i l l not be liable i n any such case to the extent that emy such loss, 
claim, damage or l i a b i l i t y arises out of or i s based upon any such untrue 
statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission made in 
the Preliminary Memorandum or t i e Final Memorandum, or i n any amendment thereof 
or supplement thereto, in reliemce upon and in coniEormity with written 
information furnished to the Company by or on behalf of emy I n i t i a l Purchasers 
through the Representative s p e c i f i c a l l y for inclusion therein. The foregoing 
indemnity with respect to any untrue statement contained i n or any omission from 
the Preliminary Memorandum s h a l l not inure to the benefit of emy I n i t i a l 
Purchaser (or the directors, officers, employees or agents of each I n i t i a l 
Purchaser or any person who controls sucb I n i t i a l Purchaser within the meaning 
of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act) from whom 
th<i person asserting emy such loss, claim, deunage or l i a b i l i t y purchased any of 
the Securities that are the subject thereof i f such person was not sent or given 
a copy of the Final Memorandum (or any amendment or supplement thereto) at or 
prior to the written confirmation of the sale of such Securities to such person 
ard the untrue statement contained i n or the omission from such Preliminary 
Memorandum was corrected i n the Final Memorandum (or any eunendment or supplement 
thereto), unless such failure resulted from noncompliance by ttKi Company with 
i t s obligations hereund'sr to furnish the I n i t i a l Purchaseif: with copies of the 
Final Memorandum. This indemnity agreement w i l l be i n addit.ion to any l i a b i l i t y 
which the Company may otherwise have. 

(b) Each I n i t i a l Purchaser severally agrees to inde'jmify emd hold 
harmless the Company, i t s directo.rs, i t s officers, and each person who controls 
the Company within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Se'.:urities Act or 
Section 20 of the Exchange Act, to t i e seune extent as the foregoing indemnity 
from the Compemy to each I n i t i a l Purchaser, but only with respect to claims and 
actions based upon written information relating to such I n i t i a l Purchaser 
furnished to t i e Company by or on behalf of such I n i t i a l Purchaser through the 
Representative spe c i f i c a l l y for inclusion i n the Preliminary Memoremdum or the 
Final Menoranduir (or i n any eunendment or supplement thereto). This indemnity 
agreement w i l l be in addition to any l i a b i l i t y which any I n i t i a l Purchaser may 
otherwise have. The Company acknowledges that the statements set forth i n the 
f i r s t two sentences of the l a s t paragraph of the cover prge, and the f i r s t emd 
second sentences of the second paragraph, the second sf tcmce of the third 
paragraph emd the f i r s t three sentences of the l a s t p&z graph under the heading 
"Plem of Distribution" i n the Preliminary Memorandum anu t i e Fina l Memorandum 
constitute the only infonnation furnished i n writing by or on behalf of the 
I n i t i a l Purchasers for inclusion i n the Preliminary Memorandum or the Final 
Memorandum (or in emy amendment or supplen>ent thereto). 

(c) Promptly after receipt by an indemnified party under this Section 
8 of notice of the commencement of any action, such indemnified party w i l l , i f a 
claim i n respect tiereof i s to be made against t i e indemnifying party under this 
Section 8, notify the indemnifying party i n writing of the commencement thereof; 
but the failure so to notify the indemnifying party (1) w i l l not relieve i t from 
l i a b i l i t y imder paragraph (a) or (b) above 

15 
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unless emd to the extent i t did not otherwise leam of such action and such 
failure results i n the forfeiture by t'le indemnifying party of substantial 
rights and defenses emd ( i i ) w i l l not, in emy event, relieve the indemnifying 
party from any obligations to any indemnified party other than the 
indemnification obligation provided in paragraph (a) or (b) above. The 
indemnifying party s h a l l be entitled to appoint counsel of the indemnifying _ 
party's choice at the indemnifying party's expense to represent the mdemnified 
party in any action for which indemnification i s sought (in which case the 
indemnifying party s h a l l not thereafter be responsible for the fees and expenses 
of any separate counsel retained by the indemnified party or parties except as 
set forth below); provided, however, that such counsel shall be reasonably 

satisfactory to the indemnified party. Notwithstanding the indemnifying party's 
election to appoint counsel to represent the indemnified party in an action, the 
indemnified party s h a l l have the right to employ separate counsel (including 
lcx:al counsel), however, the indemnifying party s h a l l bear the reasonable fees, 
costs and expenses of such separate counsel only i f (1) t i e use of counsel 
chosen by the indemnifying party to represent the indemnified party would 
present such counsel with a c o n f l i c t of interest, (11) the actual or potential 
defendants i n , or targets of, any such action include both l i e indemnified party 
and t i e indemnifying party and the indemnified party s h a l l have reasonably 
concluded upon advice of counsel that tiere may be legal defenses available to 
i t and/or other indemnified parties which are different from or additional to 
those available to the indemnifying party, ( i i i ) the indemnifying party s h a l l 
not have employed counsel reasonably satisfactory to the indeamified party to 
represent the indemnified party within a reasonaOsle time after notice of the 
in s t i t u t i o n of such action or ( i v ) the indemnifying party s h a l l authorize the 
indemnified party to employ separate counsel at the expense of t i e indemnifying 
party. An indemnifying party w i l l not, without the prior written consent of the 
indemnified parties, s e t t i e or compromise or consent to th» entry of any 
judgment with respect to emy pending or threatened claim, action, suit or 
proceeding i n respect of which Indemnification or contribution may be sought 
hereunder (irtiether or not the indemnified parties are actual or potential 
parties to such claim or action) unless such settlement, compromise or consent 
includes an unconditional release of each indemnified party from a l l l i a b i l i t y 
arising out of such claim, action, suit or proceeding. An indemnifying party 
s h a l l not be l i a b l e under t h i s Section 8 to emy indemnified party regarding iny 
settlement or compromise or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to 
emy pending or threatened claim, action, suit or proceeding in respect of which 
indeamification or contribution may be sought hereunder (whether or not the 
indemnified parties are actual or potential parties to such claim or action) 
unless such settlement, compromise, or consent i s consent ;d to by such 
indemnifying party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

(d) In the event that the indemnity provided i n paragraph (a) or (b) 
of t h i s Section 8 i s unavaileOile to or insufficient to hold harmless an 
indemnified party for any reason, the company emd the I n i t i a l Purchasers agree 
to contribute to t i e aggregate losses, cla.lms, damages and l i / h i l i t i e s 
(including legal or otier expenses reasonably incurred in c l e c t i o n with 
investigating or defending same) (collectively "Losses") to which the Company 
and one or more of the l n i t i . a l Purchasers may be subject in such proportion as 
i s appropriate to r e f l e c t the relative benefits received by the Company and by 
the I n i t i a l 

1< 
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Purchasers from the oi'fering of the Securities; provided, however, that in no 

case shall any I n i t i a l Purchaser (except as may be provided i n emy agreement 
among the I n i t i a l Puichasers relating to the offering of the Securities) be 
responsible for emy amount in excess of the purchase discount or commission 
appliceible to the Securities purchased by sucb I n i t i a l Purchaser hereunder, i n 
each case as set forth on the cover page of the F i n a l Memorandum. I f the 
allocation provided by the immediately preceding sentence i s unavailable for any 
reason, the Company and the I n i t i a l Pu-...-chasers s h a l l contribute in such 
proportion as i s appropriate to r e f l t c t not only such relative benefits but also 
the relative fault of the Company and of the I n i t i a l Purchasers in connection 
with the statements or omissions which resulted i n such Losses as well as emy 
othfer relevant equitedile considerations. Benefits received by the Company sha l l 
be deemed to be equal to the total net proceeds from the offering (before 
deducting expenses), and benefits received by the I n i t i a l Purchasers s h a l l be 
deemed to be equal to the total purchase discounts emd commissions received by 
the I n i t i a l Purchasers from the Company iu connection with the purchase of the 
.Securities hereunder, i n each case as set forth on the cover page of the Final 
Memorandum. Relative fault shall be determined by reference to whetier any 
alleged untrue statement or omission relates to Information provided by the 
Compemy or the I n i t i a l Purchasers, the intent of the parties ana their r e l a t i v e 
knowledge, access to infonnation emd opportunity to coivect or prevent such 
untrue statement or omission. The Company and the X z l c i a l Purchasers agree that 
i t would not be just emd equiteible i f contribution were determined by pro rata 
allocation or any other method of allocation which does not take account of the 
equitable considerations referred to ahove. Notwithstanding the provisions of 
this paragraph (d), no person g u i l t i of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the 
meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) s u a l l be entitled to 
contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent 
misrepresentation. The Purchasers' obligations to contribute as provided in this 
Section 8(d) are several in proportion to their respective purchase obligations 
and not joint. For purposes of this Section 8, each person who controls an 
I n i t i a l Purchaser within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Securities Act 
or Section 20 of the Exchange Act and each director, officer, employee and agent 
of an I n i t i a l Purchaser shall have rhe same rights to contribution as such 
I n i t i a l Purchaser, and each person who controls the Company within the meaning 
of either Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act emd 
each officer and director of the Compemy s h a l l have the same rights to 
contribution as t i e Company, subject i n each case to the applicable terms and 
conditions of this paragraph (d). 

9. Default by an I n i t i a l Purchaser. I f emy one or more I n i t i a l 

Purchasers sh a l l f a i l to purchase and pay for any of the Securities agreed to be 
purchased by such Initi.al Purchaser hereunder and such failure to purchase s h a l l 
constitute a default in the perfomemce of i t s or t i e i r obligations under this 
Agreement, the remaining I n i t i a l Purchasers s h a l l be obligated severally to take 
up emd pay for (in the respective proportions which the principal eunount of 
Securities set forth opposite their names i n Schedule I hereto bears to the 
aggregate principal amount of Securities set forth opposite the neunes of a l l the 
remaining I n i t i a l Purchasers) the Securities which the defaulting I n i t i a l 
Purchaser or I n i t i a l Purchasers agreed but fail e d to purchase; provided, 

however, that i n the event that the aggregate principal amount of Securities 

which the defaulting I n i t i a l Purchaser or I n i t i a l Purchasers 
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agreed but f a i l e d to purchase sh a l l exceed 10% of the aggregate principal amount 
of Securities set forth in Schedule I hereto, the remaining I n i t i a l Purchasers 
shall have the right to purchase a l l , but shall not be under emy obligation to 
purchase any, of the Securities, emd i f '?uch non-defaulting I n i t i a l Purchasers 
do not purchase a l l the Securities within 36 hours of such default, this 
Agreement w i l l terminate without lieOiility to any non-defaulting I n i t i a l 
Purchaser or the Company except as otherwise provided i n Section 11. In the 
event of a default by emy I n i t i a l Purchaser as set forth in this Section 9, the 
applicable Closing Date s h a l l be postponed for such period, not exceeding seven 
days, as the Representative sh a l l determine in order that the required changes 
in the Final Memorandum or in emy other documents or arrangements may be 
effected. Nothing cont:ained in t h i s Agreement shall relieve any defaulting 
I n i t i a l Purchaser of i t s l i a b i l i t y , i f any, to the Company or to any non-
defaulting I n i t i a l Purchaser for deunages occasioned by i t s default hereunder. 

10. Termination. This Agreement shall be subject to termination i n 

t i e edasolute discretion of the Representative, by notice given to the Compemy 
prior to delivery of and payment for the applicable Securities, i f prior to such 
time ( i ) there s h a l l have occurred any change, or any development involving a 
prospective chemge, i n or aflecting particularly the business or properties of 
the Company or i t s subsidiaries which, i n the judgment of the Representative, 
materially impairs -the investment quality of the Securities, ( i i ) any 
do%mgrading i n the rating of emy debt securities of the Compemy by any 
"nationally recognized s t a t i s t i c a l rating orgemization" (as defined for purposes 
of Rule 436(g) imder the Securities Act), or emy public announcement that any 
such organization has under surveillemce or review i t s rating of any debt 
securities of the Compemy (other than an emnouncement with positive implications 
of a possible upgrading, and no in5)lication of a possible downgrading, of such 
rating), ( i i i ) trading i n emy of the Compemy'«5 securities shall have been 
stispended by the Commission or the Hew York Stock Exchange or trading i n 
securities generally on the New York Stock Exchange shall have been suspended or 
materially limited or minimum prices s h a l l have been established on such 
exchange, ( i v ) a banking moratorium s h a l l have been declared either by federal 
or New York State authorities or (v) there shall have occurred any outbreak or 
escalation of h o s t i l i t i e s , declaration by the United states of a national 
emergency or war or other caleunity or c r i s i s the effect of which on financial 
markets i s such as to make i t , i n the reasonable judgment of the Representative, 
impracticeOile or inadvisable to proceed with the offering or delivery of the 
Securities as contemplated by the Fina l Memorandum (exclusive of any eurendment 
or supplement thereof or thereto). 

11. Represent^ations and Indemnities to Survive. The respective 

agreements, representations, warranties, indemnities emd other statements of the 
Company or i t s o f f i c e r s and of the lnitJ.al Purchasers set forth i n or made 
pursuemt to t h i s Agreement w i l l remain i n f u l l force and effect, regardless of 
emy investigation made by or on behalf of the I n i t i a l Purchasers or the Compemy 
or emy of the o f f i c e r s , directors or controlling persons referred to in Section 
8 hereof, and w i l l survive delivery of and payment for the Securities. The 
provisions of Sections 7 and 8 hereof s h a l l survive the termination or 
cancellation of t h i s Agreement. 

It 
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12. Fees, Expenses. The Company covenants emd agrees with the 

Representative that the Company w i l l pay or cause to be paid the following: ( i ) 
the fees, disbursements emd expenses of the Company's counsel and accountants in 
connection with the issue of the .'Securities and a l l other expenses in connection 
with the preparation and printing of the Preliminary Memoremdum and Final 
Memorandum and any euaendments emd supplements thereto and the mailing and 
delivering of copies thereof to thv? I n i t i a l Purchasers; ( i i ) the cosr of 
printing or other pr-xluction of a l l documents relating to the offering, 
purchase, sale emd dtlivery of the Securities as provided i n Section 4(a); ( l i i ) 
a l l expenses in connection with the qualification of the Securities for offer.lng 
and sale under state securities laws, including the fees and dishursements of 
Counsel for the I n i t i a l Purchasers in connection with such qualitication an<? i n 
connection with any Blue Sky surveys; ( i v ) any fees charged by s-acurities re.ting 
services for rating the Securities; (v) the cost of preparing the Securiti<is; 
(vi) the fees and expenses of the Trustee and emy agent of the Trustee and -tie 
fees and disbursements of counsel for the Trustee in connection with the 
Indenture and the Securities; ( v i i ) any cost incurred i n connection with the 
designation of the Securities for trading in PORTAL ( v i i i ) any f'jes charged by 
DTC; and (ix) a l l other costs and expenses incident to the perfomwr.ce of i t s 
obligations hereunder which are not otherwise s p e c i f i c a l l y provider for i n this 
Section 12, including through payment or reimbursement of emy road<̂ aow expenses 
incurred by or on behalf of the Compemy. I t i s understood, however, that except 
as provided i n Sections 7 and 12 hereof, the I n i t i a l Purchasers w i l l pay a l l of 
their own costs and ^rpen.;es, including the fees, disbursements and expenses of 
their counsel and any Kirketing expenses connected with any offers they may 
make. 

13. Notices. A l l communications hereunder w i l l be i n writing and 

e f f e c t i v e only on r e c e i p t , and, i f sent t o the Representative, w i l l be mailed, 
delivered or telefaxed and confirmed t o them, care of Salomon Brothers Inc, a t 
Seven World Trade Center, New York, New York, 10048, f a c s i m i l e (212) 783-2274; 
or, i f sent t o the Company, w i l l be mailed, delivered or telefaxed emd confirmed 
t o i t a t One James Center, 901 East Cary Street, Richmond, V i r g i n i a 23219, 
a t t e n t i o n : David D. Owen, Managing Director-Corporate Finemce, t e l e f a x number 
(804) 783-1346. 

14. Successors. This Agreement w i l l inure t o the b e n e f i t of and be 

binding upon the p a r t i e s hereto and t h e i r respective successors and the o f f i c e r s 
and d i r e c t o r s emd c o n t r o l l i n g persons r e f e r r e d t o i n Section 8 hereof, and, 
except as expressly set f o r t h i n Section 5(h) hereof, no other person w i l l have 
emy r i g h t or o b l i g a t i o n hereunder. 

15. Appliceible Law. This Agreement w i l l be govemed by and constmed 

i n accordance w i t h the laws of the State of New York. 

16. Business Day. For purposes of this Agreement, "business day" 

means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday t h a t i s not a day on 
which bemking i n s t i t u t i o n s i n The c i t y of New York, New York are authorized or 
obl i g a t e d by law, executive order or r e g u l a t i o n t o close. 
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17. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed i n one or more 

counterparts, each of which w i l l be deemed to be an original, but a l l such 
counterparts w i l i together constitute one and the same instrument. 

18. Headings. The section headings are for convenience only emd 

shal l not affect the construction hereof. 
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I f the foregoing i s i n accordance with your understanding of our 
agreement, please sign emd retum to us the enclosed duplicate hereof, whereupon 
this Agreement and your acceptemce shall represent a binding agreement between 
the Company and the I n i t i a l Purchasers. 

V'-ry truly yours, 

CSX CORPORATION 

By / s / David D. Owen 

Name: David D. Owen 
T i t l e : Managing Direct Corporate Finance 

The foregoing Agreement i s hereby 
confirmed and accepted as of the 
date f i r s t eQiove written. 

Salomon Brothers Inc 

By / s / Jeunes J . Ryan 

Name: James J . Ryan 
T i t l e : Memaging Director 

For themselves and the other 
I n i t i a l Purchasers named i n 
Schedule I to the foregoing Agreement 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

EDGM only 
Prospectus 1,1. 

EDG: 30-MAY-1997 06:40 BLK: 00-000-0000 00:00 
DonneUey (804) 644-0655 EDITOI V2,7-3 *** 

SCHEDULE I 

S e c u r i t y 

<s> <c> 
2002 D e b e n t u r e s . . . . 
2004 d e b e n t u r e s . . . . 
2007 Debentures 
2017 Debentures.,.. 

7.95% 2027 Debentures 
6.95% 2027 Debentures/1/. 
7.25% 2027 Debentures/2/. 

2032 Debentures/3/. 

</TABLE> 

Purchase Price/*/ 

<C> 
99.335 
99.355 
99.199 
99.067 
•»8.607 
3.335 

99.126 
99.125 

/*/ Expressed as a percentage of principal amount 
/ I / Puttable on May 1, 2002 
/2/ Putt:able on May 1, 2005 
/3/ Non-callable u n t i l May 1, 2007. Callable thereafter at the redemption 

prices set forth below, togetier with accrued interest, i f any, to the date 
of purchase i f redeemed during the 12-month period beginning May 1 of the 
years indicated below: 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

Year 

<S> 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Price 

<c> 
104 
103 
103, 
102, 
102. 
102, 
101. 
101, 
100. 
100. 
100. 

150% 
735% 
320% 
905% 
490% 
075% 
660% 
245% 
830% 
41'.% 
000% 

</TABLE> 
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SCHEDITLE I I 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

I n i t i a l Purchasers 

P r i n c i p a l Amount of 
2002 Debentures 
t o be Purchased 

<S> 
Salomon Brothers Inc 
Credit Suisse F i r s t Boston Corporation. 
Chase Securities Inc 
Goldmem, Sachs £ Co 
Morgan Stanley £ Co. Incorporated 
NationsBemc C a p i t a l Markets, Inc 

<C> 
$81,668,000 
81,666,000 
81,666,000 
35,000,000 
35,000,000 
35,000,000 

Total. 

</TABLE> 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

I n i t i a l Purchasers 

<S> 
Salomon Brothers Inc 
Credit Suisse F i r s t Boston Corporation. 
Chase Securities Inc 
Goldman, Sachs £ Co 
Morgan Stanley £ Co. Incorporated 
NationsBanc C a p i t a l Markets, Inc 

$350,000,000 

P r i n c i p a l Amount of 
2004 Debentures 
t o be Purchased 

<C> 
$70,000,000 
70,000,000 
70,000,000 
30,000,000 
30,000,000 
30,000,000 

T o t a l , 

</TABLE> 

i i 

$300,000,000 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

I n i t i a l Purchasers 

<S> 
Salomon Brothers Inc 
Credit Suisse F i r s t Boston Corporation. 
Chase Securities Inc 
Goldman, Sachs £ Co 
Morgan Stemley £ Co. Incorporated 
NationsBanc Capital Markets, Inc 

EDG: 30-MAY-1997 05:15 BLK: 00-000-0000 00:̂ 0 
E . E . DonneUey (804) 644-0655 »rP2EDG 

Principal Amount of 
2007 Debentures 
to be Purchased 

<C> 
$105,000,000 
105,000,000 
105,000,000 
45,000,000 
45,000,000 
45,000,000 

Total. 

</TABLE> 

$450,000,000 
mmmmmmmmmmmm 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

I n i t i a l Purchasers 

Principal Amount of 
2017 Debentures 
to be Purchased 

<S> 
Salomon Brothers Inc 
Credit Suisse F i r s t Boston Corporation. 
Chase Securities Inc 
Goldmem, Sachs £ Co 
Morgan Stanley £ Co. Incorporated 
NationsBanc Capital Markets, tuc 

<c> 
$93,334,000 
93,333,000 
93,333,000 
40,000,000 
40,000,000 
40,000,000 

Total. 

</TABLE> 

$400,000,000 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

I n i t i a l Purchasers 

Principal Amount of 
7.95% 2027 
Debentures 
to be Purchased 

<S> 
Salomon Brothers Inc 
Credit Suisse F i r s t Boston Corporation. 
Chase Securities Inc 
Goldman, Sachs £ Co 
Morgan Stanley £ Co. Incorporated 
NationsBanc Capital Markets, Inc 

<C> 
$116,668,000 
116,666,000 
116,666,000 
50,000,000 
50,000,000 
50,000,000 

Total, 

</TABLE> 

$500,000,000 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

I n i t i a l Purchasers 

Principal Amount of 
6.95% 2027 
Debentures 
to be Purchased 

<s> 
Salomon Brothers Inc 
Credit Suisse F i r s t Boston Corporation, 
Chase Securities Inc 
Goldman, Sachs £ Co.. 
Morgan Stanley £ Co. Incorporated 
Nation;.Carc Capital Markets, Inc 

,000 
,000 

/J,JJJ,000 
10,000,000 
10,000,000 
10,000,000 

To- t a l . 

</TJ> " wE> 

I V 

$100,000,000 
msesmammmmmmm 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

I n i t i a l Purchasers 

Principal Amount of 
7.25% 2027 
Debentures 
to be Purchased 

<S> 
Salomon Brothers Inc 
Credit Suisse F i r s t Boston Corporation, 
Chase Securit.les Inc 
Goldman, Sachs £ Co 
Morgan Stanley £ Co. Incorporated 
NationsBanc Capital Markets, Inc 

<c> 
$58,334,000 
56,333,000 
58,333,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 

</TABLE> 

Total. $250,000,000 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

I n i t i a l Purchasers 

Principal Amount of 
2032 Debentures 
to be Purchased 

<S> 
Salomon Brothers Inc 
Credit Suisse F i r s t Boston Corporati.on. 
Chase Securities Inc 
Goldmem, Sachs £ Co 
Stanley £ Co. Incorporated 
NationsBanc Capital Markets, Inc 

<c> 
$35,000,000 
35,000,000 
35,000,000 
15,000,000 
15,000,000 
15,000,000 

T o t a l . $150,000,000 

</TABLE> 
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EXHIBIT A 

S e l l i n g R e s t r i c t i o n s f o r Offers and 

Sales Outside the United States 

(1) (a) The Securities have not been emd w i l l not be registered under 
the Securities Act and may not be o f f e r e d or sold w i t h i n the United States or 
t o , or f o r the account or b e n e f i t of, U.S. persons except i n accordimce with 
Regulation S under the S e c u r i t i e s Act or pursuemt t o an exemption from the 
r e g i s t r a t i o n requirements of t i e Securities Act. Each I n i t i a l Purchaser 
represents and agrees t h a t , except as otherwise permitted by Section 4 ( a ) ( i ) or 
( i i ) of the Agreement t o wh.lch t h i s i s an e x h i b i t , i t has offered and sold the 
Securities, and w i l l o f f e r and s e l l the Securities, (1) as p a r t of t h e i r 
d i s t r i b u t i o n a t emy time emd ( i i ) otherwise u n t i l 40 days a f t e r the l a t e r of the 
commencement of the o f f e r i n g and the appliceOile Closing Date, only i n accordemce 
w i t h Rule 903 of Regulation S under the Securities Act. Accordingly, each 
I n i t i a l Purchaser represents and agrees th a t neither i t , nor emy of i t s 
a f f i l i a t e s nor emy person a c t i n g on i t s or t h e i r behalf has engaged or w i l l 
engage i n any d i r e c t e d s e l l i n g e f f o r t s with respect t o the Securities, and t h a t 
i t emd they have complied and w i l l comply with the o f f e r i n g r e s t r i c t i o n s 
requirement of Regulation S. Each I n i t i a l Purchaser agrees t h a t , at or p r i o r t o 
the confirmation of sale of S e c u r i t i e s (other them a sale of Securities pursuant 
t o Section 4(a) ( i ) or ( i i ) of the Agreement t o which t h i s i s an e x h i b i t ) , i t 
s h a l l have sent t o each d i s t r i b u t o r , dealer or person receiving a s e l l i n g 
concession, fee or other remuneration t h a t purchases Securities from i t during 
the r e s t r i c t e d period a confirmation or notice s u b s t a n t i a l l y t o the f o l l o w i n g 
e f f e c t : 

"The S e c u r i t i e s covered hereby have not been registered under the 
U.S. Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act") emd may not be 
o f f e r e d or sold w i t h i n the Ur " ted States or t o , or f o r the account or 
b e n e f i t o f , U.S. persons ( i ) as part of t h e i r d i s t r i b u t i o n a t any time 
or ( i i ) otherwise u n t i l 4'' days a f t e r the l a t e r of the commencement of 
the o f f e r i n g and the applicable Closing Date, except i n e i t h e r case i n 
accordance w i t h Regulation S or Rule 144A under the Securities Act. 
Terms used above have the meemings given t o them by Regulation S." 

(b) Each I n i t i a l Purchaser also represents and agrees t h a t i t has not 
entered and w i l l not enter i n t o any contractual arrangement w i t h emy d i s t r i b u t o r 
w i t h respect t o the - " i s t r i b u t i o n of the Securities, except w i t h i t s a f f i l i a t e s 
or w i t h the p r i o r w r i t t e n consent of the Company. 

(c) Terms used i n t h i s section have the meanings given to them by 
Regulation S. 

(2) Each I n i t i a l Purchaser represents and agrees t h a t ( i ) i t has not 
o f f e r e d or s o l d , and p r i o r t o the e x p i r a t i o n of the period s i x months from the 
applicable Closing Date herein w i l l not o f f e r or s e l l any Securities t o persons 
i n the United Kingdom except t o those 

A-1 
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persons whose ordinary a c t i v i t i e s involve them in acquiring, holding, managing 
or disposing of investments (as principal agent) for purpose of their 
business or otherwise i n circumstances th.it ha** not resulted and w i l l not 
resul t in an offer to the public in the United kingdom within the meeming of the 
Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995, (11) i t has complied and w i l l 
comply with a l l appliceible provisions of the Finemcial Services Act 1986 of the 
United Kingdom with respect to emything done by i t i n relation to the Securities 
i n , from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom, and ( i i i ) i t has only issued 
or passed on emd w i l l only issue or pass on i n the United Kingdom any document 
received by i t i n connection with the issue of the Securities to a person who i s 
of a kind described in A r t i c l e 11(3) of the Financial Services Act 1986 
(Investment Advertisements) (Exemptions) Order 1996 or i s a person to whom the 
document may otherwise lawfully be issued or passed on. 

A-2 
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EXHIBIT 4 . 5 

EXECUTION COPY 

Dated: May 6, 1997 

CSX CORPORATION 

$2,500,000,000 

$350,000,000 7.05% Debentures due 2002 
$300,000,000 7.25% Debentures due 2004 
$450,000,000 7.45% Debentures due 2007 
$400,000,000 7.90% Debentures due 2017 
$500,000,000 7.95% Debentures due 2027 
$100,000,000 6.95% Debentures due 2027 
$250,000,000 7.25% Debentures due 2027 
$150,000,000 8.30% Debentures due 2032 

REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

wmmmmsmmt 
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CSX CORPORATION 

$2,500,000,000 

$350,000, 000 7. 05% DEBENTURES DUE 2002 
$300,000, 000 7. 25% DEBENTimES DUE 2004 
$450,000, 000 7. 45% DEBENTURES VUH 2007 
$400,000, 000 7. 90% DEBENTURES DUE 2017 
$500,000, 000 7. 95% DEBENTURES DUE 2027 
$100,000, 000 6. 95% DEBENTURES DITE 2027 
$250,000, 000 7. 25% DEBENTURES DUE 2027 
$150,000, 000 8. 30% DEBENTURES DUE 2032 

REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

New York, New York 
May 6, 1997 

Salomon Brothers Inc 
Seven World Trade Center 
New York, New York 10048 

Dear S i r s : 

CSX Corporation, a Virginia corporation (the "Company"), proposes to 
issue and s e l l to certain purchasers (the "Purchasers"), upon the terms set 
forth i n a purchase agreement of even date herewith ( t i e "Purchase Agreement"), 
i t s 7.05% Debentures due 2002 (the "2002 Debentures"), i t s 7.25% Debentures due 
2004 (the "2004 Debentures"), i t s 7.45% Debentures due 2007 (the "2007 
Debentures"), i t s 7.90% Debentures due 2017 (the "2017 Debentures"), i t s 6.95% 
Debentures due 2027 (the "6.95% 2027 Debentures"), i t s 7.95% Debentures due 2027 
(the "7.95% 2027 Debentures"), i t s 7.25% Debentures due 2027 (the "7.25% 2027 
Debentures") emd i t s 8.30% Debentures due 2032 (the "2C32 Debentures" emd, 
together w i t i th'S 2002 Debentures, the 2004 Debentures, the 2007 Debentures, the 
2017 Debentures, the 7.95% 2027 Debentures, the 6.95% 2027 Debentures emd the 
7.25% 2027 Debentures, the "Securities") (the " I n i t i a l Placement"). As em 
inducement to the Purchasers to enter into the Purchase Agreement and i n 
satisfaction of a 
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condition to the obligations of the I n i t i a l Purchasers thereunder, the Compemy 
agrees with you, (1) for your benefit and the benefit of the other Purchasers 
emd ( i i ) for the benefit of the holders from time to time of the Securities 
(including you and the other Purchasers) (each of the foregoing a "Holder" and 
together the "Holders"), as follows: 

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used herein without definition 

shall have their respective meanings set forth i n the Purchase Agreement. As 
used i n this Agreement, the following capitalized defined terms sh a l l have the 
following meanings: 

"Act" means the Securities Act of 193 3, as amended, and the mles and 

regulations of the Commission promulgated thereunder, each as the same may be 
eunended from time to time. 

" A f f i l i a t e " of emy specified person meems any other person which, 

directly or indirectly, i s i r control of, i s controlled by, or i s under conmon 
control with, such specified person. For purposes of this definition, control 
of a person means the power, direct or indirect, to direct or cause the 
direction of the management emd policies of such person whetier by contract or 
otherwise; emd the terms "controlling" and "controlled" have meanings 
correlative to the foregoing. 

"Business Day" meems any day other them a Saturday, a Sunday, or a day 

on which banking institutions i n New York are authorized or required by law or 
executi.ve order to close. 

"Closing Date" means May 6, 1997 with respect to the 2002 Debentures, 

the 2004 Debentures, the 2007 Debentures, the 2017 Debentures, the 7.95% 2027 
Debentures, the 6.95% 2027 Debentures and the 7.25% 2027 Debentures, and Mav 8. 
1997 with respect to the 2032 Debentures. 

"Commission" meems the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

"Exchemge Act" meems the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 

and the rules emd regulations of the Commission promulgated thereunder, each as 
the same may be amended from tiae to time. 

"Exchange Offer Registration Period" meems the 180-day period 

following the consummation of the Registered Exchange Offers, exclusive of any 
pericxl during which emy stop order s h a l l be i n effect suspending the 
effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement. 

"Exchange Offer Registration statement" means a registration statement 

of tJae Compemy on an appropriate form under the Act with respect to the 
Registered i:xchange 
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Offers, a"^ amendments and supplements to such registration statement, including 
post-effective amendments, in each case including the Prospectus contained 
therein, a l l exhibits thereto and a l l material incorporated by reference 
therein. 

"Exchange Securities" means, with respect to the 2002 Debentures, the 

2002 Exchange Debentures, with respect to the 2004 Debentures, the 2004 Exchange 
Debentures, with respect to the 2007 Debentures, the 2007 Exchange Debentures, 
with respect to the 2017 Debentures, the 2017 Exchange Debentures, with respect 
to the 7.95% 2027 Debentures, the 7.95% 2027 Exchange Debentures, with respect 
to the 6 95% 2027 Debentures, t i e 6.95% 2027 Exchange Debentures, with respect 
to the 7*25% 2027 Deb<intures, the 7.25% 2027 Exchange Debentures and with 
respect to the 2032 Debentures, the 2032 Exchange Debentures. 

"Exchange Securities Indenture" means the indenture, i f any, between 

the Company imd the Exchange Securities Trustee, identical i n a l l material 
respectt; with the Indenture (except that the interest rate step-up provisions 
and the transfer restrictions w i l l be modified or eliminated, as appropriate). 

"Exchanging Dealer" means any Holder (which may include any Purchaser) 

which i s a broker-dealer, electing to exchange Securities acquired £or i t s own 
account as a resu l t of market-making a c t i v i t i e s or other trading a c t i v i t i e s for 
Exchange Securities. 

"Final Memorandum" has the meaning set forth i n the Purchase 

Ag^Aement. 

"Holder" has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto or means any 

holder of Exchange Securities, as the case may be. 

"Indenture" means an indenture dated as of August 1, 1990 between the 

company and The'chase Manhattan Bank, as trustee, as supplemented by the F i r s t 
s S l ^ n t a l indenture dated as of June 15, 1C91 and the Second Supplemental 
indenture dated as of May 6, 1997, as the same may be amended from time to time 
in accordance with the terms thereof. 

" I n i t i a l Placement" has t i e meaning set forth i n the preamble hereto. 

"Majority Holders" means the Holders of a majority of the aggregate 

principal amount'of Securities or Exchange Securities registered under a 
Registration statement. 

-Managing Underwriters" means the investment banker or investment 

bankers and 'ml iMglr 'or 'pagers that s h a l l administer an underwritten offering. 
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"Prospectus" means the prospectus included i n emy Registration 

statement (including, without limitiation, a prospectus that discloses 
information previously omitted from a prospectus f i l e d as part of em effective 
registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A under the Act), as amended or 
supplemented by any prospectus supplement, with respect to the terms of the 
offering of emy portion of the Securities or the Exchange Securities, covered by 
such Registration Statement, and a l l amendments emd supplements to the 
Prospectus, including post-effective amendments, and in each case including a l l 
material incorporated by reference therein. 

"Purchaser" has the meaning set forth i n the pieeuable hereto. 

"Purchase Agreement" has the meeming set forth i n the preamble hereto. 

"Registered Exchange Offers" means the proposed offers to Holders to 

issue emd deliver to such Holders a l i k e principal amount of (1) 2002 Exchange 
Debentures, in exchemge for 2002 Debentures, ( i l ) 2004 Exchange Debentures, i n 
exchange for 2004 Debentures, ( i i i ) 2007 Exchange Debentures, i n exchange for 
2007 Debentures, (iv) 2017 Exchange Debentures, i n exchange for 2017 Debentures, 
(V) 7.95% 2027 Exchange Debentures, i n exchange for 7.95% 2027 Debentures, ( v i ) 
6.95% 2027 Exchemge Debentures, in exchange for 6.95% 2027 Debentures, ( v i i ) 
7.25% 2027 Exchange Debentures, in exchange for 7.25% 2027 Debentures emd ( v i i i ) 
2032 Exchange Debentures, in exchange for 2032 Debentures. 

"Registration Statement" meems any Exchange Offer Registration 

Statement or Shelf Registration Statement of the Company that covers any of the 
Securities or the Exchange Securities pursuant to the provisions of this 
Agreement and amendments and supplements to such registration statement, 
including post-effective amendments, in each case inclu mg the Prospectus 
con trained therein, a l l exhibits thereto and a l l material incorporated by 
reference therein. 

"Securities" has the meaning set forth i n the preamble hereto. 

"Shelf Registration" means a registration effected pursuemt to Section 

3 hereof. 

"Shelf Registration Period" has the meaning set forth i n Section 3(b) 

hereof. 

"Shelf Registration Stat*-roent* meems a "shelf" registration statement 

of the Company pur-aant to the provisions of Section 3 hereof which covers some 
or a l l of the Securities or Exchange Securities, as applicable, on an 
appropriate form under Rule 415 under the Act, or any similar rule that may be 
adopted by the Commission, and a l l eunendments emd supplements to such 
registration statement, including post-effective 
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amendments, in each case including the Prospectus co.ntained therein, a l l 
exhibits thereto emd a l l material incorporated by reference therein. 

"Trustee" means the trustee with respect to the Securities under the 

Indenture. 

"2002 Debentures" has the meaning set forth in the preeunble hereto. 

"2002 Exchange Debentures" means the debentures of the Compemy which 

are identical i n a l l material respects to the 2002 Debentures (except that the 
2002 Exchemge Debentures w i l l not contain terms with respect to tjransfer 
r e s t r i c t i o n s or int e r e s t rate step-up provisions) to be issued uuder the 
Registered Exchange Offers i n exchange for the 2002 Debentures. 

"2004 Debenture''" has the meeming set forth i n the preamble hereto. 

"2004 Exchemge Debentures" means the debentures of the Company which 

are identical i n a l l material respects to the 2004 Debentures (except that the 
2004 Exchange Debentures w i l l not contain terms with respect to transfer 
r e s t r i c t i o n s or int e r e s t rate step-up provisions) to be issued under the 
Registered Exchange offers i n exchange for -the 2004 Debentures. 

"2007 Debentures" has the meeming set forth i n the preamble hereto. 

"2007 Exchange Debentures" means the debentures of the Company which 

are identical i n a l l material respects to the 2007 Debentures (except that the 
2007 Exchemge Debentures w i l l not contain terms with respect to transfer 
re s t r i c t i o n s or int e r e s t rate step-up provisions) to be issued under thr. 
Registered Exchange Offers i n exchange for the 2007 Debentures. 

"2017 Debentures" has the meaning set forth i n the preamble hereto, 

"2017 Exchemge Debentures" meems the debentures of the Company which 

are identical i n a l l material respects to the 2017 Debentures (except that the 
2017 Exchange Debentures w i l l not contain terms with respect to transfer 
r e s t r i c t i o n s or i n t e r e s t rate step-up provisions) to be issued under the 
Registered Exchange Offers i n exchange for the 2017 Debentures. 

"7.25% 2027 Debentures" has the meeming set forth i n the preeunble 

hereto. 

"7.25% 2027 Exchemge Debentures" meems the debentures of the Company 

which are ide n t i c a l i n a l l material respects to the 7.25% 2027 Debentures 
(except that the 7.25% 2027 Exchange Debentures w i l l not cont:ain terms with 
respect to transfer r e s t r i c t i o n s 
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or interest rate step-up provisions) to be issued under the Registered Exchange 
Offers :Ln exchange for the 7.25% 2027 Debentures. 

"7,95% 2027 Debentures" has the meeming set forth i n the preamble 

hereto. 

"7.95% 2027 Exchange Debentures" meems the debentures of the Company 

which are identical i n a l l material respects to the 7.95% 2027 Debentures 
(except that the 7.95% 2027 Exchange Debentures w i l l not contain terms with 
respect to transfer restrictions or interest rate step-up provisions) to be 
issued under the Registered Exchange offers i n exchange for t i e 7.95% 2027 
Debentures, 

"6.95% 2027 Debentures" has the meaning set forth i n the preeunble 

hereto. 

"6.95% 2027 Exchange Debentures" meems the debentures of the Compemy 

which are identical i n a l l material respects to the 6.95% 2027 Debentures 
(except that the 6.95% 2027 Exchange Debentures w i l l not contain terms with 
respect to transfer restrictions or interest rate step-up provisions) to be 
issued under the Registered Exchange Offers i n exchange for the 6.95% 2027 
Debentures. 

"2032 Debentures" has the meaning set forth i n the preamble hereto. 

"2032 Exchemge Debentures" meems the debentures of the Compemy which 

are Identical in a l l material respects to the 2032 Debentures (except that the 
2032 Exchange Debentures w i l l not contain terms with respect to tremsfer 
restrictions or interest rate step-up provisions) to be Issued under the 
i:>egistered Exchange Offers i n exchange for the 2032 Debentures. 

"underwriter" means any underwriter o l Securities i n connection with 

em offering thereof under -\ Shelf Registration Statement. 

2. Registered Exchange Offers; Resales of Exchange Securities by 

Exchanging Dealers; Private Exchange. (a) The Company s h a l l prepare and, not 

later than 150 days following the Closing Date, s h a l l f i l e with the Conmiission 
the Exchange Offer Registration Statement. The Company s h a l l use i t s best 
efforts to cause the Exchange Offer Registration Statement to become effective 
under the Act within 180 days of t i e Closing Date. 

(b) Upon the effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registrrtion 
Statement, the Compemy sh a l l promptly commence the Registered Exchange Offers, 
i t being the objective of such Registered Exchange Offers to enable each Holder 
electing to exchange Securities for Exchange Securities (assuming that such 
Holder IS not an A f f i l i a t e of the Company within the meaning of ' ie Act, 
acquires the Exchange Securities i n the ordinary 
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course of such Holder's business and at the time of the commencement of the 
Exchange Offers, has no arrangements with any person to participate i n the 
distribution (within the meaning of the Act) of the Exchange Securities) to 
transfer such Exchange Securities from and after their receipt without any 
limitations or re s t r i c t i o n s under the Act and without material restrictions 
under the se-ur i t i e s laws of a substantial proportion of the several states of 
the United states. 

(c) In connection with the Registered Exchemge Offers, the Company 
sh a l l : 

( i ) mail to each Holder a copy of the Prospectus forming part of 
the Exchange Offer Registration Statement, together with an appropriate 
l e t t e r of transmittal and related documents; 

( i i ) keep the Registered Exchange Offer open for not le s s than 30 
days (or longer i f required by applicable law); 

( i i i ) u t i l i z e the services of a depositary for the Registered 
Exchange Offers with an address i n the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New 
York; emd 

(iv ) comply tn a l l respects with a l l applicable laws. 

(d) As soon as practicable after the close of each Registered 
Exchange Offer, the Company s h a l l : 

{}.) accept for exchange a l l Securities tendered and not validly 
withdrawn pursuant to such Registered Exchange Offer; 

(11) deliver, or cause to tie delivered, to the Trustee for 
cancellation a l l Securiti* . so accepted for exchange; and 

( i i i ) cause the Trustee promptly to authenticate and deliver to each 
Holder of tendered Securities a principal amount of Exchange Securities 
ftqual i n principal aiAount to the Securities of such Holder so accepted for 
exchange. 

(e) The Purchasers emd the company acknowledge that, pursuant to 
interpretations by the Commission's staff of Section 5 of the Act, and i n the 
absence of an applicable exemption therefrom, each Exchanging Dealer i s required 
to deliver a Prospectus i n connection with ? sale of any Exchange Securities 
received by such Exchanging Dealer pursuant to the Registered Exchange offers i n 
exchange for Securities acquired for i t s own account as a result of market-
Mki^S a c t i v i t i e s or other trading a c t i v i U e s . Accordingly, the Company s h a l l : 
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* ^u^^l J'^^^^ftt,:^^ information set forth i n Annex A hereto on the cover 
of the Exchinge Offer Registration Statement, in Annex B hereto i n the 
forepart of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement in a section setting 
forth details of the Registered Exchange Offers, and in Annex C hereto i n 
the underwriting or plan of distribution section of the Prospectus forming 
a part of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement, and include the 
information set forth in Annex D hereto in the Letter of Transmittal 
delivered pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offers; and -^^«»i 

»4. «. ^'f.^^" *»?«̂  efforts to keep the Exchange Offer Registration 
Statement continuously effective under the Act during the Exchange Offer 
Registration Period for delivery of the Prospectus fonning a part thereof 
by Exchanging Dealers m connection with sales of Exchange Securities 
Sec^on 4?hrbSSw!'° Begi«tered Exchange Offers, as contemplated by 

3. Shelf Registration. I f ( i ) because of any change i n law or 

applicable interpretations thereof by the Commission's staff, the Company 
determines upon advice of i t s outside counsel that i t i s not permitted to effect 
the Registered Exchange Offer as contemplated by Section 2 heleofT or ( i i ) for 
any other reason the Exchange Offer Registration Statement i s not declared 
effective within 180 days following the closing Date, or ( i i i ) for any other 
reason the Registered Exchange Offers are not consummated within 210 days 
following the Closing Date, or (iv ) any Purchaser so requests with respect to 
securities not el i g i b l e to be exchanged for Exchange Securities i n a Registered 
«:xchange Offer md held by i t following consummation of the Registered Exchanje 
m^itir'mMl i l l reasonable opinion of Shearman £ Sterling, pursuant to any 
applicable laws or applicable mterpretations thereof any Holder at the time of 
le Registered Exchange Offers (including any Purchaser) i s not e l i g i b l e to 

participate i n the Registered Exchange Offers or ( v i ) any Holder that 
participates i n a Registered Exchange Offer (other than an Exchanging Dealer), 
does not receive freely tradeable thereafter Exchange Securities i n exchange for 
tendered Securities, the following provisions s h a l l apply: ' 

#4 1- L f L The company shall at i t s own cost, as promptly as practicable, 
f i l e with the Commission, and thereafter s h a l l use i t s best efforts to 
cause to be declared effective under the Act within 210 days after the 
Closing Date (or promptly in the event of a request by a Purchaser), a 
Shelf Registration Statement relating to the offer and sale of the 
Securities or the Exchange Securities, as applicable, by the applicable 
Holders from time to time i n accordance with the methods of distribution 
elected by such Holders and set forth i n such Shelf Registration Statement; 
provided that, with respect to Exchange Securities received by a Purchaser 

in exchange for Securities constituting any portion of an unsold allotment, 
the Company may, i f permitted by current interpretations by the 
Commission's staff, f i l e a post-effective amendment to the Exchange Offer 
Registiration Statement containing the information required by Regulation S-
K Items 507 and/or 508, as applicable, in satisfaction ot i t s obligations 
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under this paragraph (a) with respect thereto, and any such Exchange Offer 
Registration Statement, as so amended, shall be referred to herein as, ana 
governed by the provisions herein applicable to, a shelf Registration 
Statement. 

(b) The Company sha l l keep the Shelf Registration Statement 
continuously effective u n t i l the e a r l i e s t of (1) the second anniversary of 
the Closing Date (or the f i r s t anniversary of the effective date of the 
Shelf Registration Statement i f such Shelf Registration Statement i s f i l e d 
at the request of any Purch-ser), ( i i ) the time when the Securities 
registered under the Shelf Registration Statement can be sold by non-
a f f i l i a t e s pursuant to Rule 144 under the Act without any limitation under 
clauses (c)T (e) (f) and (h) of Rule 144 or ( i i i ) such time When a l l the 
Securities covered by the Shelf Registration St;atement have been sold 
pursuant to the shelf Registration statement (in any such case, such period 
being called the "Shelf Registration Period"); provided, however, that cHe 

Company w i l l have the a b i l i t y to suspend the a v a i l a b i l i t y of the Shelf 
Registration Statement during any consecutive 365-day period for up to two 
periods of up to 4- consecutive days each, but no more than an aggregate of 
^0 days during eu-v 365-day period (a "Suspension"), provided that the 

Company no t i f i e s the holder of the Securities covered thereby of any such 
Suspension. 

4. Registration Procedures. In connection ^ i t h any Shelf 

Registration Statement and, to the extent applicable, any Exchange Offer 
Registration statement, the following provisions s h a l l apply: 

fa) The Company s h a l l furnish to the Purchasers, prior to the f i l i n g 
thereor with the Commission, a copy of any Shelf Registration statement and 
anv Exchange Offer Registration Statement, and each amendment thereot ana 
each amendment or supplement, i f any, to the Prospectus included therein, 
and shall use i t s best efforts to r e f l e c t i n each such document, when so 
f i l e d with the Commission, such comments as you reasonably may propose. 

(b) The Company s h a l l ensure that ( i ) any Registration Statement and 
any amendment thereto and any Prospectus forming part thereof and any 
amendment or supplement thereto complies in a l l material respects with the 
Act and the rules and regulations thereunder, ( i i ) any Registration 
Statement and any amendra.ait thereto does not, when r t becomes effective, 
c o S t l i T a n untrue statement of a. material fact or omit » 
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements 
therein not misleading and ( i i i ) any Prospectus forming part of 
It g i s t r a t i o n Statement, and any amendment or supplement to such ^^o«P«|^««' 
does not include an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
M t l r i a l fSct necessary i n order to make the statements, in the light of 
the circumstumces under which they were made, not mitleading. 
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(c) (1) T*'e Compemy shall advise you and, i n the case of a Shelf 
Registration Statement, the Holders of Securities covered thereby, emd, i f 
requested by you or any such Holder, confirm such advice i n writing: 

(1) when a Registration Statement emd any eunendment thereto has 
been f i l e d w:.1i the Commission and when the Registration Statement or any 
post-effecti-'e eunendment thereto has become effective; emd 

( i i ) of any request by the Commission for amendments or 
supplements to the Registration Statement or the Prospectus Included 
therein or for additional infonnation. 

(2) 'i'.»e Company shall advise you emd, i n the case of a Shelf Registration 
Statement, the Holders of Securities covered thereby, and, i n l i e cafe of em 
Exchange Offer Registration Statement, emy Exchanging Dealer which has provided 
i n writing to the Company a telephone or facsimile number and address for 
notices, and, i f requested by you or any such Holder or Exchanging Dealer, 
confirm such advice i n writing of t i e inediility to use the Shelf Registration 
Statement for resales of the Securities or the Exchange Securities as a resul t 
of: 

(1) the issuance by the Comnission of any stop order suspending 
the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or t i e i n i t i a t i o a of any 
pr(x;eecings for that purpose; 

( i i ) the receipt by the Company of emy notification with respect 
to the suspension of the qualifiriition of the 8ecuriti.es included therein 
for sale i n any jurisdiction or the i n i t i a t i o n or threatening of any 
proceeoiing for such purpose; 

( t i l ) a Suspension; and 

(iv) the happening of any event that requires t i e iiaking of any 
changes in the Registration Statement cr the Prospectus so tht t, as of such 
date, the statements tier e i n are not misleading and do not omiv to 8t;ate a 
material fact r e i ^ i r e d to be stated therein or necessary to make the 
statements therein (in the case of the Prospectus, i n l i g h t of the 
circumstances under which they were made) not misleading (which advice 
s h a l l be accompanied by an instmction to suspend the use of the Prospectus 
u n t i l t i e requisite changes have been made). 

•mmmm 
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(d) The Company s h a l l use i t s best efforts to prevent the issuance and 
i f issued to obtain the withdrawal cX any order suspending the effectiveness of 
any Registration Statement at the e a r l i e s t possible time. 

(e) The Company sha l l furnish to each Holder of Securities included 
within the coverage of any Shelf Registration Statement, without charge, at 
least one copy of such Shelf Registration Statement and any post-effective 
amendment thereto, including finemcial statements and schedules, cmd, i f t i e 
Holder so requests in writing, a l l exhibits (including those incorporated by 
reference). 

(f) The Company s h a l l , during the Shelf Registration Period, deliver 
to each Holder of Securities included within the coverage of emy Shelf 
Reg stration Statement, without charge, as memy copies of the Prospectus 
(in luding each preliminary Prospectus) included in such Shelf Registration 
Statc»ient emd any amendment or supplement thereto as such Holder may reasonably 
request; and the Compamy consents to the use of the Prospectus or any eunendment 
or supplement thereto by each of the se l l i n g Holders of Securities i n connection 
with the offering and sale of the Securities covered by the Prospectus or emy 
amendment or supplement thereto. 

(g) The COinpany s h a l l furnish to each Exchanging Dealer that so 
requests, without charge, at le a s t one copy of the Exchemge Offer Registration 
Statement and any post-effective eunendment thereto, including financial 
«tuitements and schedules, any documents incorporated by reference therein, and, 
xf the Exchanging Dealer so requests i n writing, a l l exhibits (including those 
incorporated by reference). 

(h) The Company s h a l l , during the Exchange Offer Registration Period, 
promptly deliver to each Exchemging Dealer, without charge, as many copies of 
the Prospectus included i n such Exchemge Offer Registration Statement and any 
amendment or supplement thereto as such Exchanging Dealer may reasonably request 
for delivery by such Exchanging Dealer i n connection with a sale of Exchange 
Securities received by i t pursuant to the Registered Exchemge Offers; and the 
Company consents to t i e use of the Prospectus or any eunendment or supplement 
^-hereto by any such Exchanging Dealer, as aforesaid. 

(1) Prior to the Registered Exchemge Offers or any otier offering of 
Securities pursuemt to any Registration statement, the Compemy shall use i t s 
reasonable best efforts to register or qualify or cooperate with the Holders of 
Securities included therein emd their respective counsel i n connection with the 
registration or qualification of such Securities for offer and sale under the 
securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdictions as any such Holders reasonably 
req est in writing and do emy and a l l other acts ex. things necessary or 
advisable to enable the 

i n M | 
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offer and sale in such jurisdictions of the securities covered by such 
Registration Statement; provided, however, that the Company w i l l not be required 

to qualify generally to do business i n any jurisdicti.on where i t i s not then so 
qualified or to take emy action which would subject i t to general service of 
process or to taxation in any such jurisdiction where i t i s not then so subject. 

...w ( j ) Unless the applicable securities s h a l l be i n book-entry only form, 
the Company sha l l cooperate with the Holders of Securities or Exchange 
Securities to f a c i l i t a t e the timely preparation and delivery within the times 
required by normal way of settlement of c e r t i f i c a t e s representing securities to 
be sold pursuant to any Regi.stration Statement free of any r e s t r i c t i v e legends 
and i n such authorized denominations and registered i n such names as Holders may 
request prior to sales of securities pursuant to such Registration Statement. 

(k) Upon the occurrence f any event contemplated by paragraphs 
(c)(1)(11) or ( c ) ( 2 ) ( i v ) above, the Company sh a l l promptly prepare a post-
effective amendment to any Registration statement or em amendment or supplement 
to the related Prospectus or f i l e any other required document so that, as 
thereafter delivered to purchasers of the securities included therein, the 
Prospectus w i l l not include an untme statement of a material fact or omit to 
state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, i n the l i g h t 
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

(1) Not later than the eflective date cE any Shelf Registration 
Statement hereunder, the Coomemy shall provide a CUSIP number for the Securities 
or Exchange Securities, as the case may be, registered under such Registration 
Statement, and provide the applicable trustee with printed c e r t i f i c a t e s for auch 
Securities or Exchange Securities, in a form e l i g i b l e for deposit with The 
Depository Trust Compemy. 

(m) The Company sh a l l use i t s best efforts to comply w i t i a l l 
applicable mles and regulations of the Commission emd s h a l l make generally 
available to i t s security holders as soon as practicable after the effective 
date of the applicable Registration St:atement an eamings statement satisfying 
the provisions of Section 11(a) of the Act. 

(n) The Compemy sh a l l cause the Indenture or the Exchemge Securities 
Indenture, as the case may be, to be qualified under the Tmr.t Indenture Act i n 
a timely manner. 

'o) The Company may require each Holder of Securiti.ss to be sold 
pursuant tc emy Shelf Registration st:atement to furnish to the Compemy such 

5S2 
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information regart'lng such Holder and the distribution of such Securities as the 
Company may frcan >-une to time reasonably require for inclusion i n such 
Registration statement. 

(p) The Company s h a l l , i f requested by the Managing Underwriters or 
the Holders of Securities covered by such Shelf Registration Statement 
incorporate i n a Prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment to a Shelf 
Registration Statement, such information with respect to such Managing 
Underwriters and Holders UE such Managing Underwriters and Majority Holders 
reasoneOily agree should be included therein and shall make a l l required f i l i n g s 
of such Prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment as soon as pra c t i c a l l y 
possiLle after written notification of the matters to be incorporated i n such 
Prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment. 

(q) In the case of any Shelf Registration Statement, the Company s h a l l 
enter into such agreements (including underwriting agreements) and take a l l 
other appropriate actions i n order to expedite or f a c i l i t ite the registration or 
the Jisposition of the Securities or the Exchange Securities, as the case may 
be, ind i n conn-jction therewith, i f an underwriting agreement i s entered into, 
cause the same to contain indemnification provisions and procedures no less 
favoredile than those set forth i n Section 6 (or such other provisions and 
procedures acceptable to the Majority Holders and the Manag r.g Underwriters, i f 
any) with respect to a l l parties to be indemnified pursuant to Section 6. 

(r) I f a Shelf Registration Statement i s f i l e d pursuant to Section 3, 
the Compemy s h a l l make reasonably availaLle for inspection by any s e l l i n g Holder 
cf such Securities being sold, any underwriter participating i n any such 
disposition of Securities, i f emy, and emy attomey, accountant or other agent 
retained by any such s e l l i n g Holder or underwriter (collectively, the 
"Inspectors"), at the offices where normally kept, during reasonable business 

hours, a l l fin a n c i a l and other records, pertinent corporate documents and 
properties of the Company and i t s subsidiaries (collectrvely, the "Records ) as 

shall be reasonably necessary to enable them to exercise any applicable due 
diligence r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s , and cause the officers, directors and employees of 
the Company and i t s subsidiaries to supply a l l relevant information i n each case 
reasonably requested by any such Inspector i n connection with such Registration 
Statement; provided, however, that the foregoing inspection and information 
gathering s h a l l coordinated on behalf of the Holders by the I n i t i a l 
Purchasers and on behalf of the other parties by one counsel designated by the 
I n i t i a l Purchasers. Records which the Company determines, i n good faith, to Be 
confidential and any records which the Company notifies the Inspectors are 
confidential s h a l l net be disclosed by the Inspectors unless ( i ) the disclosure 
of such Records i s necessary to avoid or correct a material misstatement or 
omission i n such Registration Statement, 
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( i i ) the release of such Records i s ordered pursuant to a subpoena or other 
order from a court of competent ju r i s d i c t i o n or i s necessary i n connection 
with emy action, suit or proceeding or ( i i i ) the information i n such 
Records has been made generally availeU3le to the public. Each s e l l i n g 
Holder of such Securities w i l l be required as a condition to the receipt of 
such information to agree i n writing that information obtained by i t as a 
result of such inspections s h a l l be deemed crnfideutial emd s h a l l not be 
used by i t as the basis for any market transactrons in the securities of 
the Conipany unless emd u n t i l such i s made generally available to the 
public. Each s e l l i n g Holder of such Securities w i i l be required to further 
agzei i n writing that i t w i l l , upon learning that disclosure of such 
Re'-ords i s sought in a court of competent jurisdiction, give notice to the 
Comp my emd allow t i e Compemy at i t s expense to undert;ake appropriate 
action to prevent disclosure of the Records deemed confidential; ( i i i ) make 
such representations amd warranties to the Holders of securities registered 
thereunder and the underwriters, i f emy, i n form, substance and scope as 
are customarily made by Issuers to underwriters i n primary underwritten 
offerings emd covering matters including, but not limited to, those set 
forth i n the Purchase Agreement; ( i v ) obtain opinions of counsel to the 
Conpemy emd updates thereof (idiich counsel emd opinions (in form, scope and 
substance) s h a l l b4i reasonedily satisfactory to the Memaging Ihiderwriters, 
i f any) addressed to each s e l l i n g Holder emd t i e underwriters, i f emy, 
covering such u t t e r s as are customarily covered i n opinions requested i n 
underwritten offerings emd such other matters as may be reasonably 
requested by such Holders and underwriters ( i t being agreed that the 
matters to be covered by such opinion may be subject to customary 
qualifications and exceptions); (v) obtain "cold comfort" le t t e r s emd 
updates tiereof from the independent c e r t i f i e d public accountemts of the 
Company (and. I f necessary, any other independent c e r t i f i e d public 
accountants of any subsidiary of the Conpemy or of any business acquired by 
the Compemy for which finemcial statements and financial data are, or are 
required to be, included i n the Registration Statement), addressed to each 
s e l l i n g Holder of Securities registered tiereunder emd the underwriters, i f 
emy, i n customary form and covering matters of the type custonarily covered 
i n "cold comfort" le t t e r s i n connection with primary underwritten 
offerings; emd (vl ) deliver such documents and certrficates as nay be 
reasonably re<Tue8t:ed by the Majority Holders emd the Memaging Underwriters, 
i f any, in c l u i i n g those to evidence coomllemce with Section 4(k) emd with 
any customary conditions contained i n the underwriting agreement or other 
agreement entered into by the Conpemy. The foregoing actions set forth i n 
clauses ( i l l ) , ( i v ) , (v) and (vi ) of this Section 4(r) s h a l l be performed 
at (A) the effectiveness of such Registration Statement and each post-
effective amendment thereto and (B) each closing under emy underwriting or 
similar agreement as and to the extent required thereunder. 

5. Registration Expenses. The Coo^emy s h a l l bear a l l expenses 

incurred i n connection witli the performance of i t s obligations under Sections 2, 
3 and 4 hereof and, i u the event of any Shelf Registration Statement, w i l l 
reimburse the Holders for the 
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reasonable fees and disbursements of one firm or counsel, reasonably 
satisfactory to the Company, designated by the Majority Holders to act as 
counsel for the Holders i n connection therewith, and, i n the case ot any 
Exchange Offer Registration Statement, w i l l reimburse the Purchasers for the 
reasonable fees and disbursements of one counsel, reasonably satisfactory to the 
Company, acting i n connection therewith. 

6. Indemnification and Contribution. (a) In connection with any 

Registration Statement, the Company agrees to indemnity and hold harmless each 
Holder of Securities or Exchange Securities, as the caua may be, covered thereby 
(including each Purchaser and, with respect to any Prospectus delivery as 
contemplated i n Section 4(h) hereof, each Exchanging' D-.aler), the directors, 
o f f i c e r s , employees and agents of each sucb Holder and each person who controls 
any such Holder within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Act or Section 20 
of the Exchange Act against any and a l l losser., claims, damfeges or l i a b i l i t i e s , 
j o i n t or several, to which they or any of them may become subject under the Act, 
the Exchange Act or other Federal or state statutory law or regulation, at 
conmon law or otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims, damages or l i a h i l l t i e s 
(or actions i n respect thereof) arise out of or ere based upon any untrue 
statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained m the 
Registration Statement as originally f i l e d or i u any amendment thereof, or i n 
any preliminary Prospectus or Prospectus, or i n any amendment thereof or 
supplement thereto, or arise out of or are based upon the omission or alleged 
omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therejin or 
necessary to make the stiatements therein not misleading, and agrees to reimburse 
each such indemnified party for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred 
by them i n connection with investigating or defending any such loss, claim, 
damage, li e O i i l i t y or action as such expenses are incurred; provided, 

that the Company w i l l not be lia b l e i n any case to the extent that any such 
loss, claim, damage or l i a b i l i t y arises out of or i s based upon any such untrue 
statement or alleged untme statement or omission or alleged omission made 
therein i n reliance upon and i r conformity with written information furnished to 
the company by or on behalf of any such Holder s p e c i f i c a l l y for inclusion 
therein. This indemnity agreement w i l l be i n addition to any l i a b i l i t y which 
the Compamy may otherwise have. 

The Company also agrees to indemnify or contribute to Losses of, a* 
provided i n Section 6(d), any underwriters of Securities or Exchange Securities 
registered under a Shelf Registration Statement, their officers and directors 
and each person who controls such underwriters on substantially the same basis 
^ that of the indemnification of the Purchaser and the s e l l i n g Holders provided 
in t h i s Section 6(a) and s h a l l , i f requested by any Holder, enter into an 
underwriting agreement reflecting such agreement, as provided i n Section 4(q) 
hereof. 

(b) Each Holder of Securiti.es ox Exchemge Securities covered by a 
Registration Statement (including each Purchaser and, with respect to any 
P r l s j e " u s delivery as contemplated fn Section 4(h) hereof, each Exchanging 
Dealer) severally agrees to 
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i a t h ^ ^ h T ^ f ^ f l t harmless ( i ) the Company, ( i i ) ea.̂ h of i t s directors, ( i l l ) 
each of I t s officers who signs such Registration Statement and (iv ) each person 
q^oi-?o«''5n^%'^u Company within the meaning of either Section 15 of S e A?? or 
f t ^ l r ^ J r °^ the Exchange Act to the same extent as the foregoing indemnity 
from the Company to each such Holder, but only with reference to claims and 
r^^^^t K***** "P"^ information relating to such Holder furnished to the 

^1-^^ °% °* Holder sp e c i f i c a l l y for inclusion i n the 
documents referred to i n the foregoing indemnity. This indemnity agreement w i l l 
be m addition to any l i a b i l i t y which any such Holder may otherwise h l ^ 

6 of r^f^i i t^i^l / f^^^^ receipt by an indemnified party under this Section 
6 of notice of the commencement of any action, such indemnified party will, if a 
iec^oi^'fi'^^^Sf-f '^t''^'?^.^^ ^2 ̂  against the indemnifying ?a"? Sdei ILl 
i u t i^h- indemnifying party in writing of the JonieScement thereof; 
?iabnfi-v .^inf^ ^° ^° ""^'-^y indenmifying party ( i ) w i l l not relieve i t f r o i 
i h ^ e x t e n t ^ ^ 5iS ""̂ n ' ^ ' ' ^ ° l paragraph (d) below unless and to 
t^t otherwise leam of such action and such failure results i n 
^ t f i wfi? indemnifying party of substantial rights and defenses and 

I r Z } A '• t^^^""^ event, relieve the indemnifying party from any obligations 
to any indemnified party ether than the indemnification obligation providid in 
f n u ^ t l f ^ ^ / t i °- i ^ ' indemnifying party s h a l l be^enti?led ̂ o appoint 
counsel of the indemnifying party's choice i t the indemnifying party's expense 
s o u S h ^ T f r ^ f ^ h ^ ^ ^ ^ y ^ - ^ P ^ r t y in any action for ^ r a e ^ f L I t i o H s 
f o l J ' ^ L ^ i - 5 ^ ® indemnifying party shall not thereafter be responsible 
for the fees and expenses of any separate couns-i retained by the indemnified 
party or parties except as set forth below); provided, however, that such 

counsel s h a l l be reasonably satisfactory to the indemnifled"party. 
Notwithstandincr the indemnifying party's election to appoint counsel to 
^hS'tf*'?^ indemnified party i n an action, the indemnified party s h a l l have 
the right to employ separate counsel (including local counsel); however, the 
mdemnifymg party s h a l l bear the reasonable fees, costs and eipenses of such 
^rin^^»^?^f*^ "̂""t ^t^-"*^ counsel) only i f (1) Uie use of c o S ^ e r c S o s ^ by 
the indemnifying party to represent the indemnified party would present such 
^ T ^ t t l r " " / c o n f l i c t of interest, ( i i ) the actual or potential defendants i n , 
or targets of, any such action mclude both the indemnified party and the 
indemnifying party and the indemnified party shall have reasonably concluded 

of counsel that there may be legal defenses available to i t and/or 
other indemnified parties which are different from or additional to those 
available tc the indemnifying party, ( i l l ) the indemnifying party s h a l l not have 
employed counsel reasonably satisfactory to the indemnified party to represent 
^ i e indemnified party within a reasonable time after notice of t i e institution 
ot such action or ( i v ) the indemnifying party shall authorize the indemnified 
party to employ separate counsel at the expense of the indemnifying partv An 
indemnifying party w i l l not, without the prior written consent of the 
indemnified parties, s e t t l e or compromise or consent 1u> the entry of any 
Dudgment with respect to emy pending or threatened claim, action, suit or 
proceeding in respect of which indemnification or contribution nay be sought 
hereunder (whether or not the indemnified parties are actual or potential 
parties to such claim or action) unless such settlement. 
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compromise or consent includes an unconditional release of each indemnified 
party from a l l l i a b i l i t y arising out of such claim, action, s u i t or proceeding. 
An indemnifying party s h a l l not be l i a b l e under th i s section 6 to any 
indemnified party regarding any settlement or compromise or consent to the entry 
of any judgment with respect to any pending or threatened claim, action, suit or 
proceeding in respect of which indemnification or contribution may be sought 
hereunder (whether or not the indemnified parties are actual or potential 
parties to such claim or action) unless such settlement, compromise, or consent 
lii consented to by such indemnifying party, which consent s h a l l not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

(d) In the event that '̂ xe indemnity provided in paragraph (a) or (b) 
of t h i s Section 6 i s unavailable to or insufficient to holi harmless an 
indemnified party for any reason, then each applicable indemnifying party, m 
lie u of indemnifying such indemni fled party, s h a l l have a j o m t and several 
obligation to contribute to the aggregate losses, claims, damages and 
l i a b i l i t i e s (including legal or other expenses reasonably incurred i n connection 
with investigating or defending same) (collectively "Losses") to which such 
indemnified party nay be subject i n such proportion as i s appropriate to reflect 
the r e l a t i v e benefits received by such indemnifying party, on the one hand, and 
such indemnified party, on the other hand, from the I n i t i a l Placement and the 
Registration Statement which resulted i n such Losses; provided, however, that i n 

no case s h a l l any Purchaser or any subsequent Holder of any Security or Exchange 
Security be responsible, i n the aggregate, for any amount i n excess of the 
purchase discount or commission applicable to such Security, or m the case of 
an Exchange Security, applicable to the Security which was exchangeable into 
such Exchange Security, as set forth on the cover page of the Fina l Memorandum, 
nor s h a l l any underwriter be responsible for any amount m excess of the 
underwriting discount or commission applicable to the securities purchased by 
such underwriter under the Registration Statement which resulted i n such l-osses. 
I f the allocation provided by the inmiedlately preceding sentence i s unavailable 
for any reason, the indemnifying party and the indemnified party s h a l l 
contribute i n such proportion as I s appropriate to re f l e c t not only such 
relative benefits but also the relative fault of such indemnifying party, on the 
one hand, and such indemnified party, on the other hand, m connection with the 
statements or omissions lAich resulted i n such Losses as well *» other 
relevant equitable considerations. Beliefits received by the Company shall be 
deemed to be equal to the sum of (x) the total net proceeds from the In^^tial 
Placement (before deducting expenses) as set forth on the cover page of the 
Final Memorandum and (y) the tot a l amount of additional interest which the 
company was not required to pay as a result of registering the ,. 
covered by the Registration Statement which resulted m such Losses, Benefits 
received by the Purchasers s h a l l be deemed to be equal to the t o t a l purchase 
discounts and commissions as set forth on the cover page of the F m al 
Memorandum, and benefits received by any other Holders s h a l l be deemed to be 
e J J a l ^ o ^ e valuTof the net proceeds received by such Holder from the sale of 
securities or Exchange Securities, as applicable, registered under the Act. 
Benefits rec. xved by any underwriter s h a l l be deemed to be equal to the total 
u ^ d e r i r i t i ^ g discounts Lxd commissions, as set forth on the cover page of the 
Prospectus forming a part of the R«!gistration Statement 
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which resulted i n such Losses, Relative fault s h a l l be detennined by reference 
to whether any alleged untrue statement or omission relates to information 
provided by the indemnifying party, on the one hand, or by the indemnified 
party, on the other hand, the intent of the parties and their relative 
knowledge, access to iuformation and opportunity to correct or prevent such 
untrue statement or omission. The parties agree that i t would not be ju s t and 
equitable i f contribution were detennined by pro rata allocation or emy otier 
method of allocation which does not take account of the equitable considerations 
referred to eibove. Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph (d), no 
person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meeming of Section 
11(f) of the Act) sh a l l be entitled to contribution from any person \ibo was not 
guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. For purposes of this Section 6, 
each person who controls a Holder within the meaning of either Section 15 of the 
Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act and each director, officer, employee emd 
agent of such Holder s h a l l have the same rights to contribution as such Holder, 
and each person who controls the Company within the meeming of either tne Act or 
the Exchemge Act, each off i c e r of the Company who s h a l l have signed the 
Registration Statement and each director of the Company shall have the same 
rights to contribution as the Company, subject i n each case to the appliceUsle 
terms emd conditions of this paragraph (d). 

(e) The provisions of this Section 6 w i l l remain i n f u l l force emd 
effect, regardless of any investigation made by or on bcialf of any Holder, the 
Company or any of the of f i c e r s , directors or controlling persons referred to i n 
this Section 6, and w i l l survive the sale by a Holder of securities covered by a 
Registration Statement. 

7. Miscellameous. 

(a) No Inconsistent Agreements. The Compemy has not, as of the date 

hereof, entered into, nor s h a l l i t , on or after the date hereof, enter into, emy 
agreement with respect to the Securities that i s inconsistent with the rights 
granted to the Holders herein or otherwise conflicts with the provisions hereof. 

(b) Amendments and Waivers. The provisions of this Agreement, 

including the provisions of this sentence, may not be amended, qualified, 
modified or supplemented, emd waivers or consents to departures from the 
prct^isions hereof may not be given, unless the Conroany has obtained the written 
consent of the Holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding aggregatie 
principal amount of Securities (or, after the consiumnation of any Exchemge Offer 
m accordemce with Section 2 hereof, of Exchange Securities); provided that, 

with respect to any matter that directly or indirectly affects the rights of emy 
Purchaser hereunder, the Company shall obtain the written consent of each such 
Purchaser against which such amendment, qualification, supplement, waiver or 
consent i s to be effective. Notwithstanding the foregoing (except the foregoing 
proviso), a waiver o:: consent to departure from the provisions hereof with 
respect to a matter chat relates exclusively to the rights of Holders whose 
Securities are being sold pursuant to a Registration 
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Statement and that does not directly or indirectly affect the rights of other 
Holders may be given by the Majority Holders, detennined on the basis of 
securities being sold rather tiar> registered under such Registration Statement. 

(c) Notices. A l l notices emd other conmunications provided for or 

permitted hereunder s h a l l be made in writing by hand-delivery, f i r s t - c l a s c mail, 
telex, telecopier, or a i r courier guaremteeing overnight delivery: 

(1) i f to a Holder, at the most current address given by such Holder 
to the Company i n accordance witi the provisions of t h i s Section 7 ( c ) , which 
address i n i t i a l l y i s , with respect to each Holder, the address of such Holder 
maintained by the Registrar under the indenture, with a copy in l i k e numner to 
Salomon Brothers Inc; 

(2) i f to you, i n i t i a l l y at the address set forth i n the Purchase 
Agreement; a nd 

(3) i f to the Company, i n i t i a l l y at i t s address set forth i n the 
Purchase Agreement. 

A l l such notices and communlcation.'s s h a l l be deemed to have be«ui duly 
-iven: at the time delivered by hand, i f personally delivered; five Business 
tiays after being deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, i f nailed; when 
answered back. I f telexed; when receipt i s acknowledged, i f telecopied; a.ad on 
the next Business Day, i f timely delivered to an a i r courier guaranteeing 
overnight delivery. 

The Purchasers or the Compemy by notice to the otier may designate 
additional or different addresses or telex or telecopy numbers for subsequcent 
notices or communications. 

(d) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement s h a l l inure to the benefit 

of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of each of the parties, 
including, without the need for an express assignment or any consent by the 
Company thereto, subsequent Holders of Securities and/or Exchange Securities. 
The Company hereby agrees to extend the benefits of t h i s Agreement to any Holier 
of Securities and/or Exchange Securities and any such Holder may s p e c i f i c a l l y 
enforce the provisions of this Agreement as i f an original party hereto. 

(e) Counterparts. This Agreement nay be executed in any number of 

counterparts and by the parties hereto i n separate counterparts, each of which 
when so executed s h a l l be deemed to be an o'-iginal and a l l of which taken 
togetier s h a l l constitute one and the same .mreenent. 
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(f) Headings. The headings i n this Agreement are for convenience of 

reference only and sha l l not l i m i t or otherwise affect the meaning hereof. 

(g) Goveming Law. This Agreement shall be govemed by emd construed 

in accordance with the Intemal laws of the State of New York applicable to 
agreements made emd to be performed i n said State. 

(h) Severability. In the event that emy one or nore of the provisions 

contained herein, or the application thereof i n any circunstances, i s held 
invalid, i l l e g a l or unenforceeible i n any respect for any reason, the va l i d i t y , 
l e g a l i t y and enforceediility of emy such provision i n every other respect and of 
the remaining provisions hereof s h a l l not be i n any way impaired or affected 
thereby, i t being intended that a l l of the rights and privileges cf the parties 
s h a l l be enforceable to the f u l l e s t extent permitted by law. 

(1) Securities Held by the Conpany, etc. Whenever the consent or 

approval of Holders of a specified percentage of principal anount of Securities 
or Exchemge Securities i s required hereunder. Securities or Exchange Securities, 
as applicable, held by the Conpany or i t s A f f i l i a t e s (other them subsequent 
Holders of Securities or Exchemge Securities i f such subsequent Holders are 
deemed to be A f f i l i a t e s solely by reason of their holdings of such Securities ox 
Exchemge Securities) s h a l l not be counted i n determining whether such consent or 
approval was given by the Holders of such required percentage. 
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Please confirm that the foregoing correctly sets foxth the agreement 
between the Compemy emd you. 

Very truly yours, 

CSX CORPORATION 

By: / s / David D. Owen 

Neuie: David D. Owen 
T i t l e : Managing .ji.rer.tor-

Corporate Fine nee 

Accepted i n New York, New Yor* 

May 6, 1997 

SALOMON BROTHERS INC 

By: /«/ Fred Larsen 

Neune: Fred Larsen 
T i t l e : Vice President 
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ANNEX A 

Each broker-dealer that receives Exchange Securities f o r i t s own account 
pursuant t o the Exchemge Offer must acxnowledge t h a t i t w i l l d e l i v e r a 
prospectus i n connection w i t h emy resale of such Exchemge Se c u r i t i e s . The 
Letter of Transmittal states t h a t by so acknowledging and by d e l i v e r i n g a 
prospectus, a broker-dealer w i l l not be deemed t o admit t h a t i t i s an 
"underwriter" w i t h i n the meaning of t i e Securities Act. This Prospectus, as i t 
may be eunended or supplementei from time t o time, may be used by a broker-dealer 
i n connection w i t h resales of Exchemge Securities received i n exchange f o r 
Securities where such Exchange Sec u r i t i e s were acquired by such broker-dealer as 
a r e s u l t of market-making a c t i v i t i e s or other t r a d i n g a c t i v i t i e s . The Company 
has agreed t h a t , s t a r t i n g on the E x p i r a t i o n Date (ai- defined i n the Exch'^nge 
Offer) emd ending on the close of business 180 days a f t e r the consummation of 
the Exchange Offer, i t w i l l make t h i s Prospectus ava.i.lable t o any broker-dealer 
f o r use i n c^ruicction w i t h any such resale. See "Plan of D i s t r i b u t i o n " . 
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ANNEX B 

Each broker-dealer that receives Exchemge Securities for i t s own account in 
exchemge for Securities, where such Securities were acquired by such broker-
dealer as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, must 
acknowledge that i t will deliver a prospectus in connection with any sale or 
transfer of the Exchemge Securities. See "Plan of DlBtribution." 
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ANNEX C 

PLAN OF DISTRIBtrriON 

Each broker-dealer t h a t receives Exchange Securities f o r i t s own 
account pursuant t o the Exchange Offer "»ust acknowledge t h a t i t w i l l d e l i v e r a 
prospectus i n connection w i t h any resale of sucb Exchemge Securities. This 
Prospectus, as i t may be eunended or supplemented from time t o time, may be used 
by a broker-dealer i n connection w i t h resales of Exchemge Securities received i n 
exchange for Securities where such Securities were acquired as a r e s u l t of 
market-making a c t i v i t i e s or other t r a d i n g a c t i v i t i e s . The Company has agreed 
t h a t , s t a r t i n g on the Expiration Date emd ending on the close of business on the 
f i r s t anniversary of the E x p i r a t i o n Date, i t w i l l make t h i s Prospectus, as 
amended or supplemented, av a i l a b l e t o amy broker-dealer f o r use i n connection 
w i t h any such resale. 

The Company w i l l not receive any proceeds from any sale of Exchange 
Securities by broker-dealers. Exchange Securities received by broker-dealers 
f o r t h e i r own account pursuant t o the Exchange Offer may be sold from time t o 
time i n one or more tremsactions i n the over-the-counter market, i n negotiated 
transactions, through the w r i t i n g of options on the Exchange Securities or a 
combination of such methods of resale, a t market prices p r e v a i l i n g at the time 
of resale, a t prices r e l a t e d t o such p r e v a i l i n g market prices or negotiated 
pr i c e s . Any such resale may be made d i r e c t l y t o purchasers or t o or through 
brokers or dealers who may receive compensation i n the form of commissions or 
concessions from emy such broker-dealer and/or the purchasers of emy such 
Exchange Securities. Any broker-dealer t h a t r e s e l l s Exchange Securitie.s t h a t 
were received by i t f o r i t s own account pursuemt t o the Exchange o f f e r emd any 
broker or dealer t i a t p a r t i c i p a t e s i n a d i s t r i b u t i o n of such Exchange Securities 
may be deemed t o be an "underwriter" w i t h i n the meaning of the Act and emy 
p r o f i t from any such resale of Exchange Securities and any commissions or 
concessions received by emy such persons may be deemed t o be underwriting 
compensation under the Act. The L e t t e r of Transmittal states that by 
acknowledging t h a t i t w i l l d e l i v e r emd by d e l i v e r i n g a prospectus, a broker-
dealer w i l l not be deemed t o admit t h a t i t i s an "underwriter" w i t h i n the 
meaning of the Act. 

For a period of 180 days a f t e r f.e consummation of the Exchange Offer, 
the Company w i l l promptly send a d d i t i o n a l copies of t h i s Prospectus emd any 
amendment or supplement t o t h i s Prospectus t o any broker-dealer t h a t requests 
such documents i n the L e t t e r of Transmittal. The Company has agreed t o pay a l l 
expenses in c i d e n t t o the Exchange Offer ( i n c l u d i n g the expenses of one counsel 
f o r the holders of the S e c u r i t i e s ) other than commissions or concessions of any 
brokers or dealers and v i l l indemnify t i e holders of the Securities ( i n c l u d i n g 
any broker-dealers) against c e r t a i n l i e a > i l i t i e s , i n c l u d i n g l i e J j i l i t i e s imder the 
Act. 
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[ I f applicable, add infoi-mation required by Regulation S-K Items 507 
and/or 508.1 
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ANNEX D 

[ ] CHECK HERE I F YOU ARE A BROKER-DEALER AND WISH TO RECEIVE 
ADDITIONAL COPIES OF THE PROSPECTUS AND COPIES OF ANY AMENDMENTS 
OR SUPPLEMENTS THERETO. 

Neune: 

Address : 

Number of copies: 

The undersigned represents that i t i s not an a f f i l i a t e of the Company, that 
emy Exchange Securities to be received by i t w i l l be acquired i n the ordinary 
course of business and t i a t at the time of the commencement of the Registered 
Exchemge Offer i t had no arremgement with emy person to participate i n a 
distribution of Exchemge Securities. 

In addit.lon, i f the undersigned i s not a broker-dealer, the undersigned 
represents that I t i s not engaged in, emd does not intend to engage in, a 
distribution of Exchemge Securities. I f the undersigned i s a broker-dealer that 
w i l l receive Exchange Securities for i t s own account i n exchange for Securities, 
i t represents that the Securities to be exchemged for Exchemge Securities were 
acquired by i t as a result of market-making a c t i v i t i e s or otier trai.lng 
a c t i v i t i e s and acknowledges that i t w i l l deliver a prospectus i n connection with 
any resale of such Exchange Securities; however, by so acknowledging and by 
delivering a prospectus, the undersigned w i l l not be deemed to admit that i t i s 
am "underwriter" within l i e meaning of the Securities Act. 
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EXHIBIT 12.1 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTIOH> 

CSX Corporat ion 
R a t i o of E a m i n g s to F i x e d Charges 

( D o l l a r s i n m i l l i o n s ) 

For the Fiscal 

<S> 

Quarters Ended For the Fiscal leais Ended 

Mar. 28, Har. 29, Dec. 27, Dec. 29, Dec. 30, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, 
1997 1996 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 

in9S in9S 
<C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> 

Earnings (loss) before ineoae taxes $ 233 $ 224 $1,316 $ 974 $1,006 $ 63j $ (7) 
Interest expense 84 60 249 270 281 29S 276 
iBorUzation of debt discount ... — 2 2 3 1 1 
Interest portion of fixed rent 41 47 119 184 206 206 216 
Dndistribated eamings (loss) of unconsolidated 

subsidiaries (1) (2) (6) 3 10 7 (2) 
Kinority interest 10 1 42 32 21 14 15 

Earnings, as Adjusted $ 374 
BZ=== 

$ 337 
S X S 3 S 

$1,792 $1,465 
sssrsx 

$1,527 $1,159 $499 

Fixed Charges 
Interest expense 
CapiUlized interest expense 
AaorUzation of debt discount 
Interest porUon of fixed rent 

Fixed Charges 

Batlo of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

</TABLE> 

i 84 $ 60 $ 249 $ 270 $ 281 $ 298 $276 
1 1 5 6 9 6 6 

— ... 2 2 3 1 1 
48 47 119 184 206 206 216 

$ 133 $ 108 $ 445 $ 462 $ 499 $ SU $499 
xxszz sxsrx S3 BZSZS ====== ====== ====== 

2.3X 3.1x 4.Ox 3.2X 3.1X 2.3x 1.0K 
S 3 S S S sasfis z: ====== ssssss •sss 
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EXHIBIT 15.1 

AWARENESS LETTER OF PRICE WATERHOUSE LLP, INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

June 2, 1997 

Securities emd Exchange Commission 
450 F i f t h Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

Dear S i r s : 

We are aware t h a t CSX Corporation has incorpornted by reference our report 
dated A p r i l 16, 1997 r e l a t e d t o Conrail Inc. (l.^sued pursuant t o the provisions 
of statement on Auditing Standards No. 71) i n i t s .:'.eglstration St;ateaient on 
Form S-4 t o be f i l e d on June 4, 1997. We are also aware of our r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s 
under the Securities Act of 1933. 

Very t r u l y yours, 

/s/ Price Waterhouse LLP 
Th i r t y South Seventeenth Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 
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EXHIBIT 23.1 

CONSENT OF ERNST C YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

We consent to the references to our firm under the captions "Selected 
Historical Financial Data for the Conpemy" and "Experts" i n the Registration 
Statement (Form S-4) and related Prospectus of CSX Corporation emd 
subsidiaries, and to the incorporation by reference therein of our report dated 
January 31, 1997 (except for Note 2, as to which the date i s March 7, 1997), 
with respect to the consolidated financial statements of CSX Corporation and 
subsidiaries included i n i t s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 27, 1996, f i l e d with the Securities and Exchemge Commission. 

/ s / Emst t Young LLP 
Richmond, Virginia 
May 30, 1997 
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EXHIBIT 23 .2 

CONSENT OF PRICE WATERHOUSE LLP, INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference i n the Prospectus 
constituting part of this Registration statement on Form S-4 of CSX Corporation 
of our report dated January 21, 1997, except as to Note 2, which i s as of March 
7, 1997, on the consolidated finemcial statements of Conrail Inc. for the year 
ended December 31, 1996, which appears in the Current Report on Form 8-K of CSX 
Corporation f i l e d June 4, 1997. We also consent to the references to us under 
the heading "Experts" i n such Prosjiectus. 

/ s / Price Waterhouse LLP 
Philadelphia, PA 

JUne 2, 1997 
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EXHIBIT 24.1 

POWERS OF ATTORNEY OF CERTAIN DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY 
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POWER OF ATTOR^Y 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that t i e undersigned off i c e r or 
director of CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby 
constitutes emd appoints Alem A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, 
and each of tiem acting individually, his or her true and lawful attomeys-in-
fact emd agents with f u l l power of substitution and resubstitution, for tiim or 
her and in his or her neune, place and stead, in emy emd a l l capacities, to sign 
and f i l e ( i ) one or nore Registration Statements on Form S-3 (or other 
appropriate form) for f i l i n g with the Securities and Exchemge Connlssion (the 
"Conmiission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities 
Act"), emd any other documents in support thereof or supplemental or amendatory 
thereto, w i t i respect to the issuance of debentures, notes, emd other debt 
obligations, preferred stock, common stock, common stock issuable upon exchemge 
or conversion of such debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their 
terms, are exchangeable for or convertible Into common stock, warrants or 
rights to purchase debt obligations, preferred stock or common stock, emd 
depositary shares representing fractional interests in preferred stocx, which 
w i l l generate proceeds of up to $3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign 
denominated currency), of the poration, and (11) a Registration Statement, 
and any and a l l eunendments thereto, relating to t i e offering covered thereby 
f i l e d pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, with the Commission, 
granting unto said attomeys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, f u l l power 
and authority to do and perform each and every act emd thing requisite and 
necessary or desirable to be done i n emd about the premises, as fu l l y to a l l 
intents emd purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby rat i f y i n g 
and confirming a l l that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or emy of them, or 
their substitutes or his substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by 
virtue hereof. 

IH WITNESS WBffiREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of 
Attomey this 30th day of May, 1997. 

/ s / John W. Snow 

John W. Snow 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned officer or 
director of CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby 
constitutes and appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, 
and each of them acting individually, his or her true emd lawful attomeys-in-
fact and agents with f u l l power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or 
her emd i n his or her name, place and stead, in any and a l l capacities, to sign 
and f i l e (1) one or more Registration Statements on Form S-3 (or other 
appropriate form) for f i l i n g with the Securities emd Exchange Commission (the 
"Commission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities 
Act"), and any other documents i n support tiereof or supplemental or amendatory 
thereto, with respect to t i e issuance of debentures, notes, emd other debt 
obligations, preferred stock, common stock, common stock issuedile upon exchange 
or conversion of such debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their 
terms, are exchangeable for or convertible into conmon stock, warrants or 
rights to purchase debt obligations, preferred stock or common stock, emd 
depositary shares representimg fractional interests in preferred stock, which 
w i l l c^enerate proceeds of up to $3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign 
denominated currency), of t i e Curporatlon, and (11) a Registration Statement, 
and any emd a l l eunendmerts thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby 
f i l e d pursuemt to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, with the Commission, 
granting unto said attomeys-in-f act and agents, and each of them, f u l l power 
and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and 
necessary or desirable to be done i n and about the premises, as f u l l y to a l l 
intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying 
and confirming a l l that said ati.omeys-in-/act and agents, or any of them, or 
their substitutes or his substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by 
virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of 
Attomey th i s 30th day of May, 1997. 

/ s / Paul R. Goodwin 

Paul R. Goodwin 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS t i a t the undersigned off i c e r or 
director of CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby 
constitutes emd appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, 
and each of them acting individually, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-
fact emd agents with f u l l power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or 
her and tn his or her neune, place and stead, in emy and a l l capacities, to sign 
and f i l e ( i ) one or more Registration Statements on Form s-3 (or other 
appropriate form) for f i l i n g with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
"CcNHtission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities 
Act"), amd amy otier documents i n support thereof or supplemental or amendatory 
thereto, with respect to the issuemce of debentures, notes, and other debt 
obligations, preferred stock, common stock, common stock issuable upon exchange 
or conversion of such debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their 
terns, are exchangeable for or convertible into common stock, warrants or 
riglits to purchase debt obligations, preferred stock or common stock, and 
depositary shares representing fractional interests i n preferred stock, which 
w i l l generate proceeds of up to $3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent in foreign 
denominated currency), of the Cojrporation, and ( i i ) a Registration Statement, 
emd any emd a l l amendments thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby 
f i l e d pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, with the Commission, 
gremting unto said attorneys-in-fact emd agents, and each of them, f u l l power 
emd authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and 
necessary or desirable to be done i n and about the premises, as f u l l y to a l l 
intents and purposes as he or she night or could do in person, hereby ratifying 
and confirming a l l that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or 
their substitutes or h i t substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by 
virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of 
Attomey t h i s 30th day of May, 1997. 

/«/ Janes L. Ross 

Janes L. Ross 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PR̂ .̂ ENTS that the undersigned officer or 
director of CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby 
constitutes and appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, 
emd each of tbem acting individually, his or her tme and lawful attorneys-in-
facT. and agents with f u l l power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or 
her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and a l l capacities, to sign 
and f i l e ( i ) one or more Registration Statements on Form S-3 (or other 
appropriate fonn) for f i l i n g with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
"Commission") ur^der the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities 
Act"), emd any o-ther documents in support thereof or supplemental or amendatory 
thereto, with respect to the issuance of debentures, notes, and other debt 
obligations, preferred stock, common stock, conmon stock issuedile upon exchange 
or conversion of such debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their 
terns, are exchangeable for or convertible into common stock, warremts or 
rights to purchase debt obligations, preferred stock or common stock, emd 
depositary shares representing fractional interests i n preferred stock, irtiich 
w i l l generate proceeds of up to $3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent in foreign 
denominated currency), of the Corporation, and ( i i ) a Registration Statement, 
and any and a l l amendments thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby 
f i l e d pursuemt to Rule 462(b) under the Secuiities Act, with the Commission, 
granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, f u l l power 
and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and 
necessary or desir<il>le to be done i n and edxiut the premises, as f u l l ) x.o a l l 
intents and purpô -̂ ŝ as he or she might or could do i n person, hereby ratifying 
and confirm.'ng a l l that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of thon, or 
their substita':es or his substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by 
virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of 
Attomey this 30th day of May, 1997. 

/ s / Elizabeth E. Bailey 

Elizedieth E. Bailey 

wm 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned officer or 
director of CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby 
constitutes and appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Peter J. Shudtz emd Gregory R weber 
and each of them acting individually, his or her true and lawful attomeys-in-' 
fact and agents with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or 
her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any emd all capacities, to sign 
and file (i) one or more Registration Statements on Form S-3 (or other 
appropriate form) for filing with the Securities and Exchange CcMunission (the 
"Commission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities 
Act"), and any otier clocuments in support thereof or supplemental or amendatory 
thereto, with respect to the issuemce of debentures, notes, emd other dtst-^ 
obligations, preferred stock, common stock, common stock issuable upon exchinqe 
or conversion of such debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their 
terns, are exchangeeUsle for or convertible into common stock, warrants or 
rights to purchase debt obligations, preferred stock or conmon stock, emd 
depositary shares representing fractional interests in preferred stock, which 
will generate proceeds of up to $3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent in foreign 
denominated currency), of the Corporation, and (11) a Registration Statement, 
and any and all amendments thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby 
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, with the Commission, 
granting unto said attomeys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power 
and authority to do emd perform each and every act emd thing requisite and 
necessary or desiredile to be done in emd about the premises, as fully to all 
"»*-«nts and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifyinq 
and confirming all that said attomeys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or 
their substitutes or his substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done bv 
virtue hereof. ' 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of 
Attomey this 2nd day of April, 1997, 

/ s / Robert L. Burrus, J r . 

Robert L. Burrus, J r . 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned officer or 
director of CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby 
constitutes and appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Peter J. Shudtz emd Gregory R. Weber, 
and each of them acting individually, his or her true and lawful attomeys-in-
fact emd agents with fu l l power of substitution emd resubstitution, for him or 
her and in his or her name, place emd stead, in emy emd a l l capacities, to sign 
and f i l e (i) one -r nore Registration Statements on Form S-3 (or other 
appropriate form) for filing with the Securities and Exchemge Conmiission (the 
"Commission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities 
Act"), and any other documents in support thereof or supplemental or amendatory 
thereto, with respect to the issuemce of debentures, notes, and other debt 
obligations, preferred stock, conmon stock, common stock issuable upon exchange 
or conversion of such debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their 
terms, are exchangeable for or convertible into common stock, warrants or 
lights to purchase debt obligations, preferred stock or common stock, and 
depositary shares representing fractional interests in preferred stock, which 
will generate proceeds of up to $3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent in foreign 
denominated currency), of the Corporation, and ( i i ) a Registration Statement, 
and any emd a l l ameiidments tiiereto, relating to the offering covered thereby 
filed puisuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, with the Commission, 
grantinc unto said attorneys-in-fact emd agents, and each of tiem, f u l l power 
and authority to do emd perform each and every act emd thing requisite and 
necessary or desirable to be done in and about the premises, as fully to a l l 
intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifyimg 
and confirming a l l that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, cr 
their substitutes or his substi.tute, may lawfully do or cause to be done bj 
virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of 
Attorney this 1st day of April, 1997. 

/s/ Bruce C. Gottwald 

Bruce C. Gottwald 

mm mm 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned officer or direc-toT-
CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "CorporI?ion-" h " e 2 J c ^ n s t S ^ t l f 
and appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz and Gregory R Webert l^d each of 
them acting mdividually, h is or her tme and lawful attorneys-in-fa^ a^d 
agents with f u l l power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or h " and i n 

^« name, place and stead, i n any and a l l capaciti4s, t o ^ g S and f i l e 
(1) one or more Registration Statements on Form S-3 (or oth4r appropriate forai 
for f i l m g with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "CoSSislion"T uSdfr 
the securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities A c t " ) , ^ l i y o t h ^ 
docunents i n supp-.rt thereof or supplenental or amt>.ndatory th4rt?o, ̂ t h rispect 

issuance or debentures, notes, and other debt obligations, preferred 
sto<:k, common stock issuable upon exchange or conv4rsion of such 

debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their t e L s ? are e l ^ h ^ S e ^ l l S r 
^^1?°°^^""^^* vagrants oi rights to pd-chLl deb?^ 
obligations, preferred stock or conmon stock, and depositary shares reDr*.s*.ni-iT,r, 
f?*n^i°?^i i ? ^ * ^ * * ^ * . ^ preferred stock, which w i l l fenemfe Jrocllds of u ^ t o ^ 
$3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign denominated currlncyT? of the 
Corporation, and ( i i ) a Registration Statement, and any and a l l ki4ndments 
thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby f i l e d p u r s S a n t ^ ^ ? ^ l62<b) 
under the Securities Act, with the Conmission, granting into said attorneys-in-
I t n ^ agents, and each,of them, f u l l power and authority to do tnd J^rfor^ 
each and every act ard thmg requisite and necessary or desirable to b^done i n 
and about the premises, as f u l l y to a l l intents and purposes as he or she Siaht 
in f^'^l^t^ person, hereby ratifying and confinniSg a l l I b t l saiS a f t o r S t S -

agents, or any of them, or their substitutes or his substitute i f v 
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. suoscitute, may 

this 30tJ[^S5^lf*^?f°r997^'' undersigned has executed Uiis Power of Attomey 

/8/ John R. Hall 

John R. Hall 

mm-
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS t h a t the undersigned o f f i c e r or d i r e c t o r of 
CSX CORPORATION, V i r g i n i a corporation (the "Corporati. : i " ) , hereby c o n s t i t u t e s 
and appoints Alaa A. Rudnick, Peter J. Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, and each of 
them a ^ n g i n d i v i l u a l l y , h i s or her true and la w f u l a t t o m e y s - i n - f a c t and 
aaerts w i t h f u l l power of s u b s t i t u t i o n and r e s u b s t i t u t i o n , f o r him or her and i n 
h i s or her name, place and stead, i n any and a l l capacities, t o sign and f i l e 
T i ) one or more Reg i s t r a t i o n Statements on Form S-3 (or other appropriate form) 
f o r f i l i n g w i t h the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") under 
the s e c u r i t i e s Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities A c t " ) , and any other 
documents i n support thereof or supplemental or amendatory theret o , w i t h respect 
t o the issuance of debentures, notes, and other debt o b l i g a t i o n s , p r e f e r r e d 
stock, conmon stock, common stock issuable upon exchange or conversion of such 
debt o b l i g a t i o n s or preferred stock which, by t h e i r terms, are exchangeable f c r 
or c o n v e r t i b l e i n t o common stock, warrants or r i g h t s t o purchase debt 
o b l i g a t i o n s , p r e f e r r e d stock or common stock, and depositary shares representing 
f r a c t i o n a l I n t e r e s t s i n preferred stock, which w i l l generate proc^.eds of up t o 
$3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign denominated currencv), ot tne 
Corporation, and ( i i ) a Reg i s t r a t i o n statement, and any and a l l amendments 
th e r e t o , r e l a t i n g t o the o f f e r i n g covered thereby f i l e d pursuant t o Rule 462(b) 
under the S e c u r i t i e s Act, w i t h the Commission, granting unto sard a t t o r n e y s - i n -
f a c t and agents, and each of them, f u l l power and a u t h o r i t y t o do and perform 
each and every act and t h i n g r e q u i s i t e and necessary or desirable t o be done i n 
and about the premises, as f u l l y t o a l l intents and purposes as he or she might 
Cx- could do i n person, hereby r a t i f y i n g and confirming a l l t h a t said attomeys-
i i - f a c t and a g ^ s , or any of them, or t h e i r substitutes or his s u b s t i t u t e , may 
l a w f u l l y do or cause t o be done by v i r t u e hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed t h i s Power of Attomey 
t i i s 31st day of March, 1997. 

/s/ Robert D. Kunisch 

Robert D. Kunisch 

mum 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned officer or director of 
CSJ: CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby constitutes 
a:i-. appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz ard Gregory R. Weber, and each of 
th'.' acting individually, his or her true and lawful attomeys-in-fact and 
agents with f u l l power o l substitution and resubstitution, for him or her emd in 
his or her name, place emd stead, in emy and a l l capacities, to sign and f i l e 
( i ) one or more Registration Statements on Form S-3 (or other appropriate form) 
fcr filincf with the Securities and Exchemge Conmission (the "Commission") under 
the Securities Act of 1933, as aunended (the "Securities Act"), and emy other 
documents i n support thereof or supplemental or amendatory thereto, with respect 
to the issuance of debentures, notes, emd other debt obligations, preferred 
stock, common stock, common stock issuable upon exchemge or conversion of such 
debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their terms, are exchemgeable for 
or convertible into common stock, warrants or rights to purchase debt 
obligations, preferred stock or comnon stock, and depositary shares representing 
fractional interests i n preferred stock, which w i l l generate proceeds of up to 
$3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign denominated currency), of the 
Corporation, emd ( i i ) a Registration Statement, and emy emd a l l eunendments 
thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby f i l e d pursuant to Rule 462(b) 
under the Securities Act, with the Conmission, granting unto said attorneys-in-
fact emd agents, and each of them, f u l l power and authority to do and perform 
each emd every act and thing requisite emd necessary or desirable to be done i n 
and about the premises, as f u l l y to a l l intents ar.d purposes as he or she might 
or could do in person, hereby r a t i f y i n g emd confirming a l l that said attomeys-
in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their substitutes or his substitute, may 
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, has executed t h i s Power of Attomey 
this 31st day of March, 1997. 

/ s / Hugh L. McColl, J r . 

Hugh L. McColl, J r . 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned o f f i c e r or director of 
CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby constitutes 
and appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, and each of 
them acting individually, his or her true emd lawful attorneys-in-fact and 
agents with f u l l power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and i n 
his or her neune, place and stead, in any and a l l capacities, to sign emd f i l e 
( i ) one or more Registration Statements on Form S-3 (or other appropriate form) 
for f i l i n g %ri.th the Securities and Exchemge Commission (the "Commission") under 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and any other 
documents i n support tiereof or supplementuil or amendatory thereto, with respect 
to the issuance of debentures, notes, and other debt obligations, preferred 
stock, common stock, common stock issueOile upon exchange or conversion of such 
debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their terms, are exchangeetble for 
or convertible into conmon stock, warrants or rights to purchase debt 
obligations, preferred stock or conmon stock, emd depositaiy shares representing 
fractional interests i n preferred stock, which w i l l generate proceeds of up to 
$3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign denominated currency), of the 
Corporation, and (11) a Registration statement, emd any emd a l l amendments 
thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby f i l e d pursuant to Rule 462(b) 
under the Securities Act, with the Commission, gremting unto said attomeys-in-
fact emd agents, and each of them, f u l l power and authority to do and perform 
each emd every act and thing requisite and necessary or desireQ>le to be done --.n 
emd eibout the premises, as f u l l y to a l l intents emd purposes as he or she migxit 
or could do in person, hereby ratifying emd confirming a l l that said attomeys-
in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their substitutes or his substitute, may 
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of Attomey 
this 31st day of March, 1997. 

/ s / James W. McGlothlln 

James W. McGlothlln 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned officer or director of 
CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Cori>oration"), hereby constitutes 
and appoints Alem A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, emd each of 
them acting individually, his or her true and lawful attomeys-in-fact and 
agentb w i t i f u l l power of substitution emd resubstitution, for him or her emd i n 
his or her nane, place and stead, i n emy emd a l l capacities, to sign and f i l e 
( i ) one or nore Registration Statenents on Fom S-3 (or other appropriate fom) 
for f i l i n g %rith the Securities and Exchange Conmission (the "Conmission") under 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), emd any other 
docunents i n support thereof or supplemental or eunendatory thereto, with respect 
to the issuance of debentures, notes, emd other debt obligations, preferred 
stock, comnon stock, common stock IssueQile upjn exchange or conversion of such 
debt obligations or preferred stock which, by their terms, are exchangeable for 
or convertible into common stock, warremts or rights to purchase debt 
obligations, preferred stock or common stock, and depositary shares representing 
fractional interests i n preferred stock, which w i l l generate proceeds of up to 
$3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign denominated currency), of the 
Corporation, and ( i i ) a Registration Statement, and emy and a l l amendments 
thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby f i l e d pursuant to Rule 462(b) 
under the Securities Act, with the Conmission, gremting unto said attorneys-in-
fact emd agents, and each of them, f u l l power and authority to do and perform 
each emd every act and thing requisite and necessary or desireible to be done i n 
emd about the premises, as ful l y to a l l intents and purposes as he or she might 
or could do i n person, hereby ratifying emd confirming a l l that said attomeys-
in-fact and agents, or emy of them, or their substitutes or his substitute, may 
lawfully do or cau.e to be done by virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of Attomey 
this 3l8t day of March, 1997. 

/ s / Southwood J . Morcott 

Southwood J . Morcott 
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KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that che undersigned officer or director of 
CSX C^OB^IOHTa Vix-ginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby constitutes 
S d a p ^ i n t s M L I A. RSdnick, P ^er J . Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, and each of 
Sem a l t i S a individually, his or her true aoid lawful attomeys-in-fact and 
S i S t s with f S l l power of Substitution a^d resubstitution, for hin or her and i n 
h ? r c r her n i i e , ?lace and stead, i n any and a l l capacities, to sign and f i l e 
T l * one or more Registration statements on Form S-3 (or other appropriate forn) 
foi f i l i n g wi^h t h i securities ar.d Exchange Connlssion (the "Comnission") under 
th^ ^ecurfties Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and any other 
S ^ u i ^ t s i i L j p o r t thereof"r supplenental or amendatory thereto, v i t h respect 
t r S r i l s i S n c e of debentures, notes, and other debt obligations, preferred 
Sock CITOOT stock? c ^ o n stock issuable upon exchange or conversion of such 
d ^ obli™?ions^r'preferred stock which, by their ^ems, are exchangeable for 
or convertible into conmon stock, warrants or rights to purchase debt 
o b l i g S t i o n ^ preferred stock or comnon stock, and depositary shares representing 
?ractional interests i n preferred stock, which w i l l generate proceeds of up to 
$3?000;000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign denominated currency), of the 
comorition. and ( i i ) JL Registration Statenent, and any and a l l amendments 
^ e ? I l o , delating to the offering covered thereby f i l e d pursuant to Rule 462(b) 
under the Securities Act, with the Commission, granting unto said attcmeys-m-
? S S a i i a g i s t s : iSd each of them, f u l l power and authority to do perform 
each and every Act and thing requisite and necessary or desirable to be done i n 
^ d a ^ u t the pr«nises, as f u l l ^ to a l l intents and purposes as he or she might 

do in oerson hereby ratifying and confirming a l l that said attomeys-
in-1act^aJl i ^ e ^ " S i I ^ J ol ?SLi,^or^Uieir substitutes or his substitute, may 
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of Attorney 
this 31st day of March, 1997. 

/ £ / Charles E. Rice 

Charles E. Rice 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned officer or Aiymr î-,̂ ,. 
CSX C0RP9RATI0N, a Virginia corporation (Uie ̂ o ^ o r I ? i o n - " S«ebJ t ^ U S l l t t l 
and appoints Alan A. Rudnick, Petei J . Shudtz and Gregory R! Weber a^d eich o? 
them acting individually, his or her tme and lawful a?ISrn4ys-S-fal? a^d 
S f f o r I f i ^ ^ '"^^ P?""^ of substitution and resubstitution, for him or h « and i n 
his or her nane, place and stead, i n any and a l l capacities, t o ^ g n and f i l e 
iV^ " ^ f ? ??9i»tration Statements on Fom S-3^(or othAr a p ^ r l S r S e f i m i 
fo.- f i l i n g with the Securities and Exchange Comnissiin (the "CoSSissioS"! uSd^r 
the Securities Act of 1933, as anended (the "Securities Act"), a S d l i v o t h ^ 
doruments m support thereof or supplemental or amendatory th4rtto ^ i t h reL.oi-
«?.jrv* ^""ance of debentures, notes, and other de£? o w f j a t i l n s ^ p r e f ^ r e l ^ 
dih'? A K ? ? " " ? ? °°?»°° issuable upon exchange or conv4rsion o' such 
of^convir??M^'^«?' preferred stock which, by their tems, are e l c h a S J e ^ l l fSr 
?^i?^?Zf comnon stocJv, warrants or rights to purchase debt 
cbligations, preferred stock or connon stock, and depositary shares representing 

OO^oS; J?0*for?he''^f'*'f^**? f̂ °$''' r ^ ^ ^ ?enerat^ J m c l e d r ^ r u r S " " ' 
r l ^ Z L * ^ - ' 1°'.,?^* equivalent in foreign denominated currency), of the 
^ e m t o rei-??nc<io^2 Registration statement, and any and a l ? L i 4 n l i e i t l 

% relating to the offering covered thereby f i l e d pursuant to Rull 
Securities Act, with the Commission, granting Sn^o l a i d at?omeJs-iS-

fact and agents, and each of them, f u l l power aid authority to do and ^ r f o r ^ ^ 
each and every act and thing requisite aid necessary or d e s i r ^ l e to b l donr^in 
and about the premises, as f u l l y to a l l intents and pSmofes ts he or f h f ^ a i ? 
?n ^ ratifying and confinniSS^?! ?h^t i a i l atEorS^?5-

agents, or any of then, or their substitutes or his s u b s t i t u ? r M V 
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. «.u«stj.cuce, may 

thi. ™tJ['S:j^lf'^^=2f'i^^'^***"^'"«^ ^ ' •"^"'̂ '̂  ^^^°-ey 

/ s / William C. Richardson 

Willieun c. Richardson 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned officer or director of 
CSX CORPORATION, a Virginia corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby constitutes 
amd appoints Alem A. Rudnick, Peter J . Shudtz and Gregory R. Weber, emd each of 
them acting individually, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and 
agents with f u l l power of substitution emd resubstitution, for him or her and in 
his or her name, place emd stead, i n any and a l l capacities, to sign and f i l e 
(1) one or more Registration StatC2!!»nts on Form S-3 (or other appropriate form) 
for f i l i n g with the Securities emd Exchemge Conmiission (the "Commission") under 
the Securit; es Act of 1933, as amended ( t i e "Securities Act"), emd any other 
documents in support thereof or supplenental or amendatory thereto, with respect 
to the issuance of debentures, notes, and other debt obligations, preferred 
stock, ccHunon stock, conmon stock issuable upon exchange or conversion of such 
debt obligations or preferred stock irtiich, by their terms, are exchemgeable for 
or convertible into connon stock, warrants or rights to purchase debt 
obligations, preferred stock or common stock, emd depositary shares representing 
fractional interests i n preferred stock, which w i l l generate prcc eds of up to 
$3,000,000,000 (or the equivalent i n foreign denominated currency , of the 
Corporation, and ( i i ) a Registration statement, emd emy and a l l amendments 
thereto, relating to the offering covered thereby f i l e d pursuant to Rule 462(b) 
under the securities Act, with the Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-
fact and agents, and each of then, f u l l power and authority to do and perform 
each emd every act amd thing requisite emd necessary or desirable to be done in 
and about the premises, as ful l y to a l l intents and purposes as he or she might 
or could do i n person, hereby r a t i f y i n g and confirming a l l that said attomeys-
in-fact and agents, or emy of them, or their substitutes or his substitute, may 
lawfully do or cause to be ''one by virtue hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Power of Attorney 
this 1st day of April, 1997. 

/«/ Frank S. Royal 

Freuxk S. Royal 
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EXHIBIT 25 .1 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM T-1 

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY 
UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF 
A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE 

CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF 
A TRUSTEE PintSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2) 

THE CHASE KANHATTAN BANK 
(Exact name of trustee as specified i n i t s charter) 

New York 
(State of incorporation 
i f not a nat i c a l bank) 

270 Park Avenue 
New York, New York 
(Address of p r i n c i p a l executive o f f i c e s ) 

Willieun H. McDavid 
General Counsel 
270 Park Avenue 

New York, New York 10017 
Tel: (212) 270-2611 

(Name, address emd telephone number of agent f o r service) 

13-4994650 
(I.R.S, employer 

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n No.) 

10017 
(Zip Code) 

CSX CORPORATION 
(Exact name of oblig o r as specified i n i t s charter) 

V i r g i n i a 
(State or other j u r i s d i c t i o n of 
inc o r p o r a t i o n or orgemization) 

One James Center 
Richmond, V i r g i n i a 
(Address of p r i n c i p a l executive o f f i c e s ) 

62-1051971 
(I.R.S. employer 

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n No.) 

23219 
(Zip Code) 

Debt Securiti.es 
( T i t l e of the indenture s e c u r i t i e s ) 
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GENERAL 

I t e m 1 . General I n f o r m a t i o n . 

F u r n i s h t h e f o l l o w i n g i n f o r m a t i o n as t o t h e t r u s t e e : 

(a ) Name and address o f er.cb examin ing o r s u p e r v i s i n g a u t h o r i t y t o w h i c h 
i t i s s u b j e c t . 

New York S t a t e Bank ing Depar tment , S t a t e House, Albemy, Hew York 
12110. 

Board o f Governors o f t h e F e d e r a l Reserve System, Washington , D . C , 
20551 

F e d e r a l Reserve Bemk o f New Y o r k , D i s t r i c t Nc. 2 , 33 L i b e r t y S t r e e t , 
New Y o r k , N . Y . 

Fede ra l D e p o s i t I n s u r a n c e C o r p o r a t i o n , Washing ton , D . C , 20429. 

(b) Whether i t i s a u t h o r i z e d to e x e r c i s e corporate t r u s t powers. 

Yes . 

I t em 2 . A f f i l i a t i o n s w i t h t h e O b l i g o r . 

I f t h e o b l i g o r i s an a f f i l i a t e o f t h e t r u s t e e , d e s c r i b e each such 
a f f i l i a t i o n . 

None. 

- 2 -
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Item 16. L i s t of Exhibits 

L i s t below a l l exhibits f i l e d as a part of this Statement of 
E l i g i b i l i t y . 

1. A copy of the Articles of Association of the Trustee as now in 
effect, including the Organization Certificate emd the Certificates of Amendment 
dated February 17, 1969, August 31, 1977, December 31, 1980, September 9, 1982, 
February 28, 1985, December 2, 1991 and July 10, 1996 (see Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 
f i l e d i n connection with Registration Statement No. 333-06249, which i s 
incorporated by reference). 

2. A copy of l i e Certificate of Authority of t i e Trustee to Commence 
Business (see Exhibit 2 to toxs. x-1 t i l e d in connection with Registration 
Statement No, 33-50010, which i s incorporated by reference. On July 14, 1996, 
in connection with the merger of Chemical Bemk and The Chaso Manhattan Bank 
(National Association), Cnemical Bank, the surviving corporation, was reneuned 
The Chase Maiiattan Baik). 

3. None, authorization to exercise corporate emst powers being 
contained in the documents identified above as Exhibits 1 and 2. 

4. A copy of the existing By-Laws of the Trt.stee (see Exhibit 4 to 
Form T-1 f i l e d i n connection with Registration Statement No. 333-06249, which i s 
incorporated by reference). 

5. Not applicable. 

6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act 
(see Exhibit 6 to Fom T-1 f i l e d .n coimection with Registration Statement No. 
33-50010, which i s iincorporated by reference. On July 14, 1996, in connection 
with the merger of chemical Bemk an'̂  The Chase >1anhattas Bank (National 
Association), Chemical Bank, the sui viving corporation, was reneuned The Chase 
Manhattan Bank). 

7. A copy of the l a t e s t report of condition of the Trustee, published 
pursuant to law or the requirements of i t s supervising or examining authority. 

8. Not applicable. 

9. Not appliceOile. 

SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Trurt Indenture Act of 1939 the 
Tmstee, The Chase Memhattem Beuok, a corporation organized and existing under 
the laws of the state of New York, has duly caused this statement of e l i g i b i l i t y 
to be signed on i t s behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, a l l in 
the City of New York and State of New York, on the 19th day of May, 1997. 

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK 

By , s / R. J . Halleran 
R. J . Halleran 
Second Vice President 

-3-
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Exhibit 7 to Fom T - l 

Bank C a l l Notice 

RESERVE DISTRICT NO. 2 
CONSOLIDATED REPORT OF CONDITION OF 

The Chase Manhattan Bemk 
of 270 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10017 

and Foreign emd Domestic Subsidiaries, 
a member of the Federal Reserve System, 

at the close of business December 31, 1996, in 
accordance with a c a l l made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this 
D i s t r i c t pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act. 

<TAELE> 
<CAPriON> 

ASSETS Dollar Amounts 
in Millions 

<S> <C> 
Cash and balances due from depository institutions: 

Noninterest-bearing balances emd 
currency and coin $ 11,509 
Interest-bearing balemces 8,457 

Securities: 
Held to maturity securities 3,128 

I Available for sale securities ... 40,534 
Federal Funds sold and securities purchased under 

agreements to r e s e l l i n domestic offices of the 
bcr<k and of i t s Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, 
and i i ! T»»F'S: 
Federal funds sold 9,222 
Securities purchased under agreements to r e s e l l 422 

Loans and lease financing receivables: 
Loans and leases, net of unearned income $133,935 
Less: Allowance for loan and lease losses 2,789 
Less: Allocated transfer r i s k reserve.... 16 

Loans and leases, net of unearned income, 
allowance, and reserve 131,130 

Trading Assets 49,876 
Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized 

leases) 2,877 
Other real estate owned. 290 
Investments i n unconsolioated subsidiaries and 

associated companies 124 
Customer's l i e d i i l i t y to t h i s i>ank on acceptai\ces 

outstanding 2,313 
Intangible assets 1,316 
Other assets 11,231 

TOTAL ASSETS $272,429 
mmmmmmmmm 

</TABLE> 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPIION> 

L I A B I L I T I E S 
<S> <C> 
Deposits 

I n domestic o f f i c e s 
N o n i n t e r e s t - b e a r i n g $35,783 
I n t e r e s t - b e a r i n g 51,223 

I n f o r e i g n o f f i c e s . Edge and Agreement s u b s i d i a r i e s , 
and I B F ' s 
Noninterest-bearing $ 4,347 
Interest-bearing .68,859 

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agree­
ments to repurchase in domestic offices of the bank and 

of i t s Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and in IBF's 
Federal funds purchased 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 

Demand notes issued to the U.S. Treasury 
Trading l i a b i l i t i e s 
Other sorrowed money: 

With a remaining maturity of one year or less 
Witi a remaining maturity of more than one year 

Mortgage indebtedness emd obligations under capitalized 
leases 

Bank's l i a b i l i t y on acceptances executed and outstanding 
Subordinated notes and debentures 
Other l i a b i l i t i e s 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Limited-Life Preferred -took amd related surplus 

EQUITY CAPITAL 

Common stock 
Surplus 
Undivided profits and capital reserves 
Net unrealized holding gains (Losses) 
on available-for-sale securities 
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments.... 

TOTAL EQUITY CAPITAL 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, LIKITED-LIFE PREFERRED 
STOCK AND EQUITY CAPITAL 

</TABLE> 

<C> 

$87,006 

73,206 

14,980 
10,125 
1,867 

34,783 

14,639 
425 

40 
2,267 
5,471 

11,343 

256,152 

550 

1,251 
10,243 
4,526 

(309) 
16 

15,727 

$272,429 

I , Joseph L. Sclafani, S.'/.P. t Controller of the above-neuned bemk, do hereby 
declare that t h i s Report ol Condition has been prepared in conformemce with the 
instructions issued by t i e appropriate Federal regulatory authority and i s tme 
to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

JOSEPH L. SCLAFANI 

We, the undersigned director/;, attest to the correctness of this Report of 
Condition and declare that i c has been examined by us, emd to the best of our 
knowledge and be l i e f has l'-,en prepared i n conformance with the instructions 
issued by the appropriate Federal regulatory authority and i s true and correct. 

WALTER V, SHIPLEY 
EDWARD D, MILLER 
THOMAS G. LABRECQUE 

) 
)DIRECTORS 
) 

•5-
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(MCGUIRE, WOODS, BATTLE t BOOTHE, L.L.P. LETTERHEAD] 

Direct Dial: (804) 775-4307 

June 4, 1997 

VIA EDGAR 
Securities emd Exchange Conmission 
D i v i s i c of Corporation Finance 
450 F i f t i Street, N.W. 
W^^shingtcn, D.C. 20549 

CSX CORPORATION 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT ON FORM S-4 

Ladies emd Gentlemen: 

on behalf of CSX Corporation (the "Company"), we enclose for f i l i n g via the 
EDGAR system and pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 (the 
"Act") and the applicable rules amd regulations under the Act, the Company's 
Registration Statement on Form S-4 and certain exhibits thereto (the 
"Registration Statement"). 

I f you have any questions or require any further infcrmation with respect 
to the Registration Statement or any matters relating to th i s f i l i n g , please 
c a l l me at (804) 775-4307 or Karl S t r a i t at (804) 775-1133. 

Very t m l y yours, 

/ s / Joseph C. Carter, I I I 

Joseph C. C->rter, I I I 

JCC/kms 
Enclosure 

mm 
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